
- 1 - 

 
BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
MEETING OF THE PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 

 
MONDAY 16TH NOVEMBER 2009, AT 6.00 P.M. 

 
COMMITTEE ROOM, THE COUNCIL HOUSE, BURCOT LANE, BROMSGROVE 

 
MEMBERS: Councillors C. B. Taylor (Chairman), Mrs. M. Bunker (Vice-

Chairman), S. R. Colella, Mrs. A. E. Doyle, Mrs. J. M. L. A. Griffiths, 
Ms. H. J. Jones and L. J. Turner 
 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. To receive apologies for absence  
 

2. Declarations of Interest  
 

3. To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Performance 
Management Board held on 19th October 2009 (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

4. Quarter 2 09/10 Integrated Finance & Performance Report (Pages 7 - 64) 
 

5. Improvement Plan Exception Report (September 2009) (Pages 65 - 78) 
 

6. Shared Services Highlight Report - verbal update  
 

7. Sustainable Community Strategy 2010-2013 (Pages 79 - 190) 
 

8. Quarterly Recommendation Tracker (Pages 191 - 204) 
 

9. Data Quality Strategy 6 Month Update (Pages 205 - 214) 
 

10. Work Programme (Pages 215 - 220) 
 

11. To consider any other business, details of which have been notified to the 
Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services prior to the 
commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman, by reason of special 



- 2 - 

circumstances, considers to be of so urgent a nature that it cannot wait until 
the next meeting  
 

 K. DICKS 
Joint Chief Executive  

The Council House 
Burcot Lane 
BROMSGROVE 
Worcestershire 
B60 1AA 
 
5th November 2009 
 



 

B R O M S G R O V E  D I S T R I C T  C O U N C I L 
 

MEETING OF THE PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

MONDAY, 19TH OCTOBER 2009 AT 6.00 P.M. 
 
 
 

PRESENT: Councillors C. B. Taylor (Chairman), Mrs. M. Bunker (Vice-Chairman), 
S. R. Colella, Mrs. A. E. Doyle, Mrs. J. M. L. A. Griffiths and L. J. Turner 

  
  
 Officers: Mr. T. Beirne, Mr. J. Godwin and Ms. A. Scarce 

  
 

41/09 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Ms. H. Jones. 
 

42/09 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interest were received. 
 

43/09 MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Performance Management Board held on 
21st September 2009 were submitted. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes be approved as a correct record subject to 
minute numbers 34/09 (g) and 39/09 being included on the Work Programme 
for the next meeting. 
 

44/09 PERFORMANCE REPORT (AUGUST 2009)  
 
The Board considered a report on the Council’s performance at 31st August 
2009. 
 
Members were informed that, as detailed in Appendix 1 of the report, the 
Customer Service Centre average speed of answer (seconds) actual had 
been slower than the target due to an upgrade of equipment.  An improvement 
would be seen once the initial teething problems had been resolved.  
 
With regards to the summary as detailed in Appendix 1 of the report, it was 
requested that more detailed information be provided at future meetings on 
the missing target percentage.  A breakdown of the current figure of 11% 
would have been more informative. 
 
It was questioned why the number of missed household waste collections had 
been over target since April 2009.  Mr. J. Godwin, Deputy Head of Street 
Scene and Community advised that this was due to the introduction of green 
bins and the confusion this had caused.  He referred Members to Appendix 3 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Performance Management Board 
19th October 2009 

 

of the report which showed the situation was steadily improving and should be 
back on target by the end of the financial year.  Members were concerned that 
the introduction of the new recycling and garden waste system in March 2010 
would affect the target.  Mr. Godwin confirmed that this would not be the case 
as the system had been revised accordingly. 
 
It was noted that the CCTV incidents targets had not been met and therefore 
red.  Mr. Godwin responded and provided Members with an explanation and 
assured Members that the targets would improve.   
 
During discussion it was noted that the Assistant Chief Executive had advised 
that the sickness level continued to improve and that negotiations were 
underway between unions and officers in respect of the pilot scheme 
discussed at the meeting on 21st September 2009. 
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that it be noted that 61% of performance indicators are stable or 
 improving; 
(b) that it be noted that 59% of performance indicators which had a target 
 are meeting their target at the month end and 89% were projected to 
 meet their target at the year end; 
(c) that the particular areas of improvement as set out in section 3.6 of the 
 report be noted; and 
(d) that the areas of concern as set out in section 3.6 of the report be 
 noted. 
 

45/09 IMPROVEMENT PLAN EXCEPTION REPORT (AUGUST 2009)  
 
The Board considered the Improvement Plan Exception report for August 
2009. 
 
The Assistant Chief Executive had requested that in his absence the 
Executive Director (Services) inform Members on the following points with 
regards to Appendix 1 of the report (page 47): 
 
§  Area Action Plan 
 1.1.1 Engage specialist organisation to complete unified vision - a 
 meeting in respect of this had taken place last week.   
§  Redevelopment of the Market Hall site 
 1.3.3  Undertaken actions recommended in report - this had been  
 agreed and will be moved forward.   
§  Community engagement 
 1.4.5  Establish Leisure Centre study Group - the revised date for this 
 item was October and had been actioned.  
§  Medium Term Financial Plan and Statutory accounts 
 5.2.8 Deliver Use of resources action plan in relation to new 
 framework - Ms. J Pickering, Head of Financial Services was waiting 
 the detailed report from the Audit Commission (expected in  November 
2009) to enable the Council to prepare a plan to meet their 
 recommendations and to make improvements to future judgements. 
 

Page 2



Performance Management Board 
19th October 2009 

 

RESOLVED: 
(a) that the revisions to the Improvement Plan Exception report together 
 with the corrective action being taken be noted; 
(b) that it be noted that for the 71 actions highlighted for August within the 
 plan 84.5% of the Improvement Plan was on target (green) , 8.5% was 
 one month behind (amber) and no actions were over one month behind 
 (red).   7% of actions had been reprogrammed or suspended with 
 approval. 
 

46/09 COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP - PARTNERSHIP PLAN 2009-2011  
 
Members were asked to consider and comment on the Strategic Assessment  
2008 and the Bromsgrove Community Safety Partnership (CSP) Partnership 
Plan 2009/2011.  The reports highlighted the information used to identify 
areas of current and future concern within the CSP tasking process. 
 
Mr. Godwin provided Members with background information on the structure 
and role of Community Safety Partnerships prior to recent legislation changes.  
Local authorities had a legal responsibility to establish Crime and Disorder 
Reduction Partnerships and submit annual and 3 year plans to Government 
Office West Midlands to be reviewed and approved, which was a very 
bureaucratic and centrally controlled process. 
 
Changes had also taken place on how CSP would be performance measured, 
moving away from Best Value Performance indicators which had been a 
“weighing and measuring” tool that was very much statistical based.  Local 
Area Agreements had moved away from measuring numbers and had moved 
towards perceptions and how people feel about the area in which they lived.  
The government had decided this was a bureaucratic system which was no 
longer appropriate and had devolved the power back to the Crime and 
Disorder Reduction Partnerships (CDRPs). 
 
The recent legislative changes had resulted in the production of the Strategic 
Assessment, which involved reviewing the area where you live; identifying the 
key issues that impact on that area and what the issues are by using local 
knowledge to understand these issues.  Within Bromsgrove, Wyre Forest, 
Redditch and the Southern county CDRP that function was undertaken by the 
County Council.  
 
The partnership plan would cover a 3 year period and had been produced and 
adopted by Bromsgrove District Council, Worcestershire County Council, 
Worcestershire Primary Care Trust, West Mercia Police, Hereford & 
Worcestershire Fire and Rescue Service and West Mercia Probation Trust.  
The plan would be refreshed every year and a new Strategic Assessment 
issued. 
 
Mr. Godwin responded to questions from Members regarding available 
funding.  Funding was available for 2010-2011 and bids had been put in for 
the highest areas of need, Charford, Sidemoor and Catshill.  The skill of the 
CDRP analyst was to identify the area where individual issues lay and the 
response input required.  Each area had different, but equally important 

Page 3



Performance Management Board 
19th October 2009 

 

needs.  Catshill did not feature in certain areas of need but had a significant 
number of Not in Education Employment or Training (NEETs) that did not 
appear to such an extent in Charford or Sidemoor, so therefore needed a very 
different approach. 
 
During the discussion it was suggested that both reports would provide very 
valuable evidence in the work of the Overview and Scrutiny Boards and 
should be included in their work programme. 
 
 
Reference was made to the lack of diversionary activities available to young 
people and that youth related anti social behaviour (ASB) and alcohol related 
ASB (youth related) were highlighted as priorities.  It was noted by Members 
that this was an issue that would be looked at by Overview and Scrutiny, as 
would the Council’s licensing policy.   
 
Reference was also made to under age drinking of alcohol and which in many 
cases was thought to be obtained through proxy sales.  Mr. Godwin advised 
that this was being investigated in partnership with County and Trading 
Standards. He also indicated that more testing of under age sales would be 
carried out and a bid for funding was being investigated for a scheme whereby 
bottles were labelled in order to trace where they had been purchased from.   
 
During the discussion a request was made for an update on the position in 
respect of fixed penalty notices as these were frequently referred to within the 
report.  Mr. Godwin advised that the original scheme was felt to be too 
expensive at the time, however further options were being investigated. 
 
Members discussed at length the areas of concern and Mr. Godwin pointed 
out that one of the benefits of the Community Safety Plan, was that for the first 
time it tied in all the partner agencies and stated who would deploy what 
resources to the partnership, which has not happened previously.   
 
It was queried whether Bromsgrove had a Community Cohesion strategy, as 
referred to in the report.  Mr. Godwin explained why this was not in place at 
present. 
 
RECOMMENDED that the Community Safety Partnership – Partnership Plan 
2009-2011 be recognised as good evidence and be used to inform and assist 
the Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme. 
 

47/09 BROMSGROVE PROFILE  
 
The Chairman advised Members that they were asked to consider the 
Bromsgrove Profile report and make recommendations if appropriate for 
action to be taken where necessary. 
 
Concern was expressed over the 16-18 year olds NEET (Not in Education 
Employment or Training) figure of 10.9%.  This was felt to be high and as the 
information was from May 2008 was likely to have risen further due to the 
current economic climate.  Members were concerned that the increase in 

Page 4



Performance Management Board 
19th October 2009 

 

NEETs could also have an effect on anti social behaviour in particular areas.  
A query was also raised about services that were available to, and 
employment prospects of, young people with disabilities.  Members discussed 
these issues and felt that meeting the need of children and young people as 
described in the Bromsgrove Profile “To ensure all children and young people 
have the opportunity to participate in positive activities” which covered 
National Indicators and Local Indicators warranted further investigation.  It was 
felt that services could be available at both local and county level, which 
Members were unaware of. 
 
Concern was also expressed over the percentages of people over 65 years of 
age without central heating.  Members noted that these figures were taken 
from the 2001 Census and were therefore outdated; nevertheless they were a 
cause for concern.  Members were informed that the Older Peoples’ Task 
Group had received a great deal of information on the benefits and services 
available and it was investigating lack of awareness. 
 
Councillor Colella advised that the areas discussed had in fact been picked up 
and included within the Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme Planning 
Workshop which had taken place on 6th October 2009.  Other topics within 
the report had also been included within the work programme. He felt that the 
Bromsgrove Profile was an important document to enable all the topics on the 
Work Programme to be taken forward.  He explained that these topics would 
be discussed at meetings of the appropriate Board and, if necessary the 
relevant task group set up. 
 
RECOMMENDED that the Bromsgrove Profile be used as a primary document 
for the research of relevant topics on the Overview and Scrutiny Work 
Programme. 
 

48/09 WORK PROGRAMME  
 
Members were informed by the Chairman that the Assistant Chief Executive 
would give a short presentation to the next meeting on the Community 
Strategy Annual Report 2008/09 and Community Strategy 2010/2013. 
 
The Chairman also confirmed that the visit to Selby District Council would be 
on 5th November 2009 and Tunbridge Wells on 12th November 2009. 
 
RESOLVED that the work programme be approved subject to the inclusion of 
an update on how the Council and its partners are responding to the 
recession, particularly in relation to unemployment issues to the November 
meeting of the Board. 
 
 

The meeting closed at 8.00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

16 NOVEMBER 2009  
 

SEPTEMBER (QUARTER 2) INTEGRATED FINANCE & PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  
 

Councillor Roger Hollingworth  
Leader of the Council 
Councillor Geoff Denaro 
PMB Member for Finance 

Responsible Head of Service Hugh Bennett  
Assistant Chief Executive 
Jayne Pickering, Head of Financial 
Services 
 

 
1.  SUMMARY 
 

To report to the Board on the Council’s performance and financial position at 30th 

September 2009. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That PMB notes that 62% of PI’s for which data is available are Improving or Stable.  
 
2.2 That PMB notes that 58% of PI’s for which data is available are achieving their Year to 

Date target. 
 
2.3 That PMB notes that 80% of PI’s for which data is available are predicted to meet their 

target at year end.   
 
2.4 That PMB notes the successes and areas for potential concern as set out in the ‘Council 

Summary’ below. 
 
2.5 That PMB note the current financial position on Revenue and Capital as detailed in the 

report and consider the proposed actions to mitigate the overspend on revenue. 
 
2.6 That PMB note the release of previously approved earmarked reserves of £249k, as set 

out in Appendix 5. 
 
2.7 That PMB approves the budget virements listed in Appendix 6. 
 
2.8 That PMB note that Cabinet recommend to Full Council to reduce the Capital Programme 

2009/10 by £1.148m as detailed in Appendix 7 to reflect the projects, that due to the 
factors detailed in this report will not be delivered during 2009/10.  These projects are 
recommended to be included in the 2010/11 Capital Programme. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 7



 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 This is the second integrated quarterly finance and performance report for 2009/10.    
 
3.2 The integration of finance and performance demonstrates that the Council is taking a 

wider view of the impact of financial resources when performance changes and the link 
between the two measures. 

 
4. PROGRESS IN THE QUARTER 
  
4.1 An integrated performance and finance report for each department, plus a council 

summary, is shown on the following pages. 
 
 
4.1.1 Overall Council Summary  Quarter 2 (September 30th) 

2009/10 
 

Performance Summary 
No. of PI’s 
improving (I) 23 

No. of PI’s meeting YTD 
target 23 

No. of PI’s where est. 
outturn projected to 
meet target 

32 

No. of PI’s Stable 
(S) 5 No. of PI’s missing YTD 

target by < 10% 11 No. of PI’s projected to 
miss target by < 10% 4 

No. of PI’s 
worsening (W) 17 No. of PI’s missing YTD 

target by >10% 6 No. of PI’s projected to 
miss target by >10% 4 

Achievements 
• Sickness absence has reduced significantly for the second month running.  In 

September sickness absence was less than half the figure in July.   
 
 
 
 
 
Issues 

• The PI’s meeting their year to date target figure of 58% is lower than this time in 
previous years.  Although 80% are still predicted to meet target at the year end a 22 
percentage point gap presents a degree of risk.   

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Revenue Budget summary – Overall Council 
 

Page 8



Service Head 

Revised 
Budget  
2009/10 
£’000 

Profiled 
Budget 
April - 
Sept 
£’000 

Actual 
spend April 
- Sept 
£’000 

Variance 
to date 
April - 
Sept 
£’000 

 

Projected 
outturn 
2009/10 
£’000 

Projected 
variance 
2009/10 
£’000 

Corporate 
Services 801 397 408 11  826 25 

E-Government & 
Customer 
Services 

61 1,105 1,172 67  166 105 

Financial 
Services 1,541 560 550 -10  1,587 46 

Legal, Equalities 
& Democratic 
Services 

955 902 875 -27  918 -37 

Human 
Resources & 
Organisational 
Development 

0 239 268 29  22 22 

Planning & 
Environment 
Services 

4,944 1,042 995 -47  5,056 112 

Street Scene & 
Community 8,457 2,330 2,476 146  8,499 42 

SERVICE TOTAL  16,759 6,575 6,744 169  17,074 315 

Interest on 
Investments -166 -83 -43 40  -105 61 

COUNCIL 
SUMMARY 16,593 6,492 6,701 209  16,969 376 

Financial Commentary 
 
There is a significant overspend to the end of September together with a projected deficit to 
the end of the financial year.  The main reasons for the present and predicted overspend 
include: 

• Impact of the downturn in the housing market on the land charges and building control 
income targets. 

• Significant increase in printing charges compared to those originally anticipated. 
• Increases in bank charges due to impact of the demand in use of card transactions 

together with the high cost of cash transactions processed. 
• Shortfall on the income anticipated from investments due to the rates of return being 

less than predicted estimates.  The majority of the cash is currently invested in the 
Debt Management Office which is paying only 0.28% interest on the funds invested. 

 
There are a number of actions that will be put in place to mitigate the overspend, these 
include: 

• Transfer of an element of funds into a low risk but higher yield investment.  Following 
discussions with treasury advisors it is understood that the Council can achieve 2.5% 
on limited investments with similar protection as presently in place. 

• A freeze on vacancies.  The Council is currently holding a vacancy freeze in 

Page 9



consideration of the future joint arrangements with both Redditch and the WETT 
programme.  The freeze will ensure that business critical services are maintained 
whilst providing savings for the remainder of the financial year. 

• Review of non-essential expenditure.  Corporate Management Team are to discuss 
the process of ordering items with the aim to only fund areas of essential spend to 
ensure services are delivered to the customer and to reduce any non-essential spend 
on general office services. 

• Review of contracts in place to identify any where renegotiation can be undertaken to 
reduce costs in the short term. 

• Marketing of Council services to maximise income generation over the 2nd half of the 
year. 

 
It is anticipated that these actions will reduce the overspend.  Future reports will monitor the 
financial position to Members. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 10



Capital Budget summary April-Sept 2009 
 
 

Department 

Revised 
Budget 
2009/10 
£’000 

Actual spend 
April - Sept 

£’000 

Variance  
To date 
April – Sept 
     £’000     

 
Projected 

outturn 
£’000 

Projected 
variance 
£’000 

Corporate 
Services 

75 16 
-59 

 16 -59 

E-
Government 
& Customer 
Services 

304 50 

 
-254  245 -59 

Financial 
Services 

6 2 
-4 

 6 - 

Legal, 
Equality & 
Democratic 
Services 

86 0 

 
-86  0 -86 

Planning & 
Environment 
(inc 
Housing) 

2,418 624 

 
-1,794  1,488 -930 

Street Scene 
and 
Community 

2,681 372 
 

-2,309  2,385 -296 

Budget for 
Support 
Services 
Recharges 

133 - 

 
 

-133 
 

 133 - 

 
TOTAL 5,703 1,064 -4,639  4,273 -1,430 

Financial Commentary 
• The £700k budget for the development of affordable housing has been earmarked for 

housing at the Perryfield Lane site.  A request has been made to carry forward this 
budget into 2010/11 as the Council are awaiting a grant from the Housing and 
Communities Agency to enable work to commence. 

• The £203k budget earmarked for improvement works at Houndsfield Lane Caravan Park 
will not be spent in this financial year and a request has been received to roll the budget 
forward into 2010/11, to await the outcome of a bid to the Housing and Communities 
Agency for a grant to match fund the project. 

• The £360k budget for District Wide Sports Enhancement is being procured with work due 
to commence either later in 2009/10 or in some cases in 2010/11 to allow for the 
continuation of sports provision within the district. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



 
4.1.2 Street Scene & Community Quarter 2 (September 30th) 

2009/10 
 

Performance Summary 
No. of PI’s 
improving (I) 11 

No. of PI’s meeting YTD 
target 14 

No. of PI’s where est. 
outturn projected to 
meet target 

18 

No. of PI’s Stable 
(S) 2 No. of PI’s missing YTD 

target by < 10% 6 No. of PI’s projected to 
miss target by < 10% 2 

No. of PI’s 
worsening (W) 8 No. of PI’s missing YTD 

target by >10% 0 No. of PI’s projected to 
miss target by >10% 0 

Achievements 
• Dolphin centre fitness suite memberships have exceeded 750.  
• The completion of the street Theatre and Bandstand programme across 4 areas of 

the district to inc. Hagley, Rubery & Wythall.  
• Reviewed and revised the Bonfire Programme and the establishment of a formal 

partnership with Primrose Hospice for the market and pre sale of event tickets.  
• The opening to the public of the new Swanslength play area funded via the DCSF, 

which was designed in consultation with local school children.  
• The completion of the CCTV & Life line shared service business case and the 

agreement of elected members to pursue a fully integrated shared service.  
• The formal endorsement and launch of the 2009 refresh of the Community Safety 

Partnership’s Partnership Plan for 2008 to 2011.  
• Expansion of the council’s sponsorship offer and several networking presentation that 

have resulted in several potential sponsorship packages being developed.  
• The review of the allotment and play area provision and the commencement of 

operational changes in line with the PPG17 report to members Inc the preparation of 
future budget bids to support the recommendations with in the report.  

• Success bid to the ASA for the provision of free swimming lesson to targeted over 60 
groups by the Dolphin Centre and sports development teams.  

• The running of the first disability sports festival in Bromsgrove attend by 25 
competitors.  

• The expansion of the councils adult mobility programme to the Wythall area in 
partnership with Worcestershire NHS.  

• The opening of the Bromsgrove Gymnastics Club by the Sport Development Team.  
• Over 60 community coaching sessions undertaken during the school summer 

holidays.  
• The development of a Disabled Children’s Obesity programme in Bromsgrove in 

partnership with Chadsgrove School and Worcestershire PCT to launch in January 
2010.  

• The opening of Twin MUGAs in Sanders Park through successful partnership with 
local young people to obtain £80K funding.  

• Green Flag award for Sanders Park 
• The opening of the town centre toilets.  
• Increased car parking usage.  
• Guidance and operational support provide to several new community events through 

out the District Inc the Fairfield Festival and the Rubery Tattoo.  
• The rolling out of the Eco Schools assessment programme across the district.  

Page 12



• The implementation of the  a promotions campaign for the changes to the waste 
collection service Inc PC forums and associate presentations 

• MRF at Norton on schedule for operation later in year (November 2nd) in advance of 
service change in April 2010  

• Members training session – 8th July successfully delivered and received  
• Depot sickness forum now established and meeting regularly. (Trades Unions and 

Managers). Sickness/absence showing significant improvement by end September.  
• Street Theatre displays on service change completed  
• Work begun on a local, joint, Climate Change strategy and action plan  
• Meeting arranged with HSE to discuss any outstanding issues from their report into 

side arm vehicles. No concerns outstanding. HSE satisfied with work carried out and 
progress to replacement of fleet.  

 
 
Issues  

• The Artrix SLA has been delayed and further discussions are ongoing.  A meeting is 
booked for Oct 09 and officers are hopeful that a final SLA can be agreed with in the 
next 2 months.  

• Dolphin Centre usage is lower than anticipated, but under review.  Initial indications 
are that the lower usage is from group/club bookings such as children’s parties and 
swimming galas.  

• Due to capacity issues football pitch enhancement works are behind schedule and will 
be re programmed following the procurement stage of the process.  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



Revenue Budget summary – Street Scene & Community 
 

 
 

Service Head 

Revised 
Budget  
2009/10 
£’000 

Profiled 
Budget  
April - Sept 
£’000 

Actual 
spend  
April - Sept 
£’000 

Variance to 
date 
April - Sept 
£’000 

 

Projected 
outturn 
2009/10 
£’000 

Projected 
variance 
2009/10 
£’000 

Community 
Safety 722 326 262 -64  707 -15 

Parks & 
Recreation 690 145 188 43  751 61 

Promotions 309 104 228 124  327 18 

Sports 
Centres 947 310 368 58  1,000 53 

Sports 
Development 178 67 74 7  182 4 

Streets & 
Grounds 2,498 687 675 -12  2,500 2 

Car Parks -793 -427 -483 -55  -884 -91 

Depot Misc 44 7 11 4  -48 -4 

SS&C 
Mgt/admin 88 233 230 3  116 27 

Transport & 
Waste 3,368 631 623 -8  3,306 -62 

Travel 
Concessions 493 246 253 7  521 28 

Waste Policy 0 0 25 25  21 21 

TOTAL 8,457 2,330 2,476 146  8,499 42 
Financial Commentary 
 

• Car Parking income remains positive and ahead of target it is anticipated that the 
budget figures will be exceeded by £135k however due to budget pressures in other 
areas the overall increase will be in the region of £92k.  These implications will be 
taken into account during the current business planning cycle and the MTFP base 
budget adjusted accordingly.  

• Travel Concessions is likely to be over spent by the end of the year, with expected 
expenditure of £680k, therefore making a net overspend of approximately £28k.  This 
is due to the increased demand of the service. 

• The current under spend relating to Community Safety reflects the establishment of 
the shared service with Redditch Borough Council and relates to the transfer of BDC 
staff to RBC employment, these funds will be drawn down within the next 4 months in 
line with the service level agreement.  

• The CCTV overspend relates to the sickness cover requirement to meet our code of 
practice and operating standards, this cost is however offset against additional income 
generation through the monitoring of  3rd party CCTV systems. 

• The life line service is forecasting additional income of £20,000 above its baseline 

Page 14



budget following the restructure of the service in early 2009.  Additional activities 
include increase market penetration and diversification, increase networking and 
promotional activities and the undertaking of engagement to redefine service delivery.  

• The cemetery budget is of concern following lower income generation than expected, 
officers are reviewing the situation with a view to identifying potential issues and 
opportunities for example a review of fee’s and charges.  The other area of concern 
relates to the Old cemetery and the cost of maintenance work on the tree stock 
following the tree survey by colleagues in the planning section.  Officers are also 
progressing the new phases at the North Cemetery and this has resulted in 
unavoidable cost being incurred to ensure the new layouts and designs meet 
legislative requirements.  

• The events programme is over spent at this stage following the pilot roll out of the 
bandstand programme across the district, officers are now preparing a budget bid to 
confirm the roll out in future years following positive feedback from residents.  

• The sponsorship budget target will not be met this year primarily due to the delay in 
obtaining licenses for road traffic islands resulting in a delay in promoting these 
services.  Officers will focus on this matter once the annual Civic bonfire is completed 
and look to mitigate the shortfall.  However at present the budget target is not 
expected to be realised until 2010/11.  

• Due to a number of essential one off maintenance and operational requirements 
indentified following the Dolphin Centre service restructure and as a result of the 
enhanced service provided, the DC expenditure budget would have been over spent 
by around £35k.  These additional costs would have been offset by the increased 
income generation achieved on site and overall the service would have been 
delivered on and under budget. However as the car parking refunds have now been 
factored into the centre’s overall budget it is predicted that the centre will be £53k over 
spent.    

• The recession has bought about an increase nationally in abandoned dogs, resulting 
in higher kenneling costs. 

• Loss of income from Hire of Burcot room £32k, and BDHT street cleansing SLA of 
£50k.  

• Work is continuing on sickness reduction at the depot and already showing 
improvement if this trend can be sustained a further 10-20k could be saved in agency 
costs, reducing the current service overspend. 

• All services are being reviewed to identify if any non essential expenditure exists to 
further reduce overspend.     

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



 
Capital Budget summary April-September 09/10 
 

Service  

Revised 
Budget 
2009/10 
£’000 

Actual spend 
April - Sept 

£’000 

Variance to 
Date 

April – Sept 
£’000 

 

Projected 
outturn 
2009/10 
£’000 

Projected 
variance 
2009/10 
£’000 

Cemeteries 25 0 -25  25 - 
Community 
Safety 54 0 -54  54 - 

Parks, Play 
areas & 
Open 
Spaces 

793 148 

 
-645  498 -245 

Leisure 
Centres 16 0 -16  16 - 

Culture and 
Community 
General 

20 5 
-16 

 20 - 

Replacement 
Vehicles 

1070 216 
 

-853  1069 -1 

Street Scene 
General 703 3 -700  703 - 

TOTAL 2,681 372 -2,309  2,385 -296 
 
Financial Commentary: 
 

• The £80k Capital project at Sanders Park for the multi use games area has now been 
completed, with the new games area open for use. 

 
• The new park at Barnsley Hall is a £215k Capital project which is at the procurement 

stage, with works due to commence in the 3rd quarter of 2009/10. It is expected to be 
completed by March 2010.  

 
• Works at the Dolphin Centre are complete with only the retention to be paid in 2009-10.  

 
• The £360k budget for District Wide Sports Enhancements is in the procurement stages 

with the majority of the works due for completion in the final quarter of 2009-10.  
 

• £1.2m of vehicles and bins have been ordered and delivery is expected in the third 
quarter.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



 
4.1.3 Planning & Environment Services Quarter 2 (September 30th) 

2009/10 
 

Performance Summary 
No. of PI’s 
improving (I) 5 

No. of PI’s meeting YTD 
target 3 

No. of PI’s where est. 
outturn projected to 
meet target 

4 

No. of PI’s Stable 
(S) 1 No. of PI’s missing YTD 

target by < 10% 2 No. of PI’s projected to 
miss target by < 10% 1 

No. of PI’s 
worsening (W) 2 No. of PI’s missing YTD 

target by >10% 3 No. of PI’s projected to 
miss target by >10% 3 

Achievements 
• The Head of Planning and Environment Services have been engaged in extensive 

discussions involving the Worcestershire Enhanced Two Tier (WETT) programme, 
involving Regulatory Services. 

• Building Control have had a BSI Audit on their processes undertaken and have been 
re-accredited. 

• Taxi Licensing has been transferred to Redditch on a trial basis of 6 months to 
ascertain the feasibility of a permanent transfer and to accommodate a request by the 
Principal Licensing Officer to undertake reduced hours. 

• Development Control performance remained strong for the quarter: 
• Major  = 100% 
• Minor  = 85% 
• Other  = 87% 
• Discussions continuing with St. Modwen re viability of delivering Longbridge. 
• Changes discussed with Finance with regard to changes to the POP system to speed 

up DFG delivery 
 
 
 
Issues 

• The RRS Panel Report is likely to report imminently 
• At the time of considering this report Members should be aware of the proposed 

housing figures for the Council up to 2026. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



 
 
 
 
 
 

Revenue Budget summary – Planning & Environment 
 

Service Head 

Revised 
Budget  
2009/10 
£’000 

Profiled 
budget  
April - Sept 
£’000 

Actual 
spend  
April - Sept 
£’000 

Variance 
to date 
April - Sept 
£’000 

 

Projected 
outturn 
2009/10 
£’000 

Projected 
variance 
2009/10 
£’000 

Building 
Control -26 -69 -27 42  44 70 

Development 
Control 1,007 45 24 -21  1,001 -6 

Environmental 
Health 1,065 308 291 -17  1,031 -34 

Licensing -17 -17 -42 -25  -22 -5 
Planning 
Administration 25 87 106 19  54 29 

Strategic 
Housing 2160 377 359 -18  2,157 -3 

Strategic 
Planning 583 248 224 -24  568 -15 

Economic 
Development 119 61 52 -9  131 12 

Retail Market 28 2 8 6  92 64 

TOTAL 4,944 1,042 995 -47  5,056 112 

Financial Commentary 
 

• There is a loss of income within building control, Land charges and Development 
control which is projected to increase and show as an overspend for year end, this is 
due to the current economic climate and the provision of the service by private 
companies. 

• The current under-spends are due to a number of vacancies within the department of 
which some have recently been filled resulting in a reduced underspend by the year 
end. 

• It is expected that there will be an overspend within Economic Development due to the 
loss of income generation for miscellaneous rents.  

• Although the town centre stalls are generating income the majority of the overspend 
within the retail market is related to the loss of income from the market hall. Some of 
the overspend is also due to a temporary need to hire a vehicle to assist with the 
transportation of the stalls from storage to the town centre, the hire of this vehicle has 
now ceased. There has also been a need to hire agency staff to assist with the setup of 
stalls within the town centre. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



 
 
Capital Budget summary April-Sept 2009/10 

 

Service 

Revised 
Budget 
2009/10 
£’000 

Actual spend 
April - Sept 

£’000 

Variance to 
Date 

April – Sept 
£’000 

 

Projected 
outturn 
2009/10 
£’000 

Projected 
variance 
2009/10 
£’000 

Strategic 
Housing 2,075 401 -1,674  1,157 -918 

Town Centre 343 223 -120  331 -12 

TOTAL 2,418 624  
-1,794  1,488 -930 

Financial Commentary 
• There has been expenditure of £206k on Disabled Facilities Grants, this is traditionally 

lower than budgeted up to quarter 2. Performance is being closely monitored and the 
whole DFG process is currently under review to identify service improvements both ‘in 
house’ and through the work of the North Worcestershire Care and Repair Service who 
carry out DFG works to private dwellings in the District. 

• There has been increased expenditure on Energy Efficiency grants for home insulation 
projects with £29k being spent to date, with a further £18k planned to be spent in 
2009/10. 

• The £700k budget for the development of affordable housing in the district has been 
earmarked for 100% affordable housing at the Perryfields Road Site. This scheme is still 
in the planning/ review stages and scheme preparation is ongoing.  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 19



 
4.1.4 E-Government & Customer Services Quarter 2 (September 30th) 

2009/10 
 

Performance Summary 
No. of PI’s 
improving (I) 1 

No. of PI’s meeting YTD 
target 2 

No. of PI’s where est. 
outturn projected to 
meet target 

3 

No. of PI’s Stable 
(S)  No. of PI’s missing YTD 

target by < 10%  No. of PI’s projected to 
miss target by < 10%  

No. of PI’s 
worsening (W) 2 No. of PI’s missing YTD 

target by >10% 1 No. of PI’s projected to 
miss target by >10%  

Achievements 
• Change of the core CRM system from e-shop to One Serve from the 6th July 
• Go-live with Smart Point,  screen scraping technology, from the 1st August 
• Production of shared service business case for ICT services with Redditch BC. 
• Delivery of shared elections service. 
• Successfully joined the Bromsgrove network with the Redditch network to enable the 

sharing of systems such as elections. 
• Go live with a new website design.  The system used to manage the content is 

simpler to use enabling staff to keep their content current. 
• Started the development of the Uniform system to support green bin collection 

service. 
 
 
 
  
 
Issues 

• Sickness has been issue with staff either having or exhibiting swine flu symptoms 
during this period – this has a direct impact on performance especially because it was 
also the main holiday period when other staff where committed to annual leave 

• The general down turn in the economy is driving demand in the second quarter the 
CSC has seen increased enquiries in relation to Council Tax which is placing 
pressure on the service centre to maintain PI’s. 

• Difficulties filling the Principal Web Developer post.  External candidates have not had 
the experience required.  Agencies have been contacted and a few candidates 
interviewed.  Unfortunately no one was suitable.  Looking at the possibility of an 
internal secondment to fill the post for a three month period. 

• The new corporate printers are not providing the savings they should.  An initial 
meeting with suppliers has taken place to review how they calculated the projected 
savings. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 20



 
 
Revenue Budget summary – E-Government & Customer Services 
 

Service Head 

Revised 
Budget  
2009/10 
£’000 

Profiled 
budget  
April - Sept 
£’000 

Actual 
spend  
April - Sept 
£’000 

Variance to 
date 
April - Sept 
£’000 

 

Projected 
outturn 
2009/10 
£’000 

Projected 
variance 
2009/10 
£’000 

Customer 
Service Centre 

61 252 206 -46  20 -41 

E-Government 
0 853 966 113  146 146 

TOTAL 61 1,105 1,172 67  166 105 
Financial Commentary 
 

• The underspend within the Customer Service Centre is mainly related to a number of 
vacancies within the department.  

 
• The overspend within E-Government is mainly related to charges for printing together 

with the Revenue charges for the Spatial Project.  A review is currently being 
undertaken to review the printing charges across the Council.   

 
• Some of the overspend within the department is also related to the software and 

telephone budgets which are currently under review.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Capital Budget summary April-September 2009/10 
 

Service  
Revised Budget  
2009/10 
£’000 

Actual spend 
April - Sept 
£’000 

Variance to 
date 
April – Sept 
£’000 

 

Projected 
outturn 
2009/10 
£’000 

Projected 
variance 
2009/10 
£’000 

E-Government 304 50 -254  245 -59 

TOTAL 304 50 -254  245 -59 
Financial Commentary 

• All of E-Government’s schemes are carry forwards from 2008-09, with the exception of 
the newly added Shared Services Phase 1 Scheme, which is to facilitate joint working 
with Redditch Borough Council.  

 
• E-Government has seen delays due to the need for actions to be completed by external 

bodies, this has led to the majority of the schemes being unspent up to quarter 2. 
However, by the end of Quarter 3 it is expected that a large amount of the schemes will 
be completed as orders are being placed in October 2009.  

 
 

Page 21



4.1.5 Financial Services Quarter 2 (September  30th) 
2009/10 

 

Performance Summary 
No. of PI’s 
improving (I) 4 

No. of PI’s meeting YTD 
target 3 

No. of PI’s where est. 
outturn projected to 
meet target 

5 

No. of PI’s Stable 
(S) 1 No. of PI’s missing YTD 

target by < 10% 2 No. of PI’s projected to 
miss target by < 10% 1 

No. of PI’s 
worsening (W) 3 No. of PI’s missing YTD 

target by >10% 1 No. of PI’s projected to 
miss target by >10% 0 

Achievements 
• Support to External Audit in the final accounts process 
• Completion of the 2008/09 Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim and estimate 2009/10 
• Continued to process benefit claims quickly using the VRA system  
• Supported BDHT in the verification of documents at their offices to improve service to 

customers 
• Initial discussions with Capita to assess new developments in revenues and benefit 

systems  
• Preliminary discussions relating to the medium term financial plan with CMT and PMB 
• Supported the WETT business cases in the provision of financial information  
• Reported the final accounts outcomes and Internal Audit performance to the Audit Board 
• Fraud sanctions 60% above target for 2009/10 
• Single person discount review continuing to match data received 
 
 
  
 
Issues 
• No clarity from the DWP in relation to financial support to the continuation of the VRA 

system. To continue with using system into 2010/11 when further details should be 
available from DWP. 

• Legal support sought over business rate debtors to challenge their non-payment of debt 
• Issues arising from the final accounts report being discussed further with External Audit 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



Revenue Budget summary – Financial Services 
 

Service Head 

Revised 
Budget  
2009/10 
£’000 

Profiled 
Budget  
April - Sept 
£’000 

Actual 
spend  
April - Sept 
£’000 

Variance to 
date 
April - Sept 
£’000 

 

Projected 
outturn 
2009/10 
£’000 

Projected 
variance 
2009/10 
£’000 

Central 
Overheads 120 60 32 -28  138 18 

Accountancy 28 300 314 14  55 27 

Internal Audit  0 43 59 16  10 10 
Grants & 
Donations 89 44 38 -6  83 -6 

Revenues & 
Benefits 1,304 113 107 -6  1,301 -3 

TOTAL 1,541 560 550 -10  1,587 46 
Financial Commentary 
 

• Due to the significant increase in the number of gym members at the Dolphin Centre 
there has been an increase in the number of Direct Debits to be processed for this 
membership within the Finance Section a temporary member of staff has been employed 
to assist with this increased demand.  

• The Council is pursuing a VAT claim with Customs and Excise to address liability of prior 
year VAT payments (Fleming case).  The value of the claim is significant and therefore 
there is a cost associated with bringing the case to court (£5k). 

• Due to the difficulties in recruiting an internal audit manager an arrangement has been 
made with Worcester City to provide this support.  It is proposed that the WETT 
programme will include Internal Audit from 2010/11 but there is a current overspend to 
meet the requirement of internal control across the Council.  

• Within the accountancy and revenues and benefits section there has been an increase in 
the charges from giro bank and HSBC.  The Council benefited from a period of free 
banking which has now been removed and this has contributed to the overspend.  A 
comparison with other district charges has been prepared and the Head of Financial 
Services with the Procurement Officer is to meet with the Bank Manager to discuss our 
banking terms.  

 
Capital Budget summary April-September 2009/10 
 
 

Service  
Revised Budget  
2009/10 
£’000 

Actual spend 
April - Sept 
£’000 

Variance to 
Date 
April – Sept 
£’000 

 

Projected 
outturn 
2009/10 
£’000 

Projected 
variance 
2009/10 
£’000 

Finance 6 2 -4  6 - 

TOTAL 6 2 -4  6 - 
Financial Commentary 

• Work on the introduction of the POPs system throughout the Council has now been 
completed, the remaining budget is required to extend the system with the development of 
Commitment Accounting.  

 

Page 23



 
 

4.1.6 Corporate Services Department Quarter 2 (September 30th) 
2009/10 

 

Performance Summary 
No. of PI’s 
improving (I) 0 

No. of PI’s meeting YTD 
target 1 

No. of PI’s where est. 
outturn projected to 
meet target 

1 

No. of PI’s Stable 
(S) 1 No. of PI’s missing YTD 

target by < 10% 0 No. of PI’s projected to 
miss target by < 10% 0 

No. of PI’s 
worsening (W) 0 No. of PI’s missing YTD 

target by >10% 0 No. of PI’s projected to 
miss target by >10% 0 

 
Achievements 

• The CCPP team completed the Council’s annual report, which was made much more 
difficult this year with the switch from BVPIs to the new National Indicators (NIs).  The 
Annual Report continued to show a rapid rate of improvement (72% of targets 
exceeded). 

 
• The Customer Access Strategy has been approved by PMB and the portfolio holder 

now chairs the Customer First Board.  Customer First Part 3 workshops have almost 
completed and team managers are now presenting their customer first action plans to 
senior managers and the portfolio holder. 

 
• The Council continues to produce good communications material on a shoestring, 

with the latest edition of Together Bromsgrove being published and two “Bromsgrove 
Bites Back” days, linked to street theatre, held in the town centre.  The press office 
continues to be active. 

 
• The Local Strategic Partnership is now chaired by the Leader with the Vice Chairman 

representing the private sector.  The Community Strategy has been fundamentally 
reviewed, making a stronger link to the Local Area Agreement and improving the 
performance monitoring arrangements. 

 
• The new (09/10) Improvement Plan was approved by PMB in the second quarter and 

Members have been briefed on CAA.  We are currently awaiting our first 
Organisational Assessment, as part of the wider Worcestershire CAA. 

 
• The CCPP team has been actively supporting Financial Services work on developing 

VFM measures for the Council.  This work is expected to be complete in quarter 3.  
The CCPP team has also been actively supporting the Joint CEO in communicating 
the shared services agenda. 

 
• The Council Plan 2010/2013 part 1 has been completed and reported to PMB.  This 

has helped Members set the priorities for the year ahead, which will shape the 
forthcoming budget round.  The team have now kicked off the 2010/1011 service 
business plan round. 

 
• The team continue to support the Joint CEO in overseeing projects in the Council, 

through the Programme Management Board.  A very positive external audit report on 

Page 24



our project management arrangements was received in quarter 1, which was reported 
to the Audit Board in quarter 2. 

 
• Community engagement work has included: reporting the results of the Place Survey, 

developing a number of approaches with young people, in particular, “U Decide”, an 
eco-schools project and links to Democracy Week. 

 
• Bromsgrove Urban and Rural Transport (BURT) went live on 21 September 2009. 

 
• The CEO secretariat continues to provide a good service to the Leader, Chairman 

and senior officers. 
 

• The post room’s operations have been reviewed and continue to improve. 
 
 
Issues  

• There are no major concerns or issues for the team, beyond helping the Council 
retain a strategic focus on delivering its vision of community leadership and excellent 
services.  To this end, the team will be working with PMB in the autumn, undertaking 
a series of benchmarking visits to councils who have made the jump from Weak to 
Excellent. The aim will be to find out what these councils did and what excellence 
looks like.  The results will be reported back to PMB and PMB.  The team is also 
supporting the Older Persons scrutiny exercise, which will report early in 2010 and is 
a key theme to be addressed. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25



Revenue Budget summary – Corporate Services Department 
 

Service Head 

Revised 
Budget  
2009/10 
£’000 

Profiled 
budget  
April - Sept 
£’000 

Actual 
spend  
April - Sept 
£’000 

Variance to 
date 
April - Sept 
£’000 

 

Projected 
outturn 
2009/10 
£’000 

Projected 
variance 
2009/10 
£’000 

Policy & 
Performance 100 277 296 19  120 20 

Corporate 
Management 686 113 104 -9  685 -1 

Corporate 
Projects 15 7 8 1  21 6 

TOTAL 801 397 408 11  826 25 
Financial Commentary 

• The corporate projects section includes expenditure and income on the “TRUNK” 
project.  Expenditure will continue throughout the year to get the centre up and running. 
Contributions have been made by Worcestershire County Council, West Mercia Police, 
BDHT among others, as well as Bromsgrove Council to aid this project.  
There is currently an expected overspend within this project due to costs for the staff 
members at the centre. This is being addressed with Worcestershire County Council to 
ask them to fund the additional post.  

 
• Other projected overspends within the corporate area are being mitigated by in year 

savings identified and/or plans to limit spending. 
 
 
 
 

 
Capital Budget Summary April-September 2009 
 

Service  
Revised Budget 
2009/10  
£’000 

Actual spend 
April - Sept 
£’000 

Variance to 
date 
April – Sept 
£’000 

 

Projected 
outturn 
2009/10 
£’000 

Projected 
variance 
2009/10 
£’000 

Corporate 75 16 -59  16 -59 

TOTAL 75 16 -59  16 -59 
Financial Commentary 
A second-hand minibus has been purchased and licenses for software obtained for free, so we 
are expecting this scheme to come in considerably under budget.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



4.1.7 Legal, Equalities & Democratic Services Quarter 2 (September 30th) 
2009/10 

 

Performance Summary 
No. of PI’s 
improving (I) 0 

No. of PI’s meeting YTD 
target 1 

No. of PI’s where est. 
outturn projected to 
meet target 

1 

No. of PI’s Stable 
(S) 1 No. of PI’s missing YTD 

target by < 10% 0 No. of PI’s projected to 
miss target by < 10% 0 

No. of PI’s 
worsening (W) 0 No. of PI’s missing YTD 

target by >10% 0 No. of PI’s projected to 
miss target by >10% 0 

Achievements 
• Equality and Diversity Conference held on 26th September 2009 – Over 60 delegates 

attended and all day event on the issues that affect our minority communities and a 
workshop to include specific ways in which equality can be incorporated into the areas 
that we have identified as Council priorities.  

• Electoral Shared Service between Bromsgrove District Council and Redditch Borough 
Council is now operational and working well.  Phase two is now being scoped and will 
enable the live links with the gazetteer and Customer Service Centres for both 
authorities and will enhance the service delivery to the customer in both districts.  

• All officers are now in post to support the Overview and Scrutiny process and as a 
result a number of preliminary sessions have occurred with the various facets of this 
process with a combined work programming workshop scheduled in October.  

• Member visit to Waltham Forest to look at best practice for Planning Policy  
• All legal officers now trained and operation on case management system for debt 

recovery  
• Large scale voluntary registration project being undertaken for RBC all continues 

within timescales and meeting income target  
• Standards Board for England interviewed members of the Standards Committee as 

BDC has been identified as being an area of good practice in relation to the 
processes that it has developed to manage the Standards functions.  

 
 
 
Issues  
• There has been an huge increase in work relating to ethical standards and this is 

placing an enormous pressure on the team and will result in cost implications outside 
of existing budgets. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



Revenue Budget summary – Legal, Equalities & Democratic Services 
 

Service Head 

Revised 
Budget  
2009/10 
£’000 

Profiled 
budget  
April - Sept 
£’000 

Actual 
spend  
April - Sept 
£’000 

Variance to 
date 
April - Sept 
£’000 

 

Projected 
outturn 
2009/10 
£’000 

Projected 
variance 
2009/10 
£’000 

Committee & 
Member 
Services 

899 239 214 -25  875 -24 

Elections & 
Registration 166 66 40 -26  146 -20 

Facilities 
Management -110 384 368 -16  -128 -18 

Legal Services 0 213 253 40  25 25 

TOTAL 955 902 875 -27  918 -37 

Financial Commentary 
 

• There have been some vacant posts within the department at the beginning of the 
financial year which have been filled recently.  

• There has also been some savings within Facilities Management budgets for insurance 
and business rates. 

• It is projected to be a slight overspend at year end within Legal services mainly due to an 
employment tribunal which will be offset against underspends within the department 

 

 
Capital Budget Summary April-September 2009 
 

Service  
Revised Budget  
2009/10 
£’000 

Actual spend 
April – Sept 
£’000 

Variance to 
Date  
April – Sept 
£’000 

 

Projected 
outturn 
2009/10 
£’000 

Projected 
variance 
2009/10 
£’000 

Facilities 
Management 86 0 -86  0 -86 

TOTAL 86 0 -86  0 -86 

Financial Commentary 
 
At this stage, it is deemed unlikely that the capital budget for Facilities Management will be spent 
in this financial year. If any of the budget is spent, then it will be in Quarter 4 of 2009/10. This 
budget is being retained as a contingency and will remain unspent until a decision has been made 
on the future of the Council’s facilities.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 28



4.1.8 Human Resources & Organisational 
Development (HR & OD) 

Quarter 2 (September 30th) 
2009/10 

 

Performance Summary 
No. of PI’s 
improving (I) 1 

No. of PI’s meeting YTD 
target 0 

No. of PI’s where est. 
outturn projected to 
meet target 

0 

No. of PI’s Stable 
(S) 0 No. of PI’s missing YTD 

target by < 10% 0 No. of PI’s projected to 
miss target by < 10% 0 

No. of PI’s 
worsening (W) 0 No. of PI’s missing YTD 

target by >10% 1 No. of PI’s projected to 
miss target by >10% 1 

Achievements 
• Delivery of Market Forces Supplement Policy  
• Delivery of Redundancy Selection Criteria  
• Delivery of Safeguarding Young Children/Vulnerable Adults Recruitment policy as part 

of Corporate commitment to Safeguarding these vulnerable groups.  
• Sickness absence levels going down/improving  
• Resolution of 2 complex long term sickness absence cases.  
• JE Appeals progressing well, with positive feedback from staff and trade unions that 

they feel confident that they have been given a genuine opportunity to represent their 
case and be heard.  

• Working with colleagues from Redditch Borough Council to progress the Joint 
harmonisation of Terms and Conditions of Employment project.  

• Delivering of proposals for Joint Chief Executive Appraisal, in conjunction with 
Redditch Borough Council.  

• Supported Joint Chief Executive in respect of timetable and consultation process for 
formation of the new Single Joint Management Team  

• Contributed to the Joint Bromsgrove/Redditch Councils bid to host the Worcestershire 
Shared Service for Regulatory Services (which has subsequently been confirmed as 
the strongest bid.  Consequently Bromsgrove is the recommended host for the 
proposed service).  

• Active involvement in Worcestershire Heads of HR project group managing/overseeing 
the HR implications arising from the 3 detailed business cases for sharing services.  

• Facilitation of Pensions surgeries over 2 days for employees at the Depot.  
• Participation in West Midlands Recruitment Portal Project Group.  
• Progressing with Customer First Part 3 programme in respect of HR team priority 

actions, and preparation for presentation to Senior Management Team.  
• Commencement of LEAN programme for payroll (and offshoot of NVQ training that 

flows from that programme)  
• Responding flexibly to changing organisational priorities i.e. management induction, 

PDR Scheme.  
• Delivery of annual Management Conference; and for the first year extending this to 

Redditch Borough Council as part of our commitment to shared services.  
• Delivery of individual support package for members of CMT at both Bromsgrove and 

Redditch Councils in preparation for the formation of the Single Joint Management 
Team  

• Workforce Planning project – progressing well and responding to changing 
environment.  Re-launch of qualifications questionnaire as part of the project.  

• Raising awareness of Members to their roles and responsibilities in respect of Health 

Page 29



and Safety.  
• Launch of electronic staff Personal Safety Register to evidence Corporate commitment 

to zero tolerance towards unacceptable behaviour to staff.  
• Delivery of corporate Health and Safety awareness training, manual handling and 

backcare training. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Issues 
• Some challenges with the JE Appeals timetable, as the appeals have been heard, it 

has become clear that the time taken for most appeals has been longer than 
anticipated, but these have all been overcome, with the cooperation and understanding 
of employees and trade union representatives.  

• Capacity of HR team over the next 6 months given the current organisational agenda 
for change; specifically the HR issues in connection with the shared services agenda 
between Redditch and Bromsgrove, harmonizing terms and conditions of employment  
project, the Worcestershire Shared Services agenda, managing the HR implications of 
the proposals for the 2010/11 budget.  

• The HR implications of the uncertainty arising from the formation of the new Single 
Joint Management Team  

• Managing the implications of the additional day’s annual leave as part of the 2009 
nationally negotiated pay award  

• The potential for Swine Flu to break out and become a significant concern in respect of 
operational service delivery; which may require the redeployment of staff (including the 
HR team), which will need to be risk assessed.  

• Possible extension of self certification period (21 days) in order to manage the 
implications of Swine Flu – and the effect that this may have upon local sickness 
absence figures.  

• Drop in demand for Corporate training (to be re-launched in 2010) 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 30



Revenue Budget summary – HR & OD 
 

Service Head 

Revised 
Budget  
2009/10 
£’000 

Profiled 
budget  
April - Sept 
£’000 

Actual 
spend  
April - Sept 
£’000 

Variance to 
date 
April - Sept 
£’000 

 

Projected 
outturn 
2009/10 
£’000 

Projected 
variance 
2009/10 
£’000 

Human 
Resources & 
Organisational 
Development 

0 239 268 29  22 22 

TOTAL 0 239 268 29  22 22 
Financial Commentary 
 

§ There are overspends in relation to JE additional costs – additional staffing required and 
also vacancy management as the department is fully staffed.  

§ There are also remains of costs for Payroll at beginning part of the financial year to 
assist Redditch in the payroll transfer 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
4.2 Sundry Debtors  
 

Sundry Debt is raised by the Council to ensure effective recovery of debts owing.  The 
outstanding balance at 30/09/09 was £386k (balance to 30/06/09 was £460k) which 
includes:- 
 
Type of Debt Amount 

£’000 
Car Parking Fines 50 
Lifeline debts 33 
Rents/Hire Charges  71 
Building Regulations  8 
Trade Waste and Cesspool emptying  38 
Developer Contributions 82 
Housing Schemes 24 
Dolphin Centre Membership 17 
Licensing  11 
Services Provided to other organisations eg BDHT 26 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 31



The age of the debt is represented as follows: 
 
Age of Debt 
 

Balance as at 30/06/09 
£’000 

Balance as at 30/09/09 
£’000 

Under 30 days (not yet due) 372 220 
 

Up to 1 month  
 

19 17 

1 – 2  months 14 90 
 

3 – 6 months 14 16 
 

Over 6 months 41 43 
 

 
 
Debts over 90 days are currently under review and recovery by the legal team. 

 
 
5.0 TREASURY MANAGEMENT 
 

The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy has been developed in accordance with 
the Prudential Code for Capital Finance prudential indicators and is used to manage 
risks arising from financial instruments. Additionally treasury management practices are 
followed on a day to day basis.  
 

5.1 Credit Risk 
 
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit 
exposures to the Council’s customers. Credit risk is minimised by use of a specified list 
of investment counterparty criteria and by limiting the amount invested with each 
institution. The Council receives credit rating details from its Treasury Management 
advisers on a daily basis and any counterparty falling below the criteria is removed from 
the list.  
 
The Council has not had and does not expect any default losses by any of its 
counterparties in relation to investments. 
 
Due to market conditions the Council has reduced its credit risk for all new investments 
by only investing in the highest rated instruments and has shortened the allowable 
length of investments in order to reduce risk. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



The credit criteria in respect of financial assets managed in-house by the Council are as 
follows: 
 
Financial Asset Category Criteria (Fitch ratings) Maximum Investment 
Deposits with banks Short Term: F1+/F1 

Support: 1,2,3 
Long Term: minimum ‘AA-’/A 

£3million/£2million 

Deposits with building 
societies 

Short Term: F1+/F1 
Support: 1,2,3 
Long Term: minimum ‘AA-’/A 

£3million/£2million 

Deposits with Debt 
Management Account – 
Deposit Facility (DMADF) 

 £no upper limit * 

 
 
 
Fitch Ratings is an international credit rating agency (one of three nationally recognised 
rating agencies alongside Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s). Fitch Rating' s long-term 
credit ratings are set up along a scale from 'AAA' to 'D' where ‘AAA’ designates the best 
quality companies, reliable and stable through to ‘D’ where the company has defaulted 
on obligations and Fitch believes that it will generally default on all or most of its 
obligations. Fitch’s short term ratings indicate the potential level of default within a 12 
month period. F1+ is the best quality grade, indicating exceptionally strong capacity of 
obligor to meet its financial commitment 
 
 
 
At 30 September 2009 short term investments comprise: 
 
 31 March 09 

£ 
30 Sept 09 

£ 
Deposits with Banks/Building Societies 8,425 10,550 
Deposits with Debt Management Office 
(DMADF)* 

5,500 5,000 
 

Total 13,925 15,550 

 
 
* Investments with the DMADF are guaranteed by HM Treasury. Following advice from 
the Council’s treasury advisors, from a credit perspective no upper limit was imposed on 
investments with the DMADF. 
 

5.2 Income from investments 
 
An investment income target of £166k has been set for 2009/10 using a projected return 
rate of 1.5 – 1.75 %. During the year bank base rates have dropped to 0.5% with little 
expectation of any upward increase in rates in the near future.  
 
In the first half of 2009/10 the Council received income from investments of £43k. In 
order to maximise available returns within our risk criteria the Council is currently 
working with our treasury advisors with the view to placing a proportion of our 

Page 33



investments in bonds issued by Multilateral Development Banks. These bonds meet the 
Government’s criteria for specified investments (i.e. offering high security and high 
liquidity) 

 
 
6.0 EFFICIENCY SAVINGS  
 

As part of the budget round for 2009/10 a number of efficiency savings were approved. 
These challenging targets were allocated across all services as detailed in Appendix 5. 
To date the efficiency savings total £294k for 2009/10. 

 
 
7.0 REVENUE BALANCES AND EARMARKED RESERVES 
 
7.1 Revenue Balances  
 

The revenue balances brought forward at 1 April 2009 were £1.753m. Following 
approval of the use of balances in 2009/10, it is anticipated that the remaining balance 
will be £1.507m.  If the overspends projected in this report are not mitigated by the 
actions proposed by the Heads of Service, the overspend of £376k will also have to be 
funded from balances reducing them further to £1.131m. 
 
  

7.2 Earmarked Reserves  
 

The Council maintains a number of reserves which have been set up to earmark 
resources for future spending plans. The funding to be utilised from these reserves 
equates to £249k.  Details are shown in Appendix 5. 
 
 

8.0 CAPITAL RECEIPTS  
 
8.1 Capital Programme was approved by Members in January 2009, the effect of the level 

of Capital Spend to 2011/12 on capital receipts is estimated below:   
 
 

Capital Programme  2009/10 
£’000 

2010/11 
£’000 

2011/12 
£’000 

Balance b/fwd 6,256 2,234 1,689 
Actual funding to date 
(April – June)  

-442   

Estimated use for the 
remainder of the year 

-3,346 -1,788 -1,137 

Budget Virement 
between years  

 
*-1,143 
**273 

 
1,143 

 

Received in year 100 100 100 
Use of Replacement 
Reserve 

 
536 

  

Balance c/fwd 2,234 1,689 652 

Page 34



 
* Proposed approval of budget virement between years to allow for the purchase of 
vehicles and bins for co-mingled recycling collection.  
** Agreed approval of budget virement from the 2009/10 capital programme into 2008/9 
to all for the purchase of refuse vehicles. 

 
 
8.2 The figures in the above table include general capital receipts for the funding of projects 

throughout the District.  In addition, an estimate of capital receipts has been made of 
£100k per annum in relation to any sales of assets that the Council may make during 
each year within the Programme. 
 

8.3 As part of the Use of Resources assessment the Council must demonstrate that it has a 
robust Capital Programme that is delivered on time and within budget. 

 
8.4 Details of projects that due to a number of factors will not be delivered in 2009/10 are 

included in Appendix 7.  It is proposed that these are transferred into 2010/11 and 
reviewed again as part of the Medium Term Financial Plan. 

 
8.5 The revision to the Capital Programme will release a further £1.148m which will be 

available for investment. 
 

9. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 Covered in the report  
 
10. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None 
 
11. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
12. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

Covered in the report. 
  

13. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
14. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



 
15. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 
 

Procurement Issues  None  
 
Personnel Implications  None  
 
Governance/Performance Management – subject of the report 
 
Community Safety  including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 
1998 None  
 
Policy  None  
 
Environmental  None 
 

 
16. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

Yes  

Chief Executive 
 

Yes  

Corporate Director (Services)  
 

Yes  

Assistant Chief Executive 
 

Yes 

Head of Service 
 

Yes 

Head of Financial Services 
 

Yes 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

Yes 

Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

Yes 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36



 
 APPENDICES  
   
 
 Appendix 1  Performance Summary for April - September 2009 
 Appendix 2 Detail Performance report for April - September 2009 
 Appendix 3  Detailed figures to support the performance report 
 Appendix 4  Efficiency Savings 2009/10 
 Appendix 5 Current Position (April – September) on Earmarked Reserves 
 Appendix 6  Virements for approval by PMB 
 Appendix 7  Capital Programme Budget Carry Forward Request 2009/10 to 2010/11 
 
CONTACT OFFICERS 
 

Hugh Bennett, Assistant Chief Executive 
Jayne Pickering, Head of Financial services 
Debbie Randall Accountancy Services Manager 
John Outhwaite, Senior Policy & Performance Officer 

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

N
o.

%
ag

e3
N

o.
%

ag
e3

N
o.

%
ag

e3

Im
p

ro
vi

ng
 o

r 
st

ab
le

.
22

81
%

O
n 

ta
rg

et
19

73
%

O
n 

ta
rg

et
24

92
%

D
ec

lin
in

g
5

19
%

M
is

si
ng

 t
ar

g
et

 b
y 

le
ss

 t
ha

n 
10

%
6

23
%

M
is

si
ng

 t
ar

g
et

 b
y 

le
ss

 t
ha

n 
10

%
1

4%
N

o
 d

at
a 

M
is

si
ng

 t
ar

g
et

 b
y 

m
o

re
 t

ha
n 

10
%

1
4%

M
is

si
ng

 t
ar

g
et

 b
y 

m
o

re
 t

ha
n 

10
%

1
4%

N
o

 d
at

a2 
N

o
 d

at
a2 

T
o

ta
l N

um
b

er
 o

f 
In

d
ic

at
o

rs
 

re
p

o
rt

ed
 t

hi
s 

p
er

io
d

1
27

T
o

ta
l N

um
b

er
 o

f 
In

d
ic

at
o

rs
 

re
p

o
rt

ed
 t

hi
s 

p
er

io
d

1
26

T
o

ta
l N

um
b

er
 o

f 
In

d
ic

at
o

rs
 r

ep
o

rt
ed

 
th

is
 p

er
io

d
1

26

N
o.

%
ag

e3
N

o.
%

ag
e3

N
o.

%
ag

e3

Im
p

ro
vi

ng
 o

r 
st

ab
le

.
23

61
%

O
n 

ta
rg

et
23

61
%

O
n 

ta
rg

et
31

89
%

D
ec

lin
in

g
15

39
%

M
is

si
ng

 t
ar

g
et

 b
y 

le
ss

 t
ha

n 
10

%
8

21
%

M
is

si
ng

 t
ar

g
et

 b
y 

le
ss

 t
ha

n 
10

%
2

6%
N

o
 d

at
a 

7
M

is
si

ng
 t

ar
g

et
 b

y 
m

o
re

 t
ha

n 
10

%
7

18
%

M
is

si
ng

 t
ar

g
et

 b
y 

m
o

re
 t

ha
n 

10
%

2
6%

N
o

 d
at

a2 
7

N
o

 d
at

a2 
10

T
o

ta
l N

um
b

er
 o

f 
In

d
ic

at
o

rs
 

re
p

o
rt

ed
 t

hi
s 

p
er

io
d

1
45

T
o

ta
l N

um
b

er
 o

f 
In

d
ic

at
o

rs
 

re
p

o
rt

ed
 t

hi
s 

p
er

io
d

1
45

T
o

ta
l N

um
b

er
 o

f 
In

d
ic

at
o

rs
 r

ep
o

rt
ed

 
th

is
 p

er
io

d
1

45

N
o.

%
ag

e3
N

o.
%

ag
e3

N
o.

%
ag

e3

Im
p

ro
vi

ng
 o

r 
st

ab
le

.
13

43
%

O
n 

ta
rg

et
17

63
%

O
n 

ta
rg

et
25

93
%

D
ec

lin
in

g
17

57
%

M
is

si
ng

 t
ar

g
et

 b
y 

le
ss

 t
ha

n 
10

%
5

19
%

M
is

si
ng

 t
ar

g
et

 b
y 

le
ss

 t
ha

n 
10

%
1

4%
N

o
 d

at
a 

4
M

is
si

ng
 t

ar
g

et
 b

y 
m

o
re

 t
ha

n 
10

%
5

19
%

M
is

si
ng

 t
ar

g
et

 b
y 

m
o

re
 t

ha
n 

10
%

1
4%

N
o

 d
at

a2 
7

N
o

 d
at

a2 
7

T
o

ta
l N

um
b

er
 o

f 
In

d
ic

at
o

rs
 

re
p

o
rt

ed
 t

hi
s 

p
er

io
d

1
34

T
o

ta
l N

um
b

er
 o

f 
In

d
ic

at
o

rs
 

re
p

o
rt

ed
 t

hi
s 

p
er

io
d

1
34

T
o

ta
l N

um
b

er
 o

f 
In

d
ic

at
o

rs
 r

ep
o

rt
ed

 
th

is
 p

er
io

d
1

34

N
o.

%
ag

e3
N

o.
%

ag
e3

N
o.

%
ag

e3

Im
p

ro
vi

ng
 o

r 
st

ab
le

.
19

61
%

O
n 

ta
rg

et
16

59
%

O
n 

ta
rg

et
24

89
%

D
ec

lin
in

g
12

39
%

M
is

si
ng

 t
ar

g
et

 b
y 

le
ss

 t
ha

n 
10

%
8

30
%

M
is

si
ng

 t
ar

g
et

 b
y 

le
ss

 t
ha

n 
10

%
2

7%
N

o
 d

at
a 

3
M

is
si

ng
 t

ar
g

et
 b

y 
m

o
re

 t
ha

n 
10

%
3

11
%

M
is

si
ng

 t
ar

g
et

 b
y 

m
o

re
 t

ha
n 

10
%

1
4%

N
o

 d
at

a2 
7

N
o

 d
at

a2 
7

T
o

ta
l N

um
b

er
 o

f 
In

d
ic

at
o

rs
 

re
p

o
rt

ed
 t

hi
s 

p
er

io
d

1
34

T
o

ta
l N

um
b

er
 o

f 
In

d
ic

at
o

rs
 

re
p

o
rt

ed
 t

hi
s 

p
er

io
d

1
34

T
o

ta
l N

um
b

er
 o

f 
In

d
ic

at
o

rs
 r

ep
o

rt
ed

 
th

is
 p

er
io

d
1

34

N
o.

%
ag

e3
N

o.
%

ag
e3

N
o.

%
ag

e3

Im
p

ro
vi

ng
 o

r 
st

ab
le

.
28

62
%

O
n 

ta
rg

et
23

58
%

O
n 

ta
rg

et
32

80
%

D
ec

lin
in

g
17

38
%

M
is

si
ng

 t
ar

g
et

 b
y 

le
ss

 t
ha

n 
10

%
11

28
%

M
is

si
ng

 t
ar

g
et

 b
y 

le
ss

 t
ha

n 
10

%
4

10
%

N
o

 d
at

a 
M

is
si

ng
 t

ar
g

et
 b

y 
m

o
re

 t
ha

n 
10

%
6

15
%

M
is

si
ng

 t
ar

g
et

 b
y 

m
o

re
 t

ha
n 

10
%

4
10

%
N

o
 d

at
a2 

N
o

 d
at

a2 

T
o

ta
l N

um
b

er
 o

f 
In

d
ic

at
o

rs
 

re
p

o
rt

ed
 t

hi
s 

p
er

io
d

1
45

T
o

ta
l N

um
b

er
 o

f 
In

d
ic

at
o

rs
 

re
p

o
rt

ed
 t

hi
s 

p
er

io
d

1
40

T
o

ta
l N

um
b

er
 o

f 
In

d
ic

at
o

rs
 r

ep
o

rt
ed

 
th

is
 p

er
io

d
1

40

N
ot

es
1 

- 
T

hi
s 

fig
ur

e 
sh

ow
s 

th
e 

to
ta

l n
um

be
r 

of
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 r
ep

or
te

d 
in

 A
pp

en
di

x 
2 

fo
r 

th
is

 p
er

io
d.

  T
hi

s 
w

ill
 v

ar
y 

as
 s

om
e 

in
di

ca
to

rs
 a

re
 r

ep
or

te
d 

m
on

th
ly

, 
   

  s
om

e 
qu

ar
te

rly
, s

om
e 

an
nu

al
ly

 (
bu

t i
n 

di
ff

er
en

t p
er

io
ds

 -
 d

ep
en

di
ng

 o
n 

w
he

n 
th

ey
 b

ec
om

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e)

.
2 

- 
S

om
e 

of
 th

e 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 d
o 

no
t h

av
e 

al
l t

he
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 e

le
m

en
ts

, f
or

 in
st

an
ce

 s
om

e 
do

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
ta

rg
et

s 
be

ca
us

e 
th

ey
 a

re
 n

ew
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 th
is

 y
ea

r,
 o

th
er

s 
   

 a
re

 a
ct

iv
ity

 m
ea

su
re

s 
(e

.g
. m

on
th

ly
 c

al
l v

ol
um

e)
.  

T
he

se
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
'n

o 
da

ta
' c

ou
nt

 w
he

re
 c

om
pa

ris
on

s 
ca

nn
ot

 b
e 

m
ad

e.
3 

- 
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
fig

ur
e 

sh
ow

n 
is

 th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f t
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 r

el
ev

an
t d

at
a 

is
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

th
is

 p
er

io
d,

 n
ot

 
   

  t
he

 to
ta

l n
um

be
r 

of
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 r
ep

or
te

d 
th

is
 p

er
io

d.

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 -

 P
er

io
d

 2
 (

M
ay

) 
20

09
/1

0 
M

o
nt

hl
y 

(M
ay

) 
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
E

st
im

at
ed

 O
ut

tu
rn

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 -

 P
er

io
d

 5
 (

A
ug

us
t)

 2
00

9/
10

 

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 -

 P
er

io
d

 3
/Q

ua
rt

er
1 

(J
un

e)
 2

00
9/

10
 

M
o

nt
hl

y/
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 (
Ju

ne
/Q

1)
  p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
E

st
im

at
ed

 O
ut

tu
rn

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 -

 P
er

io
d

 4
 (

Ju
ly

) 
20

09
/1

0 
M

o
nt

hl
y 

(J
ul

y)
  p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
E

st
im

at
ed

 O
ut

tu
rn

M
o

nt
hl

y 
(S

ep
te

m
b

er
) 

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

E
st

im
at

ed
 O

ut
tu

rn

M
o

nt
hl

y 
(A

ug
us

t)
  p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
E

st
im

at
ed

 O
ut

tu
rn

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 -

 P
er

io
d

 6
/Q

ua
rt

er
 2

 (
S

ep
te

m
b

er
) 

20
09

/1
0 

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 P
er

io
d

 0
6/

Q
u

ar
te

r 
2 

(S
ep

te
m

b
er

) 
20

09
/1

0
 

R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
R

ep
o

rt
 -

ed
?

�
��

��
��

��
	


�
�


�
�	

��
Ju

n
e 

T
ar

g
et

Ju
n

e 
A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
Ju

ly
 T

ar
g

et
Ju

ly
 A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
A

u
g

. T
ar

g
et

A
u

g
. A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
S

ep
. T

ar
g

et
S

ep
. A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
T

ar
g

et
E

st
. O

u
tt

u
rn

E
st

. 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
T

ar
g

et
 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

S
tr

ee
t 

S
ce

n
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 

N
I 1

91
R

es
id

ua
l H

ou
se

ho
ld

 w
as

te
 p

er
 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
(K

G
)

M
C

58
6.

26
14

7.
74

15
1.

16
W

19
6.

74
20

6.
22

W
24

5.
78

24
6.

03
I

29
4.

81
29

1.
61

I
59

3.
00

59
0.

00
I

T
ra

de
 to

nn
ag

e 
no

t y
et

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
fo

r 
S

ep
 

th
er

ef
or

e 
ac

tu
al

 w
ill

 im
pr

ov
e 

sl
ig

ht
ly

 o
n 

th
os

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 s

ho
w

n

N
I 1

92
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 r
e-

us
ed

, r
ec

yc
le

d 
an

d 
co

m
po

st
ed

M
C

43
.2

5
33

.7
5

41
.2

6
I

34
.7

1
41

.0
8

W
36

.2
8

41
.7

3
W

36
.7

6
42

.4
1

W
30

.0
0

37
.0

0
I

T
ra

de
 to

nn
ag

e 
no

t y
et

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
fo

r 
S

ep
 

th
er

ef
or

e 
ac

tu
al

 w
ill

 im
pr

ov
e 

sl
ig

ht
ly

 o
n 

th
os

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 s

ho
w

n

LP
I D

ep
ot

N
um

be
r 

of
 m

is
se

d 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

w
as

te
 

co
lle

ct
io

ns
M

C
1,

13
6

28
5

37
9

W
38

0
44

6
I

47
5

51
4

W
57

0
56

3
I

1,
14

0
80

8
I

49
 m

is
se

d 
co

lle
ct

io
ns

 o
f w

hi
ch

 1
7 

w
er

e 
ga

rd
en

 w
as

te
 4

 x
 3

8,
00

0 
= 

0.
03

%

LP
I D

ep
ot

N
um

be
r 

of
 m

is
se

d 
re

cy
cl

e 
w

as
te

 
co

lle
ct

io
ns

M
C

28
1

60
44

W
80

62
I

10
0

71
I

12
0

76
I

24
0

10
1

I
5 

m
is

se
d 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
co

lle
ct

io
ns

 =
 4

 x
 

36
,0

00
 =

 0
.0

03
%

N
W

B
C

U
5

T
ot

al
 C

rim
e

M
C

N
ew

1,
39

3
1,

28
1

W
1,

86
8

1,
76

1
W

2,
34

2
2,

22
8

I
2,

80
2

2,
64

5
I

5,
58

8
5,

43
1

W

T
ot

al
 C

rim
e 

co
nt

in
ue

s 
to

 b
e 

w
ith

in
 ta

rg
et

.  
C

ur
re

nt
 tr

en
ds

 a
re

 c
rim

in
al

 d
am

ag
e,

 th
ef

t 
fr

om
 m

ot
or

 v
eh

ic
le

s,
 c

om
m

on
 a

ss
au

lt 
an

d 
a 

re
ce

nt
 tr

en
d 

in
 r

et
ai

l t
he

ft.
 J

oi
nt

 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 b
et

w
ee

n 
po

lic
e 

an
d 

C
D

R
P

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 w

ill
 n

ow
 fo

cu
s 

on
 n

ew
 s

ea
so

na
l 

cr
im

e 
ty

pe
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g,
 d

is
or

de
r 

du
rin

g 
H

al
lo

w
ee

n,
 b

on
fir

e 
an

d 
C

hr
is

tm
as

, 
do

m
es

tic
 b

ur
gl

ar
y 

as
 a

 r
es

ul
t o

f t
he

 e
ar

ly
 

da
rk

 n
ig

ht
s 

in
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 to
 o

ur
 a

nn
ua

l 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

of
 a

lc
oh

ol
 r

el
at

ed
 c

rim
e 

&
 

cr
im

in
al

 d
am

ag
e.

  T
he

 w
or

k 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t b
y 

th
e 

C
D

R
P

 to
 ta

ck
le

 d
is

or
de

r 
du

rin
g 

O
ct

ob
er

/N
ov

em
be

r 
is

 e
nc

ap
su

la
te

d 
in

 
O

pe
ra

tio
n 

G
H

O
S

T
 

N
W

B
C

U
1

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 d

om
es

tic
 b

ur
gl

ar
ie

s 
M

C
43

8
97

80
W

13
0

96
I

16
3

12
1

W
19

5
14

1
I

38
9

33
5

I

O
nl

y 
23

 b
ur

gl
ar

ie
s 

th
is

 m
on

th
 w

hi
ch

 is
 o

ur
 

3r
d 

m
on

th
 o

f c
on

si
st

en
tly

 lo
w

 v
ol

um
es

 o
f 

bu
rg

la
ry

 -
 th

e 
m

ai
n 

re
as

on
 fo

r 
th

is
 is

 m
os

t 
of

 o
ut

 k
no

w
n 

P
er

si
st

en
t P

ro
lif

ic
 O

ffe
nd

er
s 

w
ith

 b
ur

gl
ar

y 
of

fe
nd

in
g 

ha
bi

ts
 a

re
 

cu
rr

en
tly

 in
 c

us
to

dy
.  

It 
m

ay
 a

ls
o 

be
 

po
ss

ib
le

 th
at

 s
om

e 
of

 th
e 

C
D

R
P

's
 

pr
ev

io
us

 c
am

pa
ig

ns
 a

ro
un

d 
S

M
A

R
T

 
w

at
er

 a
nd

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

ra
is

in
g 

ca
m

pa
ig

ns
 

ar
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

in
g 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
es

e 
re

du
ct

io
ns

.  
O

ct
ob

er
 h

ow
ev

er
 is

 h
is

to
ric

al
ly

 a
 b

us
y 

m
on

th
 fo

r 
do

m
es

tic
 b

ur
gl

ar
y 

du
e 

to
 th

e 
da

rk
er

 n
ig

ht
s.

  O
pe

ra
tio

n 
P

R
O

T
E

C
T

 is
 

be
in

g 
la

un
ch

ed
 th

is
 m

on
th

 w
hi

ch
 is

 a
 

ho
m

e 
se

cu
rit

y 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

op
er

at
io

n

��
��

��
�

20
09

/1
0

1

Page 41



R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
R

ep
o

rt
 -

ed
?

�
��

��
��

��
	


�
�


�
�	

��
Ju

n
e 

T
ar

g
et

Ju
n

e 
A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
Ju

ly
 T

ar
g

et
Ju

ly
 A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
A

u
g

. T
ar

g
et

A
u

g
. A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
S

ep
. T

ar
g

et
S

ep
. A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
T

ar
g

et
E

st
. O

u
tt

u
rn

E
st

. 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
T

ar
g

et
 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

��
��

��
�

20
09

/1
0

N
W

B
C

U
2

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 v

io
le

nt
 c

rim
es

M
C

97
3

25
0

23
7

I
33

2
32

9
W

41
7

43
0

W
49

6
53

7
W

92
2

93
5

W

T
he

 m
ai

n 
re

as
on

 fo
r 

th
e 

hi
gh

 n
um

be
rs

 o
f 

vi
ol

en
t c

rim
e 

is
 a

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 th

e 
w

ay
 

co
m

m
on

 a
ss

au
lt 

is
 r

ec
or

de
d.

  P
us

hi
ng

, 
sh

ov
in

g,
 s

pi
tti

ng
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 s
im

ila
r 

of
fe

nc
es

 a
re

 n
ow

 in
cl

ud
ed

.  
A

ls
o 

in
cl

ud
ed

 
ar

e 
do

m
es

tic
 in

ci
de

nt
s.

  M
an

y 
do

m
es

tic
 

in
ci

de
nt

s 
re

qu
ire

 n
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n 
as

 th
e 

vi
ct

im
 o

fte
n 

w
ith

dr
aw

s 
th

ei
r 

re
po

rt
, 

ho
w

ev
er

 th
e 

P
ol

ic
e 

ar
e 

no
w

 a
tte

nd
in

g 
th

es
e 

in
ci

de
nt

s 
w

ith
 b

od
y 

ca
m

er
as

 w
hi

ch
 

ca
pt

ur
e 

vi
de

o 
ev

id
en

ce
 w

hi
ch

 e
na

bl
es

 
th

em
 to

 p
ur

su
e 

pr
os

ec
ut

io
ns

 w
ith

ou
t t

he
 

vi
ct

im
s 

co
ns

en
t i

f d
ee

m
ed

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
.  

O
n 

th
e 

12
th

 O
ct

ob
er

 o
nl

y 
16

 r
ep

or
ts

 o
f 

do
m

es
tic

 v
io

le
nc

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 r

ec
or

de
d,

 
w

hi
ch

 is
 lo

w
.

N
W

B
C

U
3

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 r

ob
be

rie
s 

M
C

61
14

11
I

19
15

W
24

19
S

29
24

W
58

53
I

T
he

se
 r

ep
or

ts
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 b
e 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 u
si

ng
 fo

rc
e 

(b
ut

 n
ot

 p
hy

si
ca

l h
ar

m
) 

to
 s

te
al

 m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

s 
fr

om
 o

th
er

 y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le
.  

A
lth

ou
gh

 th
e 

ch
an

ce
 o

f b
ei

ng
 a

 
vi

ct
im

 o
f m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 th

ef
t i

s 
lo

w
 in

 
B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
, e

vi
de

nc
e 

in
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

su
rv

ey
s 

w
ith

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
su

gg
es

t t
he

 
fe

ar
 o

f b
ei

ng
 a

 v
ic

tim
 is

 h
ig

h.
  B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ill
 b

e 
de

liv
er

in
g 

so
m

e 
an

ti-
bu

lly
in

g 
w

or
k 

du
rin

g 
N

ov
em

be
r 

an
d 

m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

 th
ef

t w
ill

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

.

N
W

B
C

U
4

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 v

eh
ic

le
 c

rim
es

 
M

C
74

4
17

2
16

0
W

23
1

23
5

W
28

9
30

1
I

34
6

35
1

I
69

0
69

5
I

P
ol

ic
e 

in
 c

on
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 C

D
R

P
 h

av
e 

be
en

 m
on

ito
re

d 
a 

tr
en

d 
of

 th
ef

ts
 fr

om
 

m
ot

or
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

w
hi

ch
 h

ad
 n

o 
ob

vi
ou

s 
si

gn
 

of
 fo

rc
ed

 e
nt

ry
.  

A
na

ly
si

s 
of

 th
is

 p
ro

bl
em

 
ha

s 
sh

ow
n 

th
at

 th
e 

lik
el

y 
ou

tc
om

e 
is

 
vi

ct
im

s 
le

av
in

g 
th

ei
r 

ve
hi

cl
es

 u
nl

oc
ke

d 
an

d 
no

t d
ec

la
rin

g 
th

is
 w

he
n 

re
po

rt
in

g 
to

 
th

e 
po

lic
e 

to
 a

vo
id

 in
su

ra
nc

e 
co

m
pl

ic
at

io
ns

.  
A

 m
or

e 
re

ce
nt

 tr
en

d 
is

 
ap

pe
ar

in
g 

of
 th

ef
ts

 o
f t

oo
ls

 fr
om

 v
an

s 
in

 
in

du
st

ria
l e

st
at

es
.  

A
w

ar
en

es
s 

ca
m

pa
ig

ns
 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
pe

op
le

s 
vi

gi
la

nc
e 

m
ay

 b
e 

an
 

op
tio

n 
to

 c
on

si
de

r 
an

d 
w

ill
 b

e 
lo

ok
ed

 a
t i

n 
de

ta
il 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
co

m
in

g 
m

on
th

s.

2

Page 42



R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
R

ep
o

rt
 -

ed
?

�
��

��
��

��
	


�
�


�
�	

��
Ju

n
e 

T
ar

g
et

Ju
n

e 
A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
Ju

ly
 T

ar
g

et
Ju

ly
 A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
A

u
g

. T
ar

g
et

A
u

g
. A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
S

ep
. T

ar
g

et
S

ep
. A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
T

ar
g

et
E

st
. O

u
tt

u
rn

E
st

. 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
T

ar
g

et
 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

��
��

��
�

20
09

/1
0

N
W

B
C

U
6

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 C

rim
in

al
 D

am
ag

e 
In

ci
de

nt
s 

M
C

1,
06

4
27

5
21

4
I

36
0

30
9

W
43

5
38

5
I

53
8

46
8

W
10

41
97

1
I

T
hi

s 
is

 a
 n

ew
 in

di
ca

to
r 

w
hi

ch
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

in
cl

ud
ed

 to
 h

el
p 

m
on

ito
r 

cr
im

in
al

 d
am

ag
e 

w
hi

ch
 is

 a
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
af

et
y 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
pr

io
rit

y 
fo

r 
09

/1
0.

  T
he

re
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

a 
21

%
 

de
cr

ea
se

 in
 r

ep
or

ts
 o

f c
rim

in
al

 d
am

ag
e 

th
is

 m
on

th
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 la

st
 y

ea
r 

an
d 

a 
15

%
 d

ec
re

as
e 

ye
ar

 to
 d

at
e.

  A
 p

os
si

bl
e 

tr
en

d 
is

 a
pp

ea
rin

g 
in

 d
am

ag
e 

to
 c

ar
s,

 
pr

ed
om

in
an

tly
 b

ro
ke

n 
w

in
g 

m
irr

or
s 

an
d 

sc
ra

tc
hi

ng
 p

ai
nt

 w
or

k.
  T

hi
s 

tr
en

d 
w

ill
 b

e 
m

on
ito

re
d 

an
d 

if 
co

ni
nt

ui
ng

 a
n 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

m
ay

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d.

N
um

be
r 

of
 D

om
es

tic
 V

io
le

nc
e 

in
ci

de
nt

s 
in

ve
st

ig
at

ed
 (

so
ur

ce
 C

D
R

P
)

Q
C

N
ew

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n
/a

D
ue

 to
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 d

iff
ic

ul
tie

s 
in

 o
bt

ai
ni

ng
 

th
is

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

th
e 

C
D

R
P

 a
na

yl
is

t i
s 

re
vi

ew
in

g 
th

is
 P

I t
o 

es
tb

lis
h 

if 
th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

qu
ire

d 
 is

 r
ea

di
ly

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
an

d 
ro

bu
st

 e
no

ug
h 

fo
r 

pu
bl

ic
 u

se
/s

cr
ut

in
y.

 

%
ag

e 
of

 D
V

 in
ci

de
nt

s 
re

su
lti

ng
 in

 a
 

ch
ar

ge
 (

so
ur

ce
 C

D
R

P
)

Q
C

N
ew

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

A
s 

ab
ov

e

LP
I C

S
 1

a
C

C
T

V
 in

ci
de

nt
s 

re
po

rt
ed

 -
 C

rim
e

M
C

3,
40

7
84

9
74

3
W

1,
13

2
99

3
W

1,
41

5
1,

24
1

W
1,

69
8

1,
59

4
I

3,
40

0
3,

40
0

T
he

re
 w

as
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t i

nc
re

as
e 

in
 a

 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 in
ci

de
nt

s 
re

co
rd

ed
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
di

st
ric

t t
hi

s 
m

ai
ly

 r
el

at
ed

 to
 a

 2
5%

 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 th
ef

ts
 fr

om
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 

m
on

th
.

LP
I C

S
1b

C
C

T
V

 in
ci

de
nt

s 
In

iti
at

ed
 b

y 
C

C
T

V
M

C
99

1
24

6
23

0
W

32
8

29
2

W
41

0
36

6
I

49
2

45
3

I
1,

04
7

1,
04

7

S
ta

ff 
ha

ve
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 

ob
se

rv
at

io
ns

 th
ro

ug
h 

ad
di

tio
na

l t
ar

ge
t 

pa
tr

ol
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 th

e 
po

lic
e 

an
d 

C
D

R
P

. 

LP
I C

S
2

N
um

be
r 

of
 lo

ca
lly

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 

di
ve

rs
io

na
ry

 s
es

si
on

s
Q

C
17

6
57

39
W

72
54

I
94

11
7

I
11

0
11

7
W

18
0

18
0

S
N

o 
di

ve
rs

io
na

ry
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 in
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r.

  P
ro

gr
am

m
es

 in
 p

la
ce

 to
 r

un
 

O
ct

ob
er

 o
nw

ar
ds

 in
cl

ud
e 

B
ik

es
 a

nd
 

B
oa

rd
s 

an
d 

1/
2 

te
rm

 c
om

m
un

ity
 c

oa
ch

in
g

LP
I C

S
3

N
um

be
rs

 o
f u

se
rs

 a
tte

nd
in

g 
di

ve
rs

io
na

ry
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

. 
Q

C
61

7
20

1
58

W
29

5
76

I
38

9
45

9
I

45
6

45
9

W
67

0
70

0
S

N
o 

di
ve

rs
io

na
ry

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 in

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r.
  P

ro
gr

am
m

es
 in

 p
la

ce
 to

 r
un

 
O

ct
ob

er
 o

nw
ar

ds
 in

cl
ud

e 
B

ik
es

 a
nd

 
B

oa
rd

s 
an

d 
1/

2 
te

rm
 c

om
m

un
ity

 c
oa

ch
in

g

LP
I C

S
4

N
o.

 o
f h

at
e 

cr
im

e 
in

ci
de

nt
s 

(a
ct

iv
ity

 
m

ea
su

re
)

M
S

N
/A

1
I

N
/A

2
W

n/
a

1
I

n/
a

1
S

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

1 
re

po
rt

 o
f r

ac
e 

re
la

te
d 

ha
te

 c
rim

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 r

ep
or

te
d 

in
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
C

us
to

m
er

 S
er

vi
ce

 H
ub

.  
T

hi
s 

ca
se

 h
as

 
be

en
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
to

 th
e 

W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

P
ol

ic
e 

as
 th

e 
le

ad
 a

ge
nc

y.

LP
I C

S
5

%
 o

f  
re

po
rt

ed
 h

at
e 

cr
im

e 
in

ci
de

nt
s 

re
qu

iri
ng

 fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n 
th

at
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n 
 

M
S

10
0

10
0

S
10

0
10

0
S

10
0

10
0

S
10

0
10

0
S

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

D
ue

 to
 th

e 
lo

w
 le

ve
l o

f r
ep

or
ts

 th
is

 in
di

ct
or

 
is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 r
em

ai
n 

on
 ta

rg
et

 th
ro

ug
h 

ou
t t

he
 r

em
ai

nd
er

 o
f t

he
 y

ea
r.

 

3

Page 43



R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
R

ep
o

rt
 -

ed
?

�
��

��
��

��
	


�
�


�
�	

��
Ju

n
e 

T
ar

g
et

Ju
n

e 
A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
Ju

ly
 T

ar
g

et
Ju

ly
 A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
A

u
g

. T
ar

g
et

A
u

g
. A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
S

ep
. T

ar
g

et
S

ep
. A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
T

ar
g

et
E

st
. O

u
tt

u
rn

E
st

. 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
T

ar
g

et
 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

��
��

��
�

20
09

/1
0

LP
I S

C
1

N
um

be
r 

of
 a

tte
nd

an
ce

s 
at

 a
rt

s 
ev

en
ts

M
C

20
,6

42
3,

02
5

5,
40

5
I

4,
03

5
6,

24
5

W
17

,2
10

18
,8

20
I

18
,4

55
20

,1
53

I
21

,2
61

22
,8

44

T
he

 o
ut

do
or

 e
ve

nt
s 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

w
as

 v
er

y 
w

el
l r

ec
ei

ve
d 

in
 S

ep
te

m
be

r,
 w

ith
 th

e 
be

st
 

su
m

m
er

 w
ea

th
er

 o
cc

ur
rin

g 
in

 th
is

 m
on

th
. 

T
he

 J
ub

ile
e 

B
an

ds
ta

nd
 c

on
cl

ud
ed

 th
is

 
m

on
th

 a
nd

 d
re

w
 to

 a
n 

en
d 

th
e 

5 
m

on
th

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e,
 w

hi
ch

 c
om

m
en

ce
d 

at
 th

e 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

of
 M

ay
. T

he
 J

ub
ile

e 
B

an
ds

ta
nd

 
20

09
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 v

er
y 

w
el

l 
re

ce
iv

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 a
nd

 c
on

tin
ue

s 
to

 
re

ce
iv

e 
st

ro
ng

 c
om

m
un

ity
 s

up
po

rt
.

S
C

3
D

ol
ph

in
 C

en
tr

e 
U

sa
ge

M
C

62
7,

40
4

10
55

19
10

5,
03

7
W

14
06

92
13

9,
25

8
I

17
5,

86
5

17
0,

05
5

W
21

60
64

20
4,

52
3

W
50

2,
47

8
50

2,
47

8

U
sa

ge
 is

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
du

e 
to

 th
e 

re
tu

rn
 o

f 
sc

ho
ol

 s
w

im
m

in
g 

le
ss

on
s.

 W
e 

ha
ve

 
re

du
ce

d 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 s
w

im
m

in
g 

cl
as

se
s 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 s
av

e 
co

st
s 

so
 

fe
w

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
ar

e 
en

ro
lle

d 
bu

t i
nc

om
e 

to
 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 w

ill
 im

pr
ov

e.
 N

P
LQ

 c
ou

rs
es

 
w

er
e 

ru
n 

ov
er

 th
re

e 
w

ee
ke

nd
s 

so
 p

oo
l 

pa
rt

ie
s 

w
er

e 
un

av
ai

la
bl

e,
 b

ut
 in

co
m

e 
ge

ne
ra

te
d 

of
fs

et
 th

e 
in

co
m

e 
lo

st
. T

he
 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 d

ire
ct

 d
eb

it 
m

em
be

rs
 h

as
 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
to

 o
ve

r 
75

0 
an

d 
th

is
 is

 r
ef

le
ct

ed
 

in
 fi

tn
es

s 
su

ite
 u

sa
ge

, a
ls

o 
tr

am
po

lin
e 

co
ur

se
 h

av
e 

re
st

ar
te

d.
 W

e 
ar

e 
st

ar
tin

g 
an

 
in

iti
at

iv
e 

w
ith

 s
po

rt
s 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t t

o 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 to
 u

se
 th

e 
fit

ne
ss

 s
ui

te
 d

ur
in

g 
of

f p
ea

k 
tim

es
. 

S
w

im
m

in
g 

le
ss

on
s 

w
ill

 c
ha

ng
e 

fr
om

 3
0 

w
ee

ks
 p

er
 y

ea
r 

to
 4

8 
w

ee
ks

 p
er

 y
ea

r,
 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

co
m

e 
an

d 
us

ag
e.

 

S
C

4
S

po
rt

s 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t u
sa

ge
s

M
C

21
,2

19
6,

31
5

7,
32

9
I

8,
79

6
10

,0
15

W
11

,0
52

12
,3

66
W

13
,0

82
14

,3
07

W
22

,5
56

23
,7

81
W

U
sa

ge
 le

ve
l f

el
l s

lig
ht

ly
 o

ve
r 

S
ep

te
m

be
r.

 A
 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 s

ch
oo

l s
es

si
on

s 
di

d 
no

t b
eg

in
 

un
til

 w
ee

k 
3 

so
 th

is
 h

as
 im

pa
ct

ed
.  

U
sa

ge
 

le
ve

ls
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 r

et
ur

n 
to

 n
or

m
al

 fo
r 

O
ct

ob
er

.

T
ow

n 
C

en
tr

e 
C

ar
 P

ar
k 

U
sa

ge
M

S
n/

a
n/

a
13

0,
09

2
I

n/
a

13
5,

96
5

I
n/

a
12

5,
45

8
W

n/
a

12
4,

06
0

W
n/

a
1,

55
6,

14
3

C
on

tin
ue

d 
hi

gh
er

 ti
ck

et
 s

al
es

 d
ue

 to
 

w
ith

dr
aw

al
 o

f c
on

ce
ss

io
na

ry
 p

er
m

its
.

S
ho

pm
ob

ili
ty

 C
en

tr
e 

U
sa

ge
 (

M
on

th
ly

)
M

S
n/

a
15

0
17

8
I

15
0

16
6

W
15

0
15

6
W

15
0

19
6

I
15

0
15

0
C

on
tin

ue
d 

hi
gh

er
 u

se
 o

f S
ho

pm
ob

ili
ty

 d
ue

 
to

 w
or

d 
of

 m
ou

th
 a

nd
 b

et
te

r 
w

ea
th

er
 th

an
 

at
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

tim
e 

la
st

 y
ea

r.

LP
I L

L1
Li

fe
 li

ne
 u

ni
ts

 in
 u

se
M

S
54

7
66

0.
00

65
7.

00
I

67
0.

00
68

2.
00

I
68

0.
00

68
7.

00
I

69
0.

00
72

5.
00

I
75

0
78

7

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 in

st
al

la
tio

ns
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 
w

ith
 in

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

w
as

 h
ig

h,
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

ho
lid

ay
 p

er
io

d 
th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 m

on
th

.  
C

an
ce

lla
tio

ns
 w

er
e 

lo
w

 lo
w

 a
nd

 u
sa

ge
 is

 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 g
ro

w
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

up
co

m
in

g 
w

in
te

r 
pe

rio
d.

 

M
* 

= 
in

 th
e 

m
on

th
s 

w
he

n 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

( 
3 

tim
es

 p
er

 y
ea

r)

4

Page 44



R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
R

ep
o

rt
 -

ed
?

�
��

��
��

��
	


�
�


�
�	

��
Ju

n
e 

T
ar

g
et

Ju
n

e 
A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
Ju

ly
 T

ar
g

et
Ju

ly
 A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
A

u
g

. T
ar

g
et

A
u

g
. A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
S

ep
. T

ar
g

et
S

ep
. A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
T

ar
g

et
E

st
. O

u
tt

u
rn

E
st

. 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
T

ar
g

et
 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

��
��

��
�

20
09

/1
0

P
la

n
n

in
g

 &
 E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
S

er
vi

ce
s

N
I 1

57
 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 m

aj
or

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 1
3 

w
ee

ks
M

C
68

.8
0

80
.0

0
10

0.
00

I
80

.0
0

10
0.

00
I

80
.0

0
10

0.
00

S
80

.0
0

10
0.

00
S

80
.0

0
80

.0
0

M
aj

or
s;

 3
/3

 =
 1

00
%

N
at

io
na

l T
ar

ge
t 6

0%
 (

Lo
ca

l T
ar

ge
t 8

0%
)

T
he

re
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

a 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 m

aj
or

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
th

is
 q

ua
rt

er
, w

ith
 n

on
e 

in
 J

ul
y 

an
d 

on
ly

 o
ne

 in
 A

ug
us

t. 
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

sa
w

 th
re

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 in

 th
is

 
ca

te
go

ry
, a

ll 
of

 w
hi

ch
 w

er
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 in

 
tim

e.
 T

hi
s 

in
cl

ud
ed

 th
e 

re
vi

se
d 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

fo
r 

P
er

ry
fie

ld
s 

ro
ad

 (
09

/0
51

8)
 1

5 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 u
ni

ts
 a

t S
id

em
oo

r 
sc

ho
ol

 s
ite

 B
ro

ad
 S

tr
ee

t (
09

/0
45

8)
 a

nd
 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
to

 G
le

nf
ie

ld
 N

ur
si

ng
 h

om
e 

(0
9/

05
09

)

N
I 1

57
 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 m

in
or

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 8
 w

ee
ks

M
C

76
.5

0
85

.0
0

84
.0

0
I

85
.0

0
87

.0
0

I
85

.0
0

83
.0

0
W

85
.0

0
84

.0
0

I
85

.0
0

85
.0

0

M
in

or
s;

 7
/7

 =
 1

00
%

N
at

io
na

l T
ar

ge
t 6

5%
 (

Lo
ca

l T
ar

ge
t 8

5%
)

T
he

re
 w

as
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 m

in
or

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 in

 S
ep

te
m

be
r.

  
P

re
vi

ou
s 

m
on

th
s 

ha
d 

se
en

; 1
3 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 in
 A

pr
il,

 1
4 

in
 M

ay
, 1

0 
in

 J
un

e 
an

d 
16

 in
 J

ul
y 

an
d 

17
 in

 A
ug

us
t.

Ju
st

 7
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 w

er
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 in
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

an
d 

al
l o

f t
he

se
 w

er
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 in

 ti
m

e.

N
I 1

57
 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 o

th
er

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 8
 w

ee
ks

M
C

89
.5

0
90

.0
0

92
.0

0
I

90
.0

0
91

.0
0

W
90

.0
0

90
.0

0
S

90
.0

0
89

.0
0

W
90

.0
0

90
.0

0

O
th

er
s;

 3
9/

48
 =

 8
1%

 
N

at
io

na
l T

ar
ge

t 8
0%

 (
Lo

ca
l T

ar
ge

t 9
0%

)
M

in
or

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 a
ls

o 
re

du
ce

d 
th

is
 

m
on

th
 w

ith
 4

8 
be

in
g 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 in

 
re

la
tio

n 
to

 6
0 

in
 M

ay
, 4

8 
in

 J
un

e,
 5

6 
in

 
Ju

ly
 a

nd
 5

5 
in

 A
ug

us
t.

N
in

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 w

en
t o

ve
r 

th
re

e 
of

 w
hi

ch
 

w
er

e 
as

 a
 r

es
ul

t o
f f

ile
s 

be
in

g 
re

ce
iv

ed
 

la
te

. T
hr

ee
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

ad
di

tio
na

l s
ite

 
no

tic
es

, o
ne

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

w
as

 c
al

le
d 

to
 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 fo

r 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

(5
 P

ar
k 

R
oa

d,
 H

ag
le

y)
 o

ne
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

ns
 a

nd
 o

ne
 w

as
 a

 r
es

ul
t o

f a
n 

ad
m

in
 e

rr
or

.

5

Page 45



R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
R

ep
o

rt
 -

ed
?

�
��

��
��

��
	


�
�


�
�	

��
Ju

n
e 

T
ar

g
et

Ju
n

e 
A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
Ju

ly
 T

ar
g

et
Ju

ly
 A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
A

u
g

. T
ar

g
et

A
u

g
. A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
S

ep
. T

ar
g

et
S

ep
. A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
T

ar
g

et
E

st
. O

u
tt

u
rn

E
st

. 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
T

ar
g

et
 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

��
��

��
�

20
09

/1
0

N
I 1

55
N

um
be

r 
of

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

 d
el

iv
er

ed
Q

C
20

22
I

40
.0

0
46

.0
0

I
80

.0
0

74
.0

0

A
lth

ou
gh

 w
e 

ha
ve

 e
xc

ee
de

d 
ou

r 
ta

rg
et

 in
 

th
e 

fir
st

 tw
o 

qu
ar

te
rs

 o
f t

hi
s 

ye
ar

 
un

fo
re

se
en

 s
lip

pa
ge

 o
n 

tw
o 

si
te

s 
of

 1
5 

an
d 

20
 u

ni
ts

 m
ay

 le
ad

 to
 a

 s
ho

rt
fa

ll 
of

 6
 

un
its

 in
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 o
ur

 ta
rg

et
 th

is
 y

ea
r.

 It
 

re
m

ai
ns

 q
ue

st
io

na
bl

e 
 if

 th
e 

de
la

ys
 

en
co

un
te

re
d 

on
 th

es
e 

tw
o 

si
te

s 
ca

n 
be

 
re

co
ve

re
d 

be
fo

re
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

ye
ar

.

N
I 1

56
N

um
be

r 
of

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

oc
cu

py
in

g 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n

Q
S

34
15

S
S

34
.0

0
13

.0
0

I
< 

34
<3

4

T
he

 n
um

be
rs

 o
f c

lie
nt

s 
in

 te
m

po
ra

ry
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

re
m

ai
ns

 lo
w

 a
t 1

3 
w

el
l 

w
ith

in
 o

ur
 ta

rg
et

 o
f 3

4.
 T

hi
s 

is
 d

es
pi

te
 th

e 
re

op
en

in
g 

of
 th

e 
fo

rm
er

 d
om

es
tic

 a
bu

se
 

re
fu

ge
 a

s 
fiv

e 
un

its
 o

f p
er

m
an

en
t 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
w

hi
ch

 w
e 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 w

ou
ld

 a
dd

 to
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l 
fig

ur
es

 b
ut

 a
s 

ye
t h

as
 n

ot
 d

on
e 

so
.  

T
hi

s 
is

 d
ue

 to
 o

ur
 e

xc
el

le
nt

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 o

ur
 

pa
rt

ne
r 

ag
en

ci
es

 u
si

ng
 e

xi
st

in
g 

to
ol

s 
an

d 
ne

w
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t i
ni

tia
tiv

es
 to

 p
re

ve
nt

 
cl

ie
nt

s 
be

co
m

in
g 

ho
m

el
es

s.

LP
I

A
ve

ra
ge

 ti
m

e 
(w

ee
ks

) 
fr

om
 r

ef
er

ra
l t

o 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
fo

r 
ca

te
go

ry
  1

 D
F

G
s 

Q
C

34
.0

0
60

.0
4

W
34

48
I

34
48

E
ar

lie
r 

is
su

es
 w

ith
 IT

 s
ys

te
m

s 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 r
ep

or
te

d 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

pa
rt

ia
lly

 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

w
hi

ch
 h

as
 le

d 
to

 r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t i

n 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

ve
r 

la
st

 
qu

ar
te

r.
   

W
e 

w
ill

 u
se

 ‘l
ea

n’
 s

ys
te

m
s 

te
ch

ni
qu

es
 to

 r
e-

en
gi

ne
er

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
w

hi
ch

 s
ho

ul
d 

pr
ov

id
e 

fu
rt

he
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

.  
H

ow
ev

er
 th

e 
re

du
ce

d 
bu

dg
et

 th
is

 y
ea

r 
(r

ed
uc

ed
 b

y 
£3

00
,0

00
 

si
nc

e 
la

st
 y

ea
r)

 w
ill

 b
eg

in
 to

 a
ffe

ct
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 fr
om

 q
ua

rt
er

 th
re

e 
on

w
ar

ds
 

as
 w

e 
ha

ve
 a

lre
ad

y 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

m
os

t o
f t

he
 

bu
dg

et
 to

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
sc

he
m

es
 a

nd
 it

 w
ill

 b
e 

fu
lly

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
du

rin
g 

qu
ar

te
r 

3.
  T

hi
s 

w
ill

 
m

ea
n 

th
at

 th
er

e 
w

ill
 th

en
 b

e 
a 

bu
ild

 u
p 

of
 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 d
ur

in
g 

qu
ar

te
rs

 3
 a

nd
 4

 w
hi

ch
 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
fu

nd
ed

 u
nt

il 
20

10
/1

1,
 th

us
 

ad
ve

rs
el

y 
af

fe
ct

in
g 

th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
in

di
ca

to
r

LP
I

A
ve

ra
ge

 ti
m

e 
(w

ee
ks

) 
fr

om
 r

ef
er

ra
l t

o 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
fo

r 
ca

te
go

ry
  2

 D
F

G
s

Q
C

38
.0

0
53

.0
0

W
38

58
I

38
58

S
ee

 a
bo

ve

LP
I

A
ve

ra
ge

 ti
m

e 
(w

ee
ks

) 
fr

om
 r

ef
er

ra
l t

o 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
fo

r 
ca

te
go

ry
  3

 D
F

G
s

Q
C

52
.0

0
55

.7
1

I
52

67
W

52
67

S
ee

 a
bo

ve

LP
I

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 D

F
G

 b
ud

ge
t a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 s
ch

em
es

 (
ac

tiv
ity

 m
ea

su
re

)
Q

C
n/

a
95

.0
0

n/
a

10
0.

00
B

ud
ge

t w
ill

 b
e 

fu
lly

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
du

rin
g 

Q
3

LP
I 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 D

F
G

 b
ud

ge
t s

pe
nt

 
(a

ct
iv

ity
 m

ea
su

re
)

Q
C

n/
a

40
.0

0
n/

a
10

0.
00

W
or

k 
on

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
gr

an
ts

 w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
m

an
ag

ed
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

re
st

 
of

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r.
  I

t i
s 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 th
at

 a
ll 

w
or

ks
 w

ill
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
ye

ar
, 

th
us

 th
e 

bu
dg

et
 w

ill
 b

e 
10

0%
 s

pe
nt 6

Page 46



R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
R

ep
o

rt
 -

ed
?

�
��

��
��

��
	


�
�


�
�	

��
Ju

n
e 

T
ar

g
et

Ju
n

e 
A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
Ju

ly
 T

ar
g

et
Ju

ly
 A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
A

u
g

. T
ar

g
et

A
u

g
. A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
S

ep
. T

ar
g

et
S

ep
. A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
T

ar
g

et
E

st
. O

u
tt

u
rn

E
st

. 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
T

ar
g

et
 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

��
��

��
�

20
09

/1
0

LP
I 

D
F

G
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

m
ea

su
re

Q
S

T
hi

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

at
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 q
ua

rt
er

 
3 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
C

ar
e 

R
ep

ai
r 

A
dv

is
or

y 
B

oa
rd

 m
ee

tin
g 

in
 D

ec
em

be
r

E
-g

o
v 

&
 C

u
st

o
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s

C
S

C

M
on

th
ly

 C
al

l V
ol

um
es

 C
us

to
m

er
 C

on
ta

ct
 

C
en

tr
e

M
S

n/
a

7,
87

0
8,

27
7

6,
80

2
7,

63
7

n/
a

C
on

ta
ct

 c
en

tr
e 

ca
lls

 h
av

e 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

by
 

12
%

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 la
st

 m
on

th
. T

he
 tr

en
d 

re
fle

ct
s 

pr
ev

io
us

 y
ea

rs
 c

al
l p

at
te

rn
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
pe

rio
d.

 N
ot

ab
ly

  o
ve

ra
ll 

ca
ll 

vo
lu

m
es

 a
re

 d
ec

re
as

in
g.

C
S

C

M
on

th
ly

 C
al

l V
ol

um
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

S
w

itc
hb

oa
rd

M
S

n/
a

4,
58

0
4,

45
2

3,
66

0
4,

24
7

n/
a

sw
itc

hb
oa

rd
 c

al
ls

 h
av

e 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

by
 1

6%
 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 la
st

 m
on

th
. T

hi
s 

tr
en

d 
re

fle
ct

s 
pr

ev
io

us
 y

ea
rs

 c
al

l p
at

te
rn

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

pe
rio

d.
 N

ot
ab

ly
 o

ve
ra

ll 
ca

ll 
vo

lu
m

es
 a

re
 d

ec
re

as
in

g.

C
S

C
LP

I3
.1

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

at
 F

irs
t P

oi
nt

 o
f C

on
ta

ct
 a

ll 
se

rv
ic

es
 (

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
)

M
S

99
.0

0
95

.0
0

99
S

95
.0

0
93

.5
W

95
.0

0
94

.0
0

I
95

.0
0

97
I

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

ra
te

s 
ar

e 
ab

ov
e 

ta
rg

et
 th

is
 

m
on

th
 a

nd
 s

ho
w

 a
n 

up
w

ar
d 

tr
en

d 
si

nc
e 

th
e 

in
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 O

ne
 S

er
ve

 in
 J

ul
y 

as
 

us
er

s 
ha

ve
 b

ec
om

e 
m

or
e 

pr
of

ic
ie

nt
 a

t 
us

in
g 

sy
st

em

C
S

C
LP

I3
.2

%
 o

f C
al

ls
 A

ns
w

er
ed

M
S

87
.0

0
85

.0
0

92
.0

0
S

85
.0

0
86

.6
0

W
85

.0
0

89
.0

0
I

85
.0

0
86

.0
0

W
85

.0
0

85
.0

0
R

em
ai

ns
 a

bo
ve

 ta
rg

et
 th

is
 m

on
th

 h
ow

ev
er

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 is

 d
ow

n 
by

 3
%

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 
la

st
 m

on
th

.

C
S

C
LP

I3
.3

A
ve

ra
ge

 S
pe

ed
 o

f A
ns

w
er

 (
se

co
nd

s)
M

S
30

.0
0

20
.0

0
16

.0
0

S
20

.0
0

29
.0

0
W

20
.0

0
20

.0
0

I
20

.0
0

24
.0

0
W

20
.0

0
20

A
ve

ra
ge

 a
ns

w
er

 ti
m

e 
ha

s 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

by
 4

 
se

co
nd

s 
th

is
 m

on
th

 ta
ki

ng
 it

 a
bo

ve
 ta

rg
et

. 
T

he
 c

um
ul

at
iv

e 
av

er
ag

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 to

 
da

te
 is

 n
ow

 1
 s

ec
on

d 
ab

ov
e 

ta
rg

et

C
h

ie
f 

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
's

 
d

ep
ar

tm
en

t

LP
I 

C
C

P
P

01
 

N
um

be
r 

of
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 

(C
ou

nc
il 

w
id

e)
 M

on
th

ly
.  

S
ou

rc
e 

 n
ew

 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s 
sy

st
em

. 
M

C
27

0
n/

a
67

I
n/

a
79

I
n/

a
91

S
n/

a
96

I
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a

T
he

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t d

ec
re

as
e 

in
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
is

 
m

ai
nl

y 
du

e 
to

 th
e 

se
as

on
al

 fl
uc

tu
at

io
n 

co
m

bi
ne

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
dr

op
 in

 c
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

ab
ou

t g
re

en
 w

as
te

. C
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 
w

er
e 

1a
bo

ut
 th

e 
ne

w
 r

ec
yc

lin
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

, 1
 r

e 
gr

ee
n 

w
as

te
, 1

 a
bo

ut
 

lit
te

r,
 1

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
st

re
et

 c
le

an
si

ng
 v

an
 

bl
oc

ki
ng

 th
e 

ro
ad

 a
nd

 o
ne

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
do

ub
le

 b
oo

ki
ng

 o
f a

 b
ad

m
in

to
n 

co
ur

t a
t 

th
e 

D
ol

ph
in

 C
en

tr
e

LP
I 

C
C

P
P

02
 

(D
M

)

%
 o

f P
A

C
T

 m
ee

tin
gs

 a
tte

nd
ed

 b
y 

C
M

T
 

m
em

be
rs

Q
C

80
%

85
.0

0
88

.0
0

I
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
85

.0
0

79
.0

0
W

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

9 
ou

t o
f 1

2 
m

ee
tin

gs
 w

er
e 

at
te

nd
ed

.  
O

f 
th

e 
3 

no
t a

tte
nd

ed
 o

ne
 w

as
 d

ue
 to

 a
 

ch
an

ge
 o

f d
at

e 
by

 P
ol

ic
e 

w
hi

ch
 w

e 
w

er
e 

no
t n

ot
ifi

ed
 o

f.

LP
I 

C
C

P
P

03
 

N
um

be
r 

of
 c

om
pl

im
en

ts
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

M
C

70
n/

a
10

I
n/

a
15

I
n/

a
20

S
n/

a
21

W
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
1 

C
om

pl
im

en
t r

ec
ei

ve
d 

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
ne

w
 

to
ile

t i
n 

th
e 

T
ow

n 
C

en
tr

e

LP
I 

C
C

P
P

05
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 tr

an
sp

or
t i

nc
om

e 
(£

)
M

C
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
S

er
vi

ce
 c

om
m

en
ce

d 
21

 S
ep

te
m

be
r.

  
In

co
m

e 
fig

ur
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 fr
om

 1
 

O
ct

ob
er

 o
nw

ar
ds

7

Page 47



R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
R

ep
o

rt
 -

ed
?

�
��

��
��

��
	


�
�


�
�	

��
Ju

n
e 

T
ar

g
et

Ju
n

e 
A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
Ju

ly
 T

ar
g

et
Ju

ly
 A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
A

u
g

. T
ar

g
et

A
u

g
. A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
S

ep
. T

ar
g

et
S

ep
. A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
T

ar
g

et
E

st
. O

u
tt

u
rn

E
st

. 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
T

ar
g

et
 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

��
��

��
�

20
09

/1
0

F
in

an
ci

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s

N
I1

81
T

im
e 

ta
ke

n 
to

 p
ro

ce
ss

 H
B

/C
T

 b
en

ef
it 

ne
w

 c
la

im
s 

or
 c

ha
ng

e 
ev

en
ts

 (
da

ys
)

M
C

15
.0

3
15

.0
0

12
.0

3
W

15
.0

0
11

.3
9

I
15

.0
0

11
.2

9
W

15
.0

0
11

.5
5

I
15

.0
0

13
.0

0

T
he

re
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

a 
sl

ig
ht

 d
ip

 in
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 b
ut

 w
e 

ar
e 

w
el

l w
ith

in
 in

 
ye

ar
ly

 ta
rg

et
.  

T
he

 d
ec

re
as

e 
in

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 is

 d
ue

 to
 s

um
m

er
 h

ol
id

ay
s 

an
d 

st
af

f b
ei

ng
 a

sk
ed

 to
 c

on
ce

nt
ra

te
 o

n 
th

e 
ol

de
r 

w
or

k.
  W

e 
ha

ve
 a

lm
os

t h
al

ve
d 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 it

em
s 

an
d 

ha
ve

 
cu

r 
th

e 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g 
w

or
k 

fr
om

 ju
st

 o
ve

r 
6 

w
ee

ks
 to

 a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

5 
w

ee
ks

.

T
ot

al
 v

al
ue

 o
f H

B
 o

ve
rp

ay
m

en
ts

 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g 
at

 th
e 

st
ar

t o
f t

he
 q

ua
rt

er
 

(£
)

Q
S

n/
a

55
6,

37
9

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

54
9,

84
4

I
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a

T
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f o

ve
rp

ay
m

en
ts

 o
ut

st
an

di
ng

 
ha

s 
re

du
ce

d 
bu

t t
he

re
 is

 s
til

l r
oo

m
 fo

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t. 
 B

en
ef

its
 S

er
vi

ce
 M

an
ag

er
 

an
d 

H
ea

d 
of

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 lo
ok

in
g 

at
 w

ay
s 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

is
 

an
d 

in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 w

e 
re

co
ve

r.

T
ot

al
 v

al
ue

 o
f H

B
 o

ve
rp

ay
m

en
ts

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
qu

ar
te

r 
(£

)
Q

S
n/

a
69

,4
94

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

64
,0

54
I

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

T
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f o

ve
rp

ay
m

en
ts

 r
ai

se
d 

si
nc

e 
la

st
 q

ua
rt

er
 h

as
 r

ed
uc

ed
.  

T
hi

s 
m

ea
ns

 th
at

 
H

B
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 h
av

e 
ge

ne
ra

lly
 b

ee
n 

m
or

e 
ac

cu
ra

te
.  

H
ow

ev
er

, o
ve

r 
th

e 
la

st
 q

ua
rt

er
 

w
e 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 d
on

e 
as

 m
an

y 
re

vi
ew

s 
an

d 
th

is
 c

ou
ld

 m
ea

n 
th

e 
fig

ur
e 

is
 n

ot
 a

 fa
ir 

re
fle

ct
io

n 
of

 a
 n

or
m

al
 q

ua
rt

er
.

%
 o

f H
B

 o
ve

rp
ay

m
en

ts
 r

ec
ov

er
ed

 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

qu
ar

te
r 

of
 th

e 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g 
de

bt
.

Q
S

15
.0

0
£7

24
38

 / 
13

%
n

/a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
15

.0
0

7.
80

W
15

.0
0

15
.0

0

£4
2,

69
6 

re
co

ve
re

d.
 W

hi
le

 th
e 

to
ta

l 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g 
de

bt
 h

as
 r

ed
uc

ed
, t

he
 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 r

ec
ov

er
ed

 a
ga

in
st

 th
e 

to
ta

l 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g 
ha

s 
re

du
ce

d.
  A

ga
in

, t
he

 
B

en
ef

it 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
an

ag
er

 a
nd

 H
ea

d 
of

 
F

in
an

ci
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
lo

ok
in

g 
at

 id
ea

s 
to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

is
.

%
 o

f t
he

 o
ut

st
an

di
ng

 H
B

 o
ve

rp
ay

m
en

ts
 

de
bt

 w
rit

te
n 

of
f d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
 q

ua
rt

er
Q

S
2.

00
£8

52
 / 

0.
15

%
n

/a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
2.

00
0.

36
W

2.
00

2.
00

T
he

 to
ta

l a
m

ou
nt

 w
rit

te
n 

of
f a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
to

ta
l o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 d

eb
t h

as
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

sl
ig

ht
ly

 (
£1

,9
67

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

qu
ar

te
r)

 b
ut

 is
 

st
ill

 le
ss

 th
an

 1
%

 a
nd

 is
 th

er
ef

or
e 

no
t a

n 
is

su
e.

N
I 1

79
V

F
M

 -
 to

ta
l n

et
 v

al
ue

 g
o 

on
-g

oi
ng

 c
as

h 
re

le
as

in
g 

V
F

M
 g

ai
ns

 s
in

ce
 th

e 
st

ar
t o

f 
20

08
-0

9 
(£

'0
00

)
Q

C
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
43

8
39

6
S

87
6

79
2

D
ue

 to
 r

en
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

 o
f c

on
tr

ac
ts

, s
ha

re
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 r
es

tr
uc

tu
re

s 
th

e 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

ta
rg

et
s 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
m

et
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
 

It 
is

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 th
at

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
st

ill
 a

 
co

ns
id

er
ab

le
 n

um
be

r 
of

 V
F

M
 g

ai
ns

 b
ei

ng
 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 th
at

 a
re

 n
ot

 id
en

tif
ie

d,
 e

va
lu

at
ed

 
an

d 
re

po
rt

ed
.  

A
n 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
ca

m
pa

ig
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

vi
a 

D
M

T
’s

, 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 C

ha
m

pi
on

s 
gr

ou
p,

 C
on

ne
ct

 
an

d 
In

tr
an

et
 to

 m
ak

e 
m

an
ag

es
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 
th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

ca
pt

ur
e 

de
ta

ils
 o

f 
V

F
M

 g
ai

ns

8

Page 48



R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
R

ep
o

rt
 -

ed
?

�
��

��
��

��
	


�
�


�
�	

��
Ju

n
e 

T
ar

g
et

Ju
n

e 
A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
Ju

ly
 T

ar
g

et
Ju

ly
 A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
A

u
g

. T
ar

g
et

A
u

g
. A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
S

ep
. T

ar
g

et
S

ep
. A

ct
u

al
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d
T

ar
g

et
E

st
. O

u
tt

u
rn

E
st

. 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
T

ar
g

et
 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

��
��

��
�

20
09

/1
0

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 in

vo
ic

es
 p

ai
d 

w
ith

in
 1

0 
da

ys
 o

f r
ec

ei
pt

M
C

n/
a

90
.0

0
82

.9
3

I 
90

.0
0

83
.6

5
I 

90
.0

0
83

.1
1

W
90

.0
0

83
.2

3
I

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 in

vo
ic

es
 p

ai
d 

ha
s 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
ba

ck
 u

p 
in

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

to
 

83
.8

3%
 fr

om
 8

0.
97

%
 in

 A
ug

us
t. 

F
P

00
1

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 in

vo
ic

es
 p

ai
d 

w
ith

in
 3

0 
da

ys
 o

f r
ec

ei
pt

M
C

99
.3

8
98

.0
0

98
.5

7
W

98
.0

0
98

.5
3

W
98

.0
0

98
.5

0
S

98
.0

0
98

.4
2

W
98

.0
0

98
.0

0
O

n 
T

ar
ge

t

L
eg

al
, E

q
u

al
it

ie
s 

an
d

 
D

em
o

cr
at

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
s

T
he

re
 a

re
 n

o 
P

I's
 r

ep
or

te
d 

m
on

th
ly

 
fo

r 
th

is
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

t

LD
 L

P
I 1

N
ew

 E
qu

al
ity

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
(r

ep
la

ce
s 

eq
ua

lit
y 

st
an

da
rd

 a
bo

ve
 in

 2
00

9/
10

)
Q

S
n/

a
2

2
I

Le
ve

l 2
Le

ve
l 2

S
Le

ve
l 2

Le
ve

l 2

H
av

in
g 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 L
ev

el
 3

 o
f t

he
 E

qu
al

ity
 

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
 w

e 
no

w
 m

ig
ra

te
 a

cr
os

s 
to

 L
ev

el
 

2 
of

 th
e 

ne
w

 E
qu

al
ity

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k.

 T
hi

s 
gi

ve
s 

us
 th

e 
st

at
us

 o
f "

A
ch

ie
vi

ng
" 

an
d 

w
e 

ar
e 

th
e 

on
ly

 D
is

tr
ic

t i
n 

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 to

 
be

 a
t t

hi
s 

le
ve

l. 
 W

e 
ex

pe
ct

 to
 b

e 
in

 th
e 

to
p 

qu
ar

til
e 

fo
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
ils

 w
he

n 
fig

ur
es

 a
re

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
in

 D
ec

em
be

r.
  T

he
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f D

is
tr

ic
t C

ou
nc

ils
 h

as
 

al
w

ay
s 

be
en

 lo
w

er
 th

an
 o

th
er

 C
ou

nc
ils

 a
s 

D
is

tr
ic

ts
 h

av
e 

m
or

e 
di

ffi
cu

lty
 r

es
ou

rc
in

g 
th

e 
w

id
e 

ra
ng

in
g,

 d
et

ai
le

d 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f 
th

is
 a

re
a 

of
 w

or
k.

LD
 L

P
I 3

P
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 
E

qu
al

iti
es

 a
nd

 D
iv

er
si

ty
 fo

ru
m

  a
nd

 
D

is
ab

le
d 

U
se

rs
 G

ro
up

 s
at

is
fie

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 

Q
S

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

E
st

ab
lis

h 
ba

se
lin

e 
da

ta

LD
 L

P
I 4

N
um

be
r 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
at

te
nd

in
g 

E
 &

 D
 

ev
en

ts
 (

e.
g.

 D
iv

al
i, 

B
la

ck
 h

is
to

ry
 m

on
th

) 
Q

S
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
E

st
ab

lis
h 

ba
se

lin
e 

da
ta

H
u

m
an

 R
es

o
u

rc
es

 &
 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n
al

 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 

LP
I 

(f
or

m
er

ly
 

B
V

12
)

T
he

 a
ve

ra
ge

 n
um

be
r 

of
 w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
s 

lo
st

 d
ue

 to
 s

ic
kn

es
s.

M
C

10
.6

6
2.

13
2.

91
W

2.
84

4.
07

W
3.

55
4.

94
I

4.
26

5.
44

I
8.

75
10

.8
9

I
A

 s
ub

st
an

tia
l r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 
da

ys
 r

ec
or

de
d 

as
 s

ic
kn

es
s 

du
rin

g 
S

ep
te

m
be

r.
  F

ur
th

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 s

ho
rt

ly

9

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



S
tr

ee
ts

ce
n

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

T
ar

ge
t

48
.6

1
50

.0
1

49
.1

2
49

.0
0

49
.0

4
49

.0
3

48
.2

7
50

.1
3

54
.6

1
49

.3
2

45
.7

4
50

.1
1

A
ct

ua
l

52
.5

6
48

.1
0

50
.5

0
55

.0
5

48
.4

7
51

.3
8

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

2,
04

0.
68

1,
86

7.
76

1,
96

0.
96

2,
13

7.
55

18
81

.8
2

19
95

.1
4

38
,8

28
38

,8
28

38
,8

28
38

,8
28

38
82

8
38

82
8

38
,8

28
38

,8
28

38
,8

28
38

,8
28

38
,8

28
38

,8
28

T
ar

ge
t

32
.0

7
31

.9
8

32
.5

8
33

.1
2

33
.7

8
34

.2
9

34
.5

1
34

.5
7

37
.4

9
33

.1
6

32
.6

8
32

.7
2

A
ct

ua
l

39
.3

0
42

.2
9

42
.1

9
40

.3
3

39
.7

8
41

.7
5

1,
32

1.
28

9
1,

36
8.

69
8

1,
43

0.
86

6
1,

44
4.

68
4

12
43

.0
80

14
30

.2
83

3,
36

1.
96

9
3,

23
6.

47
8

3,
39

1.
82

2
3,

58
2.

23
4

31
24

.9
00

34
25

.4
23

T
ar

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

T
ar

ge
t

95
95

95
95

95
95

95
95

95
95

95
95

A
ct

ua
l

12
9

12
3

12
7

67
68

49

T
ar

ge
t

20
20

20
20

20
20

20
20

20
20

20
20

A
ct

ua
l

18
6

20
18

9
5

T
ar

ge
t

45
9

47
5

45
9

47
5

47
5

45
9

47
5

45
9

47
5

47
5

42
9

47
5

A
ct

ua
l

45
9

40
9

42
7

48
8

47
3

43
1

T
ar

ge
t

32
33

32
33

33
32

32
33

33
33

30
33

A
ct

ua
l

35
13

33
16

25
23

T
ar

ge
t

76
85

85
82

85
79

77
71

69
70

63
76

A
ct

ua
l

81
81

75
93

10
3

10
7

T
ar

ge
t

5
5

5
5

5
5

5
5

5
5

4
5

A
ct

ua
l

4
4

3
4

4
5

T
ar

ge
t

58
59

57
59

59
57

59
57

59
59

53
59

A
ct

ua
l

59
37

65
77

66
49

T
ar

ge
t

84
99

92
85

75
10

3
77

84
96

77
73

96

A
ct

ua
l

75
79

60
95

76
83

T
ar

ge
t

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

10
3

A
ct

ua
l

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

83

N
W

B
C

U
6

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 c

rim
in

al
 d

am
ag

e 
in

ci
de

nt
s

M
C

N
W

B
C

U
1

N
W

B
C

U
3

N
W

B
C

U
2

A
pr

. 
M

ay
.

Ju
n.

Ju
l.

A
ug

.
S

ep
. 

O
ct

. 
N

ov
. 

N
I 1

92
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 r
e-

us
ed

, r
ec

yc
le

d 
an

d 
co

m
po

st
ed

F
re

q

20
09

/1
0 

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 f

ig
u

re
s

D
ec

. 
Ja

n.
 

F
eb

.

C
um

 o
r 

S
na

p
M

ar
. 

R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n

N
I 1

91
R

es
id

ua
l H

ou
se

ho
ld

 w
as

te
 p

er
 

ho
us

eh
ol

d

M
N

I 1
96

LP
I D

ep
ot

LP
I D

ep
ot

N
um

be
r 

of
 m

is
se

d 
re

cy
cl

e 
w

as
te

 
co

lle
ct

io
ns

Im
pr

ov
ed

 s
tr

ee
t a

nd
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

cl
ea

nl
in

es
s 

 -
 fl

y 
tip

pi
ng

M
N

um
be

r 
of

 m
is

se
d 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
w

as
te

 
co

lle
ct

io
ns

M

CC C

M
C CC

M
C

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 d

om
es

tic
 b

ur
gl

ar
ie

s 

M
C

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 r

ob
be

rie
s 

N
W

B
C

U
4

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 v

eh
ic

le
 c

rim
es

 
M

C

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 v

io
le

nt
 c

rim
es

N
um

be
r 

of
 D

om
es

tic
 V

io
le

nc
e 

in
ci

de
nt

s 
in

ve
st

ig
at

ed
 (

so
ur

ce
 C

D
R

P
)

Q

nu
m

er
at

or

de
no

m
in

at
or

M
C

nu
m

er
at

or

de
no

m
in

at
or

M
C

T
ot

al
 c

rim
es

M

Page 51



T
ar

ge
t

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

A
ct

ua
l

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

T
ar

ge
t

28
3

28
3

28
3

28
3

28
3

28
3

28
3

28
3

28
3

28
3

28
3

28
3

A
ct

ua
l

25
8

25
7

22
8

25
0

24
8

35
3

T
ar

ge
t

82
82

82
82

82
82

82
82

82
82

82
82

A
ct

ua
l

76
80

74
62

74
87

T
ar

ge
t

16
18

18
20

22
16

18
14

5
5

12
16

A
ct

ua
l

27
12

0
15

63
0

T
ar

ge
t

54
67

80
94

94
67

54
34

20
20

40
46

A
ct

ua
l

35
23

0
18

38
3

0

T
ar

ge
t

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

A
ct

ua
l

1
3

1
2

1
1

T
ar

ge
t

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

A
ct

ua
l

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

T
ar

ge
t

75
47

0
3,

02
5

1,
01

0
13

,1
75

70
0

A
ct

ua
l

80
49

5
5,

40
5

84
0

12
,5

75
75

8

T
ar

ge
t

34
,0

58
35

,1
73

35
,1

73
35

,1
73

35
,1

73
40

19
9

A
ct

ua
l

29
,1

23
37

,3
36

33
,9

82
34

,2
21

30
,7

97
34

46
8

T
ar

ge
t

1,
80

4
2,

03
0

2,
48

1
2,

48
1

2,
25

6
20

30
2,

03
0

1,
80

4
1,

12
8

1,
12

8
1,

58
0

1,
80

4

A
ct

ua
l

1,
96

6
2,

51
4

2,
84

9
2,

68
6

2,
35

1
19

41

T
ar

ge
t

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

A
ct

ua
l

12
7,

10
6

12
9,

16
7

13
0,

09
2

13
5,

96
5

12
5,

45
8

12
4,

06
0

T
ar

ge
t

15
0

15
0

15
0

15
0

15
0

15
0

15
0

15
0

15
0

15
0

15
0

15
0

A
ct

ua
l

13
0

13
6

17
8

16
6

15
6

19
6

T
ar

ge
t

64
0

65
0

66
0

67
0

68
0

69
0

70
0

71
0

72
0

73
0

74
0

75
0

A
ct

ua
l

64
3

64
4

65
7

68
2

68
7

72
5

M
* 

= 
in

 th
e 

m
on

th
s 

w
he

n 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

( 
3 

tim
es

 p
er

 y
ea

r)

P
la

n
n

in
g

 &
 E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
S

er
vi

ce
s

T
ar

ge
t

80
.0

0
80

.0
0

80
.0

0
80

.0
0

80
.0

0
80

.0
0

80
.0

0
80

.0
0

80
.0

0
80

.0
0

80
.0

0
80

.0
0

A
ct

ua
l

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

n/
a

n/
a

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

1
2

0
0

1
3

1
2

0
0

1
3

T
ar

ge
t

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

N
I1

57
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 m
aj

or
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 1

3 
w

ee
ks

M
C

nu
m

er
at

or

de
no

m
in

at
or

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 m

in
or

 p
la

nn
in

g 
M

T
ow

n 
C

en
tr

e 
C

ar
 P

ar
k 

U
sa

ge

S
C

4

LP
I S

C
1

C

M
S CC

N
um

be
r 

of
 a

tte
nd

an
ce

s 
at

 a
rt

s 
ev

en
ts

M

%
ag

e 
of

 D
V

 in
ci

de
nt

s 
re

su
lti

ng
 in

 a
 

ch
ar

ge
 (

so
ur

ce
 C

D
R

P
)

Q

LP
I C

S
1b

S
C

3
D

ol
ph

in
 C

en
tr

e 
U

sa
ge

M
C

S
po

rt
s 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t u

sa
ge

s
M

C

S
ho

pm
ob

ili
ty

 C
en

tr
e 

U
sa

ge
M

S

LP
I C

S
 1

a
C

C
T

V
 in

ci
de

nt
s 

re
po

rt
ed

 -
 C

rim
e

M
C

C
C

T
V

 in
ci

de
nt

s 
In

iti
at

ed
 b

y 
C

C
T

V
M

C

LP
I C

S
2

N
um

be
r 

of
 lo

ca
lly

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 

di
ve

rs
io

na
ry

 s
es

si
on

s
Q

C

LP
I C

S
3

N
um

be
rs

 o
f u

se
rs

 a
tte

nd
in

g 
di

ve
rs

io
na

ry
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

. 
Q

C

LP
I L

L1
Li

fe
 li

ne
 u

ni
ts

 in
 u

se
M

C

LP
I C

S
4

N
o.

 o
f h

at
e 

cr
im

e 
in

ci
de

nt
s 

(a
ct

iv
ity

 
m

ea
su

re
)

M
S

LP
I C

S
5

%
 o

f  
re

po
rt

ed
 h

at
e 

cr
im

e 
in

ci
de

nt
s 

re
qu

iri
ng

 fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n 
th

at
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n 
 

M
S

Page 52



A
ct

ua
l

92
.0

0
85

.7
0

70
.0

0
94

.0
0

70
.5

0
10

0.
00

12
12

7
15

12
7

13
14

10
16

17
7

T
ar

ge
t

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

A
ct

ua
l

89
.0

0
98

.0
0

85
.0

0
89

.0
0

89
.0

0
81

.0
0

41
54

41
50

49
39

46
55

48
56

55
48

T
ar

ge
t

20
20

60
80

A
ct

ua
l

22
24

T
ar

ge
t

< 
34

< 
34

A
ct

ua
l

15
13

T
ar

ge
t

34
34

34
34

34
34

34
34

34
34

34
34

A
ct

ua
l

34

T
ar

ge
t

38
38

38
38

38
38

38
38

38
38

38
38

A
ct

ua
l

49

T
ar

ge
t

52
52

52
52

52
52

52
52

52
52

52
52

A
ct

ua
l

62

T
ar

ge
t

10
0

A
ct

ua
l

95

T
ar

ge
t

10
0

A
ct

ua
l

40

T
ar

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

E
-g

o
v 

&
 c

u
st

o
m

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s

T
ar

ge
t

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

A
ct

ua
l

8,
59

9
6,

71
4

7,
87

0
8,

27
7

6,
80

2
7,

63
7

T
ar

ge
t

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

A
ct

ua
l

4,
63

1
4,

20
3

4,
58

0
4,

45
2

3,
66

0
4,

24
7

T
ar

ge
t

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

A
ct

ua
l

99
.0

0
99

.0
0

99
.0

0
93

.5
0

94
.0

0
97

.0
0

T
ar

ge
t

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

A
ct

ua
l

89
.0

0
92

.0
0

92
.0

0
86

.6
0

89
.0

0
86

.4
0

T
ar

ge
t

20
20

20
20

20
20

20
20

20
20

20
20

A
ct

ua
l

21
.0

0
16

.0
0

16
.0

0
29

.0
0

20
.0

0
24

.0
0

C
h

ie
f 

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
's

 
T

ar
ge

t
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a

A
ct

ua
l

25
22

20
12

12
5

T
ar

ge
t

n/
a

n/
a

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

A
ct

ua
l

n/
a

n/
a

88
.0

0
75

.0
0

LP
I 

C
C

P
P

02
 

(D
M

)

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 P

A
C

T
 m

ee
tin

gs
 

at
te

nd
ed

 b
y 

C
M

T
 m

em
be

rs
 

Q
C

LP
I 

C
C

P
P

01
 

(S
S

)

N
um

be
r 

of
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 

(C
ou

nc
il 

w
id

e)
 M

on
th

ly
.  

S
ou

rc
e 

 
ne

w
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
sy

st
em

. 
M

C

C
S

C
 L

P
I 3

.3
A

ve
ra

ge
 S

pe
ed

 o
f A

ns
w

er
 (

se
co

nd
s)

M
S

C
S

C
 L

P
I 3

.2
%

 o
f C

al
ls

 A
ns

w
er

ed
M

S

C
S

C
 L

P
I 3

.1
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
at

 F
irs

t P
oi

nt
 o

f C
on

ta
ct

 a
ll 

se
rv

ic
es

 (
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

)
M

S

C
S

C
M

on
th

ly
 C

al
l V

ol
um

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
S

w
itc

hb
oa

rd
M

S

C
S

C
M

on
th

ly
 C

al
l V

ol
um

es
 C

us
to

m
er

 C
on

ta
ct

 
C

en
tr

e
M

S

LP
 

H
ou

si
ng

 
D

F
G

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
m

ea
su

re
Q

S

LP
 

H
ou

si
ng

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 D
F

G
 b

ud
ge

t s
pe

nt
  

Q
C

N
I1

57
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 m
in

or
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 8

 
w

ee
ks

M
C

nu
m

er
at

or

de
no

m
in

at
or

N
I1

57
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 o
th

er
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 8

 
w

ee
ks

M
C

nu
m

er
at

or

de
no

m
in

at
or

N
I 1

55
N

um
be

r 
of

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

 
de

liv
er

ed
Q

C

N
I 1

56
 

N
um

be
r 

of
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
oc

up
yi

ng
 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n
Q

S

LP
 

H
ou

si
ng

 
A

ve
ra

ge
 ti

m
e 

(w
ee

ks
) 

fr
om

 r
ef

er
ra

l 
to

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

fo
r 

ca
te

go
ry

  1
 D

F
G

s 
Q

S

LP
 

H
ou

si
ng

 
A

ve
ra

ge
 ti

m
e 

(w
ee

ks
) 

fr
om

 r
ef

er
ra

l 
to

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

fo
r 

ca
te

go
ry

  2
 D

F
G

s
Q

S

LP
 

H
ou

si
ng

 
A

ve
ra

ge
 ti

m
e 

(w
ee

ks
) 

fr
om

 r
ef

er
ra

l 
to

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

fo
r 

ca
te

go
ry

  3
 D

F
G

s
Q

S

LP
 

H
ou

si
ng

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 D
F

G
 b

ud
ge

t 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

sc
he

m
es

Q
C

Page 53



T
ar

ge
t

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

A
ct

ua
l

4
2

4
5

5
1

T
ar

ge
t

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

A
ct

ua
l

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

F
in

an
ci

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

T
ar

ge
t

15
.0

0
15

.0
0

15
.0

0
15

.0
0

15
.0

0
15

.0
0

15
.0

0
15

.0
0

15
.0

0
15

.0
0

15
.0

0
15

.0
0

A
ct

ua
l

11
.1

7
10

.2
9

14
.5

8
9.

28
10

.6
8

12
.7

3

12
,8

36
13

,4
75

18
,7

46
10

,6
90

87
06

16
34

2.
00

1,
14

9
1,

30
9

1,
28

6
1,

15
2

81
5

12
84

T
ar

ge
t

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
ct

ua
l

55
6,

37
9

54
9,

84
4

T
ar

ge
t

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
ct

ua
l

69
,4

94
64

,0
54

T
ar

ge
t

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
ct

ua
l

13
8

T
ar

ge
t

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
ct

ua
l

0.
15

0
0.

36

T
ar

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

39
6

T
ar

ge
t

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

A
ct

ua
l

80
.8

8
83

.7
1

84
.7

7
85

.8
0

80
.9

7
83

.8
3

T
ar

ge
t

98
.0

0
98

.0
0

98
.0

0
98

.0
0

98
.0

0
98

.0
0

98
.0

0
98

.0
0

98
.0

0
98

.0
0

98
.0

0
98

.0
0

A
ct

ua
l

99
.3

4
98

.3
9

97
.9

7
98

.4
2

98
.4

2
98

.0
2

L
eg

al
, E

q
u

al
iti

es
 a

n
d

 D
em

o
cr

at
ic

 
S

er
vi

ce
s

T
ar

ge
t

n/
a

le
ve

l 2

A
ct

ua
l

n/
a

le
ve

l 2

T
ar

ge
t

n/
a

n/
a

A
ct

ua
l

n/
a

n/
a

T
ar

ge
t

n/
a

n/
a

A
ct

ua
l

n/
a

n/
a

H
u

m
an

 R
es

o
u

rc
es

 &
 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n
al

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

T
ar

ge
t

0.
71

0.
71

0.
71

0.
71

0.
71

0.
71

0.
71

0.
71

0.
71

0.
79

0.
79

0.
79

A
ct

ua
l

0.
85

0.
93

1.
15

1.
16

0.
84

0.
51

LP
I  

(f
or

m
er

ly
 

B
V

12
)

T
he

 a
ve

ra
ge

 n
um

be
r 

of
 w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
s 

lo
st

 d
ue

 to
 s

ic
kn

es
s.

M
C

LD
 L

P
I 4

N
um

be
r 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
at

te
nd

in
g 

E
 &

 D
 

ev
en

ts
 (

e.
g.

 D
iv

al
i, 

B
la

ck
 h

is
to

ry
 

m
on

th
) 

Q
S

LD
 L

P
I 3

P
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 
E

qu
al

iti
es

 a
nd

 D
iv

er
si

ty
 fo

ru
m

  a
nd

 
D

is
ab

le
d 

U
se

rs
 G

ro
up

 s
at

is
fie

d 
w

ith
 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

Q
S

LD
 L

P
I 1

N
ew

 E
qu

al
ity

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
(r

ep
la

ce
s 

eq
ua

lit
y 

st
an

da
rd

 a
bo

ve
 in

 2
00

9/
10

)
Q

C

F
P

00
1

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 in

vo
ic

es
 p

ai
d 

w
ith

in
 3

0 
da

ys
 o

f r
ec

ei
pt

M
C

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 in

vo
ic

es
 p

ai
d 

w
ith

in
 1

0 
da

ys
 o

f r
ec

ei
pt

M
C

N
I 1

79
 

V
F

M
 -

 to
ta

l n
et

 v
al

ue
 o

f o
n-

go
in

g 
ca

sh
 r

el
ea

si
ng

 V
F

M
 g

ai
ns

 s
in

ce
 th

e 
st

ar
t o

f 2
00

8-
09

 (
£'

00
0)

Q
C

M
ax

im
um

 %
 o

f t
he

 o
ut

st
an

di
ng

 H
B

 
ov

er
pa

ym
en

ts
 d

eb
t w

rit
te

n 
of

f d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

 q
ua

rt
er

Q
C

%
 o

f H
B

 o
ve

rp
ay

m
en

ts
 r

ec
ov

er
ed

 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

qu
ar

te
r 

of
 th

e 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g 
de

bt
.

Q
C

T
ot

al
 v

al
ue

 o
f H

B
 o

ve
rp

ay
m

en
ts

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
qu

ar
te

r 
(£

)
Q

C

T
ot

al
 v

al
ue

 o
f H

B
 o

ve
rp

ay
m

en
ts

 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g 
at

 th
e 

st
ar

t o
f t

he
 q

ua
rt

er
 

(£
)

Q
C

N
I 1

81
T

im
e 

ta
ke

n 
to

 p
ro

ce
ss

 H
B

/C
T

 b
en

ef
it 

ne
w

 c
la

im
s 

or
 c

ha
ng

e 
ev

en
ts

M
C

nu
m

er
at

or

de
no

m
in

at
or

LP
I 

C
C

P
P

05
 

(D
M

)
C

om
m

un
ity

 tr
an

sp
or

t i
nc

om
e 

(£
)

M
C

LP
I 

C
C

P
P

03
 

(S
S

)

N
um

be
r 

of
 c

om
pl

im
en

ts
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

(C
ou

nc
il 

w
id

e)
 

M
C

Page 54



Efficiency Savings 2009-10 Appendix 4

2009/10
£'000

SAVINGS IDENTIFIED

Council Wide
Alternative methods of service delivery 75
Business process change 0
Postage review 0
Purchase of Second Hand Vehicle 60
Insurance Saving 61
Sale of Industrial Units 10
OD Support to Redditch 8

214
Legal and Democratic
Share of Equalities and Diversity with Redditch 4

4
E-Government
Share disaster recovery with Redditch 0

0
Planning and Environment
Savings on stationeryfrom advertising 4
Additional income from licensing 10

14
Financial Services
Accountancy Restructure 41
Benefits additional claims processed 65
Audit Restructure 27

133
Street Scene & Community
Framework contract - play areas - capital cost reduction 5
Additional gym income to target 100
Framework contract - play areas - staff time savings 3
Catering at Dolphin Centre - Improved Contract Processes 22
Restructure Dolphin Centre 50
Service reviews - Grounds Maintenance and Street Cleansing 44

224

Total Efficiency Savings 589

Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u

n
ci

l
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 5

20
09

/1
0 

- 
A

p
ri

l -
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

00
9

E
ar

m
ar

ke
d

 R
es

er
ve

s

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

B
/fw

d
20

09
/1

0
£'

00
0

U
se

d 
20

09
/1

0
- 

Q
ua

rt
er

 1
&

2
£'

00
0

T
ot

al
 M

ov
em

en
t 

in
 y

ea
r 

09
/1

0
£'

00
0

C
ur

re
nt

 P
os

iti
on

20
09

/1
0

A
pr

il 
- 

S
ep

t
£'

00
0

B
ui

ld
in

g 
C

on
tr

ol
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 R

es
er

ve
-1

0
0

0
-1

0 
U

ns
pe

nt
 P

la
n.

 D
el

. G
ra

nt
 r

es
´v

e
-3

40
0

0
-3

40
 

Li
ve

ab
ili

ty
 R

es
er

ve
-2

1
0

0
-2

1 
LP

S
A

 R
es

er
ve

0
0

0
0

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t R
es

er
ve

-5
36

0
0

-5
36

 
Li

tig
at

io
n 

R
es

er
ve

-5
0

0
0

-5
0 

S
po

rt
s 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
R

es
er

ve
-2

6
7

7
-1

9 
A

re
a 

C
om

m
ite

es
-2

9
0

0
-2

9 
Lo

ca
l P

la
ns

 In
qu

iry
-1

43
0

0
-1

43
 

H
ou

si
ng

 -
 N

ig
ht

st
op

-6
0

0
-6

 
H

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 a
nd

 s
ur

ve
ys

-8
0

0
-8

 
C

ou
nc

il 
C

ha
m

be
r 

eq
ui

pm
en

t
-1

0
0

0
-1

0 
T

ow
n 

C
en

tr
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
-3

5
10

10
-2

5 
S

in
gl

e 
S

ta
tu

s/
JE

-3
09

16
3

16
3

-1
46

 
S

ha
re

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
ge

nd
a 

in
cl

 J
oi

nt
 C

E
-2

62
45

45
-2

17
 

B
us

in
es

s 
S

ta
rt

 u
p 

gr
an

ts
-6

0
0

-6
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 O
ffi

ce
-2

5
0

0
-2

5 
C

ou
nc

ill
or

 T
ra

in
in

g
-5

3
0

0
-5

3 
Le

ga
l M

en
to

rin
g

-8
2

2
-6

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 T
ra

in
in

g
-4

0
0

0
-4

0 
Y

ou
th

 P
ro

vi
si

on
 R

es
er

ve
-1

5
0

0
-1

5 
A

ct
iv

ity
 R

ef
er

ra
l S

ch
em

e
-1

2
0

0
-1

2 
T

ow
n 

ce
nt

re
 M

ar
ke

t S
ta

lls
-8

4
4

-4
 

C
ar

 p
ar

ks
 r

el
in

in
g

-1
8

18
18

0
A

lc
oh

ol
 A

bu
se

 R
es

er
ve

-6
0

0
-6

 

-1
97

6
24

9
24

9
-1

,7
27

 

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



V
ire

m
en

ts
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 b

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
C

ab
in

et
 

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

6 
 

 
V

ire
m

en
t F

ro
m

: 
V

ire
m

en
t T

o:
 

 

Is
 th

e 
vi

re
m

en
t f

or
 

20
09

/1
0 

O
nl

y 
or

 fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 

ye
ar

s?
 

A
cc

ou
nt

 
C

os
t 

C
en

tr
e 

A
m

ou
nt

 
£ 

A
cc

ou
nt

 
C

os
t 

C
en

tr
e 

A
m

ou
nt

 
£ 

R
ea

so
n 

fo
r 

vi
re

m
en

t 
  

20
09

/1
0 

D
06

 –
 M

at
er

ia
ls

  
C

P
00

 
18

,2
96

 
N

03
 –

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

/fr
om

 e
ar

m
ar

ke
d 

re
se

rv
e 

 
C

P
00

 
-1

8,
29

6 
D

ra
w

do
w

n 
of

 e
ar

m
ar

ke
d 

re
se

rv
e 

fo
r 

re
lin

in
g 

w
or

ks
 o

n 
ca

r 
pa

rk
s 

F
ut

ur
e 

Y
ea

rs
 

D
88

 –
 

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
E

xp
en

se
s 

C
P

00
 

-6
,5

00
 

A
01

 –
 M

on
th

ly
 

S
al

ar
ie

s 
C

P
00

 
6,

50
0 

F
un

di
ng

 fo
r 

ne
w

 
E

nf
or

ce
m

en
t O

ffi
ce

r 
fo

r 
pa

y 
on

 fo
ot

 p
ar

ki
ng

 

F
ut

ur
e 

Y
ea

rs
 

A
01

 –
 M

on
th

ly
 

S
al

ar
ie

s 
 

D
P

02
 

-6
8,

83
3 

A
01

 –
 M

on
th

ly
 

S
al

ar
ie

s 
D

P
07

 
68

,8
33

 

 
J2

1 
– 

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
S

al
es

 
D

W
11

 
40

00
00

 
J3

6 
– 

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
In

co
m

e 
D

W
18

 
-4

00
,0

00
 

B
ud

ge
ts

 tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

to
 

co
rr

ec
t c

os
t c

en
tr

e 

F
ut

ur
e 

Y
ea

rs
 

A
01

 –
M

on
th

ly
 

S
al

ar
ie

s 
S

C
01

 
-8

4,
00

0 
D

49
 –

 
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
S

C
90

 
84

,0
00

 

N
ew

 c
os

t c
en

tr
e 

to
 a

llo
w

 fo
r 

th
e 

se
pa

ra
te

 a
ut

ho
ris

at
io

n 
an

d 
co

nt
ro

l o
f m

an
ag

em
en

t 
fe

es
 to

 W
yc

ha
vo

n 
Le

is
ur

e 
by

 
B

D
C

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

20
09

/1
0 

D
44

 –
 G

en
er

al
 

In
su

ra
nc

es
  

B
95

 –
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

In
su

ra
nc

e 

E
S

20
 

-2
1,

00
0 

 
-7

,0
00

 

A
01

 –
 M

on
th

ly
 

S
al

ar
ie

s 
 

C
S

00
 

28
,0

00
 

T
o 

fu
nd

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

O
ffi

ce
r 

po
st

 a
s 

ag
re

ed
 a

t C
ou

nc
il 

on
 

29
th

 A
pr

il 
20

09
 

F
ut

ur
e 

Y
ea

rs
 

E
31

 –
 O

th
er

 L
oc

al
 

A
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

 
LP

13
 

-2
0,

00
0 

E
31

 -
 O

th
er

 L
oc

al
 

A
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

D
P

07
 

20
,0

00
 

C
or

re
ct

io
n 

of
 fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r 
C

lim
at

e 
M

an
ag

er
 C

ha
ng

e 
po

st
 

Page 59



V
ire

m
en

ts
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 b

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
C

ab
in

et
 

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

6 
 

F
ut

ur
e 

Y
ea

rs
 

E
71

 –
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t F

ee
 

H
G

00
 

H
G

08
 

H
G

15
 

H
G

16
 

H
G

17
 

H
G

18
 

H
G

20
 

 

-7
48

3 
-1

24
,0

33
 

-6
,9

50
 

-6
,9

50
 

-6
,9

50
 

-6
,9

50
 

-1
43

,1
3 

 

E
71

 –
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
F

ee
  

H
G

00
 

H
G

08
 

H
G

20
 

H
G

23
 

15
,5

70
 

19
8,

16
8 

47
,4

78
 

41
,7

13
 

B
ud

ge
t r

es
tr

uc
tu

re
 to

 a
ss

is
t 

in
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

th
e 

S
LA

 w
ith

 
B

D
H

T
 

F
ut

ur
e 

Y
ea

rs
 

J1
1 

– 
In

co
m

e 
D

on
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

  
J2

1 
– 

In
co

m
e 

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
S

al
es

 

D
P

02
 

 
D

P
02

 

16
,8

77
 

 
25

,0
00

 

J1
1 

– 
In

co
m

e 
D

on
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 
M

T
02

 
-4

1,
87

7 
N

ew
 b

ud
ge

t s
et

 u
p 

fo
r 

th
e 

sp
on

so
rs

hi
p 

of
 m

ar
ke

tin
g 

tr
af

fic
 is

la
nd

s.
 

F
ut

ur
e 

Y
ea

rs
 

D
52

 –
 B

oo
ks

 a
nd

 
P

ub
lic

at
io

ns
  

D
46

 –
 C

an
va

ss
er

s 
F

ee
s 

 
D

51
 –

 P
rin

tin
g 

an
d 

S
ta

tio
ne

ry
 

E
L0

0 
 

E
L0

0 
 

E
L0

0 

-1
,5

38
 

 
-1

0,
00

0 
 

-1
3,

00
0 

D
52

 –
 B

oo
ks

 a
nd

 
P

ub
lic

at
io

ns
  

D
53

 –
 P

os
ta

ge
 a

nd
 

P
ac

ka
gi

ng
  

D
53

 P
os

ta
ge

 a
nd

 
P

ac
ka

gi
ng

  

D
S

00
 

 
E

L0
0 

 
E

L0
0 

1,
53

8 
 

10
,0

00
 

 
13

,0
00

 
 

R
ea

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 b

ud
ge

ts
 to

 
re

fle
ct

 h
is

to
ric

al
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

pa
tte

rn
s 

 

20
09

/1
0 

A
01

 –
 M

on
th

ly
 

S
al

ar
ie

s 
 

C
61

 –
 C

ar
 

A
llo

w
an

ce
s 

D
51

 –
 P

rin
tin

g 
an

d 
S

ta
tio

ne
ry

 
D

85
 –

 G
en

er
al

 
E

xp
en

se
s 

 
J5

1 
– 

In
co

m
e 

In
te

rn
al

 
R

ec
ha

rg
es

 

 
C

D
40

 
 

C
D

40
 

 
C

D
40

 
 

C
D

40
 

 
C

D
40

 
 

 
-8

3,
33

9 
 

-2
00

 
 

-5
00

 
 

-2
50

 
 

10
3,

58
5 

 

A
01

 –
 M

on
th

ly
 

S
al

ar
ie

s 
C

61
 –

 C
ar

 
A

llo
w

an
ce

s 
D

51
 –

 P
rin

tin
g 

an
d 

S
ta

tio
ne

ry
 

D
85

 –
 G

en
er

al
 

E
xp

en
se

s 
J5

1 
– 

In
co

m
e 

In
te

rn
al

 R
ec

ha
rg

es
 

 

 
C

D
45

 
 

C
D

45
 

 
C

D
45

 
 

C
D

45
 

 
C

D
45

 
 

 
83

,3
39

 
 

20
0  

50
0  

25
0  

-1
03

58
5 

 

R
ea

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 B

ud
ge

ts
 to

 
re

fle
ct

 p
os

t r
oo

m
 r

es
tr

uc
tu

re
 

Page 60



V
ire

m
en

ts
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 b

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
C

ab
in

et
 

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

6 
 

G
01

 –
S

up
po

rt
 

S
er

vi
ce

 R
ec

ha
rg

e 
 A

01
 –

 M
on

th
ly

 
S

al
ar

ie
s 

 
A

36
 –

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l 
S

ub
sc

rip
tio

n 
C

61
 –

 C
ar

 
A

llo
w

an
ce

s 
D

01
 –

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t 

P
ur

ch
as

e 
D

49
 –

 
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

F
ee

s 
D

51
 –

 P
rin

tin
g 

&
 

S
ta

tio
ne

ry
 

D
59

 –
 T

el
ep

ho
ne

s 
G

01
 –

 S
up

po
rt

 
S

er
vi

ce
 

R
ec

ha
rg

es
 

J5
1 

– 
In

co
m

e 
In

te
rn

al
 

R
ec

ha
rg

es
 

       

C
D

40
 

  
C

D
10

 
 

C
D

10
 

 
C

D
10

 
 

C
D

10
 

 
C

D
10

 
  

C
D

10
 

 
C

D
10

 
 

C
D

10
 

  
C

D
10

 
       

-1
9,

29
6 

  
-2

6,
21

0 
 

-1
99

 
 

-1
,1

31
 

 
-1

,1
31

 
 

-4
8,

00
0 

  
-4

,4
74

 
 

-1
13

 
 

-1
63

,4
93

 
  

24
4,

75
1 

     -   

G
01

 –
 S

up
po

rt
 

S
er

vi
ce

 R
ec

ha
rg

es
 

 A
01

 –
 M

on
th

ly
 

S
al

ar
ie

s 
A

01
 –

 M
on

th
ly

 
S

al
ar

ie
s 

A
01

 –
 M

on
th

ly
 

S
al

ar
ie

s 
A

01
 –

 M
on

th
ly

 
S

al
ar

ie
s 

D
01

 -
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t 
P

ur
ch

as
e 

D
51

 -
 P

rin
tin

g 
&

 
S

ta
tio

ne
ry

 
D

51
 -

 P
rin

tin
g 

&
 

S
ta

tio
ne

ry
 

D
59

 –
 T

el
ep

ho
ne

s 
G

01
 -

 S
up

po
rt

 
S

er
vi

ce
 R

ec
ha

rg
es

 
G

01
 -

 S
up

po
rt

 
S

er
vi

ce
 R

ec
ha

rg
es

 
G

01
 -

 S
up

po
rt

 
S

er
vi

ce
 R

ec
ha

rg
es

 
G

01
 -

 S
up

po
rt

 
S

er
vi

ce
 R

ec
ha

rg
es

 
J5

1 
– 

In
co

m
e 

In
te

rn
al

 R
ec

ha
rg

es
 

J5
1 

- 
In

co
m

e 
In

te
rn

al
 R

ec
ha

rg
es

 
J5

1 
- 

In
co

m
e 

C
D

45
 

  
F

S
00

 
 C

C
01

 
 LS

00
 

 C
D

20
 

 C
D

20
 

 LS
00

 
 C

D
20

 
 C

D
20

 
F

S
00

 
 C

C
01

 
 LS

00
 

 C
D

20
 

 
F

S
00

 
 C

C
01

 
  

19
,2

96
 

  
8,

58
5 

 
20

,3
94

 
 

7,
29

7 
 

39
,2

66
 

 
1,

13
1 

 
47

4  
4,

00
0 

 
11

1 
17

,2
73

 
 

41
,0

33
 

 
15

,6
35

 
 

89
,5

51
 

 
-2

5,
85

8 
 

-6
1,

42
7 

  

Page 61



V
ire

m
en

ts
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 b

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
C

ab
in

et
 

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

6 
 

   

In
te

rn
al

 R
ec

ha
rg

es
 

J5
1 

– 
In

co
m

e 
In

te
rn

al
 R

ec
ha

rg
es

 
    

LS
00

 
  

C
D

20
 

 
  

-2
3,

40
6 

  
-1

34
,0

59
 

  

20
09

/1
0 

X
21

 –
 V

eh
ic

le
s 

X
21

 -
 V

eh
ic

le
s 

G
C

12
06

 
G

C
12

30
 

-1
2,

00
0 

-1
3,

00
0 

X
21

 -
 V

eh
ic

le
s 

G
C

 
12

34
 

25
,0

00
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 62



C
A

R
R

Y
 F

O
R

W
A

R
D

 R
E

Q
U

E
S

T
 2

00
9/

10
 -

 2
01

0/
11

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 7

S
C

H
E

M
E

C
A

R
R

Y
C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
F

O
R

W
A

R
D

£'
00

0

G
ra

nt
s 

to
 R

S
Ls

15
F

in
al

 T
ra

nc
he

 o
f C

ou
nc

il 
G

ra
nt

 to
w

ar
ds

 F
oy

er
 S

ch
em

e.
  N

ot
 p

ay
ab

le
 u

nt
il 

sc
he

m
e 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

in
 A

ug
us

t 2
01

0.

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 H

ou
nd

sf
ie

ld
 L

an
e 

C
ar

av
an

 
P

ar
k

20
3

A
w

ai
tin

g 
ou

tc
om

e 
of

 b
id

 to
 H

om
es

 a
nd

 C
om

m
in

iti
es

 A
ge

nc
y 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 fu
nd

in
g,

 a
s 

m
at

ch
 fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r 
pr

oj
ec

t
N

ew
 T

oi
le

t i
n 

T
ow

n 
C

en
tr

e
12

R
et

en
tio

n 
m

on
ie

s 
to

 b
e 

pa
id

 in
 2

01
0/

11

G
ra

nt
s 

to
 P

re
fe

rr
ed

 P
ar

tn
er

s 
- 

S
oc

ia
l H

ou
si

ng
70

0

LA
 C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

to
 B

D
H

T
 fo

r 
P

er
ry

fie
ld

 A
ffo

rd
ab

le
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

ch
em

e,
 

aw
ai

tin
g 

H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 A
ge

nc
y 

gr
an

t t
o 

en
ab

le
 

co
m

m
en

ce
m

en
t.

S
w

an
sl

en
gt

h 
P

la
y 

A
re

a 
E

nh
an

ce
m

en
ts

3
R

et
en

tio
n 

m
on

ey
s 

to
 b

e 
pa

id
 in

 2
01

0/
11

S
po

rt
s 

F
ac

ili
ty

 -
 A

lv
ec

hu
rc

h 
Li

on
s

70

R
ep

or
te

d 
to

 C
ab

in
et

 -
 3

rd
 J

un
e 

20
09

 P
P

G
17

 w
as

 d
el

ay
ed

.  
T

he
se

 w
or

ks
 

ha
ve

 n
ow

 b
ee

n 
pr

oc
ur

ed
 b

ut
 w

ill
 n

ot
 c

om
m

en
ce

 u
nt

il 
th

e 
fir

st
 q

ua
rt

er
 

20
10

/1
1 

as
 th

e 
fa

ci
lit

y 
w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
to

 b
e 

cl
os

ed
.

S
po

rt
s 

F
ac

ili
ty

 -
 C

ha
rf

or
d 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

G
ro

un
d

35
A

s 
re

po
rt

ed
 fo

r 
A

lv
ec

hu
rc

h 
Li

on
s 

al
th

ou
gh

 p
ro

cu
re

d 
th

is
 w

or
k 

ca
n 

no
t 

co
m

m
en

ce
 u

nt
il 

th
e 

fir
st

 q
ua

rt
er

 o
f 2

01
0/

11

S
po

rt
s 

F
ac

ili
ty

 -
 L

ic
ke

y 
E

nd
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
G

ro
un

d
10

A
s 

re
po

rt
ed

 fo
r 

A
lv

ec
hu

rc
h 

Li
on

s 
al

th
ou

gh
 p

ro
cu

re
d 

th
is

 w
or

k 
ca

n 
no

t 
co

m
m

en
ce

 u
nt

il 
th

e 
fir

st
 q

ua
rt

er
 o

f 2
01

0/
11

S
po

rt
s 

F
ac

ill
ity

 -
 B

ra
ce

s 
La

ne
 A

M
G

10
0

A
s 

re
po

rt
ed

 fo
r 

A
lv

ec
hu

rc
h 

Li
on

s 
al

th
ou

gh
 p

ro
cu

re
d 

th
is

 w
or

k 
ca

n 
no

t 
co

m
m

en
ce

 u
nt

il 
th

e 
fir

st
 q

ua
rt

er
 o

f 2
01

0/
11

T
o

ta
l

1,
14

8

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



04/11/2009 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

16 November 2009 
 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN EXCEPTION REPORT [September 2009] 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  
 

Cllr. Roger Hollingworth, Leader of 
the Council  

Responsible Officer Hugh Bennett  
Assistant Chief Executive 

 
1.  SUMMARY 

 
1.1 To ask the Board to consider the Improvement Plan Exception Report 

for September 2009 (Appendix 1).   
 
2. RECOMMENDATION  
 
2.1 That the Board considers and approves the revisions to the 

Improvement Plan Exception Report attached as Appendix 1, and the 
corrective action being taken.  

 
2.2 That the Board notes that for the 104 actions highlighted for September 

within the plan 76% of the Improvement Plan is on target [green], 8.7% 
is one month behind [amber] and 3.8% is over one month behind [red].  
11.5% of actions have been reprogrammed or suspended with 
approval1; these include the suspension of the budget jury and ‘The 
Bromsgrove Way’ (due to shared services). 

 
2.3 This month’s performance is shown on the first page of Appendix 1.   
 
3 BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 July 2008 Cabinet approved the Improvement Plan 2008/09.  The 

Improvement Plan is directly linked to the four corporate priorities and 
thirteen enablers identified in the Council Plan 2009/2012. 

 
3.2 The Improvement Plan is designed to help monitor the detailed actions 

flowing from the Council Plan, which will help move the Council forward 
to excellent in the medium term. 

 
3.3 There were 9 amber and 4 red activities this month for the following 

areas of the Improvement Plan:- 
 
 
 

                                            
1 NB reprogrammed actions are those that have been moved to a later point in the year. 
Suspended actions are those which have been suspended completely for the period covered 
by the Plan.   

Agenda Item 5

Page 65



04/11/2009 

 
 

Ref. Council Plan Balanced Scorecard 
Reference 

Number 

CP1 Town Centre 6 
CP3 Sense of Community 1 
FP1 Managing Finances 1 
FP2  Governing the Business 1 
PR4  Improved Partnership Working 1 
PR5 Planning 2 
HR & OD3 Positive Employee Climate 1 

 
3.4 The re-programmed and suspended actions Plan are:- 
 

Ref. Action  
 

Reason 

5.4.6, 5.4.7 Budget Jury Suspended  
7.3.3 Climate Change Matrix Suspended due to 

changed approach 
8.3.5 Community engagement  Suspended  until 

completion of strategy 
10.1.3 Governance 

arrangements 
Suspended until next year 
as changes not required 
until Dec 10. 

14.1.1 The Bromsgrove Way Suspended- proposals to 
be changed 

14.2.7 Investors in People  Suspended due to revised 
approach 

15.3.1 Workforce Plan gap 
analysis 

Suspended- new project 
plan under development 

16.1.2, 16.1.5, 
16.1.7 

Working practices review Suspended due to 
prioritisation of 
harmonisation 

16.2.3 Employee satisfaction 
budget bids 

Suspended- not 
necessary 

 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 No financial implications.  
 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 No legal implications.  
 
6. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
6.1  The Improvement Plan relates to all of the Council’s four objectives and 

four priorities as per the 2009/2012 Council Plan. 
 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
Corporate Risk Title Improvement Plan Reference 
KO1: Effective Financial Management 
and Internal Control 

FP1 – Managing Finances 
 

KO2: Effective corporate leadership FP1 – Managing Finances 

Page 66



04/11/2009 

FP2 – Governing the Business 
FP3 – Managing Resources 
FP4 – Managing Performance 
PR2 –Political Governance 

KO3: Effective  Member / Officer 
relations 

PR2 –Political Governance  
HROD1 – Learning & Development 

KO4: Effective Member / Member 
relations 

PR2 –Political Governance  
HROD1 – Learning & Development 

KO5*: Full compliance with the Civil 
Contingencies Act and effective 
Business Continuity 

PR1 – Customer Processes 

KO6: Maximising the benefits of 
investment in ICT equipment and 
training 

PR1 – Customer Processes 

KO7: Effective partnership working PR4 – Improved Partnership Working 
KO8: Effective communications 
(internal and external) 

PR1 – Customer Processes 
 

KO9: Equalities and diversity agenda 
embedded across the Authority 

CP3 – Sense of Community 
FP4 – Managing Performance 

KO10: Appropriate investment in 
employee development and training 

HROD1 – Learning & Development 
HROD2 – Modernisation 
HROD3- Positive Employee Climate 

KO11: Effective employee recruitment 
and retention 

HROD1 – Learning & Development 
HROD2 – Modernisation 
HROD3- Positive Employee Climate  

KO12: Full compliance with all Health 
and Safety legislation 

HROD3- Positive Employee Climate 

KO13: Effective two tier working and 
Community Engagement 

CP3 – Sense of Community 
PR4 – Improved Partnership Working 

KO14: Successful implementation of 
Job Evaluation 

HROD2 - Modernisation 

KO15: All Council data is accurate and 
of high quality 

FP1 – Managing Finances 
FP4 – Managing Performance 

KO16: The Council no longer in 
recovery 

FP1 – Managing Finances 
FP2 – Governing the Business 
FP3 – Managing Resources 
FP4 – Managing Performance 
PR2 –Political Governance 

KO17: Effective Projects Management FP1 – Managing Finances 
KO19: Effective Business and 
Performance Management 

FP4 – Managing Performance 
 

KO20: Effective Customer Focused 
Authority 

CP3 – Sense of Community 
PR1 – Customer Processes 

* KO5 and KO18 have been merged 
 
8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 The Improvement Plan includes a range of actions to deliver the 

Council’s Customer First value. Please see section PR1 of the 
Improvement Plan. 

 
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 

Page 67



04/11/2009 

 
9.1 Please see sections CP3 and FP4 of the Improvement Plan 
 
10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 See sections FP1-FP3 of the Improvement Plan 
 
11.   OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

 
Procurement Issues: See Section FP2 of the Improvement Plan. 
Personnel Implications: See Sections HROD1-HROD3 of the 
Improvement Plan.  
Governance/Performance Management:  See Sections FP4 and PR2 
of the Improvement Plan. 
Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 
1998:  See section CP3 of the Improvement Plan 
Policy:  All sections of the Improvement Plan relate to this. 
Environmental:  See sections CP4 and FP3 of the Improvement Plan. 

 
 
 12.    OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
  

Portfolio Holder 
 

No 
 

Chief Executive 
 

At CMT 

Executive Director (Partnerships and 
Projects) 

At CMT 

Executive Director (Services)  
 

At CMT 

Assistant Chief Executive Yes 
 

Head of Service At CMT  

Head of Financial Services At CMT 

Head of Legal & Democratic Services 
 

At CMT 

Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

At CMT 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

 
13.  WARDS AFFECTED 
 
13.1 All wards. 
 
14.   APPENDICES 

 
14.1  Appendix 1 Improvement Plan Exception Report September 2009. 
 
15.     BACKGROUND PAPERS: 
 

Page 68



04/11/2009 

15.1 The full Improvement Plan for August can be found at 
www.bromsgrove.gov.uk under meetings Minutes and Agendas. A 
hard copy is also left in the Members’ Room each month. 
 

 
CONTACT OFFICER 
Name:   Rebecca Dunne  
E Mail:  r.dunne@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 881616 
 

Page 69



Exception Report for September 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 04/11/2009 14:02 
 

6 

 
PROGRESS IN 2009/10 
 
Overall performance as at the end of September 2009, in comparison with the previous year, is as follows: -  

 

 

 

July 2008 August 2008 September 2008 October 2008 November 2008 December 2008 
RED 11 8.6% RED 17 14.4% RED 16 11.9% RED 15 10.6% RED 12 8.7% RED 13 9.9% 
AMBER 3 2.3% AMBER 4 3.4% AMBER 8 6.0% AMBER 7 5.0% AMBER 8 5.8% AMBER 5 3.9% 
GREEN 114 89.1% GREEN 96 81.4% GREEN 99 73.9% GREEN 104 73.8% GREEN 106 76.8% GREEN 100 76.3% 
REPRO 0 0% REPRO 1 0.8% REPRO* 11 8.2% REPRO 15 10.6% REPRO 12 8.7% REPRO 13 9.9% 

January 2009 February 2009 March 2009 April 2009 May 2009 June 2009 
RED 0 0% RED 2 1.5% RED 3 2.9% RED 3 3.2% RED 3 3.85% RED 1 1.2% 
AMBER 4 3.6% AMBER 3 2.3% AMBER 5 4.9% AMBER 5 5.4% AMBER 3 3.85% AMBER 0 0% 
GREEN 95 86.4% GREEN 112 86.2% GREEN 80 78.5% GREEN 71 76.3% GREEN 60 76.9% GREEN 70 82.3% 
REPRO 11 10.0% REPRO 13 10.0% REPRO 14 13.7% REPRO 14 15.1% REPRO 12 15.4% REPRO 14 16.5% 

July 2009 August 2009 September 2009 October 2009 November 2009 December 2009 
RED 0 0% RED 0 0% RED 4 3.8% RED   RED   RED   
AMBER 11 13.3% AMBER 6 8.5% AMBER 9 8.7% AMBER   AMBER   AMBER   
GREEN 67 80.7% GREEN 60 84.5% GREEN 79 76% GREEN   GREEN   GREEN   
REPRO 0 0% REPRO 0 0% REPRO 0 0% REPRO   REPRO   REPRO   
SUSP 5 6% SUSP 5 7% SUSP 12 11.5% SUSP   SUSP   SUSP   

January 2010 February 2010 March 2010 April 2010 May 2010 June 2010 
RED   RED   RED   RED   RED   RED   
AMBER   AMBER   AMBER   AMBER   AMBER   AMBER   
GREEN   GREEN   GREEN   GREEN   GREEN   GREEN   
REPRO   REPRO   REPRO   REPRO   REPRO   REPRO   
SUSP   SUSP   SUSP   SUSP   SUSP   SUSP   

P
age 70



Exception Report for September 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 04/11/2009 14:02 
 

7 

Where: - 
 
 On Target 

or 
completed 

 One month 
behind 
target or 
less 

 Over one 
month 
behind 
target 

 Original 
date of 
planned 
action 

 Re-
programmed 
date.* 

 Suspended** 

* NB. Reprogrammed actions are those that have been moved to a later point in the year.  They are not actions that have been extended and 
they do not appear on the exception report once they have received approval. 
**NB. Suspended actions are those that have been suspended completely for the period covered by the Improvement Plan 
 
An Exception Report detailing corrective actions follows: 
 
 

P
age 71



Exception Report for September 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 04/11/2009 14:02 
 

8 

 

1.1.1 Engage specialist 
organisation to complete 
unified vision 

PS             The listing of Parkside resulted in the 
need to identify an alternative location for 
the police and fire station. Until this is 
agreed work on the unified vision has 
been delayed as the unified vision will 
identify land use. 

 

1.4.3 Convene first meeting PS             Provisional meeting dates have been 
circulated- to be confirmed by relevant 
parties 

CP1: Town Centre 
Ref  September 2009 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

1.1.1 Engage specialist organisation to 
complete unified vision 

 The need to identify an alternative location for the police 
and fire station has delayed the unified vision. 

PS Sept 09 TBC 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly

 

A
u
g
. 

S
ep

. 

O
ct

. 

N
o
v.

 

D
ec

. 

Ja
n
. 

F
eb

. 

M
ar

. 

A
p
r.

 

M
ay

 

Ju
n
e Corrective Action 

1.1 Agreement on preferred option of Area Action Pan 
 

CP1: Town Centre 
Ref  September 2009 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

1.4.3 Convene first meeting  Date to be confirmed by relevant parties. PS Sept 09 TBC 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly

 

A
u
g
. 

S
ep

. 

O
ct

. 

N
o
v.

 

D
ec

. 

Ja
n
. 

F
eb

. 

M
ar

. 

A
p
r.

 

M
ay

 

Ju
n
e Corrective Action 

1.4 Community engagement 
 

P
age 72



Exception Report for September 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 04/11/2009 14:02 
 

9 

 

1.4.5 Establish Leisure Centre 
Study Group 

PS             REPROGRAMMED- Study group 
reprogrammed to March due to 
discussion with WCC re: an audit and 
feasibility study of assets. 

 

1.4.6 Establish Proposed Civic 
Centre Study Group 

PS             REPROGRAMMED- Study group 
reprogrammed to March due to 
discussion with WCC re: an audit and 
feasibility study of assets. 

 

CP1: Town Centre 
Ref  September 2009 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

1.4.5 Establish Leisure Centre Study Group  REPROGRAMMED- Study group reprogrammed to March 
due to discussion with WCC 

PS Sept 09 Mar 10 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly

 

A
u
g
. 

S
ep

. 

O
ct

. 

N
o
v.

 

D
ec

. 

Ja
n
. 

F
eb

. 

M
ar

. 

A
p
r.

 

M
ay

 

Ju
n
e Corrective Action 

1.4 Community engagement 
 

CP1: Town Centre 
Ref  September 2009 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

1.4.6 Establish Proposed Civic Centre 
Study Group 

 REPROGRAMMED- Study group reprogrammed to March 
due to discussion with WCC 

PS Sept 09 Mar 10 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly

 

A
u
g
. 

S
ep

. 

O
ct

. 

N
o
v.

 

D
ec

. 

Ja
n
. 

F
eb

. 

M
ar

. 

A
p
r.

 

M
ay

 

Ju
n
e Corrective Action 

1.4 Community engagement 
 

P
age 73



Exception Report for September 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 04/11/2009 14:02 
 

10 

1.5.1 Funding package secured HB             Funding gap currently £6.2 million- WCC 
is working with Network Rail to reduce 
design costs to meet available budget. 

 

1.6.1 Hold discussion with 
County Council about multi-
modal study 

PS             REPROGRAMMED: Discussions 
delayed by delays with preferred option 
consultation 

 
 

CP1: Town Centre 
Ref  September 2009 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

1.5.1 Funding package secured  Funding gap currently £6.2 million- WCC is working with 
Network Rail to reduce design costs to meet available 
budget. 

HB Sept 09 TBC 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly

 

A
u
g
. 

S
ep

. 

O
ct

. 

N
o
v.

 

D
ec

. 

Ja
n
. 

F
eb

. 

M
ar

. 

A
p
r.

 

M
ay

 

Ju
n
e Corrective Action 

1.5 Train Station 
 

CP1: Town Centre 
Ref  September 2009 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

1.6.1 Hold discussion with County Council 
about multi-modal study 

 REPROGRAMMED: Discussions delayed by delays with 
preferred option consultation 

PS Sept 09 Feb 10 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly

 

A
u
g
. 

S
ep

. 

O
ct

. 

N
o
v.

 

D
ec

. 

Ja
n
. 

F
eb

. 

M
ar

. 

A
p
r.

 

M
ay

 

Ju
n
e Corrective Action 

1.6 Transport & Access 
 

P
age 74



Exception Report for September 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 04/11/2009 14:02 
 

11 

3.2.1 Agree and publicise the 
CSP’s 12-month action plan 
relating to the strategic 
assessment 

JG/CS
SS 

            EXTENDED: The Bromsgrove 
Community Safety Partnership Plan was 
approved at the CDRP steering group 
meeting on 18th September. 
Unfortunately, the CDRP meeting was 
re-scheduled to a later date in 
September; therefore, the user-friendly 
public document is currently being 
drafted and will now be published on the 
internet by the end of October 2009.   

 
 

CP3: Sense of Community 
Ref  September 2009 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

3.2.1 Agree and publicise the CSP’s 12-
month action plan relating to the 
strategic assessment 

 EXTENDED:  public document is currently being drafted 
and will now be published on the internet by the end of 
October 2009.   

JG/CS
SS 

Sept 09 Oct 09 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly

 

A
u
g
. 

S
ep

. 

O
ct

. 

N
o
v.

 

D
ec

. 

Ja
n
. 

F
eb

. 

M
ar

. 

A
p
r.

 

M
ay

 

Ju
n
e Corrective Action 

3.2 Reduction in fear of crime 
 

P
age 75



Exception Report for September 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 04/11/2009 14:02 
 

12 

5.2.8 Deliver Use of resources 
action plan in relation to 
new framework 
 

JLP             Awaiting formal score and 
recommendations from Audit 
Commission to identify areas of 
improvement. 

 
 

6.3.9 Provide training to Audit 
Board on Internal Control 
and Risk Management 
Issues  

JLP             Due to amount of areas to be considered 
as part of final accounts – training to be 
re-scheduled for Dec- March 10 

FP1: Managing Finances (including Value for Money) 
Ref  September 2009 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

5.2.8 Deliver Use of resources action plan 
in relation to new framework 
 

 Awaiting formal score and recommendations from Audit 
Commission to identify areas of improvement. 

JLP Sept 09 Dec 09 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly

 

A
u
g
. 

S
ep

. 

O
ct

. 

N
o
v.

 

D
ec

. 

Ja
n
. 

F
eb

. 

M
ar

. 

A
p
r.

 

M
ay

 

Ju
n
e Corrective Action 

5.2 Deliver Medium Term Financial Plan and Statutory accounts 
 

FP2: Governing the Business (including Value for Money) 
Ref  September 2009 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

6.3.9 Provide training to Audit Board on 
Internal Control and Risk 
Management Issues  

 Due to amount of areas to be considered as part of final 
accounts – training to be re-scheduled for Dec- March 10 

JLP Sept 09 Dec 09 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly

 

A
u
g
. 

S
ep

. 

O
ct

. 

N
o
v.

 

D
ec

. 

Ja
n
. 

F
eb

. 

M
ar

. 

A
p
r.

 

M
ay

 

Ju
n
e Corrective Action 

6.3 Effective risk management 
 

P
age 76



Exception Report for September 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 04/11/2009 14:02 
 

13 

 
 

12.3.1 Benchmark grants policies 
of other councils. 

HB             Not started yet, due to focus on LSP 
Board. 

 
 

13.3.2 Prepare Further Draft Core 
Strategy 

MD             Discussions scheduled with the GOWM 
to begin to address the outcomes of the 
RSS panel report and to draft a new 
timetable for Core Strategy Progress 

PR4: Improved Partnership Working 
Ref  September 2009 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

12.3.1 Benchmark grants policies of other 
councils. 

 Not started yet, due to focus on LSP Board. HB Sept 09 TBC 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly

 

A
u
g
. 

S
ep

. 

O
ct

. 

N
o
v.

 

D
ec

. 

Ja
n
. 

F
eb

. 

M
ar

. 

A
p
r.

 

M
ay

 

Ju
n
e Corrective Action 

12.3 Grants policy 
 

PR5: Planning 
Ref  September 2009 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

13.3.2 Prepare Further Draft Core Strategy  Discussions scheduled with the GOWM to begin to 
address the outcomes of the RSS panel report and to draft 
a new timetable for Core Strategy Progress 

MD Sept 09 TBC 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly

 

A
u
g
. 

S
ep

. 

O
ct

. 

N
o
v.

 

D
ec

. 

Ja
n
. 

F
eb

. 

M
ar

. 

A
p
r.

 

M
ay

 

Ju
n
e Corrective Action 

13.3 Local Development Framework 
 

P
age 77



Exception Report for September 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 04/11/2009 14:02 
 

14 

 

13.4.3 Quarterly Member Planning 
training 

DH             Training was planned for September, 
which would be second session of the 
year. Lack of availability of a suitable 
room has delayed this slightly. Session 
now planned for early November. 

 

16.4.1 Delivery of employee health 
and wellbeing programme 

DI             Due to room availability delivery of 1st 
stage of programme will be delayed till 
end November/beginning December. 

 

PR5: Planning 
Ref  September 2009 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

13.4.3 Quarterly Member Planning training  Training was planned for September- lack of availability of 
a suitable room- Session now planned for November. 

DH Sept 09 Nov 09 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly

 

A
u
g
. 

S
ep

. 

O
ct

. 

N
o
v.

 

D
ec

. 

Ja
n
. 

F
eb

. 

M
ar

. 

A
p
r.

 

M
ay

 

Ju
n
e Corrective Action 

13.4 Effective Development Control Service 
 

HR & OD3: Positive Employee Climate 
Ref  September 2009 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

16.4.1 Delivery of employee health and 
wellbeing programme 

 Due to room availability delivery of 1st stage of programme 
will be delayed till end November/beginning December. 

DI Sept 09 Dec 09 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly

 

A
u
g
. 

S
ep

. 

O
ct

. 

N
o
v.

 

D
ec

. 

Ja
n
. 

F
eb

. 

M
ar

. 

A
p
r.

 

M
ay

 

Ju
n
e Corrective Action 

16.4 Effective Development Control Service 
 

P
age 78



 
 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

16TH NOVEMBER 2009 
 
 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 2010-2013 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Councillor R. Hollingworth, Leader of the 

Council 
Responsible Head of Service Mr. H. Bennett, Assistant Chief Executive 

 
Non-Key Decision 
 
1.  SUMMARY 
 
1.1 To present to the Performance Management Board the Sustainable 

Community Strategy 2010-2013 and request their consideration, prior to 
approval by Full Council.   

 
2. RECOMMENDATION  
 
2.1 The Performance Management Board is requested to consider and note the 

Sustainable Community Strategy 2010-2013. 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Bromsgrove District Council has a statutory responsibility to produce a 

Sustainable Community Strategy (SCS).  The SCS sets the overall strategic 
direction and long-term vision for the economic, social and environmental 
well-being of a local area, typically for 10 years.  It is the place where 
difficult, cross-cutting issues are tackled by a wide range of public, private 
and voluntary sector partners and is, in effect, the long-term business plan 
for the District of Bromsgrove. 

 
3.2 The LSP for this District is known as the ‘Bromsgrove Partnership’ and it’s 

responsible for delivering the District’s SCS.  As part of the review of the 
SCS, away days for all Bromsgrove Partnership Board Members and 
Theme Group Chairs were held on 26 June 2009 and on 22 September 
2009 (afternoon only).  At the away days, members discussed the current 
Sustainable Community Strategy and performance to date.  Priorities for 
2010 were agreed, in line with the refreshed Worcestershire Local Area 
Agreement (LAA), and High Level Action Plans have been revised to ensure 
Bromsgrove Partnership makes as full a contribution towards the LAA 
targets as possible.  The High Level Action Plans are attached as 
appendices to the SCS which makes up a large proportion of the report. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 79



 
 
3.3 To briefly summarise: Sections 1, 2 and 3 of the SCS provide further 

background information, covering the links to the Worcestershire 
Partnership (County LSP) and the Worcestershire LAA; Section 5 includes a 
list of those agencies represented on the Bromsgrove Partnership Board at 
present (although this is currently under review); Section 9 outlines the 
direction and priorities of the Bromsgrove Partnership; and Section 11 
states the focus of the LSP Board.  Appendix J succinctly covers the 
Bromsgrove Partnership’s Vision, Objectives, Priorities and Key 
Deliverables for 2010-13. 

 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The Council’s priorities should cascade from the Sustainable Community 

Strategy.  Capital and revenue budget provision in future years should 
reflect those priorities.  To help ensure this happened, the first LSP Away 
Day this year was held a week before the Council’s Away Day. 

 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Although the LSP is a non-statutory partnership, under the Local 

Government Act 2000, the Council is obliged to convene one and develop a 
Sustainable Community Strategy.  The Sustainable Community Strategy for 
Bromsgrove is the delivery mechanism for the Bromsgrove LSP.  The 
Council remains the accountable body for the Strategy. 

 
6. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
6.1 The SCS links to all Council objectives. 
 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
7.1 Working in partnership is a key risk which is identified in the Corporate Risk 

Register as CCPP04: Effective LSP.  The Council will not be able to deliver 
its priorities without working in partnership with the LSP. 

 
7.2 Key partner organisations were involved with and kept informed of progress 

throughout the development of the SCS, thus gaining buy in.  Partners have 
committed to the Strategy and its key deliverable outcomes. 

 
8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 Working in partnership delivers joined up outcomes, which is what our 

customers want.  The Strategy will be available to partners and 
stakeholders and will be available on the website. 

 

Page 80



 
 
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 The principles of equality will be applied, ensuring individuals and groups 

are not discriminated against on the grounds of age, race, disability, gender, 
marital status, religion, sexual orientation, social and economic status or 
political beliefs.  An equalities impact assessment of this revised strategy 
has been undertaken and the Bromsgrove Equalities and Diversity Forum 
will be offered the opportunity to scrutinise the equalities impact 
assessment. 

 
10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 By formally endorsing the strategy, it demonstrates that Bromsgrove District 

Council is addressing the needs of residents of the district and ensuring that 
future plans and resources are included in the relevant strategic plans. 

 
11. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

Procurement Issues – None. 
 
Personnel Implications – None. 
 
Governance/Performance Management – The LSP Terms of 
Reference and Governance is due to be reviewed and revised as 
appropriate.  The SCS has a performance management framework 
which has recently been streamlined and has led to the new 
improved format of the High Level Action Plan.  Further work is 
planned to ensure we have effective arrangements in place for 
reporting and reviewing performance. 
 
Community Safety  including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 
1998 – None 
 
Policy – The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 
2007 and the Local Government Work Programme “Making it 
happen: The Implementation Plan” illustrate that partnerships are 
central to building on achievements to embed them into lasting 
reform.  Government policy has moved from encouraging 
partnerships towards mandating them, even though voluntarism is 
the key to effective joint working. 
 
Environmental – None. 
 

 
 

Page 81



 
 
 

12. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

Yes 

Chief Executive 
 

Yes 

Executive Director (Partnerships and Projects) 
 

Yes 

Executive Director (Services) 
 

Yes 

Assistant Chief Executive 
 

Yes 

Head of Service 
 

Yes 

Head of Financial Services 
 

Yes 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic Services 
 

Yes 

Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

Yes 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

 
13. WARDS AFFECTED 
  
 All Wards. 
 
14. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 – Sustainable Community Strategy 2010-13 
 

15. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None. 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER 
 

Name:  Della McCarthy, Senior Policy and Performance Officer 
E Mail: d.mccarthy@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:  (01527) 881618 

Page 82



Page 83



2

CONTENTS

PAGE

1. Introduction 3 

2. Worcestershire Partnership 3 

3. Worcestershire Local Area Agreement 4 

4. Data Quality 5 

5. Bromsgrove Partnership and its contribution to the 
Worcestershire Local Area Agreement 

5

6. Sustainable Community Strategy and the Local Development 
Framework

12

7. Ten Year Vision 13 

8. Consultation and Community Engagement 17 

9. Direction and Priorities 20 

10. Performance Management 21 

11. Focus of LSP Board 22 

12. Governance Arrangements and Democratic Accountability 22 

13. Resources 22 

14. Equality and Sustainability  23 

15. Evidence for Selection of Priorities 23 

16. High Level Action Plans 40

APPENDICES
 Appendix A: Feel Safe 

Appendix B: Better Environment 

Appendix C: Economic Success 

Appendix D: Health and Wellbeing 

Appendix E: Children and Young People 

Appendix F: Stronger Communities 

Appendix G: Compact  

41

46

54

62

70

75

86

 Appendix H: Worcestershire Partnership Structure 

Appendix I: Structure of Bromsgrove Partnership

Appendix J: Table of Objectives, Priorities and Key 
Deliverables of the Bromsgrove Partnership 

Appendix K: Local Area Agreement National Indicators 
2008-2011 (refreshed April 2009) cited in the 
High Level Action Plans 

Appendix L: Glossary 

88

89

90

91

105

Page 84



3

1. Introduction
 
1.1 District Councils are required to produce a Sustainable Community 

Strategy (SCS) for their area in partnership with public sector providers, 
the private sector and voluntary and community sector.  To ensure that the 
SCS is delivered, Councils are expected to convene a Local Strategic 
Partnership (LSP), bringing together local partners in order to develop a 
shared understanding of the particular needs and priorities of their area.  
The LSP in our District is known as the Bromsgrove Partnership. 

1.2 The Bromsgrove Partnership will: 

! Act as the over-arching, co-ordinating partnership, ensuring that links 
are made between the locally themed partnerships (e.g. Community 
Safety Partnership); 

! Take responsibility for cross-cutting issues that have been identified as 
critical to the locality; and 

! Ensure that district-level plans such as the SCS and Local 
Development Framework (LDF) take account of countywide priorities 
and that district level priorities are considered, and where appropriate, 
reflected at the county level, i.e. through targets in the Local Area 
Agreement.  (Discussed in Section 3). 

1.3 The SCS, therefore, sets out a vision for the District and is concerned with 
addressing issues important to residents, the business community and 
visitors to Bromsgrove District. It is based on understanding and available 
evidence and focuses on the way in which services are delivered and how 
they can be improved for everyone’s benefit.  The strategy is a 
developmental, rolling document and the priorities identified may change 
over time as improvements are realised and new issues emerge.  
Changes will be reflected in subsequent editions of the strategy and it will 
be updated annually. 

1.4 The strategy sets out priorities based on issues identified through 
consultation, Government policy, focus groups and stakeholder meetings.
The aims and objectives of the SCS are to provide a co-ordinated 
approach to improving the quality of life for everyone in the District and is, 
in effect, a business plan for the LSP Board to manage against and be 
held to account on. 

2. Worcestershire Partnership 

2.1 The Worcestershire Partnership is the LSP for the whole of 
Worcestershire.  Its members include all six district LSPs in the county, of 
which the Bromsgrove Partnership is one.  Appendix H shows how the 
Worcestershire Partnership is structured.  The Worcestershire Partnership 
has its own countywide SCS.  For more details about the Worcestershire 
Partnership, please refer to the website: 
www.worcestershirepartnership.org.uk

Page 85



4

3. Worcestershire Local Area Agreement 

3.1 The key strategic document which makes the link between national, 
regional and local policy is the Local Area Agreement (LAA).  Through the 
Local Government and Involvement in Health Act (2007), the Government 
has placed even more emphasis on LAAs, particularly, as the inspection 
regime for local government will now be on an area basis through 
Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA).  As a result the County LSP 
negotiated a new LAA, which contains 35 priorities for the County for 
2008/2009 to 2010/2011.  An LAA is a form of contract between Central 
Government and the County LSP with a focus on outcome targets.  The 
Worcestershire LAA has been through its first annual refresh and was 
approved by the Secretary of State in April 2009.  The Worcestershire 
LAA flows out of the evidence based County Sustainable Community 
Strategy and the District Council responded to the consultation on this 
Strategy.

How the LAA will make a difference

3.2 A successful LAA will provide the opportunity to improve future service 
delivery by: 

! Enabling a clear identification of needs, based on data from local 
communities through effective consultation; 

! Focusing on key strategic priorities and measurable outcomes; 
! Recognising the crosscutting nature of these outcomes and 

identifying how action in one area will have impact on another; 
! Assisting partners to identify more clearly gaps and overlaps in 

provision;
! Enabling the pooling of budgets and resources leading, over the life 

of the LAA, to greater efficiency and effectiveness; 
! Enhancing performance management in conjunction with partners 

thus making the process transparent and accountable; 
! Simplifying delivery structures and creating clear accountability and 

governance arrangements; and 
! Improving community cohesion through greater engagement of all 

sectors, notably private, voluntary and community. 

Worcestershire thematic blocks and outcomes 

3.3 Worcestershire’s LAA is organised under the following six blocks: 

A. Communities that are safe and feel safe 
B. A better environment - for today and tomorrow 
C. Economic success that is shared by all 
D. Improving health and well being 
E. Meeting the needs of children and young people 
F. Stronger communities 

Page 86



5

4. Data Quality 

4.1 Good quality data is key to the SCS.  It drives the selection of priorities, 
determines the targets set and enables progress to be measured.  The 
1 April 2009 saw the introduction of new updated National Indicators (NIs).
The NIs have a much stronger focus on measuring customer perception 
and long term outcomes.  This change is to be welcomed; however, it is 
the first year of this change and data collection is still work in progress.  
The reader will note that on occasions the commentary will say “no data”.
The overall responsibility for the accuracy of the data in the SCS is the 
District Council’s Assistant Chief Executive.  The District Council is 
working hard with its partners to resolve these data issues. 

4.2 The District Council would like to thank the County Council’s Research 
and Intelligence Unit for their support in producing this document, in 
particular, the Bromsgrove Profile which provides a comprehensive 
analysis of the District.  The Area Profile of Bromsgrove can be found 
District Council’s website on the following page: 
http://www.bromsgrove.gov.uk/cms/council-and-democracy/statistics.aspx

5. The Bromsgrove LSP contribution to the Worcestershire LAA 

5.1 As discussed in the introduction, all Councils are expected to convene a 
Local Strategic Partnership (LSP), bringing together local partners in order 
to develop a shared understanding of the particular needs and priorities of 
their area, create synergies and improve the quality of life for an area’s 
residents.  The Bromsgrove Partnership Board membership is under 
review as part of ongoing work to deliver this strategy; however, it is 
currently made up of representatives from the following (which are in no 
particular order): 

! Bromsgrove District Council (Leader and Joint Chief Executive) 

! Worcestershire County Council (County Councillor) 

! County Association of Local Councils (Parish Councillor) 

! Emergency Services (West Mercia Police) 

! Education and Lifelong Learning (NEW College) 

! NHS Worcestershire  

! Bromsgrove District Housing Trust 

! Private Sector (representing small and medium businesses) 

! Voluntary and Community Sector (BARN) 

The Board members are supported by an LSP Co-ordinator, and 
Theme/Project Group Leads.  Other technical support is given by an Area 
Co-ordinator from Worcestershire County Council, and planning and 
transport officers.  Appendix I shows the structure of the Bromsgrove 
Partnership.

Page 87



6

5.2 The LSP has responsibility for delivering the outcomes of the LAA; 
however, there are issues that are important to Bromsgrove District which 
fit into the blocks of the LAA, but are not specifically mentioned i.e. 
Bromsgrove town centre regeneration and the Longbridge redevelopment; 
therefore, the LSP contributes to the LAA where it is relevant to do so by 
pursuing the priorities for Bromsgrove.  Appendix K shows the LAA 
National Indicators 2008-2011 (refreshed April 2009).

The following paragraphs provide a brief commentary on each of the LAA 
blocks in relation to Bromsgrove District: 

Block A: Communities that are Safe and Feel Safe

Ref. Indicator County 
LAA
10/11

Target

District
08/09

Outturn

Comments

NI  2 % of people who 
feel they belong to 
their
neighbourhood.

63.4% 61.4% High figure is 
good.
Bromsgrove 10/11 
target is 63.0% 

NI 17 Perceptions of 
anti-social
behaviour

13.3% 12.3% Low figure is 
good.
Bromsgrove 10/11 
target is 11.4% 

NI 18 Adult re-offending 
rates.

-7.77%
on

baseline

No data No District figures 
available.
Predicted County 
rate is 9.67% 

NI 21 Dealing with 
concerns about 
ASB

31.2% 27.8% High figure is 
good.
Bromsgrove 10/11 
target was 27.8% 
which has already 
been met. 

NI
195a

Improved street 
cleanliness. 

8% 2% Low figure is 
good.

NI 39 Alcohol related 
admissions per 
1000 population. 

1,652 1,229 Red flag from 
Audit Commission, 
but substantially 
below target. 

LI 4 Assault with injury. -1% on 
baseline

(projected
08/09

County
baseline
is 5.86) 

4.67
(Agreed
08/09

baseline
due to 

change in 
recording)

NI 20 was 
converted to a 
LI 4; however, 
Bromsgrove
performance has 
been assessed as 
green and 
Bromsgrove 10/11 
target is 4.63. 

Page 88



7

5.3 The District has a strong Community Safety Partnership which is 
contributing strongly to this outcome.  Since 2005/06, total crime has 
reduced by 8.5% in the District, with British Crime Survey (BCS) 
Comparator Crime reducing by 12.7%.1.  Despite actual improvements in 
reducing crime, we are not achieving the perception measure targets, as 
set out in the LAA; consequently, this must be an area of focus going 
forward.

Block B: A Better Environment for Today and Tomorrow

Ref. Indicator County 
LAA
10/11
Target

District
08/09

Outturn

Comments

NI
186

Per capita CO2

emissions in LA 
area.

-9% 6.22

(2007)
6.3 tonnes produced 
in 2005 and 6.4 
tonnes in 2006 for 
the District.3

Therefore the 
Districts per capita 
emission have 
declined slightly 
between 2006 and 
2007.

NI
188

Adapting to 
climate change. 

Level 2 
for District

Level 0 Level 1 - Public 
commitment and 
prioritised risk-
based assessment. 
Level 2 - 
Comprehensive
risk-based
assessment and 
prioritised action in 
some areas. 

NI
193

Municipal waste 
land filled. 

48% 57% Both figures are 
County.  In the 
latest league tables 
(2007/08)
Bromsgrove District 
Council is ranked 
56th in England for 
recycling.

                                              
1 iQuanta 
2 Outturn figures published by Department of Energy and Climate Change (DECC) on 
18 September 2009.  Data has been drawn from new National Statistics which were also 
published on 18 September 2009 that were adjusted for the purposes of NI 186 to exclude 
emissions sources over which local authorities have no influence (e.g. motorways).  Note that 
revised data for 2005 and 2006 was published alongside the 2007 data.  It is only the revised 
2005 and 2006 data that can be directly compared to the new 2007 statistics. 
3 Ibid 

Page 89



8

LI 1a All vulnerable 
areas identified, 
integrated flood 
risk mgmt plans 
developed. 

100% No data No data available. 

LI 1b Improved Flood 
Warning System in 
place at Parish 
level

- No data No data available. 

5.4 These figures represent a considerable challenge to the Bromsgrove 
Partnership.  The District Council has appointed a Climate Change Officer, 
but it has a long way to go before we can start to make a serious dent in 
these figures.  The 9% reduction in household emission over three years 
is very ambitious (but necessary), while the recent Climate Change Act 
(2008) has committed the UK to an 80% reduction by 2050 which means 
that each partner organisation needs to also sign up to a similar reduction. 

Block C: Economic Success that is shared by all

Ref. Indicator County 
LAA
10/11

Target

District
08/09

Outturn

Comments

NI
117

16-18 year olds 
NEET.

4.4% 2.6% 
(May 08 

data)

6.98% in Charford is 
the highest.  Lowest 
is 2.13% in Stoke 
Prior.

NI
152

Working age 
people on benefit. 

8.4% 11.1% 
(Nov07-
Aug08)

Gap between this 
figure and 
unemployment rate 
(3.7%) represents 
“worklessness.

NI
163

Working age 
population
qualified to Level 
2.

79% 75.8% District figure is 
above the County 
average.

NI
166

Average earnings 
of employees. 

94.3% No data Bromsgrove’s 
average earnings 
figure is £406.
Wyre Forest is the 
lowest at £399 and 
Malvern’s the 
highest at £477. 

NI
171

Business
registration rate. 

115.5%
of WM. 

Reg. Av. 

62.4 Third highest in the 
County.

Page 90



9

5.5 These figures are interesting, as they paint a different picture from the 
high household income figures and comparatively low unemployment.  
The difference between the unemployment rate and NI152 represents 
“worklessness”, which appears to be in the region of 7%; whilst the 
average earnings figure indicates there is a marked difference between 
those who live and work in the District and those who commute out to 
work.  The Bromsgrove Partnership Board has started and will continue to 
put more emphasis on economic development and the Council is likely to 
do the same with a possible North Worcestershire Economic Strategy. 

Block D: Improving Health and Well Being

Ref. Indicator County 
LAA
10/11
Target

District
08/09

Outturn

Comments

NI 8 Adult participation in 
sport.

25.7% 25.6% The District is 4% 
above the national 
average but this still 
means only a 
quarter of the 
population is doing 
sufficient exercise. 

NI
56

Obesity among 
primary school 
children.

15.5% 15.3% 
(07/08)

Linthurst,
Alvechurch,
Hollywood, Cofton 
Hackett, parts of St 
Johns, Slideslow, 
Waseley and 
Whitford all have 
over 20% of children 
overweight. 

NI
112

Under 18 conception 
rate.

No
10/11
target

set

No data No data available at 
District level.  No 
LAA target has been 
set for 10/11, in line 
with Government 
Office West 
Midlands advice.
None of the 23 
Bromsgrove wards 
feature in the top 12 
wards identified by 
the County Council. 

NI
121

Mortality rate from 
circulatory disease in 
under 75s. 

62.03 62.45 2005-2007 figure.
% declining. 

Page 91



10

NI
123

Smoking prevalence 
per 100,000 
population aged 16 or 
over (who have given 
up for 4 weeks) 

682 721.5 
(07/08)

The number giving 
up smoking is 
increasing in 
Bromsgrove and is 
above the County 
average of 705. 

NI
133

Timeliness of social 
care packages (4 
weeks).

92% 85% 
(07/08)

County figures.  No 
data available at 
District Level. 

NI
142

% of vulnerable 
people who are 
supported to maintain 
independent living 

98.02% 97.52% County figures.  No 
data available at 
District Level. 

LI 6 Adults with learning 
disabilities in 
employment

6.3% No data No data available at 
District Level. 

LI 7 Adults receiving 
secondary mental 
health services in 
employment.

+5% on 
baseline

No data No data available at 
District Level.
County 08/09 
baseline is 539. 

5.6 The NHS Worcestershire (and Worcestershire Primary Care Trust) is the 
key partner for this block but the District Council can make a contribution 
to this block by improving people’s lifestyles through supporting 
community sports organisations and through direct leisure provision e.g. 
the Dolphin Centre.  The District’s population is relatively affluent and 
therefore relatively healthy.  Through previous budget rounds, the Council 
has invested in this area e.g. additional sports development officers and 
the refurbishment of the Dolphin Centre.  As a result, the District has high 
levels of participation in sports and has almost achieved the 2010/11 LAA 
target.  Similarly, the District has already met its target for alcohol related 
admissions to hospital; however, this indicator has been “red flagged” by 
the Audit Commission, as there has been an 89% increase in admissions 
between 2002/2003 and 2007/2008.  Admissions are due to the effects of 
long term drinking and not Saturday night in the town centre. 

Block E: Meeting the Needs of Children and Young People

Ref. Indicator County 
LAA
10/11
Target

District
08/09

Outturn

Comments

NI
110

Young people’s 
participation in 
positive activities. 

83.3% 72.2% County Figures.  No 
data is available at 
District Level. 

LI 2 Children who have 
experienced bullying. 

33% 35% County figures.   

LI 5 Disabled children 
accessing short 
breaks

500 No data No target set.  
County Council 
calculating figure. 

Page 92



11

5.7 These indicators are primarily delivered by the County Council’s Children’s 
Services Department but other LSP partners will make some contribution.  
For example, “The Trunk” will have a focus on health and positive 
activities for young people and the Council’s Sports Development Team 
and the Dolphin Centre can contribute to reducing obesity in our children 
(Band D).  The Council is also committed to increasing its engagement 
with young people through events like “U Decide”. 

Block F: Stronger Communities

Ref. Indicator County 
LAA
10/11
Target

District
08/09

Outturn

Comments

NI
116

Proportion of 
children in poverty. 

12.0% 13.9% County figures, but 
two super output 
areas in District in 
top 30%.  One in 
Sidemoor, one in 
Charford.

NI
154

Net additional 
homes provided 

1,830 542 Both figures are 
County figures.
Bromsgrove’s figure 
was 135 and is the 
lowest for all 6 
districts.

NI
155

Number of 
affordable homes 
delivered (gross). 

450 145 The 450 is a County 
figure and the 145 a 
District figure.  The 
District target for 
08/09 was 80 so 
145 performance 
figure is good. 

NI
169

Non principal roads 
where maintenance 
should be 
considered.

8.4% 11.02% 
(07/08)

County figures. 

NI
175

Access to services 
and facilities by 
public transport. 

94% 83.2% 
(2007)

Proxy indicator 
required as indicator 
definition
complicated. 

NI
187

Tackling fuel 
poverty.

SAP
below

35-
7.68%

SAP
above
65 – 

39.73%

8.77%

36.11%

This is the % with 
low efficiency, 
where a low % is 
better.

A higher % is better 
for SAP above 65. 

Page 93



12

LI 3 Successful new 
claims generated for 
pension credit, 
attendance
allowance and 
disability living 
allowance. 

2,700 No data County target.  No 
data available at 
District Level. 

5.8 This block tends to be a catchall for targets that do not fit in the other 
blocks.  The maintenance of roads is a key concern for residents, but is 
relatively low level in the scheme of things.  Transport was a key issue for 
many residents, particularly older residents and public transport usage.
Undoubtedly the key indicator in this block is the affordable housing target.  
The District is exceeding its target of 80 units a year; however, this is not 
sufficient to meet the identified housing need. 

The full list of new LAA indicators is set out in Appendix K to this report. 

6. Sustainable Community Strategy and the Local 
Development Framework 

6.1 The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 introduced a new 
planning system, which at the local level, comprises the Local 
Development Framework (LDF).  The LDF, which will replace the existing 
Local Plan, will be made up of a series of documents called Local 
Development Documents which together provide the framework for 
delivering the spatial planning strategy for the area.  The LDF must have 
clear links with the Sustainable Community Strategy and the Government 
states that: 

“The LDF should be a key component in the delivery of the Sustainable 
Community Strategy, setting out its spatial aspects where appropriate and 
providing a long-term spatial vision”. 

6.2 Linkages between the SCS and the LDF are important for a number of 
reasons and they will help to ensure that the LDF is based on a greater 
understanding of the community’s aspirations. 

6.3 The Government is clear that an effective relationship between the two 
strategies will have many benefits, including: 

! Establishing an integrated approach towards future development; 
! Recognition of the LDF as a key delivery mechanism for the 

Sustainable Community Strategy; 
! Economies of scale in terms of working corporately and sharing 

resources in the preparation of Sustainable Community Strategies and 
LDF’s; and 

! The potential to resolve conflicts between local community aspirations 
and national/regional policy objectives by engaging a wide range of 
stakeholders.

Page 94



13

6.4 The LDF currently contains the Core Strategy, Town Centre Area Action 
Plan and the Longbridge Area Action Plan Development Plan documents.
These plans reflect the vision for the District as outlined below and will be 
one of the key delivery mechanisms for this vision.  Alongside these, a 
supplementary planning document will be prepared on affordable housing 
to ensure we maximise the potential for delivering high quality sustainable 
dwellings at an affordable level, for those require them. 

6.5 The LDF and the documents it contains is, in effect, the floor plan for the 
SCS.  It will be key to delivering our aspirations of a balanced and good 
employment mix.  The Bromsgrove Partnership currently faces a real 
difficulty with this area due to the national and regional arguments over the 
future housing provision which has delayed the production of the Regional 
Spatial Strategy, which will determine the District’s housing allocation to 
2026.

7. Ten Year Vision 

7.1  The Bromsgrove Partnership’s Vision for the District is:- 

“We will make Bromsgrove District a better place to work, live and visit by 
driving forward change”. 

7.2 To help people understand what this Vision might mean in practice, we 
have set out below a narrative picture of what the District might look like in 
10 years’ time. 

 A Thriving Market Town  

We want a District with a thriving market town at its centre.  Bromsgrove 
town will attract locals and visitors alike both for the shopping experience 
and the many other activities that the town will provide.  As a thriving 
market town there will be regular activities like a street market, specialist 
markets, such as Easter markets, continental markets, farmers markets, 
antique fairs, the bonfire night, street theatre and so on.  People will ask 
the question; “What is on in Bromsgrove town today?”  The town will be 
significantly regenerated to achieve this, with a new civic heart, perhaps 
relocating the Council House to the town centre, a new road layout and a 
community focal point.

The shopping experience will be differentiated from its many neighbours 
by the quality and diversity of its shops and services, which will consist of 
small specialist shops, high street accommodation, restaurants, cafes and 
generally a retail mix that reflects the increasing affluence of the District.
We also want a town centre that caters for the diverse needs of our 
communities, for example, good accessibility for people with disabilities, 
good toilet facilities and designing children and young people into our town 
centre rather than trying to design them out.  In the evenings, we want to 
see a mix of entertainment, which caters for the young, but also for 
families and older people. 

Page 95



14

 Housing 

Currently we have an imbalance in our housing market.  There is not 
enough affordable housing for young people to stay in the District or for 
young people and families to move into the District.  Until the summer of 
2007, house prices have risen faster than the national average, with the 
mean average house price in 2007 being 237,599. 4  Although this figure 
will have fallen as a result of the credit crunch, it is still very difficult for a 
household with an income of £25,000 to currently get on the housing 
ladder in Bromsgrove District.  The Council and Bromsgrove District 
Housing Trust (BDHT) will tackle this issue by ensuring that new 
developments like the Longbridge site, the town centre and any future 
housing allocation the District has to take (as a result of regional housing 
policy) will have a appropriate mix of housing, for example, outright 
ownership, shared ownership schemes, low cost home ownership and 
rented accommodation.

Whilst ensuring we provide enough affordable housing we will also need 
to take increasing account of the expansion of our older population.  The 
recent housing market survey, commissioned by BDHT and the Council, 
suggests an estimated need of 7,350 properties across all tenures.  To 
date the debate has tended to focus on affordable housing; however, the 
survey has also identified the need for housing for older people.  Meeting 
the needs of the rising 85+ population will require a good supply of 
sheltered, care at hand and extra care housing. 

The need to keep our youngsters in our communities and our older people 
cared for within our communities applies not just to our planned big 
developments like Longbridge, but also our existing urban and rural 
communities.

We will also ensure an adequate supply of good quality temporary 
accommodation to ensure there is a safety net for those people made 
homeless through difficult circumstances. 

 Economy 

A defining characteristic of the District is that 26,000 people (29% of the 
total population) commute out of the District to work every day,5 so the 
transport improvements described above will be key to the continuing 
prosperity of the District.  If the District becomes a difficult place to 
commute from, less people may wish to live here.  Similarly, over 16,000 
people commute into the District every day.6  Even with the downturn in 
the economy, the District has its own vibrant economy with relatively low 
unemployment (3.7% in June 2009)7.  Maintaining this strong commercial 
sector through attracting inward investment, into sites like the Science and 

                                              
4 Land Registry 2008 - Worcestershire County Economic Assessment 2008-09 
5 ONS Census 2001 
6 Ibid 
7 Monthly Economic Summary, Research and Intelligent Unit, Worcestershire County Council 

Page 96



15

Technology Park, and developing small businesses through business start 
up schemes will remain important. 

 Environment and Climate Change 

We want to ensure the Council and its partners take account of the 
serious issues we face on climate change.  Each organisation will need to 
ensure it is doing its part through cutting energy consumption and 
increasing recycling.  Approximately 90% of the District is green belt and 
we have some beautiful country side in the District; however, an 
increasing number of species are under threat, so the County and District 
Council who have specific responsibilities in this regard, need to work 
together to protect local habitats and maintain biodiversity. 

Bromsgrove District Council is also in the special position of protecting the 
green belt south of Birmingham and stopping the urban sprawl. The rural 
areas will have been protected from development and traditional country 
life maintained.  The District’s villages will have been developed in line 
with their local communities’ wishes.  The more urban areas on the fringe 
of the District will have been protected from encroachment by Birmingham 
unless the communities themselves wish to be part of the city region.
Balancing those wishes with the need for affordable housing and potential 
shifts in regional housing policy regarding housing allocation is likely to be 
a key area of focus for the Bromsgrove Partnership Board over the next 
few years. 

As we tackle the District’s long term environment and climate change 
issues we will also have addressed more immediate issues that we know 
affect people’s lives.  The District will be clean and tidy so that whenever 
anybody enters from a neighbouring district they will know that they have 
arrived somewhere special.  It will look immaculate at all times with 
roundabouts and other public areas being awash with flowers and 
decorative greenery.  Any complaints will be responded to quickly.  The 
Districts roads will be maintained to a high standard and any reported 
problems dealt with quickly. 

Domestic and trade waste will be collected regularly, at a preordained 
time, and cost effectively. The quantity of waste collected will meet all 
Government targets and whatever systems are needed to achieve this will 
have been put in place. We will have educated people in recycling and 
composting and will have reduced waste collection to a low level. 

 Crime  

Along with the District cleanliness, low level crimes and anti-social 
behaviour are key drivers in determining how people feel about where 
they live and work.  Since 2005/06, total crime has reduced by 8.5% in the 
District, with British Crime Survey (BCS) Comparator Crime reducing by 

Page 97



16

12.7%.8   There has also been an increase in the number of residents who 
think the police are doing a good or excellent job to 49%.9  However, we 
want to improve this figure further, so we will continue supporting the 
difficult job of the Police through the Community Safety Partnership.

Residents have welcomed the Partner and Communities Together (PACT) 
meetings and initiatives like community officers, neighbourhood wardens, 
CCTV cameras and “designing out” crime through physical changes to 
roads, pavement and alleyways.  We will build on initiatives like these, but 
also recognise that the majority of the population is law abiding and that 
being young is not a crime. 

 Health 

Good health is the foundation for all that we do.  We are fortunate that the 
health of the people of Bromsgrove is generally better than the England 
average; however, for those in need of care, the Health Service will 
continue to provide for them.  The Bromsgrove Partnership will focus on a 
preventative agenda, in particular, reducing smoking, reducing alcohol 
misuse and increasing physical exercise and mental activities for all so 
that people stay healthy for longer. 

 Delivery of this Vision will be underpinned by five themes:- 

! Excellent Customer Service 

The Customer will be at the heart of everything we do and technology will 
play a huge part in enabling the delivery of better services for the 
customer through a variety of different access channels.  Equally 
important will be a focus in customer care. 

! Community Leadership 

The District Council will be the community leader and will work in 
partnership with others through bodies like the Bromsgrove Partnership.  
All councillors will be able to represent their communities strongly having 
been trained to a high standard. 

Communication will have improved so that everyone is informed of what is 
happening and what is going to happen and that there is regular feedback 
from the general public to the Bromsgrove Partnership

There will be an excellent programme of community engagement through 
regular town hall meetings, Local Neighbourhood Partnerships, Parish 
Councils, Partners and Communities Together (PACT) meetings, forums 
for particular groups, for example, tenants, people with disabilities and 
early and inclusive consultation on specific issues like the town centre  

                                              
8 iQuanta 
9 West Mercia Crime and Safety Annual Survey 2008 

Page 98



17

! Equality  

We will have a District where everybody is treated equally no matter what 
his or her race, colour or religion. There will be no discrimination. We will 
protect and help the vulnerable and provide special services to those who 
need them. 

! Value for Money 

In order to deliver the above agenda we will have paid close attention to 
the value for money achieved from each pound of public spending.  At a 
strategic level, we will focus on the outcomes we want to achieve and 
make the best use of available delivery methods: including better 
technology, outsourcing to the private and voluntary sectors, shared 
services between councils and between other public bodies.  At an 
operational level we will monitor each pound spent carefully. 

! Partnership

Finally, we will do all the above in partnership, working together to deliver 
the Vision for our District. 

8. Consultation and Community Engagement 

8.1 No specific community engagement activity has been undertaken for the 
development of this strategy.  The Bromsgrove Partnership is committed 
to engaging with the District’s communities and sees this as an ongoing 
commitment and not one that requires specific engagement for this 
strategy.  Examples of the significant number of engagement activities 
include:

! The “Glad or Grumpy” 
postcard for last SCS update 

! Three customer panel surveys 

! Quality of Life Survey 

! Place Survey 

! Tell Us Survey 

! Big Questionnaire 

! Third Sector Survey 

! Over 60 PACT Meetings 

! “Town Hall Meetings” 

! “U Decide” Children and 
Young People Event 

! County Council’s Citizens 
Panel

! BDHT’s Status Survey 

! “Younique” BDHT Survey 

! Recent Street Theatres 

! Equality and Diversity Forum 

! Equality and Diversity 
Consultation Conference 

! Disabled User Group 

! Budget Jury 

! Specific Focus Groups 

Page 99



18

8.2 The Bromsgrove Partnership also feels that the long term nature of the 
SCS outcomes means that our residents’ aspirations are unlikely to have 
changed.  As an example, the following issues (raised by residents) 
appeared in our 2007 strategy: 

What makes people glad

" Well kept parks, green belt, access to the countryside 
" Cultural offer – e.g. Artrix Centre and Libraries and Community events 

– Street Theatre, Bandstand, fireworks, Christmas lights 
" Recycling service, especially the green waste service 
" Community spirit/pleasant place to live 
" Education and health facilities 
" Links to motorway infrastructure 
" Relatively low crime 

What makes people grumpy Mitigating Action

!  Highways, pavements and 
footpaths (including traffic volume, 
speeding, maintenance, street 
lighting, drainage and cycle lanes)

! BDC is working with WCC on 
these operational issues 

!  Transport services and car parking 
(including parking costs, parking 
timescales, congestion, transport 
provision, bus services, trains, 
illegal parking) 

! The charges are competitive 
and changes to fees are not 
proposed at this time.  A multi-
agency Transport Theme Group 
has been convened to discuss 
the regeneration of the train 
station, community transport 
and other issues 

!  Street scene/ street cleansing 
(including Spadesbourne Brook, fly 
posting, fly tipping, litter, graffiti) 

! This is a Council priority and is 
also the top priority from the 
customer panel 

!  Declining town centre with poor 
selection of shops 

! The town centre is a priority for 
the LSP Board and BDC 

!  Not enough activities for children 
and young people 

! The Children and Young 
People’s Theme Group and 
Health and Well Being Theme 
Group will address some of 
these issues, as will working in 
wider partnership 

8.3 As a result of the consultation, three new areas were identified that were 
not covered in the draft Strategy.  These were: 

# Mental Health 
# Childhood obesity; and 
# Transport. 

These have therefore been added to the Strategy and key deliverables 
developed. 

Page 100



19

8.4 During 2008, the Council undertook a “Quality of Life” survey.  The 
 emphasis of the survey was on residents’ perceptions of their quality 
 of life, and as such the survey was themed according to existing LAA 
 blocks.  The results were discussed and endorsed at the LSP Board 
 and in the Theme Groups.  A number of changes have been made to 
 the actions of the Theme Groups as a result of the Quality of Life 
 Survey.  The results support the consultation undertaken during the 
 major revision of the Sustainable Community Strategy in 2007. 

8.5 The results of the statutory Place Survey were published in June 2009 and 
the table below shows residents’ top priorities for improvement for the 
District:

Residents’ Priorities for improvement (Place Survey 2008/09)

Page 101



20

8.6 The areas of concern remain unchanged.  The Bromsgrove Partnership 
has taken note of the guide for LSPs on “Developing your Comprehensive 
Community Engagement Strategy” produced jointly by NAVCA (National 
Association for Voluntary and Community Action), Urban Forum, I&DeA 
(Improvement and Development Agency) and NEP (National 
Empowerment Partnership) and has agreed to develop a single 
Community Engagement Strategy which will include an assessment of the 
impact of the engagement activity undertaken to date e.g. how many 
consulted, the types of consultation, how the information was used, and in 
particular, was it fed into the decision making process. 

9. Direction and Priorities

9.1 The Bromsgrove Partnership has set itself 6 objectives to match those of 
the countywide SCS.  At its Away Days, held on 26th June 2009 (full day) 
and 22nd September 2009 (half day), the LSP Board and Theme Group 
Chairs considered local evidence and national priorities on each of the 
LAA blocks.  The priorities and key deliverables, which were approved by 
the Board on 8th October 2009, are shown in the table attached at 
Appendix J.  The table shows how the priorities fit under the 6 objectives. 

9.2 Each of the priorities will be dealt with via a Theme or Project Group(s).
Each group has its own Action Plan and activity will be regularly reported 
back to the Bromsgrove Partnership Board.

9.3 The Bromsgrove Partnership has also developed its own Compact, which 
is a joint agreement between a council and the local voluntary and 
community sector to build trust and improve working relationships for the 
benefits of both parties.  By working in partnership, the public and 
voluntary sectors can make an exciting and unique contribution to 
enhancing the quality of life for the people of Bromsgrove.  The public and 
voluntary and community sectors have distinct, but complementary roles.
We believe that great value can be added to our communities through 
working together.  A Compact Steering Group has been convened and an 
action plan developed.  This plan is attached as Appendix G. 

9.4 Section 15 looks in more detail at the 6 blocks of the LAA.  Each section 
gives a summary of evidence for Bromsgrove District.  It is recognised that 
the evidence is not all encompassing, but represented a fair picture of the 
District at the time it was conducted.

Page 102



21

10
. 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

10
.1

 
T

he
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

ea
ch

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t f
ra

m
ew

or
k 

ar
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

in
 th

e 
ta

bl
e 

be
lo

w
. 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 D
ir

ec
ti

o
n

 
 

“O
rg

an
is

at
io

n
” 

 
 

 
 

 
3 

Y
ea

r 
R

ev
ie

w
 

C
ou

nt
yw

id
e 

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
B

oa
rd

 (
C

ou
nt

y 
LS

P
) 

6 
M

on
th

ly
 R

et
ur

n 
to

 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t O
ffi

ce
"

C
ou

nt
yw

id
e 

Lo
ca

l A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
B

oa
rd

 (
C

ou
nt

y 
LS

P
) 

 
 

 
 

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t t
o 

F
ul

l 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
P

M
B
"
"

D
is

tr
ic

t S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

B
oa

rd
 (

D
is

tr
ic

t L
S

P
) 

 
 

 
 

B
i-m

on
th

ly
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 r

ep
or

t 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

B
oa

rd
 (

D
is

tr
ic

t L
S

P
) 

 
 

 
 

 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

"
S

om
e 

of
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t t

ar
ge

ts
 a

ttr
ac

t a
 r

ew
ar

d 
gr

an
t f

ro
m

 th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t. 

 N
ot

 a
ll 

of
 th

es
e 

ta
rg

et
s 

ar
e 

in
 o

ur
 D

is
tr

ic
t

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

(a
s 

so
m

e 
ar

e 
no

t p
rio

rit
ie

s 
fo

r 
th

is
 D

is
tr

ic
t)

; h
ow

ev
er

, g
iv

en
 th

e 
re

w
ar

d 
gr

an
t i

t i
s 

im
po

rt
an

t t
ha

t t
he

 
D

is
tr

ic
t L

S
P

 B
oa

rd
 is

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
se

 ta
rg

et
s.

  T
he

se
 ta

rg
et

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 to

 th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t L
S

P
 B

oa
rd

. 

"
"

P
M

B
 –

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

 

Page 103



22

11. Focus of the LSP Board 

11.1 The LSP Board has overall responsibility within the Partnership for: 
understanding the particular quality of life issues that the District faces; 
setting strategic direction; and monitoring progress.  However, the Board 
recognises that much of the work required will continue without the Board, 
particularly if an operational partnership is already in place, for example, 
the Community Safety Partnership (CSP). 

11.2 Where the Board can really add value is in delivering less established 
priorities and the actions to support them.  The Board has selected the 
following 3 areas as its particular focus over the next three years: 

! Bromsgrove town centre redevelopment; 
! Housing; and 
! Children and young people.

11.3 The Board will continue to monitor and oversee the work of all the 
priorities.

12. Governance Arrangements and Democratic Accountability

12.1 The LSP has a governance framework, approved by Full Council.  This 
document is reviewed and revised (if required) on an annual basis.  
Bromsgrove District is the accountable body for the LSP and the Leader of 
the Council is the Chairman of the Board.  The Sustainable Community 
Strategy and the Bromsgrove Partnership Annual Report are presented to 
Full Council and are also subject to examination by the Performance 
Management Board (PMB).

12.2 It is important to stress that the LSP has no actual decision making 
powers.  Any decisions about finance, for example, are a matter for each 
partner’s executive Board.  The LSP basically provides a setting for 
everyone to work together for the good of our communities, something 
they would expect us to do. 

13. Resources 

13.1 Bromsgrove District Council funds the secretariat function of the LSP. This 
includes the employment of a Senior Policy and Performance Officer, who 
acts as the LSP Co-ordinator, and other technical support from the Joint 
Chief Executive and Assistant Chief Executive.    

13.2 Similar to previous years, it is anticipated that Bromsgrove District Council 
will allocate £5,000 for the LSP for each financial year.  Key to the 
success of the Bromsgrove Partnership is the levering in of funding from 
each partner to support the delivery of its priorities.  The multiple funded 
Bromsgrove Train Station is a good example of this, as are the various 
public realm projects in the Town Centre.  As part of the work on this 
strategy, a review was undertaken of the resources behind each of the 
SCS priorities.

Page 104



23

14. Equality and Sustainability 

14.1 In all development the principles of equality will be applied, ensuring 
individuals and groups are not discriminated against on the grounds of 
age, race, disability, gender, marital status, religion, sexual orientation, 
social and economic status or political beliefs.  An equalities impact 
assessment of this revised Strategy has been undertaken and the 
Bromsgrove Equalities and Diversity Forum will be offered the opportunity 
to scrutinise the equalities impact assessment. 

14.2 Sustainability is an important issue in promoting the development and 
economic prosperity of the District and social progress to meet the needs 
of the community.  Our aim, as far as possible, will be to protect the local 
and global environment and we will attempt to ensure that proposed 
actions do not directly or indirectly reduce the diversity of natural 
ecosystems.  The Partnership will endorse careful consideration of the use 
of natural resources, waste production and nuisances such as noise or 
odour.

15. Evidence for Selection of Priorities 

15.1 Communities that are safe and feel safe

 The key statistics for crime and safety10 in the District are: 

! Bromsgrove is known to be a low crime area and over the last 4 years, 
total crime has reduced by 8.5% and British Crime Survey (BCS) 
Comparator crime by 12.7%.

! Of the BCS Comparator crime categories, over the last 4 years violent 
crime11 has reduced by 21.8% and vehicle crime dropped by almost 
24%.

! 49% of residents think the police are doing a good or excellent job, with 
37% of these people stating that they felt this because they live in a low 
crime area.

! A significant proportion (44%) of Bromsgrove residents completing the 
survey had heard of PACT (Partners and Communities Together) and 
7% had attended a PACT event or completed a PACT survey but 
clearly the majority (56%) had not heard of PACT.

! Residents in 2008 felt significantly less able to influence local decisions, 
less invovled in decisions that affect changes in their area and less well 
informed about crime and disorder in their neighbourhoods than in 
2007. (The Place Survey states (re NI 4) only 24% (in 2008) compared 
to 31% (in 2007) of people felt they could influence local decisions in 
their locality.) 

! The following issues were identified by residents as the worst problems 
in their neighbourhood: speeding traffic, groups of people loitering 
around in public places, under-age drinking, indicating that these types 
of Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) are common in the District, and that 
associated issues should be addressed. 

                                              
10 All Key Statistics for were taken from the Bromsgrove Profile 2009 as referred to on page 5.
11 ‘Violent crime’ includes assault with injury, assault without injury and most serious violence. 

Page 105



24

! The crimes which residents fear the most are: house burglary (57%), 
vandalism or damage to property (56%), having car broken in to (47%), 
therefore tackling these issues may help to improve public confidence.  

! In general, 80% of residents have felt fearful about the possibility of any 
crime happening to them in the last 12 months, a significant increase on 
the 2007 figure (56%). However, the proportion claiming to feel less 
safe in their neighbourhoods compared with 12 months ago has 
remained at a similar level (14% v 15%). 

! ASB is considered to be a problem in 21% of residents’ 
neighbourhoods, with 46% stating that it has a major or slight impact on 
the quality of life in the neighbourhood.

! 14% of respondents said they had been a victim of crime, 2% less than 
in 2007. The most commonly experienced crime was vandalism or 
damage to property (8.4%), followed by house burglary (3.1%). This 
ties in well with the crimes that residents are most fearful of. The wards 
with the highest experience of crime were Whitford, Charford and 
Beacon; however, the wards where the fear of crime is highest are 
Waseley, Catshill and Beacon. 

! 45% of residents felt the scale of illegal drug misuse was not a serious 
problem in their neighbourhoods; a significant increase over 2007 
(40%).

 The LAA priorities and National Indicators for this block are:

PRIORITY: To continue to improve community safety and build confidence in 
communities.

National or Local Indicator Latest District 
Performance (Baseline) 

2010/11 LAA Target 

NI 2 Percentage of people 
who feel that they belong 
to their neighbourhood 

61.4% 63.4% 
(District target 63.0%) 

NI 17 Perceptions of anti-
social behaviour

12.3%  13.3% 
(District target 11.4%) 

N I8 Adult re-offending 
rates for those under 
probation supervision  

No data -7.77% on baseline 
(Predicted County 

baseline rate is 9.67%) 

NI 21 Dealing with local 
concerns about anti-social 
behaviour and crime by 
the local council and the 
police 

27.8%  31.2% 
(District target 27.8%) 

NI 195a Improved street 
and environmental 
cleanliness (levels of litter) 

2% 8% 

LI 4 Assault with injury 
crime rate 

4.67
(Agreed 08/09 baseline) 

-1% on baseline 
(District target 4.63) 

Page 106



25

PRIORITY: To reduce the harm caused by illegal drugs and alcohol. 

National or Local Indicator Latest District 
Performance (Baseline) 

2010/11 LAA Target 

NI 39 Alcohol - harm 
related hospital admission 
rates

1229 per 100,000 
population

1652 per 100,000 
population

Analysis of Statistics and LAA

! Suggested things which make people feel part of their area are having 
pride, feeling safe and attending local events in the area.  

! Fewer people feel there is an ASB problem in their area than the 
county average, and more residents also agree that the police and 
local authority are successfully dealing with ASB.  

! Bromsgrove performance is also excellent for NI 195 – street 
cleanliness.  

! General NI 39 (alcohol-related harm hospital admissions) performance 
is well above county averages, however Charford ward falls in the top 
10 wards county wide based on 2005/06 to 2007/08 data and so is a 
target area, as are Beacon and Sidemoor, though they do not fall into 
the top 10 county-wide.

! Bromsgrove is a low crime area, with NI 2012 performance well below 
county average. High volume or increasing trend crime types are: 
criminal damage, domestic burglary (specifically in rural areas) and 
vehicle crime 

! ASB is a key concern for residents of the District, especially linked to 
young people. A key area to tackle is alcohol related youth disorder, 
and perceptions of youths in the District.

! Residents highlight underage drinking, groups of people hanging 
around and speeding traffic as the worst problems in the District, but 
are also fearful of house burglary, vehicle crime and vandalism.

Bromsgrove Partnership Priorities and Key Deliverables for this block are:

Priority Key Deliverables

Changing the perception of Crime 
and Anti-Social Behaviour 

! Marketing and Communication 

! Increase tolerance  

! Promoting Bromsgrove District as a 
nice/safe place to live

Intergenerational and 
Diversionary Activities 

! Bring together older people and 
younger people through history, 
sharing skills and experiences 

                                              
12 NI 20 measures assault with injury crime rate 

Page 107



26

Further information on targets relating to the key deliverables (outcomes) 
above can be found in the high level action plan (Section 16, Appendix A). 

15.2 A better environment for today and tomorrow

 The key statistics about the environment13 in the District are: 

! The volume of residual household waste per head in Bromsgrove has 
decreased year on year to the 2007/08 level of 586.3 kg per head.

! Kilograms per head within the District have been recorded at 
consistently below the averages for both Worcestershire and England.

! The proportion of household waste recycled and composted has 
increased year on year to the 2006/07 level of 40.8% in Bromsgrove, 
with most notable increase from 2003/04 to 2005/06.

! Although from 2002 to 2004 a smaller proportion of waste was 
recycled or composted in Bromsgrove than in the County average, 
since 2004/05 performance has been above that of Worcestershire, 
and the percentage difference between the county and district figures 
seem to be increasing annually. 

! In 2008/09, 5 out of the 6 District Councils, including Bromsgrove 
District Council, missed their target of Level 1 and only achieved a 
Level 0 grading for NI 188 (Adapting to climate change)14.

! Latest data that is available (2007) shows that overall CO2 emissions in 
Bromsgrove are lower than most other areas of the County but 
emissions solely from domestic sources are among the highest of all 
the Districts within Worcestershire. Bromsgrove also produces a high 
rate of CO2 from road transport compared to other Worcestershire 
districts (most likely because of the large sections of the M42 and M5 
which dissect the area). 

! Most CO2 in Bromsgrove is produced from housing, followed by 
transport, which is true of all Districts in Worcestershire. 

! The District Council is emitting over 2,500,000 KGs of CO2 per annum 
as a result of its activities. 

! Levels of abandoned vehicles reported and recorded are generally 
fairly low and in 2008/09 98.8% of all abandoned vehicles reported to 
Bromsgrove District Council were investigated within 24 hours, which 
was well above the target of 95%. 

! Sanders Park has been awarded the Green Flag national standard (for 
parks and green spaces in England and Wales) for the past 3 years, 
showing the excellent standard of the open space. 

! The percentage of residents satisfied with parks and open spaces in 
the District rose from 54% in 2000/01 to 71% in 2003/04. This is higher 
than the County average of 69% but just short of the national figure of 
72%.

! In 2008/09, 1429 reports of fly-tipping were made to BDC Depot. Of 
these, 100% were removed within the target timescale. 

                                              
13 All Key Statistics for were taken from the Bromsgrove Profile 2009 as referred to on page 5. 
14 NI 188 (Adapting to climate change) measures progress on assessing and managing climate 
risks and opportunities, and incorporating appropriate action into local authority strategic 
planning.   

Page 108



27

The LAA priorities and National Indicators for this block are:

PRIORITY: To maximise the diversion of waste away from landfill through 
prevention, reuse, recycling and composting and recovery. 

National or Local Indicator Latest District 
Performance (Baseline) 

2010/11 LAA Target 

NI 193 Municipal waste land 
filled

57%
(County)

48%

PRIORITY: To increase energy efficiency and increase the proportion of 
energy generated from renewable sources. 

National or Local Indicator Latest District 
Performance (Baseline) 

2010/11 LAA Target 

NI 186 Per capita CO2

emissions in LA area 
6.2 tonnes per capita 

(2007)
9% reduction

PRIORITY: To improve flood mitigation measures and improve drainage. 

National or Local Indicator Latest District 
Performance (Baseline) 

2010/11 LAA Target 

NI 188 Adapting to climate 
change

Level 0 All Districts to 
achieve level 2 

LI 1a All vulnerable areas 
identified, integrated flood 
risk management plans 
developed and implemented

LI 1b Improved flood-
warning system in place at 
Parish level 

No data 

No data 

100%

 Analysis of Statistics

! Bromsgrove residents generally produce a low level of waste and a 
high proportion of which is recycled and composted.  

! The level of CO2 produced in the District is comparatively low.  
Nevertheless, production from domestic and transport sources are 
fairly high and have increased in recent years since the 2006 baseline 
for measuring NI 186.  Although comparatively low, the Climate 
Change Act (2008) has committed the UK to an 80% reduction of CO2

emissions by 2050 (from 1990 levels).
! Fly-tipping reported to BDC is cleaned up quickly.

Page 109



28

Bromsgrove Partnership Priorities and Key Deliverables for this block are:

Priority Key Deliverables

Reducing CO2 emissions to 
improve energy efficiency 

! Domestic 

! Business 

! Transport

Adapting to impacts of climate 
change

! Assist in improving the planning and 
management of flood alleviation 

! Ensure adaptation issues are 
included within Planning Policy 

Further information on targets relating to the key deliverables (outcomes) 
above can be found in the high level action plan (Section 16, Appendix B). 

15.3 Economic success that is shared by all

 Town Centre 

The Chart 1 under paragraph 8.5 (from the Place Survey 2008/09) refers 
to the residents’ top priorities for improvement for the District and it shows 
shopping facilities have become a much bigger priority locally since 
2006/07, up 11% points to 32%. 

The chart below (also from the Place Survey 2008/09), shows shopping is 
the only area that is in both the top five of things deemed by the public to 
be of high importance (36%) and that needs to be improved (32%)

Customer Priorities for Bromsgrove (Place Survey 2008/09)

Page 110



29

The chart below is taken from the Quality of Life Survey (February 2008) 
and shows the improvements that residents would like to see and again, 
shopping facilities are high on the list.

Most wanted improvements (Quality of Life Survey 2008)

The results from the Residents Survey from July 2008 showed that 50% 
were dissatisfied with the Council’s performance towards regenerating 
Bromsgrove Town Centre, one of the Council’s top priorities. 

Satisfaction with delivering on top 5 priorities

Cheaper parking
introduction of some 'big name' shops

More independent shops
Fewer empty shop units

Cleaner look and feel to the area
ction in business rates for businesses

Improved toilet facilities
More parking

Continental-style street markets
Improved pedestrian areas

Improvements to the towns buildings
Improved road layout

More cafes and coffee shops
Street entertainment

Other

14%

7%

35%

11%

19%

46%

32%

5%

45%

8%

4%

29%
27%

2%

5%

What improvements would you like to see in Bromsgrove? 

Base: All respondents (655) 

Clean streets and recycling

Improving customer service

Sense of community

Increased availability of
housing

Regenerating Bromsgrove
town centre

7 39 17 23 15

6 26 46 13 8

210 37 24 26

3 24 36 25 13

5 13 66 9 7

Very satisfied

Fairly satisfied

Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied

Fairly dissatisfied

Very dissatisfied

Satisfaction with the Council’s performance towards

Base: All respondents (537~566)

Page 111



30

Economic Picture of the District

The key statistics on economic information15 in the District are: 

! Average earnings in Bromsgrove are the highest of all the 
Worcestershire Districts, at almost 10% higher than the average for the 
County; however, there are areas within the District where annual 
income per household is less than £25,000. 

! The number of VAT registered businesses in Bromsgrove, though 
fluctuating, has been consistently higher than both the County and 
National rates since 2000 to 2007.  (Nevertheless, it is likely that more 
recent figures may show a decline due to the national recession.) 

! 75.8% of the working age population are qualified to at least level 2 or 
higher in the District.  This is above the Worcestershire average (which 
is 71.3%).  On the other hand, there are parts of Charford, Sidemoor, 
Waseley, Marlbrook, Drakes Cross and Walkers Heath and Catshill 
where there are fewer than 46% of residents that have level 2 
qualifications or higher. 

! The overall proportion of people with no qualifications in Bromsgrove 
District is substantially lower than both regional and national averages 
at just 7.8% compared to 17.0% and 13.1% respectively.  Furthermore, 
the percentage of the population qualified to levels 1, 2, 3 and 4 is also 
much higher than the regional and national averages. 

! In the Bromsgrove District as a whole, based on data from May 2008, 
2.6% of the 16-18 year old population are ‘not in education, 
employment or training’ (NEET). This is well below the County average 
of 4.7%. 

! In terms of working age population claiming out of work benefits, 
Bromsgrove District’s performance is 2.1% better than the county 
average as at May 2008.  

! Based on figures for August 2008, the level of benefit claimants in 
Bromsgrove (8.4% of the working age client group) is well below both 
the national and regional averages. The most commonly claimed 
benefit is incapacity benefit, accounting for almost half of all claimants 
in the District. 

! Based on figures for October 2007 to September 2008, the overall 
unemployment level in Bromsgrove is 2.3% lower than the regional 
average and 1.4% lower than the national figure. 

The LAA priorities and National Indicators for this block are:

PRIORITY: To promote economic growth and enable the economy in targeted 
sectors and locations. 

National or Local Indicator Latest District 
Performance (Baseline) 

2010/11 LAA Target 

NI 166 Average earning of 
employees in the area 

No data 94.3% 

                                              
15 All Key Statistics for were taken from the Bromsgrove Profile 2009 as referred to on page 5. 

Page 112



31

NI 171 Business registration 
rate

62.4 115.5% of WM 
Regional Average 

PRIORITY: To remove barriers to employment and improve skills in 
education, employment and training. 

National or Local Indicator Latest District 
Performance (Baseline) 

2010/11 LAA Target 

NI 117 16 to 18 year olds 
who are not in education, 
employment or training 
(NEET)

2.6%
(May 2008 data) 

4.4%
(0.2% reduction) 

NI 152 Working age people 
on out of work benefits 

11.1%
(Nov 2007 - Aug 2008) 

8.4%

NI 163 Working age 
population qualified to at 
least Level 2 or higher 

75.8% 79% 

 Analysis of Statistics

! The results of the Place Survey shows that shopping is the only area 
that is in both the top five of things deemed by the public to be of high 
importance and that is in need of improvement. 

! In most areas of study, the economic status of Bromsgrove District is 
well above regional and national averages, however, it is important to 
note that the current economic climate is likely to have a severe impact 
on current and future trends, and a downturn can be expected.

! Mean annual income is the highest in the county, though areas of low 
income do exist.

! The level of qualifications is higher than County and national averages, 
though areas with low qualification levels include Charford, Sidemoor 
and Catshill. Furthermore, the level of NEET 16 – 18 year olds is 
highest in Charford, Catshill and Whitford wards.

! Levels of unemployment are below county averages, and most out of 
work benefit claimants live in Charford, Sidemoor and Catshill.  

! Locally, areas of greatest need for improvement based on multiple 
economic data sets are: Sidemoor (specifically the King Georges 
area), Charford, Drakes Cross and parts of Catshill.

! The difference between the unemployment rate and NI152 (working 
age people on out of work benefits) represents “worklessness”, which 
appears to be in the region of 7%; whilst the average earnings figure 
indicates there is a marked difference between those who live and 
work in the District and those who commute out to work. 

Page 113



32

Bromsgrove Partnership Priorities and Key Deliverables for this block are:

Priority Key Deliverables

Town Centre redevelopment ! Increase promotion of the town 
centre

! Improve retail and leisure offer in the 
town centre 

! Improve public buildings

! Improve High Street appearance

Economic Development  ! Develop railway station 

! Economic Development Strategy 

Employment, Training and 
Volunteering

Please see “Stronger Communities” 
Objective (paragraph 15.6) which also 

covers worklessness. 

Further information on targets relating to the key deliverables (outcomes) 
above can be found in the high level action plan (Section 16, Appendix C). 

15.4 Improving health and well being
 

The key statistics about health and well being16 in the District are: 

! The health of the people of Bromsgrove District is generally better than 
the England average according to the 2009 Annual Health Profile for 
Bromsgrove produced by the Association of Public Health 
Observatories.

! Life expectancy in Bromsgrove is 78.6 years for males, above the 
England and county average, and 81.3 years for females, similar to the 
England and county average. 

! There has been a sustained reduction in the all cause all age death 
rate since 1996, in line with the County as a whole. Bromsgrove is on 
track to reduce overall mortality by more than one quarter by 2010. 

! There has been a sustained reduction in the all cause death rate for 
people under 75 years since 1996, in line with the County as a whole. 
Bromsgrove is on track to reduce premature mortality by almost one 
third by 2010. 

! The premature death rate from circulatory diseases is well below the 
England average and has shown a huge reduction since 1996.  The 
indicator NI 121 (Mortality rate from all circulatory diseases at ages 
under 75), for Bromsgrove District in 2005/07 was 62.45 per 100,000 
under 75. This is well below the county average. 

                                              
16 Key statistics supplied by NHS Worcestershire representative on the Bromsgrove LSP 

Page 114



33

! The premature death rate from cancers is well below the England 
average and has shown a substantial reduction since 1996, slightly 
better than in the County as a whole.

! The death rate from suicide and undetermined injury appears to have 
fallen slightly since 1996.  Suicide mortality rates for 2005/07 were 6.3 
per 100,000 population which is below Worcestershire (8.4) and the 
national average (7.9). 

! Within Bromsgrove, health is poorest in the Charford and Sidemoor 
‘hotspots’

! The major causes of death, circulatory diseases and cancers, are both 
lifestyle related.  To maintain the reductions in death rates Bromsgrove 
will need to reduce smoking and alcohol consumption, and tackle
obesity through a better diet and more physical activity. 

Smoking

The estimated prevalence of adults who smoke in Bromsgrove is 17.3% 
compared to the national average of 24.1% (NI 123); however, each year 
about 330 people in Bromsgrove are admitted to hospital and 130 die due 
to smoking related diseases.  Smoking amongst young people is similar to 
national trends.  20% of boys and 27% of girls in Year 10 answered they 
smoked occasionally or regularly in a recent survey. 

Alcohol

It has been estimated that 17.2% of adults in Bromsgrove undertake 
“binge drinking”, 20.4% drink to hazardous levels and 3.7% drink to 
harmful levels and 4% of the population are alcohol dependent. More than 
600 people in Bromsgrove are admitted to hospital and more than 40 die 
due to alcohol-attributable conditions each year.  Alcohol consumption 
amongst young people is above national average in the county according 
to the 2007 SHEU17 lifestyle survey of year 8 and year 10 pupils. 

Obesity

Levels of obesity have trebled over the last 20 years, most markedly in 
children.  Obesity is a huge health challenge and is now causing increases 
in diabetes, heart disease, cancers and premature deaths.  In Bromsgrove 
it is estimated that 24% of adults and 16% of children (2-10 years) are 
obese.  The national child measurement programme results taken in 
Bromsgrove schools during 2007/08 show that 22.3% of Reception age 
children were either overweight or obese (age 4-6 years) and 28.5% of 
Year 6 (age 10-11) which is a little lower than the county and national 
average (NI 56). 

! Adult participation in sports for Bromsgrove District is the highest in the 
County at 25.6% (April 2009) - NI8.  This is an increase of 3.2% since 
2005/06.  Furthermore, Bromsgrove District is 3.1% above 
Worcestershire as a county and 4.1% above the national average18.

                                              
17 School Health Education Unit 
18 Figures supplied by the Department for Culture, Media and Sports (DCMS) 

Page 115



34

! The percentage of children undertaking at least 2 hours of sport and 
physical activity in Bromsgrove last year was below the county and 
national average (87.6%). 

! Data from the Active People Survey for 2005/06 shows that fewer than 
19% of respondents in the Charford area participate in sport for 30 
minutes three times a week. 

! The proportion of adults eating healthily in Bromsgrove is estimated at 
25.6% which is below the county and national average. 

! Numbers of teenage conceptions are extremely low compared to the 
rest of the County (NI 112).  Teenage conception rates have declined 
in Bromsgrove since 1998/00 by 9%, and have consistently been 
below both County and National levels.19

! The true prevalence of Bromsgrove residents with mental health 
problems is unknown, however it is estimated that one in six adults has 
a mental health problem at any time. Depression and dementia are 
important mental health problems associated with older adults, it is 
estimated that 12% to 15% of people aged over 65 suffer from 
depression and dementia affects approximately 1 in 20 aged 65 plus 
rising to 1 in 5 by age 80

! When Bromsgrove residents were asked (via the Citizens Panel in 
November 2008) what they felt were the top health issues for the 
District, 39% stated that alcohol misuse was most important, with 37% 
citing physical disabilities amongst older people, and 36% saying 
dementia was the important issue. 

 

The LAA priorities and National Indicators for this block are:

PRIORITY: To support and improve the leading of healthy lifestyles and 
wellbeing of adults and children and young people. 

National or Local Indicator Latest District 
Performance (Baseline) 

2010/11 LAA Target 

NI 8 Adult participation in 
sport

25.6% 25.7% 

NI 56 Obesity among 
primary school age children 
in Year 6 

15.3%
(2007/08)

15.5%

NI 112 Under 18 conception 
rate

No data No target set in line 
with GOWM20 advice.

NI 123 16+ current smoking 
rate prevalence (who have 
given up for 4 weeks) 

721.5 per 100,000 
population aged 16+ 

(2007/08)

682 per 100,000 
population aged 16+ 

                                              
19 It should be noted that the data for under 18s conception rate is generally where the young 
parent lives after the birth and not where they lived at the time of conception.  Therefore, areas 
with high level of social housing are likely to show an increased rate with young mothers being 
housed there after birth. 
20 Government Office West Midlands 

Page 116



35

PRIORITY: To improve the quality of life and independence of older people 
and those with long-term illness. 

National or Local Indicator Latest District 
Performance (Baseline) 

2010/11 LAA Target 

NI 121 Mortality rate from all 
circulatory diseases at ages 
under 75 

62.45
(2005-2007)

62.03

NI 133 Timeliness of Social 
Care Packages 

85%
(County figure 2007/08) 

92%

NI 142 Number of 
vulnerable people who are 
supported to maintain 
independent living 

97.52%
(County Figure) 

98.02%

LI 6 Adults with learning 
disabilities in employment 

No data 6.3% 

LI 7 Adults in contact with 
secondary mental health 
services who receive 
support with employment 
and training issues 

No data +5% on baseline 
(County 08/09 

baseline is 539) 

Analysis of Statistics

! The health of the people of Bromsgrove District is generally better than 
the county and national average and death rates from the main killers, 
circulatory disease and cancers have reduced.  

! Although the prevalence of both adult and childhood obesity is a little 
lower than the county average this is the most significant health issue 
for Bromsgrove.  A quarter of adults are obese and nearly a third of 
children age 10-11 are overweight or obese.   Adult participation in 
sport is increasing which is encouraging but alongside this continued 
improvements in physical activity levels and in diet and nutrition need 
to be tackled. 

! The prevalence of smoking is lower than average in Bromsgrove and 
needs to continue to decrease.

! Alcohol consumption is high, with high rates of hazardous drinking, and 
alcohol specific hospital admissions (under 18). Alcohol misuse is also 
the issue which most resident feel needs addressing by the council 
and PCT.

! Views of Bromsgrove residents (via the Citizens Panel in November 
2008) tie in with the issues highlighted in the Health Profile for 
Bromsgrove, and emphasises the need for local focus on mental 
health and alcohol issues. 

Page 117



36

Bromsgrove Partnership Priorities and Key Deliverables for this block are:

Priority Key Deliverables

Staying Healthy ! Reduce levels of alcohol misuse 

! Smoking prevention and reduction 

! Healthy weight (diet and physical 
activity)

Mental Health and Well Being ! Improving perception and awareness 
and promoting positive mental health 

Further information on targets relating to the key deliverables (outcomes) 
above can be found in the high level action plan (Section 16, Appendix D). 

15.5 Meeting the needs of children and young people

 The key statistics about children and young people21 in the District are:

! The percentage of pupils achieving Key Stage 2 Level 4 in English has 
been declining since 2004/05 with just 70.9% in 2007/08, almost 10% 
lower than the county average; however, in all other years, 
Bromsgrove has out performed the County. 

! A greater proportion of pupils achieved 5 or more GCSEs A*-C grade 
in 2007/08 in Bromsgrove than the County average, 70.9% versus 
63.5% in Worcestershire. 

! Both overall absences and persistent absence were greatest in 
Parkside Middle school during 2008, 6.3% and 4.6% respectively. 

! In secondary schools, absence during 2008 was worst in North 
Bromsgrove High School (9.6% persistent absence) followed by 
South Bromsgrove High School (6.8%) 

! Average secondary school persistent absence for the District is around 
4.8%. This is only just below the County average of 4.9%, but well 
below the national average of 6.7%. 

! The National Curriculum now includes ‘Citizenship’ and the District 
Council is assisting schools to implement this through youth 
engagement activities such as U Decide and Budget Jury. 

The LAA priorities and National Indicators for this block are:

PRIORITY: To ensure all children and young people have the opportunity to 
participate in positive activities. 

National or Local Indicator Latest District 
Performance (Baseline) 

2010/11 LAA Target 

NI 110 Young people’s 
participation in positive 
activities

72.2%
(County Baseline 2008/09)

83.3%

                                              
21 All Key Statistics for were taken from the Bromsgrove Profile 2009 as referred to on page 5. 

Page 118



37

LI 2 Children who have 
experienced bullying 

35%
(TellUs2 Survey) 

(County Figure 2008) 

33%

LI 5 Average number of 
disabled children 
accessing short breaks 

No data 500 

 Analysis of Statistics

! School performance is generally of a high standard throughout the 
district, though Key stage 2 English scores have recently fallen below 
the county average.

! The spatial distribution of poor pupil performance at all stages seems 
to be linked to deprivation with higher scores in more affluent areas, 
and lower scores in areas such as Charford, Catshill and Sidemoor.  

! Levels of persistent absence in secondary school children are fairly 
high in the District, especially in North and South Bromsgrove High 
Schools.

! For the purposes of NI 110, the definition of ‘positive activities’ is the 
proportion of young people in school year 10 reported to have 
participated in any group activity led by an adult outside school lessons 
(such as sports, arts, music or youth group) in the last four weeks, 
based on the analysis of the weighted Tellus survey data. 

Bromsgrove Partnership Priorities and Key Deliverables for this block are:

Priority Key Deliverables

Being healthy ! Healthy lifestyles

Positive Activities ! Access to services (including 
marketing of services) 

! Engagement and citizenship 

Further information on targets relating to the key deliverables (outcomes) 
above can be found in the high level action plan (Section 16, Appendix E). 

15.6 Stronger Communities 

 The key statistics about stronger communities22 in the District are: 

! In 2007, the proportion of working age people with access to 
employment by public transport in Bromsgrove is 83.2% which is lower 
than both the County and National averages (85.1% and 87.6% 
respectively).

! In 2008/09, 1494 net additional homes were provided within 
Worcestershire, 18% less than the target.  In Bromsgrove, 135 net 
additional homes were provided, the lowest figure of all Districts in 

                                              
22 All Key Statistics for were taken from the Bromsgrove Profile 2009 as referred to on page 5. 

Page 119



38

Worcestershire, and considerably lower than the rate in previous 
years.

! In Bromsgrove, production of affordable homes for 2007/08 was well 
above the target of 80 at 145. 

! The target for the District for the number of households occupying 
temporary accommodation for 2008/09 was 45 and this was exceeded, 
at just 13. 

! For 2008/09, the proportion of households with a SAP23 rating below 
35 in Bromsgrove is well below the County average at 8.77%.  
However, the proportion of households with a SAP rating above 65 in 
Bromsgrove is also lower than the County average24.

! The Income Deprivation Affecting Children (IDACI) National Rank and 
the Income Deprivation Affecting Older People (IDAOPI) National Rank 
indicate Charford and Sidemoor are the most deprived areas in the 
District for both Children and Older People. 

! Based on the 2001 census, 5.6% of the population aged over 65 in 
Bromsgrove, 6.2% of those over 75, and 6.7% of those aged over 85 
were without central heating. This figures are well below the county 
averages of 6.8% of over 65 years olds, 7.4% of over 75, and 7.8% of 
the over 85 population. 

The LAA priorities and National Indicators for this block are:

PRIORITY: To improve accessibility by addressing congestion and improving 
public transport. 

National or Local Indicator Latest District 
Performance

(Baseline)

2010/11 LAA Target 

NI 169 Non-principal roads 
where maintenance should be 
considered

11.02%
(2007/08)

8.4%

NI 175 Access to services 
and facilities by public 
transport, walking and cycling 

Proxy Figure 83.2% 
(2007)

Proxy Figure 85.1% 
(County 2007) 

94%

PRIORITY: To reduce levels of inequality within the community. 

National or Local Indicator Latest District 
Performance

(Baseline)

2010/11 LAA Target 

NI 116 Proportion of children 
in poverty 

13.9%
(County Figure) 

12.0%

                                              
23 Standard Assessment Procedure, a method system for measuring the energy rating of 
residential dwellings used in the UK.
24 SAP stands for Standard Assessment Procedure and is the government’s recommended 
system for energy rating of dwelling.  Targets for improvement relate to a decrease in the 
proportion of households with a SAP rating below 35 and an increase in those with a SAP rating 
above 65. 

Page 120



39

LI 3 Successful new claims 
for pension credit 

No data 2,700 
(County Figure) 

PRIORITY: To provide decent and affordable housing that meets the diverse 
needs of Worcestershire. 

National or Local Indicator Latest District 
Performance

(Baseline)

2010/11 LAA Target 

NI 154 Net additional homes 
provided

542
(County Figure) 

135
(District Figure) 

1,830
(County Figure) 

NI 155 Number of affordable 
homes delivered (gross) 

145
(District figure. 

District target for 
2008/09 was 80) 

450
(County figure) 

NI 187 Tackling Fuel Poverty 
– Percentage of people 
receiving income based 
benefits living in homes with 
low energy efficiency rating – 
deferred.

SAP below 35 -  
8.77%

SAP above 65 - 
36.11%

SAP below 35 - 
7.68%

SAP above 65 - 
39.73%

 Analysis of Statistics

! Access to services is a slight issue in the area with a lower than county 
and national average proportion of working age people with access to 
employment by public transport. 

! Furthermore, there are large areas of the rural sectors of the District 
where the distance to key services is over 2 km, thus improved 
transport links may be necessary. 

! Income deprivation affecting children is high in Charford and Sidemoor, 
as well as income deprivation affecting older people. 

Bromsgrove Partnership Priorities and Key Deliverables for this block are:

Priority Key Deliverables

Stronger Communities ! Promote  and secure accessible, 
localised services for vulnerable 
neighbourhoods via the Bromsgrove 
Trunk based in Charford

! Expand the work of the Bromsgrove 
Trunk to include Catshill

! Strengthen communities through 
Local Neighbourhood Partnerships

Page 121



40

Balanced Communities ! Ensure there is an appropriate 
housing mix 

! Ensure there is an appropriate range 
of employment, training and 
volunteering opportunities 

Addressing the needs of          
older people 

! Develop an “Age Well” Scheme 
within Bromsgrove District 

! Ensure older people’s needs are 
catered for within the housing market

! Improve access to services for older 
people

Further information on targets relating to the key deliverables (outcomes) 
above can be found in the high level action plan (Section 16, Appendix F). 

16. High Level Action Plans 

16.1 Attached as Appendices A to G are the high level action plans for each 
theme or project group.  The final two columns are blank, as these are 
designed to be used to report progress to the Bromsgrove Partnership 
Board.  Appendix K includes a list of LAA National Indicators (NIs) cited in 
the High Level Action Plans followed by a more detailed description of 
each NI.

Page 122



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

th
at

 a
re

 s
af

e 
an

d
 f

ee
l s

af
e 

41

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
C

ha
ng

in
g 

th
e 

pe
rc

ep
tio

n 
of

 c
rim

e,
 d

is
or

de
r 

an
d 

an
ti-

so
ci

al
 b

eh
av

io
ur

 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
M

ar
ke

tin
g 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
1 

17
 a

nd
 N

I 2
1 

O
ut

co
m

e 
M

ea
su

re
 

B
as

el
in

e 
20

10
/1

1 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

12
/1

3 
T

ar
ge

t 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

S
ta

tu
s

N
I 1

7 
P

er
ce

pt
io

ns
 

of
 a

nt
i-s

oc
ia

l 
be

ha
vi

ou
r.

 

12
.3

%
 

(1
4.

4%
 fo

r 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 
20

08
/0

9)
 

11
.4

%
 

(1
3.

3%
 fo

r 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

) 

- 
ve

 
- 

ve
 

 
 

N
I 2

1 
D

ea
lin

g 
w

ith
 

lo
ca

l c
on

ce
rn

s 
ab

ou
t a

nt
i-s

oc
ia

l 
be

ha
vi

ou
r 

an
d 

cr
im

e 
by

 th
e 

lo
ca

l 
co

un
ci

l a
nd

 th
e 

po
lic

e.

27
.8

%
  

(2
6.

2%
 fo

r 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 
20

08
/0

9)
 

+ 
ve

 

(3
1.

2%
 fo

r 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

) 

+ 
ve

 
+ 

ve
 

 
 

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

1.
 

C
re

at
e 

a 
C

D
R

P
 S

ub
-G

ro
up

 fo
r 

M
ar

ke
tin

g,
 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 E
ng

ag
em

en
t. 

A
pr

il 
20

10
 

B
D

C
 

 
 

2.
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 C

D
R

P
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t s
tr

at
eg

y.
 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

0 
B

D
C

 
 

 

3.
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 c
om

m
en

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 a

 C
D

R
P

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 e
ng

ag
em

en
t p

ro
gr

am
. 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

C
D

R
P

 
 

 

Page 123



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

th
at

 a
re

 s
af

e 
an

d
 f

ee
l s

af
e 

42

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
C

ha
ng

in
g 

th
e 

pe
rc

ep
tio

n 
of

 c
rim

e,
 d

is
or

de
r 

an
d 

an
ti-

so
ci

al
 b

eh
av

io
ur

 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
P

ro
m

ot
in

g 
B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 D

is
tr

ic
t a

s 
a 

ni
ce

/s
af

e 
pl

ac
e 

to
 li

ve
 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
I 2

, N
I 5

 (
no

n-
LA

A
) 

an
d 

N
I 1

7 

O
ut

co
m

e 
M

ea
su

re
 

B
as

el
in

e 
20

10
/1

1 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

12
/1

3 
T

ar
ge

t 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

S
ta

tu
s

N
I 2

 %
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 fe
el

 th
at

 th
ey

 
be

lo
ng

 to
 th

ei
r 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

d.
 

61
.4

%
  

(6
1.

8%
 fo

r 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 
20

08
/0

9)
 

63
%

63
.4

%
 fo

r 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

) 

+ 
ve

 
+ 

ve
 

 
 

N
I 5

 O
ve

ra
ll 

/ 
ge

ne
ra

l s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 lo

ca
l a

re
a.

 

81
.2

%
  

+ 
ve

 
+ 

ve
 

+ 
ve

 
 

 

N
I 1

7 
P

er
ce

pt
io

ns
 

of
 a

nt
i-s

oc
ia

l 
be

ha
vi

ou
r.

 

12
.3

%
 

(1
4.

4%
 fo

r 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 
20

08
/0

9)
 

11
.4

%
 

(1
3.

3%
 fo

r 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

) 

- 
ve

 
- 

ve
 

 
 

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

1.
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 c
om

m
en

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 a

 C
D

R
P

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 
to

 s
it 

w
ith

 in
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
E

ng
ag

em
en

t P
ro

gr
am

 to
 ta

rg
et

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 in
 

th
os

e 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rh

oo
ds

 th
at

 h
av

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 h

ig
h 

pe
rc

ep
tio

n 
th

at
 A

S
B

 is
 a

 p
ro

bl
em

 in
 th

ei
r 

lo
ca

l a
re

a.
 

A
pr

il 
20

10
 

B
D

C
 / 

P
ol

ic
e 

 
 

2.
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 c
om

m
en

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 a

 C
D

R
P

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 
to

 s
it 

w
ith

 in
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
E

ng
ag

em
en

t P
ro

gr
am

 c
on

si
st

in
g 

of
 a

 s
er

ie
s 

of
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

w
id

e 
ca

m
pa

ig
ns

 o
n 

S
er

io
us

 A
cq

ui
si

tiv
e 

C
rim

e.
 

A
pr

il 
20

10
 

P
ol

ic
e 

 
 

Page 124



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

th
at

 a
re

 s
af

e 
an

d
 f

ee
l s

af
e 

43

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
In

te
rg

en
er

at
io

na
l a

nd
 d

iv
er

si
on

ar
y 

ac
tiv

iti
es

  

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
B

rin
g 

to
ge

th
er

 o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
yo

un
ge

r 
pe

op
le

 th
ro

ug
h 

hi
st

or
y,

 s
ha

rin
g 

sk
ill

s 
an

d 
ex

pe
rie

nc
es

 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
I 1

 (
no

n-
LA

A
),

 N
I 2

, N
I 5

 (
no

n-
LA

A
) 

an
d 

N
I 1

7 

O
ut

co
m

e 
M

ea
su

re
 

B
as

el
in

e 
20

10
/1

1 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

12
/1

3 
T

ar
ge

t 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

S
ta

tu
s

N
I 1

 %
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 b
el

ie
ve

 p
eo

pl
e 

fr
om

 d
iff

er
en

t 
ba

ck
gr

ou
nd

s 
ge

t o
n 

w
el

l t
og

et
he

r 
in

 
th

ei
r 

lo
ca

l a
re

a.
 

81
.6

%
  

(1
4.

4%
 fo

r 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 
20

08
/0

9)
 

+ 
ve

 
+ 

ve
 

+ 
ve

 
 

 

N
I 2

 %
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 fe
el

 th
at

 th
ey

 
be

lo
ng

 to
 th

ei
r 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

d.
 

61
.4

%
  

(6
1.

8%
 fo

r 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 
08

/0
9)

 

63
%

63
.4

%
 fo

r 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

) 

+ 
ve

 
+ 

ve
 

 
 

N
I 5

 O
ve

ra
ll 

/ 
ge

ne
ra

l s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 lo

ca
l a

re
a.

 

81
.2

%
  

(1
4.

4%
 fo

r 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 
20

08
/0

9)
 

+ 
ve

 
+ 

ve
 

+ 
ve

 
 

 

C
S

225
 N

um
be

r 
of

 
lo

ca
lly

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 

di
ve

rs
io

na
ry

 / 
in

te
rg

en
er

at
io

na
l 

ac
tiv

iti
es

.

18
0 

18
4 

18
8 

19
2 

 
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

25
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
af

et
y 

(C
S

) 
lo

ca
l p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

di
ca

to
r 

w
hi

ch
 is

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t C

ou
nc

il 
P

la
n 

Page 125



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

th
at

 a
re

 s
af

e 
an

d
 f

ee
l s

af
e 

44

C
S

326
 N

um
be

r 
of

 
us

er
s 

at
te

nd
in

g 
di

ve
rs

io
na

ry
 / 

in
te

rg
en

er
at

io
na

l 
ac

tiv
iti

es
.

67
0 

68
3 

69
7 

71
1 

 
 

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

1.
 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f e

xi
st

in
g 

in
te

rg
en

er
at

io
na

l a
nd

 d
iv

er
si

on
ar

y 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

w
ith

in
 B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 D

is
tr

ic
t, 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
in

g 
cu

rr
en

t b
es

t p
ra

ct
ic

e.
 

Ju
ne

 2
01

0 
B

D
C

  
 

 

2.
 

C
re

at
e 

a 
fo

cu
s 

gr
ou

p 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

on
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f i

nt
er

ge
ne

ra
tio

na
l a

ct
iv

iti
es

; c
on

si
st

in
g 

of
 

lo
ca

l y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
ol

de
r 

ad
ul

ts
. 

Ju
ne

 2
01

0 
W

C
C

 / 
B

D
H

T
 

 
 

3.
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

fo
r 

in
te

rg
en

er
at

io
na

l a
ct

iv
ity

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
10

 
B

D
C

  
 

 

4.
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 c
om

m
en

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 a

 p
ro

gr
am

 o
f 

di
ve

rs
io

na
ry

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
. 

A
pr

il 
20

10
 

C
D

R
P

  
 

 

5.
  

D
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 c
om

m
en

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 a

 p
ro

gr
am

 o
f 

in
te

rg
en

er
at

io
na

l a
ct

iv
iti

es
. 

A
pr

il 
20

11
 

C
D

R
P

  
 

 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

26
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
af

et
y 

(C
S

) 
lo

ca
l p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

di
ca

to
r 

w
hi

ch
 is

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t C

ou
nc

il 
P

la
n 

Page 126



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

th
at

 a
re

 s
af

e 
an

d
 f

ee
l s

af
e 

45

N
ot

e :
  T

hi
s 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 k

ey
 d

el
iv

er
ab

le
 is

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 fu

rt
he

r 
re

vi
ew

 v
ia

 a
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 c

lin
ic

 a
s 

to
 h

ow
 th

is
 c

an
 b

e 
ta

ck
le

d 
by

 th
e 

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

s 
a 

w
ho

le
. 

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
C

ha
ng

in
g 

th
e 

pe
rc

ep
tio

n 
of

 c
rim

e,
 d

is
or

de
r 

an
d 

an
ti-

so
ci

al
 b

eh
av

io
ur

 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
In

cr
ea

se
 to

le
ra

nc
e 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
I 2

3 
(n

on
-L

A
A

) 

O
ut

co
m

e 
M

ea
su

re
 

B
as

el
in

e 
20

10
/1

1 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

12
/1

3 
T

ar
ge

t 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

S
ta

tu
s

N
I 2

3 
P

er
ce

pt
io

ns
 

th
at

 p
eo

pl
e 

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 tr

ea
t o

ne
 

an
ot

he
r 

w
ith

 
re

sp
ec

t a
nd

 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n.

 

25
.6

%
 

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 
- 

ve
 

- 
ve

 
- 

ve
 

 
 

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

1.
 

S
et

 u
p 

LS
P

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 c
lin

ic
 o

n 
‘to

le
ra

nc
e’

 a
nd

 h
ow

 it
 

ca
n 

be
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

. 
31

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
0 

B
D

C
 

 
 

Page 127



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 
 A

 b
et

te
r 

en
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
fo

r 
to

d
ay

 a
n

d
 t

o
m

o
rr

o
w

 

46

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
R

ed
uc

in
g 

C
O

2 
em

is
si

on
s 

an
d 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
en

er
gy

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
D

om
es

tic
 H

ou
si

ng
 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
I 1

86
 a

nd
 N

I1
87

 (
al

so
 li

nk
s 

to
 ‘S

tr
on

ge
r 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

’ a
nd

 ‘H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

’ (
LA

A
 a

nd
 

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 O
bj

ec
tiv

es
) 

an
d 

‘O
ld

er
 P

eo
pl

e’
 (

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 p
rio

rit
y)

) 
O

ut
co

m
e 

M
ea

su
re

 
B

as
el

in
e 

20
10

/1
1 

T
ar

ge
t 

20
11

/1
2 

T
ar

ge
t 

20
12

/1
3 

T
ar

ge
t 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s
N

I 1
86

 P
er

 c
ap

ita
 

C
O

2 
em

is
si

on
 in

 th
e 

LA
 a

re
a 

 -
 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
, d

is
tr

ic
t 

do
m

es
tic

 e
m

is
si

on
s 

24
1,

00
0 

to
nn

es

(2
00

5)
 

O
ve

ra
ll 

9%
 

re
du

ct
io

n 
co

m
pa

re
d 

w
ith

 
ba

se
lin

e 
ac

ro
ss

 
al

l s
ec

to
rs

 
(d

om
es

tic
, 

tr
an

sp
or

t a
nd

 
bu

si
ne

ss
) 

- 
ve

 
- 

ve
 

 

N
I 1

87
 T

ac
kl

in
g 

F
ue

l P
ov

er
ty

 -
 %

 o
f 

pe
op

le
 r

ec
ei

vi
ng

 
in

co
m

e 
ba

se
d 

be
ne

fit
s 

liv
in

g 
in

 
ho

m
es

 w
ith

 a
 lo

w
 

en
er

gy
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 
ra

tin
g

S
A

P
 b

el
ow

 3
5 

-
8.

77
%

 

S
A

P
 a

bo
ve

 6
5 

-
36

.1
1%

 

- 
ve

 
(C

ou
nt

y 
7.

68
) 

+ 
ve

 
(C

ou
nt

y 
39

.7
3)

 

- 
ve

 

+ 
ve

 

- 
ve

 

+ 
ve

 

In
st

al
la

tio
ns

 o
f 

ho
m

e 
in

su
la

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
- 

50
0 

pe
r 

ye
ar

n/
a 

50
0 

50
0 

50
0 

 
 

F
un

di
ng

 fo
r 

m
ic

ro
-g

en
er

at
io

n 
– 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 

m
ea

su
re

s 
in

st
al

le
d 

- 
25

 
12

5 
22

5 
 

 

Page 128



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 
 A

 b
et

te
r 

en
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
fo

r 
to

d
ay

 a
n

d
 t

o
m

o
rr

o
w

 

47

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

1.
 

W
ar

m
er

 W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 P

ro
je

ct
 (

lin
ks

 ta
rg

et
in

g 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s;

 li
nk

s 
to

 th
e 

S
to

ck
 C

on
di

tio
n 

S
ur

ve
y 

to
 c

ro
ss

 r
ef

er
en

ce
 d

at
a 

to
 a

llo
w

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 

ta
rg

et
in

g;
 li

nk
s 

to
 b

ot
h 

N
I 1

86
 a

nd
 1

87
) 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

12
 

B
D

C
 

 
 

2.
 

 In
su

la
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 –

 p
ro

m
ot

io
n 

of
 C

E
R

T
 fu

nd
in

g 
(d

is
co

un
te

d 
in

su
la

tio
n 

sc
he

m
es

) 
lin

k 
w

ith
 d

at
a 

fr
om

 
w

ar
m

er
 W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 a
nd

 b
en

ef
it 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 ta

rg
et

 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 h
om

es
 a

nd
 h

ig
h 

en
er

gy
 u

se
rs

. 

A
nn

ua
l 

pr
om

ot
io

n.
 

R
ep

or
t a

t y
ea

r 
en

d.

A
ct

 o
n 

E
ne

rg
y 

 
 

3.
 

S
w

itc
h 

it 
of

f C
am

pa
ig

n 
– 

m
ea

su
re

s 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 e

ne
rg

y 
us

e 
fo

r 
bi

g 
sw

itc
h 

of
f. 

 R
un

 a
s 

a 
jo

in
t c

am
pa

ig
n 

ac
ro

ss
 

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
, W

ar
w

ic
ks

hi
re

 a
nd

 C
ov

en
tr

y.
  

A
nn

ua
l c

am
pa

ig
n 

du
rin

g 
O

ct
/N

ov
 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r.
 

B
D

C
 

 
 

4.
 

E
ns

ur
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
jo

in
t B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 a

nd
 R

ed
di

tc
h 

A
ffo

rd
ab

le
 W

ar
m

th
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

A
nn

ua
l w

or
k 

pl
an

 
w

ill
 r

un
 to

 2
01

1 
B

D
C

 a
nd

 R
B

C
 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
w

ar
m

th
 g

ro
up

s 

5.
 

W
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 R
eg

is
te

re
d 

S
oc

ia
l L

an
dl

or
ds

 (
R

S
L)

 to
 

pr
om

ot
e 

en
er

gy
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

/r
en

ew
ab

le
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

an
 

ex
em

pl
ar

 p
ro

je
ct

 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

A
ct

 o
n 

E
ne

rg
y 

 
 

Page 129



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 
 A

 b
et

te
r 

en
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
fo

r 
to

d
ay

 a
n

d
 t

o
m

o
rr

o
w

 

48

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
R

ed
uc

in
g 

C
O

2 
em

is
si

on
s 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
en

er
gy

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
B

us
in

es
s 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
I1

86
 a

nd
 N

I 1
85

 (
no

n-
LA

A
) 

O
ut

co
m

e 
M

ea
su

re
 

B
as

el
in

e 
20

10
/1

1 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

12
/1

3 
T

ar
ge

t 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

S
ta

tu
s

N
I 1

86
 P

er
 c

ap
ita

 
C

O
2 

em
is

si
on

 in
 th

e 
LA

 a
re

a 
– 

S
pe

ci
fic

al
ly

, 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 C

O
2

em
is

si
on

s 
ac

ro
ss

 
bu

si
ne

ss
 s

ec
to

r 

(I
nc

en
tiv

e:
 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 r
un

ni
ng

 
co

st
s 

– 
hi

gh
lig

ht
 

th
ro

ug
h 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
sc

he
m

es
.  

Id
en

tif
y 

sm
al

l b
us

in
es

se
s 

as
 p

ilo
ts

 to
 r

ed
uc

e 
co

ns
um

pt
io

n 
an

d 
sa

ve
 m

on
ey

.)
  

14
1,

00
0 

to
nn

es

(2
00

5)
 

O
ve

ra
ll 

9%
 

re
du

ct
io

n 
co

m
pa

re
d 

w
ith

 
ba

se
lin

e 
ac

ro
ss

 
al

l s
ec

to
rs

 
(d

om
es

tic
, 

tr
an

sp
or

t a
nd

 
bu

si
ne

ss
) 

- 
ve

 
- 

ve
 

 
 

N
I 1

85
 C

O
2

re
du

ct
io

n 
fr

om
 lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
ity

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 

24
40

 to
nn

es
 p

er
 

an
nu

m
 

(2
00

8/
09

) 

2%
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

co
m

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 

ba
se

lin
e 

2%
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

co
m

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 

ba
se

lin
e 

2%
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

co
m

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 

ba
se

lin
e 

A
ll 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 to
 s

ig
n 

up
 to

 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 
C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e 
P

le
dg

e 
to

 p
ub

lic
ly

 
de

cl
ar

e
ac

hi
ev

em
en

ts
. 

- 
A

ll 
pa

rt
ne

r 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 to

 
be

 s
ig

ne
d 

up
 

an
d 

ha
ve

 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 1

 s
ta

r 
ac

tio
ns

 

A
ll 

pa
rt

ne
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 to
 

be
 s

ig
ne

d 
up

 
an

d 
ha

ve
 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 2
 s

ta
r 

ac
tio

ns
 

A
ll 

pa
rt

ne
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 to
 

be
 s

ig
ne

d 
up

 
an

d 
ha

ve
 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 3
 s

ta
r 

ac
tio

ns
 

Page 130



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 
 A

 b
et

te
r 

en
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
fo

r 
to

d
ay

 a
n

d
 t

o
m

o
rr

o
w

 

49

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

1.
 

S
ec

ur
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

an
d 

w
or

k 
cl

os
el

y 
w

ith
 s

m
al

l b
us

in
es

se
s 

w
ith

in
 d

iff
er

en
t s

ec
to

rs
 to

 p
ilo

t e
ne

rg
y 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
m

ea
su

re
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
in

du
st

ria
l/c

om
m

er
ci

al
 s

ec
to

r.
  

R
es

ul
ts

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
di

ss
em

in
at

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
C

ha
m

be
r 

of
 

C
om

m
er

ce
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 w
id

er
 r

ed
uc

tio
ns

. L
in

ks
 v

er
y 

cl
os

el
y 

to
 ‘E

co
no

m
ic

 S
uc

ce
ss

’ t
he

m
e 

an
d 

is
 v

er
y 

tim
el

y 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

re
ce

ss
io

n.
 T

hi
s 

w
ou

ld
 r

es
ul

t i
n 

a 
tr

an
sf

er
ab

le
 

en
er

gy
 a

ud
it-

st
yl

e 
pa

ck
 w

hi
ch

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
us

ed
 b

y 
ot

he
rs

 
in

 s
im

ila
r 

se
ct

or
s.

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

A
ct

 o
n 

E
ne

rg
y 

 
 

2.
 

B
D

C
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
th

at
 

de
liv

er
s 

th
e 

2%
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

ye
ar

 o
n 

ye
ar

 ta
rg

et
. 

 
A

ll 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

ba
se

lin
e 

ca
rb

on
 fo

ot
pr

in
t a

nd
 

se
t r

ed
uc

tio
n 

ta
rg

et
s 

as
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 a

nd
 th

is
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
m

on
ito

re
d.

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

B
D

C
 

3.
 

A
ll 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 to
 s

ig
n 

up
 to

 W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e 
P

le
dg

e 
to

 p
ub

lic
ly

 d
ec

la
re

 a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

ts
. 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

 
(1

 s
ta

r)
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

(2
 s

ta
r)

 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3 

(3
 s

ta
r)

 

A
ct

 o
n 

E
ne

rg
y 

 
 

Page 131



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 
 A

 b
et

te
r 

en
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
fo

r 
to

d
ay

 a
n

d
 t

o
m

o
rr

o
w

 

50

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
R

ed
uc

in
g 

C
O

2 
em

is
si

on
s 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
en

er
gy

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
I1

86
 (

an
d 

th
e 

lin
ks

 to
 th

e 
E

co
no

m
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
tr

at
eg

y)
 

O
ut

co
m

e 
M

ea
su

re
 

B
as

el
in

e 
20

10
/1

1 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

12
/1

3 
T

ar
ge

t 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

S
ta

tu
s

N
I 1

86
 P

er
 c

ap
ita

 
C

O
2 

em
is

si
on

 in
 th

e 
LA

 a
re

a 
– 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 

tr
an

sp
or

t e
m

is
si

on
s 

18
9,

00
0 

to
nn

es

(2
00

5)

O
ve

ra
ll 

9%
 

re
du

ct
io

n 
co

m
pa

re
d 

w
ith

 
ba

se
lin

e 
ac

ro
ss

 
al

l s
ec

to
rs

 
(d

om
es

tic
, 

tr
an

sp
or

t a
nd

 
bu

si
ne

ss
) 

 

- 
ve

 
- 

ve
 

 
 

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

1.
  

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 tr

an
sp

or
t s

ys
te

m
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

th
e 

ra
ilw

ay
 s

ta
tio

n 
ta

ke
 fu

ll 
ac

co
un

t o
f 

cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 is

su
es

. 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3 

W
C

C
 

 
 

2.
 

S
up

po
rt

 th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nt

y-
w

id
e 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 

P
as

se
ng

er
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n.
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3 

W
C

C
 

 
 

Page 132



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 
 A

 b
et

te
r 

en
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
fo

r 
to

d
ay

 a
n

d
 t

o
m

o
rr

o
w

 

51

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
A

da
pt

in
g 

to
 im

pa
ct

s 
of

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
  

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
A

ll 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 h

av
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d,
 r

is
k 

as
se

ss
ed

 th
ei

r 
se

rv
ic

e 
de

liv
er

y 
an

d 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 a

re
 r

es
ili

en
t t

o 
th

e 
th

re
at

s 
an

d 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 w
ill

 b
rin

g 
to

 th
e 

ar
ea

, i
n 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
, f

lo
od

in
g.

 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
I1

88
, L

I 1
a 

an
d 

LI
 1

b 

O
ut

co
m

e 
M

ea
su

re
 

B
as

el
in

e 
20

10
/1

1 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

12
/1

3 
T

ar
ge

t 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

S
ta

tu
s

N
I 1

88
 A

da
pt

in
g 

to
 

C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

 -
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
pr

es
cr

ib
ed

 
ad

ap
ta

tio
n 

m
at

rix
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

D
ef

ra
 

Le
ve

l 0
 

(A
ug

us
t 2

00
9)

 

Le
ve

l 2
 

Le
ve

l 2
 

Le
ve

l 2
 

 
 

L
I 1

a 
A

ll 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 
ar

ea
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d,
 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 fl

oo
d 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

la
ns

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

L
I 1

b
 Im

pr
ov

ed
 

flo
od

-w
ar

ni
ng

 
sy

st
em

 in
 p

la
ce

 a
t 

P
ar

is
h 

le
ve

l 

0

(W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
fig

ur
e)

 

10
0%

 o
f t

ot
al

 

(2
01

0/
11

) 

- 
- 

 
 

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

1.
 

Lo
ca

l C
lim

at
e 

Im
pa

ct
s 

P
ro

fil
e 

(L
C

LI
P

) 
to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 

fo
r 

th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t p
rio

r 
to

 b
ei

ng
 u

se
d 

w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
. 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
0 

B
D

C
 

 
 

2.
  

A
ll 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 to
 s

ig
n 

up
 to

 W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e 
P

le
dg

e 
w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 a
ct

io
ns

 o
n 

A
da

pt
in

g 
to

 
C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e.
  

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

al
l 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 to
 h

av
e 

si
gn

ed
 u

p 
to

 
1 

st
ar

 a
ct

io
ns

 

A
ct

 o
n 

E
ne

rg
y 

 
 

Page 133



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 
 A

 b
et

te
r 

en
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
fo

r 
to

d
ay

 a
n

d
 t

o
m

o
rr

o
w

 

52

3.
  

E
ns

ur
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 d
el

iv
er

 lo
ca

lly
 o

n 
ac

tio
ns

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

S
tr

at
eg

y.
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

A
ct

 o
n 

E
ne

rg
y 

 
 

4.
 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

su
pp

lie
d 

to
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 to
 b

e 
co

or
di

na
te

d 
by

 
re

le
va

nt
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

e.
g.

 H
er

ef
or

d 
an

d 
W

or
ce

st
er

 F
ire

 a
nd

 
R

es
cu

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

(H
W

F
R

) 
= 

flo
od

in
g.

 N
ee

d 
to

 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 k
ey

 d
el

iv
er

ab
le

s 
of

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
an

d 
ho

w
 li

nk
s 

ca
n 

be
 m

ad
e 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
a 

cl
ea

r 
an

d 
co

he
si

ve
 m

es
sa

ge
 

is
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 to
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

.  

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3 

A
ct

 o
n 

E
ne

rg
y 

 
 

5.
 

T
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il 

to
 s

up
pl

y 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t A

ge
nc

y 
(v

ia
 th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
C

ou
nc

il)
 s

o 
th

at
 

lo
ca

lis
ed

 fl
oo

d 
ris

k 
m

ap
s 

ca
n 

be
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t, 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 w
he

re
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 

pr
op

er
tie

s.
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

B
D

C
 

 
 

Page 134



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

 
 A

 b
et

te
r 

en
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
fo

r 
to

d
ay

 a
n

d
 t

o
m

o
rr

o
w

 

53

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
A

da
pt

in
g 

to
 im

pa
ct

s 
of

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
  

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
E

ns
ur

e 
ad

ap
ta

tio
n 

is
su

es
 a

re
 in

cl
ud

ed
 w

ith
in

 P
la

nn
in

g 
P

ol
ic

y 
 

(D
iff

ic
ul

t f
or

 L
S

P
 to

 in
flu

en
ce

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f n

at
io

na
l p

ol
ic

y 
al

so
 w

ai
tin

g 
fo

r 
R

S
S

.  
P

la
nn

in
g 

po
lic

y 
al

so
 

ke
y 

pa
rt

 o
f m

iti
ga

tio
n)

 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
I1

88
 a

nd
 1

86
 

O
ut

co
m

e 
M

ea
su

re
 

B
as

el
in

e 
20

10
/1

1 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

12
/1

3 
T

ar
ge

t 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

S
ta

tu
s

10
0%

 o
f n

ew
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 o
ve

r 
10

00
m

2  o
r 

10
 o

r 
m

or
e 

un
its

 b
ui

lt 
to

 
co

de
 fo

r 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
ho

m
es

. 

C
od

e 
0 

C
od

e 
3 

C
od

e 
3 

C
od

e 
4 

 
 

N
I 1

88
 A

da
pt

in
g 

to
 

C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

Le
ve

l 0
 

(A
ug

us
t 2

00
9)

 

Le
ve

l 2
 

Le
ve

l 2
 

Le
ve

l 2
 

 
 

N
I 1

86
 P

er
 c

ap
ita

 
C

O
2 

em
is

si
on

 in
 th

e 
LA

 a
re

a 

6.
3 

to
nn

es
 p

er
 

ca
pi

ta
 (

20
05

) 
9%

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
co

m
pa

re
d 

w
ith

 
ba

se
lin

e 

- 
ve

 
- 

ve
 

 
 

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

1.
 

S
up

po
rt

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 a

ct
io

ns
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

ne
w

 c
or

e 
st

ra
te

gy
. (

T
he

 C
or

e 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

rs
 

ar
e 

C
P

1 
- 

C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e,

 C
P

7 
- 

W
at

er
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
F

lo
od

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n,

 C
P

4 
- 

P
ro

m
ot

in
g 

H
ig

h 
Q

ua
lit

y 
D

es
ig

n.
) 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

B
D

C
 

 
 

2.
  

S
up

po
rt

 R
S

L’
s 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
 to

 b
ui

ld
 b

ey
on

d 
cu

rr
en

t 
bu

ild
in

g 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 a
nd

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 a

 c
od

e 
fo

r 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
ho

m
es

 r
at

in
g 

hi
gh

er
 th

an
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

re
gs

. 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

B
D

C
 

 
 

Page 135



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 C

 
E

co
n

o
m

ic
 s

u
cc

es
s 

th
at

 is
 s

h
ar

ed
 b

y 
al

l 

54

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
T

ow
n 

C
en

tr
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
In

cr
ea

se
 p

ro
m

ot
io

n 
of

 th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
I 2

, N
I 1

54
, N

I 1
55

, N
I 1

71
, N

I 1
75

 a
nd

 N
I 1

86
 

O
ut

co
m

e 
M

ea
su

re
 

B
as

el
in

e 
20

10
/1

1 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

12
/1

3 
T

ar
ge

t 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

S
ta

tu
s

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 e

m
pt

y 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 u

ni
ts

 in
 

th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 
ar

ea
.  

(T
he

 
m

ea
su

re
 w

ill
 b

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 u
ni

ts
 

ad
ve

rt
is

ed
 in

 
2 

co
ns

ec
ut

iv
e 

qu
ar

te
rly

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
gu

id
es

; t
he

re
fo

re
, 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
em

pt
y 

fo
r 

4 
m

on
th

s 
or

 
lo

ng
er

.)
 

B
as

el
in

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

at
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 2
00

9.
 

- 
ve

 

(2
01

0)
 

- 
ve

 

(2
01

1)
 

- 
ve

 

(2
01

2)
 

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 fo

ot
fa

ll 
in

 H
ig

h 
S

tr
ee

t 
sh

op
s.

  (
C

ar
 P

ar
k 

tic
ke

ts
 s

ol
d 

to
 b

e 
us

ed
 a

s 
a 

pr
ox

y 
m

ea
su

re
 to

 g
iv

e 
an

 
in

di
ca

tio
n.

) 

1,
44

7,
31

3 
ca

r 
pa

rk
 ti

ck
et

s 
pu

rc
ha

se
d 

(2
00

8/
09

) 

+ 
ve

+ 
ve

 
+ 

ve
 

Page 136



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 C

 
E

co
n

o
m

ic
 s

u
cc

es
s 

th
at

 is
 s

h
ar

ed
 b

y 
al

l 

55

In
cr

ea
se

d 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 

H
ig

h 
S

tr
ee

t (
T

he
 

an
sw

er
s 

to
 

“P
rio

rit
ie

s 
fo

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t”
 

qu
es

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
P

la
ce

 S
ur

ve
y 

to
 b

e 
us

ed
 a

s 
a 

m
ea

su
re

)

32
%

 o
f r

es
id

en
ts

 
st

at
ed

 s
ho

pp
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

ar
e 

a 
pr

io
rit

y 
fo

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 

(P
la

ce
 S

ur
ve

y 
20

08
/0

9)
 

- 
ve

  
- 

ve
 

- 
ve

 
 

 

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

1.
 

P
ro

du
ce

 le
af

le
t t

ar
ge

te
d 

at
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 

ne
w

 c
om

pa
ni

es
 o

n 
to

 H
ig

h 
S

tr
ee

t. 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 
B

D
C

 
 

 

2.
  

H
ol

d 
qu

ar
te

rly
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

m
ee

tin
gs

 to
 e

xa
m

in
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 
in

 ta
ck

lin
g 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 e

m
pt

y 
sh

op
 u

ni
ts

 a
nd

 fo
ot

fa
ll 

da
ta

. A
ffe

ct
 a

ct
io

ns
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
es

e 
is

su
es

. 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

B
D

C
 

 
 

3.
  

O
rg

an
is

e 
fo

ur
 H

ig
h 

S
tr

ee
t e

ve
nt

s 
pe

r 
ye

ar
 in

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 

th
e 

12
 fa

rm
er

s 
m

ar
ke

ts
. 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

B
D

C
 

 
 

4.
  

P
ro

du
ce

 le
af

le
t t

o 
di

st
rib

ut
e 

to
 lo

ca
l a

nd
 a

dj
oi

ni
ng

 a
re

as
 

to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

m
ar

ke
t, 

sh
op

pi
ng

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
an

d 
ea

tin
g.

 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

2 
B

D
C

 
 

 

5.
  

S
ur

ve
y 

vi
si

to
rs

 to
 th

e 
H

ig
h 

S
tr

ee
t t

o 
id

en
tif

y 
de

st
in

at
io

ns
 

fr
om

 w
hi

ch
 th

ey
 h

av
e 

tr
av

el
le

d.
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

B
D

C
 

 
 

Page 137



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 C

 
E

co
n

o
m

ic
 s

u
cc

es
s 

th
at

 is
 s

h
ar

ed
 b

y 
al

l 

56

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
T

ow
n 

C
en

tr
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
Im

pr
ov

e 
re

ta
il 

an
d 

le
is

ur
e 

of
fe

r 
in

 th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
I 1

72
 (

no
n-

LA
A

) 

O
ut

co
m

e 
M

ea
su

re
 

B
as

el
in

e 
20

10
/1

1 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

12
/1

3 
T

ar
ge

t 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

S
ta

tu
s

In
cr

ea
se

 n
um

be
r 

of
 

A
3 

(R
es

ta
ur

an
ts

 
an

d 
C

af
es

) 
un

its
 in

 
th

e 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
. 

20
(A

ug
us

t 2
00

9)
 

+ 
ve

 
+ 

ve
 

+ 
ve

 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 

H
ig

h 
S

tr
ee

t (
T

he
 

an
sw

er
s 

to
 

“P
rio

rit
ie

s 
fo

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t”
 

qu
es

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
P

la
ce

 S
ur

ve
y 

w
ill

 
be

 u
se

d 
as

 a
 

m
ea

su
re

) 

32
%

 o
f r

es
id

en
ts

 
st

at
ed

 s
ho

pp
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

ar
e 

a 
pr

io
rit

y 
fo

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 

(P
la

ce
 S

ur
ve

y 
20

08
/0

9)
 

- 
ve

  
- 

ve
 

- 
ve

 
 

 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 e

m
pt

y 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
dw

el
lin

gs
 a

bo
ve

 
sh

op
s 

in
 th

e 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 a

re
a.

 

A
pp

ro
ac

h 
la

nd
lo

rd
s 

ab
ou

t d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 s
ho

ps
 

B
as

el
in

e 
to

 b
e 

se
t J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
0 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
su

rv
ey

 

-

- 
ve

 

C
on

ta
ct

 2
 

la
nd

lo
rd

s 
to

 o
ffe

r 
su

pp
or

t i
n 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 

- 
ve

 

C
on

ta
ct

 2
 

la
nd

lo
rd

s 
to

 o
ffe

r 
su

pp
or

t i
n 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 

- 
ve

 

C
on

ta
ct

 2
 

la
nd

lo
rd

s 
to

 o
ffe

r 
su

pp
or

t i
n 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 

Page 138



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 C

 
E

co
n

o
m

ic
 s

u
cc

es
s 

th
at

 is
 s

h
ar

ed
 b

y 
al

l 

57

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

1.
 

C
ar

ry
 o

ut
 a

n 
ex

am
in

at
io

n 
of

 d
at

a 
fr

om
 is

su
es

 a
nd

 
op

tio
ns

 s
ur

ve
y 

an
d 

us
e 

th
is

 to
 in

fo
rm

 th
e 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 
pr

om
ot

io
na

l p
ro

sp
ec

tu
s 

to
 a

ttr
ac

t n
ew

 b
us

in
es

se
s 

on
 to

 
H

ig
h 

S
tr

ee
t. 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

B
D

C
 

 
 

2.
  

M
ak

e 
co

nt
ac

t w
ith

 a
 m

in
im

um
 o

f 5
 c

om
pa

ni
es

 p
er

 y
ea

r 
to

 d
is

cu
ss

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r 
re

st
au

ra
nt

s 
an

d 
di

ni
ng

 
pl

ac
es

 o
n 

th
e 

H
ig

h 
S

tr
ee

t. 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3 

B
D

C
 

 
 

3.
  

T
ar

ge
t b

us
in

es
s 

su
pp

or
t a

t r
es

ta
ur

an
ts

 a
nd

 d
in

in
g 

pl
ac

es
. 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

B
D

C
 

 
 

4.
  

In
ve

st
ig

at
e 

w
he

re
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
ov

er
 s

ho
ps

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

in
 b

rin
gi

ng
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
on

 to
 th

e 
m

ar
ke

t. 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 
B

D
C

 / 
B

D
H

T
 

 
 

5.
  

P
ro

vi
de

 s
up

po
rt

 to
 la

nd
lo

rd
s 

to
 b

rin
g 

ba
ck

 3
 n

ew
 u

ni
ts

 o
f 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

ab
ov

e 
sh

op
s 

in
 th

e 
H

ig
h 

S
tr

ee
t o

r 
ad

jo
in

in
g 

st
re

et
s.

 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3 

B
D

C
 / 

B
D

H
T

 
 

 

Page 139



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 C

 
E

co
n

o
m

ic
 s

u
cc

es
s 

th
at

 is
 s

h
ar

ed
 b

y 
al

l 

58

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
T

ow
n 

C
en

tr
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
Im

pr
ov

e 
pu

bl
ic

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
I 1

85
 (

no
n-

LA
A

) 

O
ut

co
m

e 
M

ea
su

re
 

B
as

el
in

e 
20

10
/1

1 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

12
/1

3 
T

ar
ge

t 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

S
ta

tu
s

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
po

or
 

qu
al

ity
 p

ub
lic

 
bu

ild
in

gs
 (

e.
g.

 
m

ar
ke

t h
al

l, 
D

ol
ph

in
 

C
en

tr
e,

 li
br

ar
y)

 

- 
N

ew
 H

ea
lth

 
C

en
tr

e 
an

d 
D

em
ol

iti
on

 o
f 

m
ar

ke
t h

al
l 

N
ew

 B
lu

e 
Li

gh
t 

C
am

pu
s 

Id
en

tif
y 

si
te

 fo
r 

ne
w

 c
iv

ic
 fa

ci
lit

y 
an

d 
le

is
ur

e 
ce

nt
re

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

1.
 

S
ec

ur
e 

th
e 

de
m

ol
iti

on
 o

f t
he

 m
ar

ke
t h

al
l 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

B
D

C
 

 
 

2.
 

P
re

pa
re

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 to

 a
dv

er
tis

e 
fo

r 
ex

pr
es

si
on

s 
of

 
in

te
re

st
 in

 r
ed

ev
el

op
in

g 
th

e 
m

ar
ke

t h
al

l s
ite

 a
nd

 p
re

pa
re

 
in

vi
ta

tio
n 

to
 te

nd
er

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 fo

r 
re

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 th

e 
m

ar
ke

t h
al

l s
ite

 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

11
 

B
D

C
 

 
 

3.
 

D
ev

el
op

 p
ro

je
ct

 p
la

n 
fo

r 
le

is
ur

e 
ce

nt
re

 a
nd

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 

S
po

rt
 E

ng
la

nd
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 le
is

ur
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 to
 r

ev
ea

l n
ee

d 
an

d 
ra

ng
e 

of
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

a 
ne

w
 le

is
ur

e 
ce

nt
re

 s
ho

ul
d 

pr
ov

id
e.

 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

B
D

C
 

 
 

4.
 

D
ev

el
op

 p
ro

je
ct

 p
la

n 
fo

r 
ci

vi
c 

fa
ci

lit
y 

an
d 

id
en

tif
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 a
nd

 th
ei

r 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 fr

om
 a

 n
ew

 c
iv

ic
 fa

ci
lit

y.
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

B
D

C
 / 

W
C

C
 

 
 

5.
 

D
ev

el
op

 p
ro

je
ct

 p
la

n 
fo

r 
bl

ue
 li

gh
t c

am
pu

s.
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

P
ol

ic
e 

Page 140



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 C

 
E

co
n

o
m

ic
 s

u
cc

es
s 

th
at

 is
 s

h
ar

ed
 b

y 
al

l 

59

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
T

ow
n 

C
en

tr
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
Im

pr
ov

e 
H

ig
h 

S
tr

ee
t a

pp
ea

ra
nc

e 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
I 1

69
 a

nd
 N

I 1
68

 (
no

n-
LA

A
) 

O
ut

co
m

e 
M

ea
su

re
 

B
as

el
in

e 
20

10
/1

1 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

12
/1

3 
T

ar
ge

t 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

S
ta

tu
s

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 
H

ig
h 

S
tr

ee
t (

T
he

 
an

sw
er

s 
to

 
“P

rio
rit

ie
s 

fo
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t”

 
qu

es
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

P
la

ce
 S

ur
ve

y 
w

ill
 

be
 u

se
d 

as
 a

 
m

ea
su

re
) 

55
%

 o
f r

es
id

en
ts

 
st

at
ed

 r
oa

d 
an

d 
pa

ve
m

en
t r

ep
ai

rs
 

is
 th

e 
to

p 
pr

io
rit

y 
fo

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 

(P
la

ce
 S

ur
ve

y 
20

08
/0

9)
 

- 
ve

  
- 

ve
 

- 
ve

 
 

 

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

1.
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 p

ro
je

ct
 p

la
n 

fo
r 

(a
) 

re
su

rf
ac

in
g 

H
ig

h 
S

tr
ee

t; 
an

d 
(b

) 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

st
re

et
 fu

rn
itu

re
 / 

st
re

et
 li

gh
tin

g 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

co
lle

ct
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 c
os

ts
 a

nd
 s

up
pl

ie
rs

.)
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

B
D

C
 / 

W
C

C
 

 
 

2.
 

F
un

de
rs

 to
 b

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 r

es
ur

fa
ci

ng
. 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

B
D

C
 / 

W
C

C
 

 
 

3.
 

V
is

it 
ot

he
r 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

si
m

ila
r 

to
 B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 to

 
in

ve
st

ig
at

e 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

of
 c

af
é 

cu
ltu

re
. 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

B
D

C
 

 
 

4.
 

M
ak

e 
co

nt
ac

t w
ith

 a
 m

in
im

um
 o

f 5
 c

om
pa

ni
es

 p
er

 y
ea

r 
to

 d
is

cu
ss

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r 
re

st
au

ra
nt

s 
an

d 
di

ni
ng

 
pl

ac
es

 o
n 

th
e 

H
ig

h 
S

tr
ee

t. 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3 

B
D

C
 

 
 

5.
 

In
ve

st
ig

at
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
un

di
ng

 s
tr

ea
m

s 
fo

r 
sh

op
 fr

on
t 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 (
e.

g.
 E

ng
lis

h 
H

er
ita

ge
) 

Ju
ly

 2
01

0 
B

D
C

 
 

 

Page 141



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 C

 
E

co
n

o
m

ic
 s

u
cc

es
s 

th
at

 is
 s

h
ar

ed
 b

y 
al

l 

60

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
E

co
no

m
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
D

ev
el

op
 r

ai
lw

ay
 s

ta
tio

n 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
I 1

75
 

O
ut

co
m

e 
M

ea
su

re
 

B
as

el
in

e 
20

10
/1

1 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

12
/1

3 
T

ar
ge

t 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

S
ta

tu
s

N
I 1

75
 A

cc
es

s 
to

 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
by

 p
ub

lic
 

tr
an

sp
or

t, 
w

al
ki

ng
 

an
d 

cy
cl

in
g.

 

83
.2

%
(2

00
7)

+ 
ve

 

(9
4%

 fo
r 

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
) 

+ 
ve

 
+ 

ve
 

 
 

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

1.
 

O
pe

n 
ne

w
 B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 T

ra
in

 S
ta

tio
n 

(s
ub

je
ct

 to
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 d
es

ig
n 

w
or

k,
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
an

d 
fu

nd
in

g 
fr

om
 r

ai
l i

nd
us

tr
y)

. 

31
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

3 
W

C
C

 
 

 

2.
 

In
tr

od
uc

e 
ne

w
 to

w
n 

ho
pp

er
 s

er
vi

ce
 (

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

an
d 

de
si

gn
 w

or
k,

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

an
d 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

of
 

re
ve

nu
e 

fu
nd

in
g)

. 

31
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

3 
W

C
C

 
 

 

3.
 

A
s 

pa
rt

 o
f n

ew
 s

ta
tio

n 
bu

ild
, i

m
pr

ov
e 

cy
cl

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
 a

nd
 

fo
ot

pa
th

 a
cc

es
s 

(s
ub

je
ct

 to
 th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

n 
w

or
k 

an
d 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n)

. 

31
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

3 
W

C
C

 
 

 

4.
 

N
ew

 s
ta

tio
n 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
ne

w
 “

G
ol

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
d 

In
te

rc
ha

ng
e”

 
(s

ub
je

ct
 to

 th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 d
es

ig
n 

w
or

k 
an

d 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n)
. 

31
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

3 
W

C
C

 
 

 

5.
 

P
ut

 p
la

ns
 in

 p
la

ce
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 a
 h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 p

as
se

ng
er

 
tr

an
sp

or
t i

nt
er

ch
an

ge
 in

 B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

.  
(A

im
 is

 to
 in

cl
ud

e 
“G

ol
d 

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
In

te
rc

ha
ng

e”
 in

 L
T

P
3 

(L
oc

al
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 
P

la
n 

3)
 fo

r 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
, s

ub
je

ct
 to

 L
T

P
3 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

w
or

k 
be

in
g 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 s

ec
ur

in
g 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
fin

an
ci

al
 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

).
 

31
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

3 
W

C
C

 
 

 

Page 142



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 C

 
E

co
n

o
m

ic
 s

u
cc

es
s 

th
at

 is
 s

h
ar

ed
 b

y 
al

l 

61

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
E

co
no

m
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
E

co
no

m
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
tr

at
eg

y 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
I 1

71
 

O
ut

co
m

e 
M

ea
su

re
 

B
as

el
in

e 
20

10
/1

1 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

12
/1

3 
T

ar
ge

t 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

S
ta

tu
s

N
I 1

71
 B

us
in

es
s 

re
gi

st
ra

tio
n 

ra
te

 
62

.4
(2

00
8/

09
) 

+ 
ve

 

(W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
ta

rg
et

 is
 1

15
.5

%
 

of
 W

es
t M

id
la

nd
s 

re
gi

on
al

 a
ve

ra
ge

)

+ 
ve

 
+ 

ve
 

 
 

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

1.
 

B
D

C
/R

B
C

/W
F

D
C

 to
 w

or
k 

to
ge

th
er

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

n 
ec

on
om

ic
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t s

tr
at

eg
y.

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

10
 

B
D

C
 

 
 

2.
 

In
ve

st
ig

at
e 

re
gi

on
al

 b
od

ie
s 

an
d 

at
te

nd
 m

ee
tin

gs
 o

n 
a 

fr
eq

ue
nt

 b
as

is
 o

f t
ho

se
 r

el
ev

an
t b

od
ie

s.
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

B
D

C
 

 
 

3.
 

D
is

cu
ss

 a
n 

ec
on

om
ic

 p
ro

to
co

l w
ith

 B
irm

in
gh

am
 to

 
pr

om
ot

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
. 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

B
D

C
 

 
 

Page 143



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 D

 
   

   
   

 Im
p

ro
vi

n
g

 h
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

el
l b

ei
n

g
 

62

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
S

ta
yi

ng
 H

ea
lth

y 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
R

ed
uc

e 
al

co
ho

l m
is

us
e 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
I 3

9 

O
ut

co
m

e 
M

ea
su

re
 

B
as

el
in

e 
20

10
/1

1 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

12
/1

3 
T

ar
ge

t 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

S
ta

tu
s

N
I 3

9 
A

lc
oh

ol
 –

 
ha

rm
 r

el
at

ed
 

ho
sp

ita
l a

dm
is

si
on

 
ra

te
s

12
29

 p
er

 1
00

,0
00

 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

(1
42

3 
fo

r 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 
20

07
/0

8)
 

- 
ve

 

(1
65

2 
fo

r 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

) 

- 
ve

 
- 

ve
 

 
 

H
az

ar
do

us
 d

rin
ki

ng
 

le
ve

ls
27

 (
A

nn
ua

l 
sy

nt
he

tic
 e

st
im

at
e 

of
 th

e 
%

 o
f t

he
 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
ag

ed
 1

6 
ye

ar
s 

an
d 

ov
er

 w
ho

 
re

po
rt

 e
ng

ag
in

g 
in

 
ha

za
rd

ou
s 

dr
in

ki
ng

)

20
.4

%
 o

f a
du

lts
 

(2
00

8)
 

- 
ve

 
- 

ve
 

- 
ve

 
 

 

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

1.
 

In
cr

ea
se

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

of
 s

en
si

bl
e 

dr
in

ki
ng

 a
nd

 s
ta

rt
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
of

 c
ha

ng
e 

of
 c

ul
tu

re
 to

 g
et

 d
ru

nk
.  

 
a)

 U
til

is
e 

un
iv

er
sa

l i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t s

en
si

bl
e 

dr
in

ki
ng

 
an

d 
th

e 
ris

ks
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 a

lc
oh

ol
 m

is
us

e 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

ta
rg

et
ed

 a
nd

 p
re

ve
nt

io
n 

w
or

k 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

co
ve

re
d.

 
b)

 R
ai

se
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
of

 s
af

e 
an

d 
se

ns
ib

le
 a

lc
oh

ol
 

co
ns

um
pt

io
n 

am
on

gs
t y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e.

 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3 

P
C

T

W
C

C
 -

 H
ea

lth
y 

S
ch

oo
ls

 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

27
 N

W
P

H
O

 L
oc

al
 A

lc
oh

ol
 P

ro
fil

es
 –

 w
w

w
.n

w
ph

.n
et

/a
lc

oh
ol

/la
pe

/r
eg

io
ns

.h
tm

 (
Lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
al

co
ho

l i
nd

ic
at

or
s 

– 
20

08
 v

er
si

on
) 

Page 144



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 D

 
   

   
   

 Im
p

ro
vi

n
g

 h
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

el
l b

ei
n

g
 

63

2.
 I

de
nt

ify
 h

az
ar

do
us

 a
nd

 h
ar

m
fu

l d
rin

ke
rs

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

 b
rie

f 
ad

vi
ce

.  
 

a)
 D

ev
el

op
 s

cr
ee

ni
ng

 a
nd

 b
rie

f i
nt

er
ve

nt
io

ns
 in

 p
rim

ar
y 

ca
re

 a
nd

 u
se

 b
es

t p
ra

ct
ic

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
lo

ca
l e

nh
an

ce
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

pi
lo

t 
b)

 E
xp

an
d 

al
co

ho
l a

w
ar

en
es

s 
br

ie
f i

nt
er

ve
nt

io
n 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 
to

 o
th

er
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
! 

B
D

H
T

/W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

H
ou

si
ng

 G
ro

up
 

! 
T

he
 B

as
em

en
t P

ro
je

ct
 

! 
S

oc
ia

l W
or

ke
rs

 
! 

V
ol

un
ta

ry
 S

ec
to

r 
! 

P
ris

on
s 

! 
S

ch
oo

ls
/y

ou
th

 c
lu

bs
/e

xt
en

de
d 

se
rv

ic
es

/N
E

W
 C

ol
le

ge
c)

 T
o 

ha
ve

 a
n 

al
co

ho
l l

ia
is

on
 n

ur
se

 in
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

A
le

xa
nd

ra
 

H
os

pi
ta

l R
ed

di
tc

h 
in

 A
&

E
 a

nd
 th

e 
P

rin
ce

ss
 o

f W
al

es
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 H

os
pi

ta
l i

n 
th

e 
M

in
or

 In
ju

ry
 U

ni
t 

d)
 I

de
nt

ify
 a

nd
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

al
co

ho
l. 

Ju
ne

 2
01

0 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3 

S
ep

t 2
01

0 

S
ep

t 2
01

0 

P
C

T

W
C

C
 –

 D
A

T
 

(D
ru

g 
A

ct
io

n 
T

ea
m

)

W
C

C
 –

 D
A

T
 

B
A

R
N

3.
 R

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f a

lc
oh

ol
 m

is
us

e 
in

 th
e 

w
or

kp
la

ce
  

a)
 W

or
k 

w
ith

 L
S

P
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

lc
oh

ol
 is

su
es

 
ar

e 
an

 in
te

gr
al

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
ir 

pr
om

ot
in

g 
“h

ea
lth

y 
w

or
kp

la
ce

 p
ac

ka
ge

s”
. L

S
P

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
in

cl
ud

e:
  

! 
B

D
H

T
 

! 
N

E
W

 C
ol

le
ge

 
! 

N
H

S
 W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

  
! 

B
D

C
 

! 
P

ol
ic

e 
b)

 T
o 

ev
al

ua
te

 h
ea

lth
y 

w
or

kp
la

ce
 p

ac
ka

ge
s 

an
d 

if 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

of
fe

r/
im

pl
em

en
t t

o 
ot

he
r 

lo
ca

l B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 
em

pl
oy

er
s.

  

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3 

A
pr

il 
20

11
 

P
C

T

P
C

T

Page 145



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 D

 
   

   
   

 Im
p

ro
vi

n
g

 h
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

el
l b

ei
n

g
 

64

4.
 T

ac
kl

in
g 

un
de

ra
ge

 s
al

es
 a

nd
 u

nd
er

ag
e 

dr
in

ki
ng

 in
 p

ub
lic

 
pl

ac
es

 
a)

 I
de

nt
ify

 r
et

ai
l p

re
m

is
es

 th
at

 s
el

l a
lc

oh
ol

 to
 th

os
e 

un
de

ra
ge

, e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 to

ug
he

r 
sa

nc
tio

ns
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
 

a 
m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 “

U
nd

er
ag

e 
S

al
es

” 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p.
 

b)
 U

til
is

e 
th

e 
m

ob
ile

 b
us

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 y

ou
th

 w
or

ke
rs

 a
nd

 
de

ta
ch

ed
 s

ub
st

an
ce

 m
is

us
e/

al
co

ho
l w

or
ke

rs
 w

ith
in

 
ta

rg
et

 a
re

as
. 

S
ep

t 2
01

0 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3 

C
D

R
P

 

W
C

C
 -

 Y
ou

th
 

S
er

vi
ce

Page 146



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 D

 
   

   
   

 Im
p

ro
vi

n
g

 h
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

el
l b

ei
n

g
 

65

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
S

ta
yi

ng
 H

ea
lth

y 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
S

m
ok

in
g 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
an

d 
re

du
ct

io
n 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
I 1

23
 

O
ut

co
m

e
M

ea
su

re
 

B
as

el
in

e 
20

10
/1

1 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

12
/1

3 
T

ar
ge

t 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

S
ta

tu
s

N
I 1

23
 1

6+
 

cu
rr

en
t s

m
ok

in
g 

ra
te

 p
re

va
le

nc
e 

(q
ui

tti
ng

 fo
r 

4 
w

ee
ks

72
1.

5 
pe

r 
10

0,
00

0 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

ag
ed

 
16

+

(B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 
20

07
/0

8)
 

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
le

ve
l o

f 
qu

itt
er

s

68
2 

pe
r 

10
0,

00
0 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
ag

ed
 

16
+

(W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
)

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
le

ve
l o

f 
qu

itt
er

s
M

ai
nt

ai
n 

le
ve

l o
f 

qu
itt

er
s

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

1.
 

Id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

ta
ck

le
 u

nd
er

ag
e 

sa
le

s 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

3 
W

C
C

 
 

 

2.
 

C
on

tin
ue

 r
ol

l o
ut

 o
f H

ea
rt

sm
ar

t h
om

es
 a

w
ar

ds
 (

aw
ai

tin
g 

fu
ll 

ev
al

ua
tio

n)
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3 

P
C

T
 / 

W
C

C
 

 
 

3.
 

R
ol

l o
ut

 a
nd

 p
ilo

t F
re

sh
 S

ta
rt

 (
pe

er
 m

en
to

rs
hi

p 
sm

ok
in

g 
ce

ss
at

io
n 

fo
r 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

) 
A

pr
il 

20
10

 
P

C
T

 / 
Q

ui
t 

 
 

4.
 

E
xp

an
d 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

an
d 

P
ro

vi
de

rs
 w

ho
 o

ffe
r 

br
ie

f i
nt

er
ve

nt
io

ns
 a

nd
 s

m
ok

in
g 

ce
ss

at
io

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
  

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3 

P
C

T
 

 
 

Page 147



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 D

 
   

   
   

 Im
p

ro
vi

n
g

 h
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

el
l b

ei
n

g
 

N
ot

e:
 T

o 
av

oi
d 

du
pl

ic
at

io
n,

 th
is

 A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
in

cl
ud

es
 o

ut
co

m
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
an

d 
ac

tio
ns

 th
at

 a
ls

o 
re

la
te

 to
 th

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
e 

“M
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

N
ee

ds
 

of
 C

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e”
 a

nd
 s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
, t

he
 p

rio
rit

y 
“B

ei
ng

 H
ea

lth
y”

 a
nd

 k
ey

 d
el

iv
er

ab
le

 “
E

nc
ou

ra
ge

 H
ea

lth
y 

Li
fe

st
yl

es
”.

66

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
S

ta
yi

ng
 H

ea
lth

y 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
H

ea
lth

y 
W

ei
gh

t (
D

ie
t a

nd
 p

hy
si

ca
l a

ct
iv

ity
) 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
I 8

, N
I 5

2 
(n

on
-L

A
A

),
 N

I 5
5 

(n
on

-L
A

A
),

 N
I 5

6,
 N

I 5
7 

(n
on

-L
A

A
) 

an
d 

N
I 1

21
 

O
ut

co
m

e 
M

ea
su

re
 

B
as

el
in

e 
20

10
/1

1 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

12
/1

3 
T

ar
ge

t 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

S
ta

tu
s

N
I 5

6 
O

be
si

ty
 

am
on

g 
pr

im
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

 a
ge

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
in

 Y
ea

r 
6

15
.3

 %
 

(2
00

7/
08

) 
M

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 

le
ve

ls
 b

el
ow

 
15

.5
%

 

M
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 
le

ve
ls

 b
el

ow
 

15
.5

%
 

M
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 
le

ve
ls

 b
el

ow
 

15
.5

%
 

N
I 5

5 
O

be
si

ty
am

on
g 

pr
im

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
 a

ge
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 R

ec
ep

tio
n28

7.
4%

(B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 
20

07
/0

8)
 

8.
4%

(W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
20

07
/0

8)
 

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
le

ve
ls

 
be

lo
w

 1
0%

 
M

ai
nt

ai
n 

le
ve

ls
 

be
lo

w
 1

0%
 

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
le

ve
ls

 
be

lo
w

 1
0%

 

N
I 5

2 
T

ak
e 

up
 o

f 
sc

ho
ol

 lu
nc

he
s29

P
rim

ar
y 

S
ch

oo
ls

 
37

.6
%

 

S
ec

on
da

ry
 S

ch
oo

ls
 

26
.7

%
 

(W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
)

+ 
ve

 
+ 

ve
 

+ 
ve

 
 

 

%
 o

f o
be

se
 a

du
lts

30
 

24
%

 
(2

00
3-

05
 e

st
im

at
e)

 
M

ai
nt

ai
n 

le
ve

ls
 

be
lo

w
 2

5%
 

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
le

ve
ls

 
be

lo
w

 2
5%

 
- 

ve
 

 
 

N
I 8

 A
du

lt 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 s

po
rt

25
.6

%
 

(2
00

8/
09

) 
25

.7
%

 
(W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

)
+ 

ve
 

+ 
ve

 
 

 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

28
 D

at
a 

ta
ke

n 
fr

om
 B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 H

ea
lth

 P
ro

fil
e 

20
09

 
29

 D
at

a 
fr

om
 N

H
S

 W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
30

 D
at

a 
ta

ke
n 

fr
om

 B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 H
ea

lth
 P

ro
fil

e 
20

09

Page 148



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 D

 
   

   
   

 Im
p

ro
vi

n
g

 h
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

el
l b

ei
n

g
 

N
ot

e:
 T

o 
av

oi
d 

du
pl

ic
at

io
n,

 th
is

 A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
in

cl
ud

es
 o

ut
co

m
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
an

d 
ac

tio
ns

 th
at

 a
ls

o 
re

la
te

 to
 th

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
e 

“M
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

N
ee

ds
 

of
 C

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e”
 a

nd
 s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
, t

he
 p

rio
rit

y 
“B

ei
ng

 H
ea

lth
y”

 a
nd

 k
ey

 d
el

iv
er

ab
le

 “
E

nc
ou

ra
ge

 H
ea

lth
y 

Li
fe

st
yl

es
”.

67

N
I 5

7 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 in
 

sp
or

tin
g

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 (
%

 o
f 

5-
16

 y
ea

r 
ol

ds
 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
in

g 
in

 a
t 

le
as

t 2
 h

ou
rs

 o
f h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 P

E
 a

t s
ch

oo
l 

du
rin

g 
cu

rr
ic

ul
um

 
tim

e)

86
%

N
or

th
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

31

(2
00

7/
08

) 

87
.6

%
 

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 
D

is
tr

ic
t32

(2
00

7/
08

) 

+ 
ve

 
+ 

ve
 

+ 
ve

 
 

 

%
 o

f  
5-

19
 y

ea
r 

ol
ds

 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

in
g 

in
 

5 
ho

ur
s 

of
 P

E
 

(p
hy

si
ca

l e
du

ca
tio

n)
 

an
d 

sp
or

t p
er

 w
ee

k33

30
%

(2
00

7/
08

) 
40

%
 

50
%

 
60

%
 

 
 

%
 o

f 5
-1

6 
ye

ar
 o

ld
s 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
in

g 
in

 
3 

ho
ur

s 
of

 P
E

 a
nd

 
sp

or
t o

rg
an

is
ed

 b
y 

sc
ho

ol
s 

pe
r 

w
ee

k34

51
%

(2
00

8/
09

) 
80

%
 

85
%

 
+ 

ve
 

 
 

N
I 1

21
 M

or
ta

lit
y 

ra
te

 
fr

om
 a

ll 
ci

rc
ul

at
or

y 
di

se
as

es
 a

t a
ge

s 
un

de
r 

75
.  

( D
ire

ct
ly

ag
e 

st
an

da
rd

is
ed

 
ra

te
 p

er
 1

00
,0

00
 

po
pu

la
tio

n)

62
.4

5
(2

00
5/

07
) 

62
.0

3
(W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

)
- 

ve
 

- 
ve

 
 

 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

31
 T

he
 fi

gu
re

 fo
r 

N
or

th
 W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 is
 th

e 
of

fic
ia

l m
ea

su
re

 fo
r 

N
I 5

7 
an

d 
w

as
 o

bt
ai

ne
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

S
ch

oo
l S

po
rt

s 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
. 

3
2

T
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t f
ig

ur
e 

is
 ta

ke
n 

fr
om

 th
e 

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 H
ea

lth
 P

ro
fil

e 
20

09
.

33
 T

hi
s 

is
 a

 p
os

iti
ve

 o
ut

co
m

e 
m

ea
su

re
 th

at
 S

ch
oo

l S
po

rt
s 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
ar

e 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r 
de

liv
er

in
g 

an
d 

it 
re

la
te

s 
to

 N
I 5

7.
 

34
 Ib

id
. 

Page 149



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 D

 
   

   
   

 Im
p

ro
vi

n
g

 h
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

el
l b

ei
n

g
 

N
ot

e:
 T

o 
av

oi
d 

du
pl

ic
at

io
n,

 th
is

 A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
in

cl
ud

es
 o

ut
co

m
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
an

d 
ac

tio
ns

 th
at

 a
ls

o 
re

la
te

 to
 th

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
e 

“M
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

N
ee

ds
 

of
 C

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e”
 a

nd
 s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
, t

he
 p

rio
rit

y 
“B

ei
ng

 H
ea

lth
y”

 a
nd

 k
ey

 d
el

iv
er

ab
le

 “
E

nc
ou

ra
ge

 H
ea

lth
y 

Li
fe

st
yl

es
”.

68

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

1.
 

R
ol

l o
ut

 a
nd

 c
ha

m
pi

on
 C

ou
nt

y 
ch

ild
ho

od
 o

be
si

ty
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 lo

ca
lly

 in
 B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 

31
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

3 
P

C
T

 
 

 

2.
 

W
or

k 
w

ith
 s

ch
oo

ls
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

w
hi

ch
 p

up
ils

 a
re

 n
ot

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 

3 
ho

ur
s 

of
 P

E
 a

nd
 s

po
rt

 a
nd

 p
ut

 in
 m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 (
us

in
g 

B
id

 L
ot

te
ry

, S
po

rt
 U

nl
im

ite
d 

an
d 

S
ch

oo
l S

po
rt

 C
oa

ch
in

g 
fu

nd
in

g.
) 

31
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

3 
S

ch
oo

ls
 S

po
rt

s 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

3.
 

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r 

ph
ys

ic
al

 a
ct

iv
ity

 fo
r 

ad
ul

ts
, c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

, f
am

ili
es

 a
nd

 o
ld

er
 

pe
op

le
 (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l 2

 h
ou

rs
 o

f c
om

m
un

ity
 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 fo
r 

5-
19

 y
ea

r 
ol

ds
) 

31
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

3 
B

E
C

A
N

 
 

 

4.
 

P
ro

m
ot

e 
he

al
th

ie
r 

fo
od

 c
ho

ic
es

 (
sc

ho
ol

 m
ea

ls
, l

un
ch

bo
xe

s,
 

fa
m

ily
 m

ea
ls

, r
es

ta
ur

an
ts

, t
ak

e 
aw

ay
s,

 in
 w

or
kp

la
ce

) 
31

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
3 

P
C

T
 

 
 

5.
 

E
xp

an
d 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
w

ho
 o

ffe
r 

w
ei

gh
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

dv
ic

e 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 (

M
E

N
D

 (
M

in
d,

 E
xe

rc
is

e,
 

N
ut

rit
io

n.
..D

o 
it!

),
 w

ei
gh

tw
at

ch
er

s,
 in

 w
or

kp
la

ce
) 

31
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

3 
P

C
T

 
 

 

6.
 

D
ev

el
op

 o
be

si
ty

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
w

ith
 P

C
T

 a
nd

 
C

ha
ds

gr
ov

e 
S

ch
oo

l f
or

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s.
 

31
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 
B

D
C

 
 

 

Page 150



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 D

 
   

   
   

 Im
p

ro
vi

n
g

 h
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

el
l b

ei
n

g
 

69

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
Im

pr
ov

in
g 

pe
rc

ep
tio

n 
an

d 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 is

su
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

m
ot

in
g 

po
si

tiv
e 

m
en

ta
l 

he
al

th
 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
I 2

, N
I 1

19
 (

no
n-

LA
A

) 
an

d 
LI

 7
 

O
ut

co
m

e 
M

ea
su

re
 

B
as

el
in

e 
20

10
/1

1 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

12
/1

3 
T

ar
ge

t 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

S
ta

tu
s

L
I 7

 A
du

lts
 in

 
co

nt
ac

t w
ith

 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

m
en

ta
l 

he
al

th
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

53
9

(W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
20

08
/0

9)
 

+ 
ve

 

(+
5%

 0
9/

10
 a

nd
 

+5
%

 1
0/

11
 o

n 
08

/0
9

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 

ba
se

lin
e)

 

+ 
ve

 
+ 

ve
 

N
I 1

19
 S

el
f-

re
po

rt
ed

 m
ea

su
re

 
of

 p
eo

pl
e’

s 
ov

er
al

l 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 
w

el
lb

ei
ng

 

82
%

76
.9

%
 

(W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
20

08
/0

9)
 

+ 
ve

 
+ 

ve
 

+ 
ve

 

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

1.
 P

ro
vi

de
 lo

w
 le

ve
l t

ra
in

in
g 

to
 fr

on
t l

in
e 

st
af

f g
iv

in
g 

th
em

 
th

e 
 c

on
fid

en
ce

 to
 r

ec
og

ni
ze

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 is
su

es
 a

nd
 

us
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 r

ef
er

ra
l p

at
hw

ay
s/

sy
st

em
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

P
C

T
 

 
 

2.
 E

ns
ur

e 
al

l L
S

P
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

an
d 

la
rg

er
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s 
in

 
B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 h

av
e 

sy
st

em
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 a

nd
 

pr
om

ot
e 

po
si

tiv
e 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
w

or
kp

la
ce

.  

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3 

P
C

T
 / 

W
el

ln
es

s 
W

or
ks

3.
 S

up
po

rt
 v

ol
un

ta
ry

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
po

si
tiv

e 
m

en
ta

l 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

 h
ea

lth
 p

ro
m

ot
io

n 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3 

B
A

R
N

 
 

 

4.
 T

o 
im

pl
em

en
t B

oo
ks

 o
n 

pr
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

lo
ca

lly
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
10

 
P

C
T

 
 

 

Page 151



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 E

 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 t
h

e 
n

ee
d

s 
o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

eo
p

le
 

N
ot

e :
  I

nt
er

im
 H

ig
h 

Le
ve

l A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
un

til
 s

uc
h 

tim
e 

th
at

 d
et

ai
ls

 o
f t

he
 L

oc
al

 C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

T
ru

st
 A

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

on
fir

m
ed

. 

70

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
B

ei
ng

 h
ea

lth
y 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
E

nc
ou

ra
ge

 h
ea

lth
y 

lif
es

ty
le

s 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
I 5

6,
 N

I 5
2 

(n
on

-L
A

A
) 

an
d 

N
I 5

5 
(n

on
-L

A
A

).
 

O
ut

co
m

e 
M

ea
su

re
 

B
as

el
in

e 
20

10
/1

1 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

12
/1

3 
T

ar
ge

t 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

S
ta

tu
s

C
ov

er
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
H

ig
h 

Le
ve

l A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
“H

ea
lt

h
y 

W
ei

g
h

t 
(D

ie
t 

an
d

 p
h

ys
ic

al
 a

ct
iv

it
y)

” 
ke

y 
de

liv
er

ab
le

 
w

hi
ch

 is
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

“S
ta

yi
n

g
 H

ea
lt

h
y”

 p
rio

rit
y 

w
hi

ch
 fa

lls
 u

nd
er

 “
Im

p
ro

vi
n

g
 H

ea
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
el

l b
ei

n
g

” 
ob

je
ct

iv
e.

 

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

P
le

as
e 

se
e 

ab
ov

e.
 

Page 152



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 E

 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 t
h

e 
n

ee
d

s 
o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

eo
p

le
 

N
ot

e :
  I

nt
er

im
 H

ig
h 

Le
ve

l A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
un

til
 s

uc
h 

tim
e 

th
at

 d
et

ai
ls

 o
f t

he
 L

oc
al

 C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

T
ru

st
 A

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

on
fir

m
ed

. 

71

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
P

os
iti

ve
 A

ct
iv

iti
es

 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
A

cc
es

s 
to

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

m
ar

ki
ng

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
s)

 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
I 1

10
 a

nd
 N

I 5
7 

(n
on

-L
A

A
) 

O
ut

co
m

e 
M

ea
su

re
 

B
as

el
in

e 
20

10
/1

1 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

12
/1

3 
T

ar
ge

t 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

S
ta

tu
s

N
I 1

10
 Y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

’s
 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
in

 
po

si
tiv

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 

72
.2

%
 

(W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
20

08
/0

9)
 

83
.3

%
 

(W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
)

+ 
ve

 
+ 

ve
 

 
 

N
I 5

7 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 in
 

sp
or

tin
g

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 (
%

 o
f 

5-
16

 y
ea

r 
ol

ds
 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
in

g 
in

 a
t 

le
as

t t
w

o 
ho

ur
s 

of
 

hi
gh

 q
ua

lit
y 

ph
ys

ic
al

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
(P

E
) 

at
 s

ch
oo

l 
du

rin
g 

cu
rr

ic
ul

um
 

tim
e.

)35

87
.6

%
 

(2
00

7/
08

) 
+ 

ve
 

+ 
ve

 
+ 

ve
 

 
 

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

1.
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f t

w
o 

lo
ca

l n
ew

sp
ap

er
 w

ra
p 

ar
ou

nd
s 

w
ith

 
a 

fo
cu

s 
on

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
. 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

B
D

C
 

 

2.
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f a

 r
an

ge
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ou
tr

ea
ch

 
w

or
k 

fr
om

 th
e 

T
ru

nk
. 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

V
C

S
 

 
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3
5

D
at

a 
ta

ke
n 

fr
om

 B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 H
ea

lth
 P

ro
fil

e 
20

09

Page 153



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 E

 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 t
h

e 
n

ee
d

s 
o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

eo
p

le
 

N
ot

e :
  I

nt
er

im
 H

ig
h 

Le
ve

l A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
un

til
 s

uc
h 

tim
e 

th
at

 d
et

ai
ls

 o
f t

he
 L

oc
al

 C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

T
ru

st
 A

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

on
fir

m
ed

. 

72

3.
 

A
nn

ua
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 s
po

rt
s 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 

di
ve

rs
io

na
ry

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

fr
ee

 c
oa

ch
in

g 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 o

ffe
re

d 
on

 M
U

G
A

s 
(m

ul
ti-

us
e 

ga
m

es
 

ar
ea

s)
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
di

st
ric

t. 

A
nn

ua
lly

 
B

D
C

 
 

 

4.
 

A
nn

ua
l S

po
rt

s 
A

w
ar

ds
 e

ve
ni

ng
 to

 r
ec

og
ni

se
 th

e 
po

si
tiv

e 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

ts
 o

f c
hi

ld
re

n 
bo

th
 fr

om
 a

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

, 
vo

lu
nt

ee
r 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
co

ac
h 

pe
rs

pe
ct

iv
e.

 

A
nn

ua
lly

 
(F

eb
ru

ar
y)

 
B

D
C

 
 

 

5.
 

K
ee

p 
up

-t
o-

da
te

 c
lu

b 
da

ta
ba

se
 o

n 
to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
B

D
C

 
w

eb
si

te
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

cl
ub

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

e 
ac

cr
ed

ite
d 

cl
ub

s.
 

A
nn

ua
lly

 
B

D
C

 
 

 

Page 154



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 E

 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 t
h

e 
n

ee
d

s 
o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

eo
p

le
 

N
ot

e :
  I

nt
er

im
 H

ig
h 

Le
ve

l A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
un

til
 s

uc
h 

tim
e 

th
at

 d
et

ai
ls

 o
f t

he
 L

oc
al

 C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

T
ru

st
 A

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

on
fir

m
ed

. 

73

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
P

os
iti

ve
 A

ct
iv

iti
es

 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
E

ng
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 c
iti

ze
ns

hi
p 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
I 1

10
 

O
ut

co
m

e 
M

ea
su

re
 

B
as

el
in

e 
20

10
/1

1 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

12
/1

3 
T

ar
ge

t 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

S
ta

tu
s

N
I 1

10
 Y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

’s
 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
in

 
po

si
tiv

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 

72
.2

%
 

(W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
20

08
/0

9)
 

83
.3

%
 

(W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
)

+ 
ve

 
+ 

ve
 

 
 

N
um

be
r 

of
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

in
g 

in
 U

 
D

ec
id

e 

40
(2

00
8/

09
) 

80
 

90
 

10
0 

 
 

%
 o

f a
tte

nd
ee

s 
w

ho
 

en
jo

ye
d 

th
e 

U
 

D
ec

id
e 

ev
en

t 

B
as

el
in

e 
to

 b
e 

se
t i

n 
20

10
/1

1 
- 

+ 
ve

 
+ 

ve
 

 
 

N
um

be
r 

of
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

in
g 

in
 

Y
ou

th
 B

ud
ge

t J
ur

y 

- 
15

 
15

 
15

 
 

 

%
 o

f a
tte

nd
ee

s 
w

ho
 

fe
lt 

th
ey

 h
ad

 
in

flu
en

ce
d 

th
e 

de
ci

si
on

 m
ak

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s 

B
as

el
in

e 
to

 b
e 

se
t i

n 
20

10
/1

1 
- 

+ 
ve

 
+ 

ve
 

 
 

N
um

be
r 

of
 y

ou
ng

 
ad

vi
so

rs
 fo

r 
th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

0 
2 

3 
4 

 

Page 155



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 E

 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 t
h

e 
n

ee
d

s 
o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

eo
p

le
 

N
ot

e :
  I

nt
er

im
 H

ig
h 

Le
ve

l A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
un

til
 s

uc
h 

tim
e 

th
at

 d
et

ai
ls

 o
f t

he
 L

oc
al

 C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

T
ru

st
 A

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

on
fir

m
ed

. 

74

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

1.
 

R
ef

in
e 

U
 D

ec
id

e 
ev

en
t a

nd
 c

on
tin

ue
 w

ith
 it

 a
nn

ua
lly

. 
A

nn
ua

lly
 

(M
ar

ch
/A

pr
il)

 
B

D
C

 
 

 

2.
 

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 b

ud
ge

t j
ur

y 
in

 a
 s

ch
oo

l a
nd

 a
no

th
er

 s
ch

oo
l 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r 
th

er
ea

fte
r.

 
A

nn
ua

lly
 

(J
un

e 
to

 N
ov

) 
B

D
C

 
 

 

3.
 

A
pp

oi
nt

 Y
ou

ng
 A

dv
is

or
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t. 
Ju

ne
 2

01
0 

B
D

C
 

 
 

Page 156



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 F

 
 

S
tr

o
n

g
er

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 

75

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
S

tr
on

ge
r 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
P

ro
m

ot
e 

an
d 

se
cu

re
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e,
 lo

ca
lis

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s 
vi

a 
th

e 
B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 T

ru
nk

 b
as

ed
 in

 C
ha

rf
or

d.
 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
I 2

, N
I 8

, N
I 1

7,
 N

I 1
8,

 N
I 2

1,
 N

I 5
6,

 N
I 1

10
, N

I 1
12

, N
I 1

17
, N

I 1
23

, N
I 1

16
, N

I 1
52

, N
I 1

63
, 

N
I 1

66
 a

nd
 N

I 4
 (

no
n-

LA
A

).
 

O
ut

co
m

e 
M

ea
su

re
 

B
as

el
in

e 
20

10
/1

1 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

12
/1

3 
T

ar
ge

t 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

S
ta

tu
s

N
I 2

 %
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 fe
el

 th
ey

 
be

lo
ng

 to
 th

ei
r 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

d 

T
o 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 

im
pr

ov
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

sa
fe

ty
 a

nd
 b

ui
ld

 
co

nf
id

en
ce

 in
 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 

61
.4

%
 

(B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 
20

08
/0

9)
 

C
ha

rf
or

d 
fig

ur
e 

is
 

59
.4

2%
 

(+
/-

 1
1.

14
%

) 

S
id

em
oo

r 
fig

ur
e 

is
 5

8.
33

%
 

(+
/-

 1
2.

21
%

)

63
.4

%
 

(W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
)

+ 
ve

 
+ 

ve
 

 
 

N
I 4

 %
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 fe
el

 th
ey

 c
an

 
in

flu
en

ce
 d

ec
is

io
ns

 
in

 th
ei

r 
lo

ca
lit

y 

24
%

 
+ 

ve
 

+ 
ve

 
+ 

ve
 

 
 

N
I 1

10
 Y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

’s
 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
in

 
po

si
tiv

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 

72
.2

%
 

(W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
20

08
/0

9)
 

83
.3

%
 

(W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
)

+ 
ve

 
+ 

ve
 

 
 

Page 157



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 F

 
 

S
tr

o
n

g
er

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 

76

N
I 1

17
 1

6 
to

 1
8 

ye
ar

 o
ld

s 
w

ho
 a

re
 

no
t i

n 
ed

uc
at

io
n,

 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t o
r 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 (
N

E
E

T
) 

2.
6%

(N
B

: 6
.9

8%
 in

 
C

ha
rf

or
d 

- 
hi

gh
es

t i
n 

D
is

tr
ic

t)
 

- 
ve

 

(W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
fig

ur
e 

is
 4

.4
%

) 

- 
ve

 
- 

ve
 

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

1.
 

O
rg

an
is

e 
a 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

d 
se

ns
e 

of
 p

la
ce

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

ac
tiv

ity
 a

bo
ut

 e
ve

nt
s,

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ac
he

s 
to

 
bu

ild
in

g 
a 

se
ns

e 
of

 b
el

on
gi

ng
. 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

11
 

V
C

S
 

 
 

2.
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 d
el

iv
er

 a
 p

ro
gr

am
 o

f e
ng

ag
em

en
t a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
in

 C
ha

rf
or

d 
an

d 
S

id
em

oo
r 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

T
ru

nk
. 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

V
C

S
 

 
 

3.
 

D
ev

el
op

 lo
ca

lis
ed

 m
ea

su
re

s 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

si
x 

S
C

S
 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 fo

r 
C

ha
rf

or
d 

an
d 

S
id

em
oo

r 
an

d 
de

liv
er

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t. 

A
pr

il 
20

10
 

B
D

C
 

 
 

Page 158



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 F

 
 

S
tr

o
n

g
er

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 

77

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
S

tr
on

ge
r 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
E

xp
an

d 
th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 th

e 
B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 T

ru
nk

 to
 in

cl
ud

e 
C

at
sh

ill
 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

T
o 

be
 a

gr
ee

d 
w

he
n 

pr
op

os
al

 is
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 in
 2

01
1/

12
 

O
ut

co
m

e 
M

ea
su

re
 

B
as

el
in

e 
20

10
/1

1 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

12
/1

3 
T

ar
ge

t 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

S
ta

tu
s

O
ut

co
m

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 b

e 
se

t b
y 

M
ar

ch
 

20
11

 

- 
- 

- 
- 

 
 

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

1.
 

D
ra

w
 u

p 
pr

op
os

al
s 

in
 a

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
T

ru
nk

 fo
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 in
 C

at
sh

ill
. 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

B
D

C
 

 
 

2.
 

D
ev

el
op

 th
is

 A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
w

ith
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 o

ut
co

m
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
an

d 
ke

y 
ac

tio
ns

. 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 
B

D
C

 
 

 

Page 159



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 F

 
 

S
tr

o
n

g
er

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 

78

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
B

al
an

ce
d 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
E

ns
ur

e 
th

er
e 

is
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 h
ou

si
ng

 m
ix

 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
I 1

54
 a

nd
 N

I 1
55

 

O
ut

co
m

e 
M

ea
su

re
 

B
as

el
in

e 
20

10
/1

1 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

12
/1

3 
T

ar
ge

t 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

S
ta

tu
s

N
I 1

55
 N

um
be

r 
of

 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
om

es
 

de
liv

er
ed

 (
gr

os
s)

 

14
5

(2
00

8/
09

) 
15

0
(1

1%
 in

cr
ea

se
) 

12
0

(1
1.

3%
 in

cr
ea

se
) 

12
0

(1
1.

6%
 in

cr
ea

se
) 

N
I 1

54
 N

et
 

ad
di

tio
na

l h
om

es
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 

13
5

(2
00

8/
09

) 
T

ar
ge

t t
o 

be
 s

et
 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ou

tc
om

e 
of

 R
S

S
36

 in
 O

ct
 

20
09

 

T
ar

ge
t t

o 
be

 s
et

 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ou
tc

om
e 

of
 R

S
S

 
in

 O
ct

 2
00

9 

T
ar

ge
t t

o 
be

 s
et

 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ou
tc

om
e 

of
 R

S
S

 
in

 O
ct

 2
00

9 

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

1.
 

E
ns

ur
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
la

nd
 s

up
pl

y 
to

 m
ee

t r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 o

f 
B

D
C

 H
ou

si
ng

 M
ar

ke
t A

ss
es

sm
en

t/R
S

S
 

O
ct

 2
00

9 
B

D
C

 
 

 

2.
 

E
ns

ur
e 

m
in

im
um

 4
0%

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 e

le
m

en
t t

o 
10

6 
A

gr
ee

m
en

ts
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 a
do

pt
ed

 p
la

nn
in

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
O

ct
 2

00
9 

B
D

C
 

 
 

3.
 

Id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

se
cu

re
 s

ite
 fo

r 
re

tir
em

en
t v

ill
ag

e 
 

S
ep

 2
01

0 
B

D
C

/W
C

C
/B

D
H

T
 

 

4.
 

S
ee

k 
to

 r
ef

le
ct

 h
ou

si
ng

 m
ix

 a
s 

di
re

ct
ed

 b
y 

B
D

C
 H

ou
si

ng
 

M
ar

ke
t A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

3 
B

D
C

 
 

 

5.
 

S
ec

ur
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

to
 u

pg
ra

de
 b

y 
5 

ad
di

tio
na

l p
itc

he
s 

ex
is

tin
g 

B
D

C
 T

ra
ve

lle
r/

G
yp

sy
 s

ite
. 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

B
D

C
 

 
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

36
 R

eg
io

na
l S

pa
tia

l S
tr

at
eg

y 

Page 160



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 F

 
 

S
tr

o
n

g
er

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 

79

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
B

al
an

ce
d 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
E

ns
ur

e 
th

er
e 

is
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 r
an

ge
 o

f o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t, 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 v

ol
un

te
er

in
g 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
I 1

16
, N

I 1
17

, N
I 1

52
, N

I 1
63

, N
I 1

66
, N

I 1
46

 (
no

n-
LA

A
) 

an
d 

LI
 7

 

O
ut

co
m

e 
M

ea
su

re
 

B
as

el
in

e 
20

10
/1

1 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

12
/1

3 
T

ar
ge

t 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

S
ta

tu
s

N
I 1

17
 –

 1
6-

18
 y

ea
r 

ol
ds

 w
ho

 a
re

 n
ot

 in
 

ed
uc

at
io

n,
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t o

r 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 (

N
E

E
T

) 

2.
6%

(M
ay

 2
00

8 
– 

D
is

tr
ic

t F
ig

ur
e)

 

(N
B

: 6
.9

8%
 in

 
C

ha
rf

or
d 

- 
hi

gh
es

t i
n 

D
is

tr
ic

t)
 

- 
ve

 

(W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
ta

rg
et

 is
 4

.4
%

) 

- 
ve

 
- 

ve
 

 
 

N
I 1

52
 –

 W
or

ki
ng

 
ag

e 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

cl
ai

m
in

g 
ou

t o
f w

or
k 

be
ne

fit
s 

11
.1

%
 

(N
ov

 0
7-

A
ug

 0
8)

 
8.

4%
 

- 
ve

 
- 

ve
 

 
 

N
I 1

63
 –

 W
or

ki
ng

 
ag

e 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 to
 a

t l
ea

st
 

le
ve

l 2
 o

r 
hi

gh
er

 

75
.8

%
 

79
%

 
(L

A
A

 C
ou

nt
y 

T
ar

ge
t)

+ 
ve

 
+ 

ve
 

 
 

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

1.
 

S
et

 u
p 

so
ci

al
 e

nt
er

pr
is

e 
(i.

e.
 th

e 
T

ru
nk

) 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 c
oh

es
io

n 
an

d 
so

ci
al

 in
cl

us
io

n 
w

ith
 in

iti
at

iv
es

 
ta

rg
et

in
g 

16
 to

 1
8 

ye
ar

 o
ld

s.
 

A
pr

il 
20

10
 

V
C

S
  

 
 

Page 161



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 F

 
 

S
tr

o
n

g
er

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 

80

2.
 

T
hr

ou
gh

 s
oc

ia
l e

nt
er

pr
is

e,
 s

et
 u

p 
in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 th

at
 

fo
cu

s 
on

 N
E

E
T

s 
an

d 
“w

or
kl

es
sn

es
s”

. 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

3 
B

D
H

T
 

 
 

3.
 

O
rg

an
is

e 
a 

jo
bs

, t
ra

in
in

g 
an

d 
vo

lu
nt

ee
rin

g 
fa

ir 
ta

rg
et

in
g 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
di

sa
dv

an
ta

ge
 g

ro
up

s 
in

 B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

; 
S

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 d

is
ab

le
d 

ad
ul

ts
, y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

pe
op

le
 

w
ith

 le
ar

ni
ng

 d
iff

ic
ul

tie
s.

 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
 

B
D

H
T

 
 

 

4.
 

O
ffe

r 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
at

 L
ev

el
 1

 a
nd

 2
. 

S
ou

rc
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 c

ou
rs

es
 a

t t
he

 T
ru

nk
 

w
hi

ch
 m

ee
t t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
r 

as
pi

ra
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
di

sa
dv

an
ta

ge
d 

gr
ou

ps
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

. 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

0 
V

C
S

  
 

 

5.
 

T
he

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
ub

-G
ro

up
 to

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 fo

rm
ul

at
e 

an
d 

de
liv

er
 it

s 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 a

ss
is

t p
eo

pl
e 

in
 th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t f

ac
in

g 
ho

us
in

g 
is

su
es

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 th

e 
re

ce
ss

io
n.

 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3 

B
D

C
 

 
 

Page 162



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 F

 
 

S
tr

o
n

g
er

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 

81

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
D

ev
el

op
 a

n 
“A

ge
 W

el
l” 

S
ch

em
e 

w
ith

in
 B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
I 1

21
, N

I 1
39

 a
nd

 N
I 8

 

O
ut

co
m

e 
M

ea
su

re
 

B
as

el
in

e 
20

10
/1

1 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

12
/1

3 
T

ar
ge

t 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

S
ta

tu
s

N
I 1

21
 M

or
ta

lit
y 

ra
te

 fr
om

 a
ll 

ci
rc

ul
at

or
y 

di
se

as
es

 
at

 a
ge

s 
un

de
r 

75
.  

( D
ire

ct
ly

 a
ge

 
st

an
da

rd
is

ed
 r

at
e 

pe
r 

10
0,

00
0 

po
pu

la
tio

n)

62
.4

5
(2

00
5/

07
) 

62
.0

3
(W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

)
- 

ve
 

- 
ve

 
 

 

N
I 3

9 
A

lc
oh

ol
 –

 
ha

rm
 r

el
at

ed
 

ho
sp

ita
l a

dm
is

si
on

 
ra

te
s

12
29

 p
er

 1
00

,0
00

 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

(1
42

3 
fo

r 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 
20

07
/0

8)
 

- 
ve

 

(1
65

2 
fo

r 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

) 

- 
ve

 
- 

ve
 

 
 

N
I 8

 In
cr

ea
se

 a
du

lt 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

fo
r 

sp
or

t

13
.3

%
 o

f t
he

 5
5+

 
ag

e 
gr

ou
p 

in
 

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 
un

de
rt

ak
e 

3x
 3

0 
m

in
 p

er
 w

ee
k37

14
.3

%
 o

f t
he

 5
5+

 
ag

e 
gr

ou
p 

in
 

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 
un

de
rt

ak
e 

3x
 3

0 
m

in
 p

er
 w

ee
k 

15
.3

%
 o

f t
he

 5
5+

 
ag

e 
gr

ou
p 

in
 

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 
un

de
rt

ak
e 

3x
 3

0 
m

in
 p

er
 w

ee
k 

16
.3

%
 o

f t
he

 5
5+

 
ag

e 
gr

ou
p 

in
 

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 
un

de
rt

ak
e 

3x
 3

0 
m

in
 p

er
 w

ee
k 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

37
 D

at
a 

fr
om

 B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 D
is

tr
ic

t C
ou

nc
il’

s 
S

po
rt

s 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t T

ea
m

 

Page 163



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 F

 
 

S
tr

o
n

g
er

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 

82

N
um

be
r 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
at

te
nd

in
g 

th
e 

ag
e 

w
el

l c
ou

rs
es

 

B
as

el
in

e 
to

 b
e 

se
t 2

01
0/

11
 

- 
+ 

ve
 

+ 
ve

 

%
 o

f a
tte

nd
ee

s 
w

ho
 

fo
un

d 
it 

be
ne

fic
ia

l 
B

as
el

in
e 

to
 b

e 
se

t 2
01

0/
11

 
- 

+ 
ve

 
+ 

ve
 

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

1.
 

Id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

se
cu

re
 fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r 
a 

pi
lo

t s
ch

em
e 

to
 b

e 
he

ld
 

ov
er

 1
8 

m
on

th
s,

 o
ffe

rin
g 

a 
to

ta
l o

f s
ix

 a
ge

 w
el

l c
ou

rs
es

 
ac

ro
ss

 B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 D
is

tr
ic

t. 

F
un

di
ng

 s
ec

ur
ed

 
by

 e
nd

 2
01

0 
P

C
T

 
 

 

2.
 

P
ro

je
ct

 g
ro

up
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
n 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 fo

r 
th

e 
sc

he
m

e 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

0 
P

C
T

 
 

 

3.
 

Id
en

tif
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 / 

de
ve

lo
p 

re
fe

rr
al

 p
at

hw
ay

s 
/ 

re
cr

ui
t v

ol
un

te
er

s 
/ s

ta
ff.

 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 
P

C
T

 
 

 

4.
 

S
et

tin
g 

up
 a

 w
eb

 b
as

ed
 s

ig
np

os
tin

g 
di

re
ct

or
y 

to
 r

un
 

al
on

gs
id

e 
th

e 
sc

he
m

e.
 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

2 
P

C
T

 
 

 

5.
 

D
el

iv
er

y 
of

 s
ch

em
e.

 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
2 

P
C

T
 

 
 

Page 164



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 F

 
 

S
tr

o
n

g
er

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 

83

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
E

ns
ur

e 
ol

de
r 

pe
op

le
’s

 n
ee

ds
 a

re
 c

at
er

ed
 fo

r 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

m
ar

ke
t 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
I 1

54
, N

I 1
55

 a
nd

 N
I 1

39
 (

no
n-

LA
A

) 

O
ut

co
m

e 
M

ea
su

re
 

B
as

el
in

e 
20

10
/1

1 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

12
/1

3 
T

ar
ge

t 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

S
ta

tu
s

C
ov

er
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
H

ig
h 

Le
ve

l A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
“E

n
su

re
th

er
e 

is
 a

n
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
at

e 
h

o
u

si
n

g
 m

ix
” 

ke
y 

de
liv

er
ab

le
  

w
hi

ch
 is

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
“B

al
an

ce
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s”
 p

rio
rit

y 
w

hi
ch

 a
ls

o 
fa

lls
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

“S
tr

o
n

g
er

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s”
 o

bj
ec

tiv
e.

 

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

P
le

as
e 

se
e 

ab
ov

e.
 

Page 165



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 F

 
 

S
tr

o
n

g
er

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 

84

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
Im

pr
ov

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r 

ol
de

r 
pe

op
le

 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
I 1

42
 a

nd
 N

I 1
75

O
ut

co
m

e 
M

ea
su

re
 

B
as

el
in

e 
20

10
/1

1 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

12
/1

3 
T

ar
ge

t 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

S
ta

tu
s

C
om

m
un

ity
 

T
ra

ns
po

rt
 (

B
U

R
T

) 
in

co
m

e

-

(B
U

R
T

 to
 b

e 
la

un
ch

ed
 S

ep
t 

20
09

) 

7.
5K

 
10

K
 

10
K

 
 

 

P
os

iti
ve

 fe
ed

ba
ck

 
fr

om
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
tr

an
sp

or
t (

B
U

R
T

) 
us

er
s

B
as

el
in

e 
to

 b
e 

se
t i

n 
20

09
/1

0 
w

he
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

go
es

 li
ve

 

+ 
ve

 
+ 

ve
 

+ 
ve

 
 

 

N
um

be
r 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
ac

ce
ss

in
g 

sh
op

 
m

ob
ili

ty
 s

ch
em

e 
 

17
31

 

(2
00

8/
09

) 

In
cr

ea
se

 b
y 

2%
 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 
pr

ev
io

us
 y

ea
r 

In
cr

ea
se

 b
y 

2%
 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 
pr

ev
io

us
 y

ea
r 

In
cr

ea
se

 b
y 

2%
 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 
pr

ev
io

us
 y

ea
r 

%
 w

ho
 r

em
em

be
r 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
th

e 
di

re
ct

or
y 

fo
r 

ol
de

r 
pe

op
le

  

B
as

el
in

e 
to

 b
e 

se
t i

n 
20

10
/1

1 
w

he
n 

di
re

ct
or

y 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

m
pi

le
d 

an
d 

di
st

rib
ut

ed
 

- 
+ 

ve
 

+ 
ve

 
 

 

%
 w

ho
 fo

un
d 

th
e 

di
re

ct
or

y 
fo

r 
ol

de
r 

pe
op

le
 h

el
pf

ul
 

B
as

el
in

e 
to

 b
e 

se
t i

n 
20

10
/1

1 
w

he
n 

di
re

ct
or

y 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

m
pi

le
d 

an
d 

di
st

rib
ut

ed
 

- 
+ 

ve
 

+ 
ve

 
 

 

Page 166



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 F

 
 

S
tr

o
n

g
er

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 

85

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

1.
 

S
ec

ur
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

to
 p

ro
du

ce
 a

n 
O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e’

s 
di

re
ct

or
y 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

10
 

B
D

C
 

 
 

2.
  

S
ec

ur
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r 

se
co

nd
 m

in
ib

us
 (

N
B

: F
un

di
ng

 o
nl

y 
to

 
be

 a
cc

es
se

d 
on

ce
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

 in
iti

al
 s

ch
em

e 
is

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

).
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
10

 
B

D
C

 
 

 

3.
 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
e 

O
ld

er
 P

eo
pl

e’
s 

di
re

ct
or

y 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

0 
B

D
C

 
 

 

Page 167



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 G

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

o
m

p
ac

t

86

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
rio

rit
y:

 
In

cr
ea

si
ng

 th
e 

vi
br

an
cy

 o
f t

he
 V

ol
un

ta
ry

 a
nd

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

ec
to

r 
(V

C
S

) 
in

 th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t. 

K
ey

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

: 
S

tr
en

gt
he

ni
ng

 jo
in

t w
or

ki
ng

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
V

C
S

 a
nd

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

ec
to

r 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sh
ar

in
g 

an
d 

ex
te

nd
in

g 
vo

lu
nt

ee
rin

g 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
).

 

LA
A

 L
in

k:
 

N
I 6

 (
no

n-
LA

A
) 

O
ut

co
m

e 
M

ea
su

re
 

B
as

el
in

e 
20

10
/1

1 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

11
/1

2 
T

ar
ge

t 
20

12
/1

3 
T

ar
ge

t 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

at
e 

S
ta

tu
s

N
I 6

 %
 o

f 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

w
ho

 
ha

ve
 g

iv
en

 u
np

ai
d 

he
lp

 to
 a

ny
 g

ro
up

 in
 

la
st

 1
2 

m
on

th
s 

23
.6

%
 

(2
00

8/
09

) 

24
%

 
25

%
 

26
%

 
 

 

N
um

be
r 

of
 B

D
C

 
st

af
f w

ho
 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
e 

in
 

N
at

io
na

l 
V

ol
un

te
er

in
g 

W
ee

k.
 

22
 

25
 

28
 

31
 

 
 

N
um

be
r 

of
 V

C
S

 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 th

at
 

us
e 

C
S

C
 L

C
D

 
sc

re
en

. 

- 
5 

6 
7 

 
 

A
tte

nd
an

ce
 o

f a
 

B
D

C
 o

ffi
ce

r 
at

 3
 

B
A

R
N

 N
et

w
or

k 
M

ee
tin

gs
 p

er
 y

ea
r,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

gi
vi

ng
 a

 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n.
 

10
0%

  

(2
00

9)
 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
 

 

Page 168



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 G

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

o
m

p
ac

t

87

K
ey

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

 
(m

ax
. o

f 5
 a

ct
io

ns
) 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

D
at

e 
Le

ad
 P

ar
tn

er
 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
to

 d
at

e 
S

ta
tu

s

1.
 

D
ev

el
op

 c
am

pa
ig

n 
w

ith
 V

C
S

 to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 v
ol

un
te

er
in

g.
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

on
w

ar
ds

 
B

D
C

 
 

 

2.
 

R
un

 V
C

S
 a

nn
ua

l N
at

io
na

l V
ol

un
te

er
in

g 
W

ee
k.

 
A

nn
ua

lly
 

V
C

S
 

 
 

3.
 

W
or

k 
w

ith
 V

C
S

 to
 fi

nd
 th

ird
 s

ec
to

r 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 to

 
ad

ve
rt

is
e 

in
 C

S
C

. 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 
on

w
ar

ds
 

B
D

C
 

 
 

4.
 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 V

C
S

 e
ve

nt
s 

to
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
ec

to
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

. 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

3 
V

C
S

 
 

 

5.
 

B
D

C
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 to

 a
tte

nd
 a

ll 
B

A
R

N
 N

et
w

or
k 

m
ee

tin
gs

 to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 a

 r
el

ev
an

t a
re

a 
(a

s 
ch

os
en

 b
y 

B
A

R
N

) 
an

d,
 w

he
re

ve
r 

po
ss

ib
le

, a
tte

nd
an

ce
 a

t r
el

ev
an

t 
V

C
S

 e
ve

nt
s.

 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3 

B
D

C
 

 
 

Page 169



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 H

: 
W

o
rc

es
te

rs
h

ir
e 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 S
tr

u
ct

u
re

88

a

M
em

b
er

 R
ef

er
en

ce
 G

ro
u

p
M

em
b

er
R

ef
er

en
ce

 G
ro

u
p

M
em

b
er

 R
ef

er
en

ce
 

G
ro

u
p

M
em

b
er

 R
ef

er
en

ce
 

G
ro

u
p

M
em

b
er

R
ef

er
en

ce
 G

ro
u

p
M

em
b

er
R

ef
er

en
ce

 G
ro

u
p

 

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 B

oa
rd

 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

G
ro

u
p

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 T
ea

m
:

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 C
o-

or
di

na
to

r 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 P

ol
ic

y 
O

ffi
ce

r 
F

un
di

ng
 a

nd
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 M
an

ag
er

  
P

ol
ic

y 
O

ffi
ce

r 
(S

tr
on

ge
r 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 &
 L

A
A

) 
P

ol
ic

y 
O

ffi
ce

r 
(H

ea
lth

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t &

 L
A

A
) 

P
ol

ic
y 

O
ffi

ce
r 

(E
nv

. &
 E

co
no

m
y 

&
 L

A
A

) 
P

ol
ic

y 
O

ffi
ce

r 
(P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

t &
 

LA
A

)
20

12
 O

ly
m

pi
c 

O
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
C

oo
rd

in
at

or
 

T
as

k 
G

ro
u

p
s:

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

T
as

k 
G

ro
up

 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 C
om

pa
ct

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 
D

el
iv

er
in

g 
th

e 
LA

A
 in

 A
re

as
 o

f H
ig

he
st

 N
ee

d 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

t T
as

k 
gr

ou
p 

C
h

ild
re

n
 &

 
Y

o
u

n
g

P
eo

p
le

’s
S

tr
at

eg
ic

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 

H
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

S
o

ci
al

 C
ar

e 
B

o
ar

d

E
co

n
o

m
y 

an
d

 
T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 

T
h

em
e 

G
ro

u
p

 
W

o
rc

es
te

rs
h

ir
e 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 f
o

r 
th

e 
E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 

S
af

er
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

B
o

ar
d

C
u

lt
u

re
 T

h
em

e 
G

ro
u

p
, 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 G
ro

u
p

, P
o

ve
rt

y 
T

as
k 

G
ro

u
p

 a
n

d
 o

th
er

 
re

le
va

n
t 

p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
an

d
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 g

ro
u

p
s 

M
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 

E
co

no
m

ic
su

cc
es

s 
th

at
 is

 
sh

ar
ed

 b
y 

al
l

Im
pr

ov
in

g
he

al
th

 a
nd

 
w

el
lb

ei
ng

C
om

m
un

iti
es

th
at

 a
re

 s
af

e 
an

d 
fe

el
 s

af
e 

A
 b

et
te

r 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
fo

r 
to

da
y 

an
d 

to
m

or
ro

w

D
is

tr
ic

t 
L

S
P

s 

S
tr

on
ge

r 
C

om
m

un
iti

es
 

A
ll 

LA
A

 b
lo

ck
s 

al
ig

ne
d 

w
ith

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
th

em
es

 

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 A

ss
em

bl
y 

Page 170



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 I:

 B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 S
tr

u
ct

u
re

 in
 2

00
9 

(c
u

rr
en

tl
y 

u
n

d
er

 r
ev

ie
w

)

89

S
af

e 
an

d
 F

ee
l 

 S
af

e 
B

et
te

r 
E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

t
E

co
n

o
m

ic
 S

u
cc

es
s

H
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

W
el

lb
ei

n
g

C
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

Y
o

u
n

g
 P

eo
p

le
S

tr
o

n
g

er
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
af

et
y 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 

B
et

te
r

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t

T
h

em
e 

G
ro

u
p

  

P
ro

je
ct

G
ro

u
p

:
T

o
w

n
 C

en
tr

e 

H
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

W
el

lb
ei

n
g

T
h

em
e 

G
ro

u
p

 

E
co

n
o

m
ic

T
h

em
e 

G
ro

u
p

 

O
ld

er
 P

eo
p

le
 

T
h

em
e 

G
ro

u
p

 

H
o

u
si

n
g

T
h

em
e 

G
ro

u
p

 

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
B

o
ar

d

S
ec

re
ta

ri
at

 / 
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 T
ea

m
 

C
o

m
p

ac
t

S
te

er
in

g
G

ro
u

p

C
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 
Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 
T

h
em

e 
G

ro
u

p
 

P
ro

je
ct

G
ro

u
p

:
L

o
n

g
b

ri
d

g
e

E
q

u
al

it
ie

s 
an

d
 

D
iv

er
si

ty
 

F
o

ru
m

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

T
h

em
e 

G
ro

u
p

 

S
u

cc
es

sf
u

l
N

ei
g

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
T

h
em

e 
G

ro
u

p
 

P
u

rp
le

 =
 B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
 w

hi
ch

 a
lig

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
LA

A
 

G
re

en
 =

 B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
T

he
m

e 
G

ro
up

s 
an

d 
P

ro
je

ct
 G

ro
up

s.
  

(N
B

: S
ub

-G
ro

up
s 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
is

 d
ia

gr
am

).
 

Page 171



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 J

: 
B

ro
m

sg
ro

ve
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
’s

 V
is

io
n

, O
b

je
ct

iv
es

, P
ri

o
ri

ti
es

 a
n

d
 K

ey
 D

el
iv

er
ab

le
s 

fo
r 

20
10

-2
01

3

90

O
ur

 V
is

io
n:

  “
W

e 
w

ill
 m

ak
e 

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 D
is

tr
ic

t a
 b

et
te

r 
pl

ac
e 

to
 w

or
k,

 li
ve

 a
nd

 v
is

it 
by

 d
riv

in
g 

fo
rw

ar
d 

ch
an

ge
.”

 

O
b

je
ct

iv
es

(T
ot

al
 o

f 6
) 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
th

at
 

ar
e 

sa
fe

 a
n

d
 f

ee
l 

sa
fe

A
 b

et
te

r 
en

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

fo
r 

to
d

ay
 a

n
d

 
to

m
o

rr
o

w
 

E
co

n
o

m
ic

su
cc

es
s 

th
at

 is
 

sh
ar

ed
 b

y 
al

l 

Im
p

ro
vi

n
g

 h
ea

lt
h

 
an

d
 w

el
lb

ei
n

g
 

M
ee

ti
n

g
 t

h
e 

n
ee

d
s 

o
f 

ch
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 

yo
u

n
g

 p
eo

p
le

 

S
tr

o
n

g
er

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

P
ri

o
ri

ti
es

(T
ot

al
 o

f 1
3)

 

1.
 C

ha
ng

in
g 

th
e 

P
er

ce
pt

io
n 

of
 

C
rim

e 
an

d 
A

S
B

 

2.
 I

nt
er

ge
ne

ra
tio

na
l 

an
d 

D
iv

er
si

on
ar

y 
A

ct
iv

iti
es

1.
 R

ed
uc

in
g 

C
O

2

E
m

is
si

on
s

2.
 A

da
pt

at
io

n 

1.
 T

ow
n 

C
en

tr
e 

2.
 E

co
no

m
ic

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t  

1.
  S

ta
yi

ng
 

H
ea

lth
y 

2.
  M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 

an
d 

W
el

lb
ei

ng
 

1.
 B

ei
ng

 H
ea

lth
y

2.
 P

os
iti

ve
 

A
ct

iv
iti

es

1.
S

tr
on

ge
r 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 

2.
  B

al
an

ce
d 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 

3.
  O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e 

K
ey

 
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
s

(u
nd

er
 e

ac
h 

P
rio

rit
y)

(T
ot

al
 o

f 3
0)

 

C
ha

ng
in

g 
th

e 
P

er
ce

pt
io

n 
of

 C
rim

e 
an

d 
A

S
B

1.
 M

ar
ke

tin
g 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

2.
 P

ro
m

ot
in

g 
ar

ea
 a

s 
a 

ni
ce

/s
af

e 
pl

ac
e 

to
 li

ve
 

3.
 T

ol
er

an
ce

*
(*

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
a 

w
id

er
 L

S
P

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

co
nf

er
en

ce
 –

 s
ee

 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

) 

In
te

rg
en

er
at

io
na

l a
nd

 
D

iv
er

si
on

ar
y 

A
ct

iv
iti

es
1.

  H
is

to
ry

, s
ha

rin
g 

sk
ill

s 
an

d 
ex

pe
rie

nc
es

 

R
ed

uc
in

g 
C

O
2

E
m

is
si

on
s

1.
 D

om
es

tic
 

2.
 B

us
in

es
s 

3.
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 

A
da

pt
at

io
n

1.
 F

lo
od

in
g 

2.
 P

la
nn

in
g 

P
ol

ic
y 

T
ow

n 
C

en
tr

e
1.

 P
ro

m
ot

io
n 

2.
 Im

pr
ov

e 
re

ta
il 

an
d 

le
is

ur
e 

of
fe

r
3.

 Im
pr

ov
e 

pu
bl

ic
 

bu
ild

in
gs

4.
Im

pr
ov

e 
H

ig
h 

S
tr

ee
t

ap
pe

ar
an

ce
 

E
co

no
m

ic
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
1.

 D
ev

el
op

 
ra

ilw
ay

 s
ta

tio
n 

2.
 E

co
no

m
ic

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

y

S
ta

yi
ng

 H
ea

lth
y

1.
  R

ed
uc

e 
al

co
ho

l 
m

is
us

e
2.

  S
m

ok
in

g 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

/ 
re

du
ct

io
n 

3.
H

ea
lth

y 
w

ei
gh

t 
(d

ie
t a

nd
 

ph
ys

ic
al

 
ac

tiv
ity

)

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

1.
Im

pr
ov

in
g 

 
pe

rc
ep

tio
n 

/a
w

ar
en

es
s 

an
d 

pr
om

ot
io

n 
of

 p
os

iti
ve

 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 

B
ei

ng
 H

ea
lth

y
1.

 H
ea

lth
y 

lif
es

ty
le

s 

P
os

iti
ve

 
A

ct
iv

iti
es

1.
 A

cc
es

s 
to

 
se

rv
ic

es
 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
m

ar
ke

tin
g 

of
 

se
rv

ic
es

) 
2.

 E
ng

ag
em

en
t 

an
d

ci
tiz

en
sh

ip

S
tr

on
ge

r 
C

om
m

un
iti

es
1.

 T
he

 T
ru

nk
 

2.
 C

at
sh

ill
 

3.
 L

oc
al

 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s

B
al

an
ce

d
C

om
m

un
iti

es
1.

A
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 
ho

us
in

g 
m

ix
 

2.
 E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t, 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 
vo

lu
nt

ee
rin

g

O
ld

er
 P

eo
pl

e
1.

 A
ge

 W
el

l 
2.

 H
ou

si
ng

 
3.

 A
cc

es
s 

to
 

se
rv

ic
es

 

Page 172



91

APPENDIX K: Local Area Agreement National Indicators 2008-2011 
(Refreshed in April 2009) 

Summary List

NI Title of National Indicator 

2 % of people who feel that they belong to their neighbourhood 

8 Adult participation in sport and active recreation 

17 Perceptions of anti-social behaviour 

18 Adult re-offending rates for those under probation supervision 

21 Dealing with local concerns about anti-social behaviour and crime issues by 
the local council and police 

39 Rate of Hospital Admissions per 100,000 for Alcohol Related Harm 

56 Obesity in primary school age children in Year 6 

110 Young people’s participation in positive activities 

112 Under 18 conception rate 

116 Proportion of children in poverty 

117 16 to 18 year olds who are not in education, employment or training (NEET) 

121 Mortality rate from all circulatory diseases at ages under 75 

123 Stopping smoking 

133 Timeliness of social care packages following assessment 

142 Percentage of vulnerable people who are supported to maintain independent 
living 

152 Working age people on out of work benefits 

154 Net additional homes provided 

155 Number of affordable homes delivered (gross) 

163 Proportion of population aged 19-64 for males and 19-59 for females 
qualified to at least Level 2 or higher 

166 Median earnings of employees in the area 

Page 173



92

NI Title of National Indicator 

169 Non-principal classified roads where maintenance should be considered 

171 New business registration rate 

175 Access to services and facilities by public transport, walking and cycling 

186 Per capita reduction in CO2 emissions in the LA area 

187 Tackling fuel poverty – % of people receiving income based benefits living 
in homes with a low energy efficiency rating 

188 Planning to Adapt to Climate Change 

193 Percentage of municipal waste landfilled 

195a Improved street and environmental cleanliness (levels of litter, detritus, 
graffiti and fly-posting) 

LI 1a All vulnerable areas identified flood risk management plans developed and 
implemented. 

LI 1b Improved flood-warning system in place at Parish level 

LI 2 Children who have experienced bully 

LI 3 Successful new claims for pension credit 

LI 4 Assault with injury crime rate 

LI 5 Average number of disabled children accessing short breaks 

LI 6 Adults with learning disabilities in employment 

LI 7 Adults in contact with secondary mental health services who receive support 
with employment and training issues 

Page 174



93

Further Details of each National Indicator within the LAA

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those from 

national indicator 
set (shown with a *)

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a *), 
and including education and 

early years targets

Partners who have 
signed-up to the 
target and any 

which are acting as 
lead partner/s 

(shown with a *) 
   08/09 09/10 10/11

To continue 
to improve 
community 
safety and 
build
confidence in 
communities 

* NI 2 % of people 
who feel that they 
belong to their 
neighbourhood 

61.8%
(2008/09) 

N/A
(deferred 

target)

 *63.4% *Worcestershire 
County Council, 
District Councils, 
West Mercia 
Probation, 
West Mercia 
Constabulary, VCS, 
Worcestershire 
Infrastructure 
Consortium 

Priority Indicator(s), 
including

those from 
national

indicator set 
(shown with 

a *)

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a *), 
and including education and 

early years targets 

Partners who have 
signed-up to the 
target and any 

which are acting as 
lead partner/s 

(shown with a *) 

   08/09 09/10 10/11
To support and 
improve the 
leading of 
healthy lifestyles 
and well-being of 
adults and 
children and 
young people

* NI 8 Adult 
participation 
in sport 

21.7%
(2005/06) 

  *25.7%  *Sport England, 
Worcestershire 
County Council, 
District Councils, 
PCT

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 
indicator set 

(shown with a *)

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a *), 
and including education and 

early years targets 

Partners who have 
signed-up to the 
target and any 

which are acting as 
lead partner/s 

(shown with a *) 
   08/09 09/10 10/11

To continue to 
improve
community 
safety and build 
confidence in 
communities

* NI 17
Perceptions of 
anti-social 
behaviour  

14.4%
(2008/09) 

N/A
(deferred 

target)

 *13.3% * Worcestershire 
County Council, 
West Mercia 
Constabulary, 
District Councils 
VCS.

Page 175



94

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 
indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a *), 
and including education and 

early years targets 

Partners who have 
signed-up to the 
target and any 

which are acting 
as lead partner/s 
(shown with a *) 

   08/09 09/10 10/11
To continue to 
improve
community 
safety and 
build
confidence in 
communities 

NI 18*   Adult re-
offending rates 
for those under 
probation 
supervision 

9.76%
(predicted 
rate)

N/A
(deferred 

target)

 *-7.77% 
on

baseline

*West Mercia 
Probation, West 
Mercia
Constabulary 

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 
indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a *), 
and including education and 

early years targets 

Partners who 
have signed-up to 
the target and any 
which are acting 
as lead partner/s 
(shown with a *) 

   08/09 09/10 10/11
To continue to 
improve
community 
safety and 
build
confidence in 
communities 

NI 21*   Dealing 
with local concerns 
about anti-social 
behaviour and 
crime by the local 
council and the 
police

26.2%
(2008/09) 

N/A
(deferred 

target)

 *31.2% *West Mercia 
Constabulary 
Worcestershire 
County Council 
District Councils, 
VCS

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 
indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a *), 
and including education and 

early years targets 

Partners who 
have signed-up 
to the target and 

any which are 
acting as lead 

partner/s (shown 
with a *) 

   08/09 09/10 10/11
To reduce the 
harm caused 
by illegal drugs 
and alcohol 

* NI 39 Alcohol - 
harm related 
hospital admission 
rates

1423 per 
100,000 
population 
(2007/08) 

*1518 *1605 *1652 *PCT, 
Worcestershire 
County Council, 
West Mercia 
Constabulary, 
Worcestershire 
Substance 
Misuse Action 
Team

Page 176



95

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 
indicator set 

(shown with a *)

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a *), 
and including education and 

early years targets 

Partners who have 
signed-up to the 
target and any 

which are acting as 
lead partner/s 

(shown with a *) 
   08/09 09/10 10/11

To support 
and improve 
the leading of 
healthy
lifestyles and 
well-being of 
adults and 
children and 
young people 

* NI 56 Obesity 
among primary 
school age 
children in Year 6

15.2%
(2006/07) 

*15.3% *15.4% *15.5% *Worcestershire 
County Council, 
PCT, District 
Councils 

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 
indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a *), 
and including education and 

early years targets 

Partners who have 
signed-up to the 

target and any which 
are acting as lead 
partner/s (shown 

with a *) 
   08/09 09/10 10/11

To ensure all 
children and 
young people 
have the 
opportunity to 
participate in 
positive
activities

* NI 110 – Young 
people’s 
participation in 
positive activities 

72.2%
(2008-09) 

N/A
(deferred 
target)

*77.8% *83.3% *Worcestershire 
County Council, 
District Councils, 
PCT, VCS, Diocese 
of Worcester 

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 
indicator set 

(shown with a *)

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 

designated (shown with a *), and 
including education and early 

years targets 

Partners who 
have signed-up 
to the target and 

any which are 
acting as lead 

partner/s (shown 
with a *) 

   08/09
2008
data

09/10
2009
data

10/11
2010 data

To support 
and improve 
the leading of 
healthy
lifestyles and 
well-being of 
adults and 
children and 
young people 

* NI 112 Under 
18 conception 
rate

35.1 (1998) *29.4 *26.1 The year 3 
target has 
been omitted 
in line with 
advice from 
GOWM.
This will be 
revisited in 
2009/10. 

*Worcestershire 
County Council, 
PCT

Page 177



96

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 
indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a *), 
and including education and 

early years targets 

Partners who have 
signed-up to the 
target and any 

which are acting as 
lead partner/s 

(shown with a *) 
   08/09 09/10 10/11

To reduce 
levels of 
inequality 
within the 
community

* NI 116 – 
Proportion of 
children in 
poverty

13.9% *13.9% *13.0% *12.0% *Worcestershire 
County Council, 
District Councils, 
Jobcentre Plus, 
Local Businesses 

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 
indicator set 

(shown with a *)

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 

designated (shown with a *), and 
including education and early 

years targets 

Partners who 
have signed-up 

to the target 
and any which 
are acting as 
lead partner/s 
(shown with a 

*)
   08/09 09/10 10/11

To remove 
barriers to 
employment 
and improve 
skills in 
education, 
employment 
and training

* NI 117 – 16 to 
18 year olds who 
are not in 
education, 
employment or 
training (NEET) 

4.7%
(This 
figure

excludes 
college
leavers)

08/09

*0%

09/10

4.6%
(*0.1%

reduction)

10/11

4.4%
(*0.2%

reduction) 

*Worcestershire 
County Council, 
Connexions, 
LSC, Business 
Link, Job Centre 
Plus, District 
Councils 

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 
indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a *), 
and including education and 

early years targets 

Partners who have 
signed-up to the 
target and any 

which are acting as 
lead partner/s 

(shown with a *) 
08/09 09/10 10/11

To improve 
the quality of 
life and 
independence 
of older 
people and 
those with a 
long-term 
illness

* NI 121 
Mortality rate 
from all 
circulatory 
diseases at ages 
under 75 

69.15
(2007) 

*66.73 *64.34 *62.03 *PCT, 
Worcestershire 
County Council  

Page 178



97

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 
indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a *), 
and including education and 

early years targets 

Partners who have 
signed-up to the 
target and any 

which are acting as 
lead partner/s 

(shown with a *) 
   08/09 09/10 10/11

To support 
and improve 
the leading of 
healthy
lifestyles and 
well-being of 
adults and 
children and 
young
people 

* NI 123 16+ 
current smoking 
rate prevalence 

681 per 
100,000 
population 
aged 16+ 

3 year 
average 
2004/07  

*682 per 
100,000 

*682 per 
100,000 

*682 per 
100,000 

* PCT, 
Worcestershire 
County Council 
District Councils, 
West Mercia 
Constabulary 

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 
indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a *), 
and including education and 

early years targets 

Partners who have 
signed-up to the 

target and any which 
are acting as lead 
partner/s (shown 

with a *) 
   08/09 09/10 10/11

To improve 
the quality of 
life and 
independence 
of older 
people and 
those with a 
long-term 
illness

* NI 133 
Timeliness of 
Social Care 
Packages 

85%
(2007/08) 

*87% *89% *92% *Worcestershire 
County Council, 
PCT, Worcestershire 
Mental Health 
Partnership Trust 

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 
indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a *), 
and including education and 

early years targets 

Partners who have 
signed-up to the 

target and any which 
are acting as lead 
partner/s (shown 

with a *) 
   08/09 09/10 10/11

To improve 
the quality of 
life and 
independence 
of older 
people and 
those with a 
long-term 
illness

* NI 142 Number 
of vulnerable 
people who are 
supported to 
maintain
independent 
living

97.52%  *98.01% *98.01% *98.02% *Worcestershire 
County Council  
District Councils, 
West Mercia 
Probation Trust, 
PCT, VCS 

Page 179



98

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 
indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a *), 
and including education and 

early years targets

Partners who have 
signed-up to the 

target and any which 
are acting as lead 

partner/s (shown with 
a *) 

   08/09 09/10 10/11
To remove 
barriers to 
employment 
and improve 
skills in 
education, 
employment 
and training 

* NI 152 
Working age 
people on out of 
work benefits. 

9.2% (May 
2007) 

*9.0% *8.9% *8.4% * Worcestershire 
County Council, 
LSC, District 
Councils, 
Connexions, Job 
Centre Plus 

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 
indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a *), 
and including education and 

early years targets 

Partners who have 
signed-up to the 
target and any 

which are acting as 
lead partner/s 

(shown with a *) 
   08/09 09/10 10/11

To provide 
decent and 
affordable 
housing which 
meets the 
diverse needs of 
Worcestershire 

* NI 154 Net 
additional homes 
provided 

1910 *1830 *1830 *1830 *District Councils, 
Worcestershire 
County Council  

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 
indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a *), 
and including education and 

early years targets 

Partners who have 
signed-up to the 
target and any 

which are acting as 
lead partner/s 

(shown with a *) 
   08/09 09/10 10/11

To provide 
decent and 
affordable 
housing which 
meets the 
diverse needs 
of
Worcestershire 

* NI 155
Number of 
affordable homes 
delivered (gross) 

316(HSSA
06/07

outturn)

*345 *380 *450 *District Councils, 
Worcestershire 
County Council  

Page 180



99

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 
indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a *), 
and including education and 

early years targets 

Partners who have 
signed-up to the 
target and any 

which are acting as 
lead partner/s 

(shown with a *) 
08/09 09/10 10/11

To remove 
barriers to 
employment 
and improve 
skills in 
education, 
employment 
and training 

* NI 163 
Working age 
population 
qualified to at 
least Level 2 or 
higher 

70% for 
those
qualified to 
at least 
level 2 in 
2006
Annual
Population
Survey

*+2% *+5% *+9% *LSC
Worcestershire 
County Council 
Business Link 

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 
indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a *), 
and including education and 

early years targets 

Partners who have 
signed-up to the 
target and any 

which are acting as 
lead partner/s 

(shown with a *) 
   08/09 09/10 10/11

To promote 
economic 
growth and 
enable the 
economy in 
targeted
sectors and 
locations 

* NI 166 
Average
earning of 
employees in 
the area 

Baseline
period 
93.4%

  *94.3% *Worcestershire 
County Council 
Chamber of 
Commerce H&W 
District Councils, 
LSC, Connexions 

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 

indicator set (shown 
with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a *), 
and including education and 

early years targets 

Partners who have 
signed-up to the 
target and any 

which are acting as 
lead partner/s 

(shown with a *) 
   08/09 09/10 10/11

To improve 
accessibility 
by addressing 
congestion 
and improving 
public 
transport 

* NI 169 Non-
principal roads 
where maintenance 
should be 
considered 

 11.02% 

(Based on 
2007/08 
outturn) 

*9.8% *8.9% *8.4% * Worcestershire 
County Council, 
District Councils 

Page 181



100

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 
indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a *), 
and including education and 

early years targets 

Partners who have 
signed-up to the 

target and any which 
are acting as lead 

partner/s (shown with 
a *) 

   08/09 09/10 10/11
To promote 
economic 
growth and 
enable the 
economy in 
targeted
sectors and 
locations

* NI 171 Business 
registration rate  

115.5% of 
West 
Midlands 
regional 
average 
(2005-07) 

N/A
(deferred 

target)

 115.5% 
of West 

Midlands 
regional 
average 

*Worcestershire 
County Council, 
District Councils LSC, 
Chamber of 
Commerce 
Connexions  

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 
indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a *), 
and including education and 

early years targets 

Partners who have 
signed-up to the 
target and any 

which are acting as 
lead partner/s 

(shown with a *) 
    08/09 09/10 10/11

To improve 
accessibility 
by
addressing 
congestion 
and
improving 
public 
transport 

* NI 175 access 
to services and 
facilities by public 
transport, walking 
and cycling 

93% *93% *93% *94% *Worcestershire 
County Council, 
District Councils, 
PCT

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 
indicator set 

(shown with a *)

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be designated 

(shown with a *), and including 
education and early years targets

Partners who 
have signed-up 
to the target and 

any which are 
acting as lead 

partner/s (shown 
with a *) 

   08/09 09/10 10/11
To
increase 
energy
efficiency 
and
increase 
the
proportion 
of energy 
generated 
from
renewable 
sources 

* NI 186     Per 
capita CO2

emissions in the 
LA area 

7.2
tonnes 
per
capita
(2005) 

*3.0%
reduction 
compared 
with 2005 

(2.4% 
from
national
measures,
0.6% from 
local
measures)

*6.0%
reduction 
compared 
with 2005 

(4.7% from 
national
measures,
1.3% from 
local
measures)

*9.0%
reduction 
compared 
with 2005 

(7.1% from 
national
measures,
1.9% from 
local
measures)

*Worcestershire 
County Council 
District Councils

Page 182



101

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 
indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 

designated (shown with a *), and 
including education and early 

years targets 

Partners who 
have signed-up 
to the target and 

any which are 
acting as lead 

partner/s (shown 
with a *) 

   08/09 09/10 10/11
To provide 
decent and 
affordable 
housing which 
meets the 
diverse needs 
of
Worcestershire 

* NI 187 Tackling 
Fuel Poverty - % 
of people 
receiving income 
based benefits 
living in homes 
with a low energy 
efficiency rating - 
deferred.

SAP
below 35 
– 10.68% 

SAP
above 65 
– 36.73% 

N/A
(Deferred
Target)

SAP
below
35 – 
*9.18%

SAP
above
65 – 

*38.23%

SAP
below
35 – 
*7.68% 

SAP
above
65 – 

*39.73%

*District Councils, 
Worcestershire 
County Council, 
Act on Energy, 
PCT

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 
indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 

designated (shown with a *), and 
including education and early years 

targets

Partners who 
have signed-up 
to the target and 

any which are 
acting as lead 

partner/s (shown 
with a *) 

   08/09 09/10 10/11
To improve 
flood
mitigation
measures
and
improve
drainage 

* NI 188 Adapting 
to climate change 

Level 0 *All 
Districts & 
County to 
achieve at 
least level 
1

*All
Districts to 
achieve at 
least level 
1 & County 
to achieve 
level 2 

*All
Districts 
to
achieve 
at least 
level 2 & 
County to 
achieve 
level 3 

*Worcestershire 
County Council, 
District Councils 

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 
indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 

designated (shown with a *), and 
including education and early 

years targets 

Partners who have 
signed-up to the 
target and any 

which are acting 
as lead partner/s 
(shown with a *) 

   08/09 09/10 10/11
To maximise 
the diversion 
of waste 
away from 
landfill
through 
prevention, 
reuse, 
recycling/com
posting and 
recovery 

* NI 193 Municipal 
waste land filled 

57%(200
6-07) 

*53% *51% *48% *Worcestershire 
County Council  
District councils 

Page 183



102

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 
indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to 

be designated (shown 
with a *), and including 

education and early years 
targets

Partners who 
have signed-up 
to the target and 

any which are 
acting as lead 

partner/s (shown 
with a *) 

   08/09 09/10 10/11
To continue to 
improve
community 
safety and build 
confidence in 
communities 

* NI195a 
Improved street 
and
environmental 
cleanliness 
(levels of litter) 

2007/08 - 11% of 
transects across 
Worcestershire 
surveyed below 
acceptable 
standard as 
measured by 
NI195a  

*10% *9% *8% *District Councils, 
Worcestershire 
County Council  

Worcestershire Local Indicators

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those from 
national indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a *), 
and including education and 

early years targets 

Partners who have 
signed-up to the 
target and any 

which are acting as 
lead partner/s 

(shown with a *) 
   08/09 09/10 10/11

To improve 
flood
mitigation
measures
and improve 
drainage 

All vulnerable areas 
identified, integrated 
flood risk 
management plans 
developed and 
implemented. 

Improved flood-
warning system in 
place at Parish level. 

0 5% of 
total

50% of 
total

100% of 
total

*District Councils, 
Worcestershire 
County Council 
Environment 
Agency, Parish 
Councils, land 
owners, Severn 
Trent Water 

Priority Indicator(s), 
including

those from 
national

indicator set 
(shown with 

a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be designated 
(shown with a *), and including education 

and early years targets 

Partners who 
have signed-up 
to the target and 

any which are 
acting as lead 

partner/s 
(shown with a *) 

   08/09 09/10 10/11
To ensure 
all children 
and young 
people 
have the 
opportunity 
to
participate 
in positive 
activities

Children
who have 
experienced 
bullying

35%
(TellUs2 
Survey) 

New wider 
Baseline
from late 
2008

Unchanged Improvement 
of 1% (34%) 

Improvement 
of 2% (33%) 

*Worcestershire 
County Council  
West Mercia 
Constabulary 
District 
Councils, VCS 

Page 184



103

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those from 
national indicator set 
(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a *), 
and including education and 

early years targets 

Partners who have 
signed-up to the 

target and any which 
are acting as lead 

partner/s (shown with 
a *) 

   08/09 09/10 10/11
To reduce 
levels of 
inequality 
within the 
community 

Successful new 
claims for pension 
credit 

2,309 (3 
year mean 
from 2005) 

N/A
(deferred 

target)

 2,700 *Pension Service, 
Worcestershire 
County Council 
District Councils, 
CAB, Age Concern 

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 
indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a *), 
and including education and 

early years targets 

Partners who have 
signed-up to the 

target and any which 
are acting as lead 

partner/s (shown with 
a *) 

   08/09 09/10 10/11
To continue to 
improve
community 
safety and build 
confidence in 
communities 

Assault with injury 
crime rate 

5.86
(projected 
2008/09) 

  -1% on 
baseline

*West Mercia 
Constabulary, 
Worcestershire 
County Council, 
District Councils 

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 
indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 
designated (shown with a *), 
and including education and 

early years targets 

Partners who have 
signed-up to the 
target and any 

which are acting as 
lead partner/s 

(shown with a *) 
   08/09 09/10 10/11

To ensure all 
children and 
young people 
have the 
opportunity to 
participate in 
positive
activities 

Average number 
of disabled 
children
accessing short 
breaks  

233
(2007/08) 

N/A
(deferred 

target)

280 500 *Worcestershire 
County Council  
District Councils 
VCS, PCT 

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 
indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 

designated (shown with a *), and 
including education and early 

years targets 

Partners who have 
signed-up to the 
target and any 

which are acting as 
lead partner/s 

(shown with a *) 
   08/09 09/10 10/11

To improve the 
quality of life and 
independence of 
older people and 
those with a long-
term illness

Adults with 
learning 
disabilities in 
employment 

3.1%
(2008/09) 

N/A
(deferred 

target)

4.8% 6.3% *Worcestershire 
County Council, 
Worcestershire 
Mental Health 
Partnership Trust, 
PCT

Page 185



104

Priority Indicator(s), 
including those 
from national 
indicator set 

(shown with a *) 

Baseline LAA Improvement 
Target, including those to be 

designated (shown with a *), and 
including education and early 

years targets 

Partners who have 
signed-up to the 
target and any 

which are acting as 
lead partner/s 

(shown with a *) 
   08/09 09/10 10/11

To improve the 
quality of life 
and
independence 
of older people 
and those with 
a long-term 
illness

Adults in contact 
with secondary 
mental health 
services who 
receive support 
with employment 
and training 
issues

539 (2008/09) N/A 
(deferred 

target)

+5% +5% *Worcestershire 
County Council, 
Worcestershire 
Mental Health 
Partnership Trust, 
Worcestershire PCT

Page 186



105

APPENDIX L:  Glossary

ASB Anti-Social Behaviour 

BARN Bromsgrove and Redditch Network 

BCS British Crime Survey 

BDC Bromsgrove District Council 

BDHT Bromsgrove District Housing Trust  

BECAN Bromsgrove Extended Community Activity Network 

BURT Bromsgrove Urban and Rural Transport 

CAA Comprehensive Area Assessment 

CDRP Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership
(also known as CSP)

CO2 Carbon Dioxide 

CSP Community Safety Partnership 

DCMS Department for Culture Media and Sport 

DECC Department of Energy and Climate Change 

Defra Department of Environment, Food and Rural Affairs 

GOWM Government Office West Midlands 

IDACI Income Deprivations affecting Children Index 

IDAOPI Income Deprivation affecting Older People Index 

LAA Local Area Agreement 

LDF Local Development Framework 

LSP Local Strategic Partnership 
(known in this District as the ‘Bromsgrove Partnership’)

LTP Local Transport Plan 

NHS National Health Service 

NI National Indicator 

NEET Not in Employment, Education or Training 

Page 187



106

PACT Partners and Communities Together 

PCT Primary Care Trust 

PE Physical Education 

RBC Redditch Borough Council 

RSL Registered Social Landlord 

SAP Standard Assessment Procedure (Energy Rating) 

SCS Sustainable Community Strategy 

SHEU School Health Education Unit 

VAT Value Added Tax 

VCS Voluntary and Community Sector 

WCC Worcestershire County Council 

WFDC Wyre Forest District Council 

WM West Midlands 

Page 188



107

Want to know more? 

If you would like more information about the Sustainable Community Strategy, 
please contact: 

Della McCarthy 
Senior Policy and Performance Officer / LSP Co-ordinator 
Bromsgrove District Council
The Council House 
Burcot Lane 
Bromsgrove
B60 1AA 
Tel: 01527 881618 
Email: d.mccarthy@bromsgrove.gov.uk

If you require this document in large print, Braille, CD or audio 
tape please contact:

Customer Service Centre

Telephone: 01527 881288

Or e-mail worcestershirehub@bromsgrove.gov.uk

Page 189



108Page 190



 - 1 - 

 
BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

16 NOVEMBER  2009 
 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD   
 

PMB RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  
 

Councillor Kit Taylor 
PMB Chairman   
 

Responsible Head of Service Hugh Bennett  
Assistant Chief Executive 
 

 
1.  SUMMARY 
 
1.1 To report to Performance Management Board on progress of resolutions and 

recommendations made by the Board from the April 2007 meeting onwards. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That The Board notes the attached update 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The previous report was submitted to the July 2009 meeting  
 
3.2 Resolutions and recommendations that were reported as fully completed on the last 

report have been deleted from the document.  Resolutions and recommendations up to 
and including the September 2009 meeting of the Board have been added.  Progress on 
all outstanding actions is shown in bold text.  Earlier progress reports, where they exist, 
are shown in normal text, so that members can see the history for each item.  Items that 
are shown as completed in this report will be removed from the next version of the report. 

 
4. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 There are no financial implications 
  
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
  
5.1 There are no legal implications. 
  
6. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
  
6.1 Tracking of recommendations links to the Improvement objective 
  
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
  

Agenda Item 8

Page 191



 

- 2 - 

7.1 There are no risks associated with this report  
 

8 CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
  
8.1 Performance Improvement is a Council Objective 
  
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
  
9.1 There are no implications for the Council’s Equalities and Diversity Policies. 
  
10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
  
10.1 § There are no VFM implications   
  
11. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
  
 Procurement Issues None  

 
 Personnel Issues None  

 
 Governance/Performance Management –   

 
 Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime & Disorder Act 1988 None  

 
 Policy  None  

 
 Environmental None  

 
  
12. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
  
 Please include the following table and indicate ‘Yes’ or ‘No’ as appropriate.  

Delete the words in italics. 
  
 Portfolio Holder No 
 Chief Executive No 
 Executive Director (Partnerships & Projects) No 
 Executive Director (Services) No 
 Assistant Chief Executive Yes 
 Head of Service  No 
 Head of Financial Services No 
 Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic Services No 
 Head of Organisational Development & HR No 
 Corporate Procurement Team No 
  

 
 

13. WARDS AFFECTED 
  

Page 192



 

- 3 - 

All Wards. 
  
14. APPENDICES 
  
 Appendix 1  Recommendations Tracker 
  
15. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
  
 None 
  
Contact officer 
  
Name: John Outhwaite, Senior Policy & Performance Officer 
email: j.outhwaite@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel: (01527) 881602 

 
 

Page 193



APPENDIX 1 

 - 4 - 

 
Meeting 
date & 

minute ref 

Minute & Action Progress update 

19 August 
2008 

  

39/08 LOCAL NEIGHBOURHOOD 
PARTNERSHIPS 
RESOLVED that the progress report be 
noted and the business case be 
considered in due course. 
 

 
 
10/08 A business case is currently being drafted. 
A project plan, financial plan, risk register and issues log have 
now been completed. 
01/09   The business case will be completed in January.  Two 
consultation events with parish councils have also been 
undertaken. 
05/09 – Work on business case delayed due to vacancies.  Posts 
now filled and work can re-commence.  Business case to be 
completed by July 
07/09 The business case has been deferred until September. 
 
11/09 A briefing note (outline business case) has been 
produced and submitted to the Leader and Finance Portfolio 
Holder 
  

16 
December 
2008 

  

77/08 SICKNESS ABSENCE 
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that a further performance clinic be 
arranged to look again at the 
application of the Council’s sickness 
absence policy by Heads of Service 
including progression to the informal 
stage of the policy; 
(b) that the policy itself be reconsidered 

 
 
 
05/09 A further performance clinic has been held and a number 
of actions are to be put in place to ensure that procedures are 
being robustly applied and, if necessary, further training for 
managers will be provided.  From April 09 onwards a separate, 
more detailed, report will be produced for sickness absence (as 
well as the summary figures in the monthly performance report).  
This report will go to CMT, Leader’s Group and PMB. 

P
age 194



APPENDIX 1 

- 5 - 

Meeting 
date & 

minute ref 

Minute & Action Progress update 

including the various “trigger points” set 
out within the policy; 
(c) that consideration be given to 
introducing spot checks in relation to the 
carrying out of return to work interviews 
in order to promote a consistency of 
approach; 
(d) that officers produce a breakdown of 
periods of short term sickness to 
identify any particular patterns 
(e) that a further report be considered at 
the February Board Meeting. 

 
07/09 A detailed monthly sickness report was produced in April 
and will be produced each subsequent month.  Sickness 
absence rose for the third consecutive month in May, with long-
term sickness also rising significantly, whilst short-term sickness 
fell slightly. Action to terminate employment has commenced in 
one long-term case as there is no foreseeable date of return.  
 
A training programme for managers on Return To Work (RTW) 
interviews is planned for September; this should result in better 
RTW interviews and an improved understanding amongst staff of 
the Council’s approach to Sickness Absence. 
 
There have been two cases of suspected H1N1(swine) flu so far, 
one of which tested negative. The second individual was not 
tested and has returned to work after a short absence. It is 
reasonable to assume there will be further cases throughout the 
summer ahead of the normal seasonal occurrence of flu in the 
autumn and winter. 
 
The integrated sickness absence and health and safety report for 
Month ending May 2009 also provides other updates, including 
the Government “Fit for Work” initiative 
 
11/09 Other recommendations on sickness absence arising 
from subsequent meetings are included later in this report.  
COMPLETED 
 
 
 

20  January 
2009 

  

88/08 IMPROVEMENT PLAN EXCEPTION  

P
age 195



APPENDIX 1 

- 6 - 

Meeting 
date & 

minute ref 

Minute & Action Progress update 

REPORT (NOVEMBER 2008) 
 
RESOLVED: 
that the Value for Money analysis 
referred to by the Assistant Chief 
Executive be submitted to this Board in 
addition to the Audit Board. 

 
 
 
05/09 Work is underway on this analysis and is expected to be 
completed in Autumn, when it will be submitted to CMT, Leader’s 
Group and PMB 
 
07/09 Initial draft report prepared by Improvement Manager to 
identify transactional costs and comparison between 
departments. To be reviewed by Improvement Manager and 
Head of Financial Services prior to report being submitted to 
CMT and Members. 
 
11/09 Report submitted to CMT. Transactional measures will 
be reported by end October to CMT. The main question for 
CMT will be when to start reporting this information, given 
the context of shared services and the interviews through 
December and January.  Assistant Chief Executive to update 
the Board at November meeting. 

17 March 
2009 

  

104/08 HOUSING STRATEGY 2006/2011 - 
PROGRESS REPORT, MID TERM 
REVIEW AND NEW ACTION PLAN 
 
RECOMMENDED that the Portfolio 
Holder for Housing and Environment be 
requested to work with officers on the 
following issues: 
(a) researching the need for an outreach 
worker for people with mental 
health difficulties; 
(b) researching the health needs of 

 
 
 
 
05/09 Work is underway on these actions 
07/09 Progress update: 

a) The Strategic Housing Initiatives Officer attended an 
awareness raising event and has made contact with 
Mental Health Network Group. 

b) Additional questions have now been inserted in the 
Homelessness Survey questionnaire relating to the ability 
of clients to access health services. Issues arising and 

P
age 196



APPENDIX 1 

- 7 - 

Meeting 
date & 

minute ref 

Minute & Action Progress update 

homeless households and their ability 
to access health services (possibly 
through the Local Strategic 
Partnership Board); and 
(c) investigating the possibility of 
promoting the availability of alternative 
debt advice services in addition to the 
Citizens’ Advice Bureau, as other 
providers may be able to provide a 
service outside normal office hours. 

any evidence of gaps in service provision will be raised 
with the PCT. 

c) A specialist Debt Advice service has been set up at CAB 
to meet the needs of home owners facing difficulty in 
meeting mortgage repayments. Alternative debt advice 
services have now been promoted through Together 
Bromsgrove and have been included within the Mortgage 
Wise Folder pack that has been produced in the light of 
the economic downturn. 

11/09 
a) Strategic Housing Officer is to chair new Sub Group of 
the Health and Wellbeing Theme Group examining Mental 
Health provision. If identified as a significant gap the 
matter will be referred to Emma Barton as BDC/PCT link. 

      COMPLETED 
 

15 June 
2009 

  

15/09 PERFORMANCE REPORT (APRIL 
2009) 
 
RESOLVED: 
(f) that a highlight report on progress 
with the Shared Services project be 
submitted to the Board on a regular 
basis. 
 
RECOMMENDED: 
(a) that in respect of the Dolphin Centre 
usage figures, the Portfolio Holder 
be requested to work with the Deputy 
Head of Street Scene and 
Community to consider the target and 

 
 
 
 
11/09 – Reports are being submitted.  COMPLETED  
 
 
 
 
 
11/09 A review of the usage figures and income targets has 
been undertaken.  Although income targets are expected to 
be met/exceeded due to the high number of fitness suite 
memberships that have been provided (750 end of Sept 09),  
it is anticipated that due to a reduction in large user 

P
age 197



APPENDIX 1 

- 8 - 

Meeting 
date & 

minute ref 

Minute & Action Progress update 

also the potential financial impact 
of any changes; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(b) that with regard to the payment of 
invoices within 10 days, the Portfolio 
Holder be requested to discuss with the 
Head of Financial Services 
whether this is a realistic target. 

activities such as schools swimming, children’s parties and 
sports events, the usage target will not be met.  Centre staff 
are currently reviewing these areas and will increase 
marketing and promotional activities to address these 
concerns accordingly.  However in the case of children’s 
parties and sports events it is the view of officers that due to 
changes in the market place (new providers and lower 
attendance levels with in sports clubs) the impact of these 
activities may be minimal.  COMPLETED   
 
11/09 There has been an improvement in September to 83% 
of invoices which is below the target but improving from 
prior periods. This is to be benchmarked against other 
Districts to enable a more realistic target to be proposed if 
required in October.  COMPLETED 

16/09 SICKNESS ABSENCE PERFORMANCE 
UPDATE 
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted and 
a further report be submitted at the 
end of the quarter covering all of the 
actions taken in relation to sickness 
absence, including the figures referred to 
above. 
 

 
 
 
11/09 Assistant Chief Executive updated the Board at the 
September meeting.  COMPLETED 
 

19/09 WORK PROGRAMME 2009/2010 
 
RESOLVED that the work programme 
be approved, subject to the inclusion of 
a report to the August meeting on a 
possible visit to two Councils who had 
moved from a poor to excellent rating, as 
referred to in minute 17/09. 

 
 
11/09 Visit to Selby arranged for 05 November and visit to 
Tunbridge Wells for 12 November, subject to their 
agreement.  COMPLETED 
 
 
 

P
age 198



APPENDIX 1 

- 9 - 

Meeting 
date & 

minute ref 

Minute & Action Progress update 

20 July 
2009 

  

23/09 ANNUAL COUNCIL REPORT 2008/09 
 
RECOMMENDED: 
(a) that in view of the concerns relating 
to perception of crime, the Portfolio 
Holder be requested to work with the 
Head of Service to examine 
whether there are any actions which can 
be taken to address this and 
whether there are any developing 
“hotspots”; 
 
 
 
(b) that in view of the low attendance at 
last year’s Bonfire event, the 
relevant Portfolio Holder be requested to 
work closely with the Head of 
Service to ensure the 2009 target is 
deliverable and that the 
appropriate preparations are made. 

 
 
 
11/09 A review of potential hot spots was undertaken 
following the results of the place survey however due to 
small sample sizes in certain areas the information is not 
statistically valid and can not be used.  In relation to the 
perception of crime implications the CSP has taken this 
matter on board and is developing a communications plan 
and promotional campaign to emphasise the true picture in 
relation to crime in Bromsgrove and the positive actions 
that are being undertaken to address crime, disorder and 
ASB by the partnership.   COMPLETED 
 
11/09 The annual civic bonfire has been reviewed and the 
delivery of the event has been revised to increase the event 
element of the bonfire to enhance value for money for 
residents.  An increased marketing, promotion and ticket 
selling campaign has been established in partnership with 
Primrose Hospice to increase awareness of the event, to 
maximise advance ticket sales and to rebrand the event.  
COMPLETED 
 

24/09 INTEGRATED SICKNESS ABSENCE 
PERFORMANCE AND HEALTH & 
SAFETY REPORT 
 
RESOLVED: 
 (c) that a further report be considered 
following the receipt of advice from 
the National/Regional Employers on the 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 199



APPENDIX 1 

- 10 - 

Meeting 
date & 

minute ref 

Minute & Action Progress update 

payment of occupational sick 
pay and any advice on the Council’s 
sickness absence procedures. 

   
25/09 PERFORMANCE REPORT (MAY 2009) 

 
RECOMMENDED that Portfolio Holders 
be requested to work closely with the 
relevant Head of Service to ensure that 
the projected outturn figures are 
appropriate, as the current projection of 
92% of performance indicators meeting 
their targets at year end was considered 
too optimistic by the Board. 

 
 
 
11/09 The projections have fallen since then to a more 
realistic level.  COMPLETED 

26/09 IMPROVEMENT PLAN EXCEPTION 
REPORT (MAY 2009) 
 
RECOMMENDED that the arrangements 
to establish an LNP for the 
Charford area be proceeded with, 
notwithstanding the indication that the 
District Councillors for the area would 
not be participating. 

 
 
 
 
11/09 This is a matter for the Leader. 
 
 
 
 
 

27/09 IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2009/2010 
 
RESOLVED: 
 (b) that the Deputy Head of Street 
Scene and Community be invited to 
attend the next meeting of the Board in 
connection with the CSP action 
plan. 
 

 
 
 
 
11/09 The Deputy Head of Streetscene and Community 
attended October’s meeting.  COMPLETED 
 
 
 

P
age 200



APPENDIX 1 

- 11 - 

Meeting 
date & 

minute ref 

Minute & Action Progress update 

RECOMMENDED that additional actions 
be included within the Improvement 
Plan to ensure that work undertaken in 
relation to DFGs is carried out to a 
high standard. 
 

11/09 Action to review customer satisfaction survey results 
included in the improvement plan.  COMPLETED 

29/09 WORK PROGRAMME 2009/2010 
 
RESOLVED that the work programme 
be approved, subject to the inclusion of 
the Housing Inspection Report and 
Updated Action Plan on the agenda for 
the October meeting. 

 
 
 
11/09 The work programme has been re-programmed to 
make space for items requested by the Board, so the 
Housing Inspection action plan has been placed in March 
2010’s meeting.  COMPLETED 

21 Sep 
2009 

  

33/09 COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP 
- PARTNERSHIP PLAN 2009-2011 
 
RESOLVED that consideration of this 
item be deferred to a future meeting of 
the Board and that the Portfolio Holder 
and that the Deputy Head of Street 
Scene and Community be invited to 
attend. 

 
 
 
 
11/09 – as per 27/09 above.  COMPLETED 

34/09 COUNCIL PLAN 2010/2013 PART 1 
 
RECOMMENDED: 
(b) that the relevant Portfolio Holder be 
requested to work with the 
appropriate officers on the development 
of a long term Climate Change 
Strategy and action plan in order to 
address the priority of Climate 

 
 
 
11/09 Plan currently under production with draft to be 
considered by Members in December, before going through 
formal approval. 
 
 
 

P
age 201



APPENDIX 1 

- 12 - 

Meeting 
date & 

minute ref 

Minute & Action Progress update 

Change and achieve the 80% reduction 
by 2050; 
 
(c) that the relevant Portfolio Holder be 
requested to work with the 
Assistant Chief Executive to develop a 
programme to explain to residents the 
importance of the Shared Services 
proposals with a focus on addressing 
residents’ poor perception of the 
Council’s value for money ; 
 
(d) that the relevant Portfolio Holder be 
requested to work with partners 
through the LSP on ways of addressing 
the levels of unemployment and 
“worklessness” within the District. 
 
RESOLVED: 
(e) that the Climate Change Strategy 
and action plan referred to in  
recommendation (b) above, be 
submitted to this Board when available; 
 
(f) that a representative of the PCT be 
invited to attend a future meeting of 
the Board to address the issues behind 
the worsening situation in relation to NI 
39; 
 
(g) that the Assistant Chief Executive be 
requested to give an update on how the 
Council and its partners are responding 

 
 
 
11/09 The Communications Strategy has been updated and 
is due to go to November’s Cabinet. Its priorities are to turn 
around these indicators. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
11/09 The Council’s main response has been “The Trunk”.  
The Leader of the Council, as chair of the LSP, is currently 
reviewing the structure of the LSP, which will include 
“economic success”.  COMPLETED 
 
 
 
11/09 This is likely to be January 2010. 
 
 
 
 
11/09 No action taken at this stage, as it could be a subject 
for scrutiny to review. COMPLETED 
 
 
 
 
 
11/09 Refer to note circulated by Peter Michael.  
COMPLETED 

P
age 202



APPENDIX 1 

- 13 - 

Meeting 
date & 

minute ref 

Minute & Action Progress update 

to the recession, in particular in relation 
to unemployment issues. 

 
 

35/09 PLACE SURVEY 
 
RECOMMENDED: 
(a) that in order to address concerns 
such as VFM, lack of ability to influence 
decisions and satisfaction with the 
Council, a campaign be developed, 
including the expansion of the budget 
jury process, use of the Internet and 
“wraparounds” in the local press to 
increase public awareness of Council 
services, including examples of where 
the Council has sought and then made 
use of feedback from the public when 
introducing or developing services; 
 
(b) that in view of the importance of the 
changes arising from the Shared 
Services agenda, events be arranged to 
enable the public to meet the 
Joint Chief Executive and the new 
Management Team and to 
understand the new arrangements and 
their contribution to VFM. 
 
(c) that in order to improve the public 
awareness of what to do in the event 
of a large scale emergency, an 
emergency planning leaflet be 
considered. 
 

 
 
 
11/09 These actions are detailed in the updated 
Communications Strategy. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
11/09 Rejected by Cabinet, but request to set up “Meet the 
Cabinet”, which is currently being worked on by the 
communications team with likely date in early 2010.  
COMPLETED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 203



APPENDIX 1 

- 14 - 

Meeting 
date & 

minute ref 

Minute & Action Progress update 

39/09 SHARED SERVICES HIGHLIGHT 
REPORT 
RESOLVED: 
 
(b) that future reports include a table to 
illustrate the target savings and 
that this be updated regularly to reflect 
the position as savings are 
achieved and as new services are 
included. 

 
 
 
 
 
11/09 A regular financial summary is provided to the Shared 
Services Board – this can be appended to the Highlight 
Report. 

 

P
age 204



 - 1 - 

 
 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

16 NOVEMBER  2009  
PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD    

 
PROGRESS UPDATE ON DATA QUALITY STRATEGY ACTION PLAN 

 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  
 

Councillor Roger Hollingworth 
Leader of the Council  
 

Responsible Head of Service Hugh Bennett  
Assistant Chief Executive 
 

 
1.  SUMMARY 
 

To report to PMB on the progress on implementation of the Data Quality Strategy Action 
Plan. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That the Board notes the attached update on the Data Quality Strategy Action Plan and 

makes any recommendations it deems appropriate. 
 
2.2 That, in future, this update is provided together with the Performance Management 

Strategy update report which is submitted to the Board six monthly. 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 This is the fifth update on progress on the implementation of the Data Quality Strategy 

submitted to PMB, the last one was submitted in May 2009. 
 
3.2 External Audit Arrangements have changed as part of the move towards the  

Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) regime.  The external auditors no longer provide 
a specific judgement score for Data quality as in previous years.  Instead this is now 
taken into account when determining a performance management score as part of the 
Organisational Assessment. 

   
3.3 At the time of writing this report the external auditors are finalising the Organisational 

Assessment, it may be possible to provide a verbal update on this to the Board at the 
meeting.   

 
4. DATA QUALITY STRATEGY ACTION PLAN 
 
4.1 Appendix 1 shows the latest position on the data quality action plan.   As the report was 

getting quite large then this is a summary report which shows only those actions that are 
not yet completed, with the full history for each.  Completed actions have been removed.  

Agenda Item 9

Page 205



- 2 - 

A full version of the report, showing all actions including the completed ones has been 
retained for audit purposes and is available if required.  

                    
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 No financial implications   
 
6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 No Legal Implications  
 
7. CORPORATE OBJECTIVES 
 
7.1 Performance reporting and performance management contribute to achieving the 

objective of improving service performance. 
 
8. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
8.1   There are no risk management issues  
 
9. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1  None  
 
10. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
  

Procurement Issues: None. 
Personnel Implications: None  
Governance/Performance Management:  see 7.1 above  
Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 
1998:  None  
 
Policy:  None  
 
Environmental:  None  
 
Equalities and Diversity:  None   
 

 
11. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
  

Portfolio Holder 
 

No 

Acting Chief Executive 
 

No 

Corporate Director (Services)  
 

No 

Assistant Chief Executive 
 

Yes 

Page 206



- 3 - 

Head of Service 
 
 

Yes  

Head of Financial Services 
 

No 

Head of Legal & Democratic Services 
 

No 

Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

No 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

 
12. APPENDICES 
   
 Data Quality Strategy action plan update 
 
13. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None  
 
CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Name:   John Outhwaite, Senior Policy & Performance Officer 
E Mail:  j.outhwaite@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 881602 
 

Page 207



Page 208

This page is intentionally left blank



D
A
T
A
 Q
U
A
L
IT
Y
 S
T
R
A
T
E
G
Y
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
 P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 U
P
D
A
T
E
  N

o
ve
m
b
er
  2
00
9 
   
   
   
   
 A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
  

- 
1 
- 

 N
o
 

A
ct
io
n
 

H
o
w
 

W
h
o
 

W
h
en
 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

T
ra
ff
ic
 L
ig
h
t 

1a
 

E
ns

ur
e 
th
at
 

re
sp

on
si
bi
lit
y 
fo
r 

da
ta
 q
ua

lit
y 
is
 p
ar
t o

f 
jo
b 
de

sc
rip

tio
ns

 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ts
 w
ill
 n
ee

d 
to
 c
he

ck
 a
nd

 
re
ct
ify

 a
ny

 g
ap

s.
 

R
ev

is
ed

 J
D
’s
 to

 b
e 
se

en
 b
y 
C
C
P
P
 

te
am

. 
 

 
B
y 
Q
2 
20

07
 

M
 

 

 
C
u
rr
en
t 
P
o
si
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 p
la
n
n
ed
 a
ct
io
n
s 

1a
.1

 
A
dv

ic
e 
fr
om

 H
R
O
D
 to

 d
ef
er
 m

od
ifi
ca

tio
ns

 to
 jo

b 
de

sc
rip

tio
ns

 u
nt
il 
af
te
r 
th
e 
im

pl
em

en
ta
tio

n 
of
 J
E
 is
 b
ei
ng

 fo
llo

w
ed

, 
so

 it
 is

 n
ow

 p
la
nn

ed
 to

 r
e-
st
ar
t t
hi
s 
ac

tio
n 
in
 Q

2 
20

08
/0
9.
 

 

1a
.2

 
S
um

m
er
 0
8 
- 
D
ue

 to
 d
el
ay

s 
in
 im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
JE

 th
is
 m

ay
 n
ee

d 
to
 b
e 
de

fe
rr
ed

 to
 Q

3 
20

08
/0
9 

 
 

1a
.3

 
14

/1
0/
08

 –
 th

is
 is

 th
er
ef
or
e 
un

lik
el
y 
to
 b
e 
be

fo
re
 2
00

9,
 r
ev

is
it 
in
 n
ew

 y
ea

r 
af
te
r 
JE

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
im

pl
em

en
te
d.
 

 
 

1a
.4

 
10

/1
2/
08

– 
no

 c
ha

ng
e 
to
 a
bo

ve
 

 
 

1a
.5

 
01

/0
2/
09

 –
 r
ev

ie
w
 th

is
 a
ct
io
n 
in
 s
um

m
er
 2
00

9 
fo
llo
w
in
g 
im

pl
em

en
ta
tio

n 
of
 J
ob

 E
va

lu
at
io
n 

 
1a

.6
 
13

/0
5/
09

 –
 n
o 
ch

an
ge

 to
 th

e 
ab

ov
e 

 
1a

.7
 
O
ct
 0
9 
– 
de

fe
rr
ed

 p
en

di
ng

 S
ha

re
d 
S
er
vi
ce

s 
im

pl
em

en
ta
tio

n 
 

  
5 
 

E
ns

ur
e 
th
at
 a
ll 
P
I’s
 

ha
ve

 a
 d
oc

um
en

te
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur
e 
fo
r 
th
e 

ga
th
er
in
g 
of
 P
I d

at
a 

an
d 
ca

lc
ul
at
io
n 
of
 

th
e 
P
I  

G
ui
da

nc
e 
w
ill
 b
e 
pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 
C
C
P
P
 

te
am

 (
in
 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 
w
ith

 IC
T
).
 

 U
nd

er
ta
ke

 a
n 
au

di
t t
o 
 e
ns

ur
e 
th
at
:-
 

 a)
 P
I o

w
ne

rs
 h
av

e 
do

cu
m
en

te
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur
es

. 
b)
 R
ev

ie
w
 a
sa

m
pl
e 
of
 p
ro
ce

du
re
s 
to
 

re
vi
ew

 to
 e
ns

ur
e 
th
at
 th

ey
 a
re
 fi
t f
or
 

pu
rp
os

e 

P
I d

at
a 
qu

al
ity
 le

ad
  

 J 
O
ut
hw

ai
te
 

 S
en

io
r 
P
ol
ic
y 
&
 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce

 O
ffi
ce

r 

B
y 
en

d 
Q
3 

20
07

/0
8 

   M
ar
ch

 0
8 

H
 

 

Page 209



D
A
T
A
 Q
U
A
L
IT
Y
 S
T
R
A
T
E
G
Y
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
 P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 U
P
D
A
T
E
  N

o
ve
m
b
er
  2
00
9 
   
   
   
   
 A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
  

- 
2 
- 

N
o
 

A
ct
io
n
 

H
o
w
 

W
h
o
 

W
h
en
 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

T
ra
ff
ic
 L
ig
h
t 

 
C
u
rr
en
t 
P
o
si
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 p
la
n
n
ed
 a
ct
io
n
s 

 
5.

1 
T
ra
in
in
g 
in
 th

e 
us

e 
of
 th

e 
pr
oc

ed
ur
e 
no

te
 w
as

 in
cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 
D
at
a 
Q
ua

lit
y 
aw

ar
en

es
s 
tr
ai
ni
ng

 c
ou

rs
e.
 

 
 

5.
2 

P
I p

ro
ce

du
re
 n
ot
es

 w
ill
 b
e 
co

m
pi
le
d 
fo
r 
al
l n

ew
 N
I’s

 th
at
 r
el
at
e 
to
 D

is
tr
ic
t C

ou
nc

ils
 p
lu
s 
al
l l
oc

al
 in

di
ca

to
rs
 th

at
 w
ill
 b
e 

co
rp
or
at
el
y 
re
po

rt
ed

 (
th
es

e 
w
ill
 b
e 
de

fin
ed

 in
 th

e 
C
ou

nc
il 
P
la
n)
 fr
om

 2
00

8/
09

 o
nw

ar
ds

.  
It 
is
 p
la
nn

ed
 to

 c
om

pl
et
e 
th
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur
e 
no

te
s 
by

 th
e 
en

d 
of
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

8.
 

 

 

5.
3 

P
I p

ro
ce

du
re
 n
ot
es

 w
er
e 
co

m
pl
et
ed

 d
ur
in
g 
Q
1 
20

08
, w

ith
 a
 s
m
al
l n

um
be

r 
of
 e
xc
ep

tio
ns

, w
hi
ch

 r
el
at
e 
to
 N
I’s
 w
he

re
 

th
er
e 
 is

 s
til
l u

nc
er
ta
in
ty
 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
de

fin
iti
on

 a
nd

/o
r 
m
et
ho

d 
of
 d
at
a 
ca

pt
ur
e 

 

5.
4 

10
/1
2/
08

 F
ol
lo
w
in
g 
th
e 
re
po

rt
 to

 L
ea

de
rs
’ G

ro
up

 (
D
ec

 0
8)
 o
n 
es

tim
at
ed

 o
ut
tu
rn
 th

e 
us

e 
of
 p
ro
ce

du
re
 n
ot
es

 w
ill
 b
e 

ex
te
nd

ed
 to

 in
cl
ud

e 
al
l l
oc

al
 P
I’s
 –
 in

cl
ud

in
g 
th
os

e 
re
po

rt
ed

 o
nl
y 
at
 D
M
T
.  
In
 a
dd

iti
on

 e
xi
st
in
g 
P
I p

ro
ce

du
re
 n
ot
es

 w
ill
 

be
 r
ev

ie
w
ed

 fo
r 
co

m
pl
et
en

es
s.
  T

o 
be

 c
om

pl
et
ed

 b
y 
en

d 
S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

09
 

 

 

5.
5 

M
ay

 0
9 
– 
T
hi
s 
w
ill
 b
e 
ac

tio
ne

d 
fo
llo
w
in
g 
co

m
pl
et
io
n 
of
 y
ea

r 
en

d 
w
or
k.
  A

 P
C
G
 w
ill
 ta

ke
 p
la
ce

 in
 J
ul
y 
at
 w
hi
ch

 th
is
 

w
ill
 b
e 
di
sc
us

se
d 

 

5.
6 

O
ct
 0
9 
– 
Ju

ly
 P
C
G
 h
ad

 to
 b
e 
ca

nc
el
le
d.
  R

ai
se

d 
at
 O

ct
 P
C
G
,  
P
C
G
 m

em
be

rs
 ta

sk
ed

 w
ith

 w
rit
in
g 
pr
oc

ed
ur
e 
no

te
s 

fo
r 
 lo

ca
l P

I’s
 b
y 
en

d 
of
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

0.
  J

 O
ut
hw

ai
te
 to

 c
ha

se
 in

 e
ar
ly
 2
01

0 
 

 
 

11
 

E
ns

ur
e 
th
at
 a
ll 
P
I’s
 

ha
ve

 a
 n
om

in
at
ed

 
pe

rs
on

 a
nd

 d
ep

ut
y 

re
sp

on
si
bl
e 
fo
r 
da

ta
 

qu
al
ity
 

D
at
a 
ga

th
er
in
g 
ex

er
ci
se

 
H
ea

ds
 o
f S

er
vi
ce

 
su

pp
or
te
d 
by

 C
C
P
P
 te

am
 

M
ar
 0
7 
an

d 
up

da
te
d 

re
gu

la
rly

 
H
 

 

 
C
u
rr
en
t 
P
o
si
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 p
la
n
n
ed
 a
ct
io
n
s 

 
11

.1
 
Li
st
 o
f P

I o
w
ne

rs
 a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie
s 
ha

s 
be

en
 c
om

pi
le
d.
  A

ll 
P
I o

w
ne

rs
 a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie
s 
w
ill
 a
tte

nd
 th

e 
D
at
a 
Q
ua

lit
y 

A
w
ar
en

es
s 
co

ur
se

.  
H
ow

ev
er
 d
ue

 to
 th

e 
si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 N
at
io
na

l I
nd

ic
at
or
s 
in
tr
od

uc
ed

 b
y 
D
C
LG

 th
e 
lis
t o

f 
P
I’s

 a
nd

 o
w
ne

rs
/d
ep

ut
ie
s 
ne

ed
 to

 b
e 
re
vi
se

d.
  T

hi
s 
w
ill
 b
e 
do

ne
 b
y 
en

d 
M
ar
ch

 2
00

8 

 

11
.2

 
S
um

m
er
 0
8 
- 
P
I o

w
ne

rs
 &
 d
ep

ut
ie
s 
lis
t h

as
 b
ee

n 
up

da
te
d 

 
11

.3
 
10

/1
2/
08

 –
 In

 r
ec

og
ni
tio

n 
of
 th

e 
si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c
ha

ng
es

 e
xp

ec
te
d 
in
 th

e 
20

09
/1
0 
co

rp
or
at
e 
P
I s

et
 a
nd

 in
 s
om

e 
N
I  

ow
ne

rs
hi
ps

 (
e.
g.
 c
lim

at
e 
ch

an
ge

 P
I’s
) 
th
e 
P
I o

w
ne

rs
 a
nd

 d
ep

ut
ie
s 
lis
t w

ill
 b
e 
re
vi
ew

ed
 in

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 
w
ith

 th
e 
ac

tio
n 

to
 r
ev

ie
w
 P
I p

ro
ce

du
re
 n
ot
es

 a
t 5

) 
ab

ov
e.
  F

or
 c
om

pl
et
io
n 
by

 S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

09
 

 

 

Page 210



D
A
T
A
 Q
U
A
L
IT
Y
 S
T
R
A
T
E
G
Y
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
 P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 U
P
D
A
T
E
  N

o
ve
m
b
er
  2
00
9 
   
   
   
   
 A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
  

- 
3 
- 

N
o
 

A
ct
io
n
 

H
o
w
 

W
h
o
 

W
h
en
 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

T
ra
ff
ic
 L
ig
h
t 

12
 

U
nd

er
ta
ke

 a
n 
an

nu
al
 

ris
k 
as

se
ss
m
en

t o
f 

P
I’s

. 
 D
ev

el
op

 a
n 

ap
pr
op

ria
te
 

pr
og

ra
m
m
e 
of
 

im
pr
ov

em
en

t 

C
ou

nc
il 
ris

k 
m
et
ho

do
lo
gy

 
C
C
P
P
 te

am
 w
ith

 P
I d

at
a 

qu
al
ity
 le

ad
s.
 

 R
el
ev

an
t P

I d
at
a 
qu

al
ity
 

le
ad

s 

S
ep

 to
 O

ct
 

ea
ch

 Y
ea

r 
   O
ng

oi
ng

  

H
 

 

 
C
u
rr
en
t 
P
o
si
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 p
la
n
n
ed
 a
ct
io
n
s 

 
12

.1
 
T
he

re
 w
er
e 
no

 p
ro
bl
em

s 
re
po

rt
ed

 b
y 
th
e 
ex

te
rn
al
 a
ud

ito
rs
 in

 th
ei
r 
au

di
t o

f s
el
ec

te
d 
P
I’s

.  
T
he

re
 w
er
e 
no

 c
ha

ng
es

 to
 

B
V
P
I d

ef
in
iti
on

s 
du

rin
g 
th
e 
ye

ar
 a
nd

 n
o 
pr
ob

le
m
s 
ar
os

e 
du

rin
g 
th
e 
pr
ep

ar
at
io
n 
of
 P
I c

er
tif
ic
at
es

.  
H
en

ce
 th

er
e 
w
er
e 

no
 P
I’s
 ju

dg
ed

 to
 b
e 
‘a
t r
is
k’
 in

 2
00

7/
08
 

 

12
.2

 
S
um

m
er
 0
8 
- 
T
he

 p
os

iti
on

 fo
r 
20

08
/0
9 
is
 li
ke

ly
 to

 b
e 
so

m
ew

ha
t d

iff
er
en

t –
 w
ith

 th
e 
in
tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of
 th

e 
ne

w
 N

at
io
na

l 
In
di
ca

to
r 
se

t. 
 T
he

 a
ct
io
n 
nu

m
be

re
d 
A
1 
w
ill
 a
dd

re
ss

 th
is
 in

 2
00

8/
09

 
 

12
.3

 
14

/1
0/
08

 n
ot
ed

 th
at
 th

e 
re
ce

nt
 r
ep

or
t t
o 
C
M
T
 a
bo

ut
 a
t r
is
k 
N
I’s
 h
as

 a
ls
o 
su

pp
le
m
en

te
d 
th
is
  

 
12

.4
 
10

/1
2/
08

 N
ot
ed

 th
at
 th

e 
P
I c

lin
ic
s 
re
fe
rr
ed

 to
 in

 5
) 
ab

ov
e 
w
ill
 a
dd

re
ss
 th

is
 fo

r 
20

08
/0
9 

 
12

.5
 
10

/1
2/
08

 U
nd

er
ta
ke

 r
is
k 
as

se
ss
m
en

t i
n 
20

09
/1
0 
by

 e
nd

 Q
2 
an

d 
de

ve
lo
p 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t p
ro
gr
am

m
e 
(li
nk

s 
to
 it
em

 5
.8
 

ab
ov

e)
. 

 

12
.6

 
10

/1
2/
08

 R
is
k 
as

se
ss
m
en

t a
s 
pe

r 
12

.5
 to

 b
e 
re
vi
ew

ed
 in

 li
gh

t o
f a

ny
 lo

ca
l/n

at
io
na

l a
ud

it 
fin

di
ng

s,
 N
I  
F
A
Q
’s
 e
tc
 

ar
is
in
g 
fr
om

 e
xp

er
ie
nc

e 
of
 c
al
cu

la
tin

g 
20

08
/0
9 
ou

tc
om

es
 

 

12
.7

 
O
ct
 0
9 
 E
xt
er
na

l a
ud

it 
of
 N
I’s

 in
 s
um

m
er
 0
9 
id
en

tif
ie
d 
a 
pr
ob

le
m
 w
ith

 2
 in

di
ca

to
rs
 n
ot
 h
av

in
g 
su

ffi
ci
en

t r
ec

or
ds

 k
ep

t 
to
 p
ro
ve

 th
e 
re
su

lt 
(a
lth

ou
gh

 th
er
e 
w
as

 n
o9

 s
ug

ge
st
io
n 
th
e 
re
su

lts
 w
er
e 
in
co

rr
ec

t)
.  
A
s 
a 
co

ns
eq

ue
nc

e 
P
I o

w
ne

rs
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ta
sk
ed

 to
 r
ev

ie
w
 th

ei
r 
P
I p

ro
ce

du
re
 n
ot
es

 to
 e
ns

ur
e 
ad

eq
ua

te
 r
ec

or
ds

 a
re
 b
ei
ng

 k
ep

t. 
 T
hi
s 
w
ill
 b
e 
ta
ke

n 
in
to
 a
cc
ou

nt
 in

 th
e 
fo
rm

al
 r
ev

ie
w
s 
(s
ee

 it
em

 A
1)
 

 

 
13

 
E
ns

ur
e 
th
at
 

ap
pr
op

ria
te
 s
cr
ut
in
y 

of
 P
I’s

 is
 u
nd

er
ta
ke

n 
at
, f
or
 in

st
an

ce
, 

D
M
T
’s
, p

rio
r 
to
 

su
bm

is
si
on

 o
f 

pe
rf
or
m
an

ce
 

in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
to
 C

M
T
 

V
is
its

 a
nd

 b
rie

fin
gs

 a
t D

M
T
’s
 

D
M
T
’s
 v
is
ite

d/
su

pp
or
te
d 

by
 C

C
P
P
 te

am
  

A
pr
il 
07

 a
nd

 
on

go
in
g 

M
 

 

 
C
u
rr
en
t 
P
o
si
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 p
la
n
n
ed
 a
ct
io
n
s 

 

Page 211



D
A
T
A
 Q
U
A
L
IT
Y
 S
T
R
A
T
E
G
Y
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
 P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 U
P
D
A
T
E
  N

o
ve
m
b
er
  2
00
9 
   
   
   
   
 A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
  

- 
4 
- 

N
o
 

A
ct
io
n
 

H
o
w
 

W
h
o
 

W
h
en
 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

T
ra
ff
ic
 L
ig
h
t 

13
.1

 
A
ss

is
ta
nt
 C
hi
ef
 E
xe

cu
tiv
e 
ha

s 
vi
si
te
d 
al
l D

M
T
’s
.  
S
en

io
r 
P
ol
ic
y 
&
 P
er
fo
rm

an
ce

 O
ffi
ce

r 
ha

s 
vi
si
te
d 
so

m
e 
D
M
T
’s
.  

S
en

io
r 
P
ol
ic
y 
&
 P
er
fo
rm

an
ce

 O
ffi
ce

r 
sc
ru
tin

is
es

 a
ll 
P
I d

at
a 
pr
io
ri 
to
 s
ub

m
is
si
on

 to
 C
M
T
 a
nd

 fe
ed

s 
ba

ck
 to

 
D
ep

ar
tm

en
ts
.  
D
at
a 
qu

al
ity
 h
as

 r
is
en

 s
te
ad

ily
 o
ve

r 
th
e 
pa

st
 fe

w
 m

on
th
s.
 

 

13
.2

 
R
ep

or
tin

g 
of
 e
rr
or
s 
to
 C
M
T
 a
nd

 L
ea

de
r’s

 g
ro
up

 h
as

 in
cr
ea

se
d 
th
e 
fo
cu

s 
on

 d
at
a 
qu

al
ity
 a
nd

 r
ed

uc
ed

 th
e 
nu

m
be

r 
of
 

er
ro
rs
 id

en
tif
ie
d/
co

rr
ec

te
d 
at
 th

e 
co

rp
or
at
e 
ce

nt
re
 

 

13
.3

 
H
B
 to

 r
ev

ie
w
 ti
m
in
g 
of
 D
M
T
’s
 a
nd

 s
ta
nd

ar
d 
ag

en
da

s 
an

d 
H
B
 to

 v
is
it 
ea

ch
 D

ep
ts
 D
M
T
 a
fte

r 
Ju

ne
  

 
 

A
1 

U
nd

er
ta
ke

 a
 fo

rm
al
 

pr
og

ra
m
m
e 
of
 d
at
a 

qu
al
ity
 r
ev

ie
w
 th

at
 

ch
al
le
ng

es
 b
ot
h 
th
e 

in
te
gr
ity
 o
f d

at
a 
an

d 
co

m
pl
ia
nc

e 
w
ith

 
de

pa
rt
m
en

ta
l 

pr
oc

ed
ur
es

. 
 - 

. 
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f a

 p
ro
gr
am

m
e 
of
 

re
vi
ew

s,
 b
as

ed
 o
n 
ris

k 
as

se
ss
m
en

t. 
 

 A
pp

ro
va

l o
f r
ev

ie
w
 p
ro
gr
am

m
e.
 

 U
nd

er
ta
ke

 
re
vi
ew

s 
an

d 
re
co

rd
 

ou
tc
om

es
.  

 R
ev

ie
w
 

ou
tc
om

es
 o
f r
ev

ie
w
s 
an

d 
re
po

rt
 to

 
th
os

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
w
ith

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

J.
 O

ut
hw

ai
te
 

(S
en

io
r 
P
ol
ic
y 
&
 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce

 O
ffi
ce

r)
 

   H
. B

en
ne

tt 
(A
ss

is
ta
nt
 C

hi
ef
 

E
xe

cu
tiv
e)
 

 J.
 O

ut
hw

ai
te
 

(S
en

io
r 
P
ol
ic
y 
&
 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce

 O
ffi
ce

r)
 

  H
. B

en
ne

tt 
(A
ss

is
ta
nt
 C

hi
ef
 

E
xe

cu
tiv
e)
 

 

 Ju
n.
 ‘0

8 
      Ju

n.
 ‘0

8 
    M
ar
. ‘
09

 
    M
ar
. ‘
09

 
 

H
 

 

 
C
u
rr
en
t 
P
o
si
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 p
la
n
n
ed
 a
ct
io
n
s 

 
A

1.
1 

F
ol
lo
w
in
g 
th
e 
im

pl
em

en
ta
tio

n 
of
 th

e 
ne

w
 N

at
io
na

l I
nd

ic
at
or
 s
et
 in

 A
pr
il 
20

08
 th

e 
ris

k 
as

se
ss
m
en

t w
ill
 b
e 
co

m
pl
et
ed

 
an

d 
th
e 
re
vi
ew

s 
sc
he

du
le
d 

 

A
1.

2 
S
um

m
er
 2
00

8 
R
is
k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t c
om

pl
et
ed

 in
 J
un

e.
 It
 is
 n
ow

 p
la
nn

ed
 to

 u
nd

er
ta
ke

 th
e 
au

di
t i
n 
Q
2/
Q
3.
  A

 li
st
 o
f 

N
I’s

 to
 b
e 
au

di
te
d 
ha

s 
be

en
 d
ra
w
n 
up

, b
as

ed
 o
n 
a 
ris

k 
as

se
ss
m
en

t, 
an

d 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b
y 
th
e 
A
ss
is
ta
nt
 C
hi
ef
 E
xe

cu
tiv
e  

 

A
1.

3 
14

/1
0/
08

 P
I c

lin
ic
s 
th
at
 w
ill
 b
e 
un

de
rt
ak

en
 fo

llo
w
in
g 
re
po

rt
 o
n 
‘a
t r
is
k’
 N
I’s
 to

 C
M
T
 (
O
ct
 0
8)
 w
ill
 fo

rm
 a
 b
as

is
 fo

r 
th
e 

au
di
t r
ef
er
re
d 
to
 a
bo

ve
 

 

Page 212



D
A
T
A
 Q
U
A
L
IT
Y
 S
T
R
A
T
E
G
Y
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
 P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 U
P
D
A
T
E
  N

o
ve
m
b
er
  2
00
9 
   
   
   
   
 A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
  

- 
5 
- 

N
o
 

A
ct
io
n
 

H
o
w
 

W
h
o
 

W
h
en
 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

T
ra
ff
ic
 L
ig
h
t 

A
1.

4 
10

/1
2/
08

 P
er
fo
rm

an
ce

 c
lin
ic
s 
re
fe
rr
ed

 to
 a
bo

ve
 h
av

e 
be

en
 h
el
d 
or
 a
re
 a
rr
an

ge
d 

 
 

A
1.

5 
10

/1
2/
08

 R
ev

ie
w
 p
ro
gr
am

m
e 
fo
r 
20

09
/1
0 
to
 b
e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 b
y 
en

d 
Q
1 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
te
d 
du

rin
g 
th
e 
ye

ar
 

 
A

1.
6 

O
ct
 0
9 
 J
 O

ut
hw

ai
te
 to

 u
nd

er
ta
ke

 r
ev

ie
w
s 
in
 Q

3 
an

d 
Q
4 

 
 

A
6 

R
ev

ie
w
 

re
qu

ire
m
en

ts
 to

 
m
ee

t K
LO

E
 3
.2
 

(I
nf
or
m
at
io
n 

sy
st
em

s)
 w
ith

 
In
te
rn
al
 A
ud

it 
 

M
ee

t w
ith

 In
te
rn
al
 A
ud

it 
 

H
 B
en

ne
tt 
an

d 
 

J.
 O

ut
hw

ai
te
 

 

Q
1 
20

09
/1
0 

M
  

 

A
6.

1 
A
bo

ve
 a
ct
io
n 
de

fe
rr
ed

 u
nt
il 
Q
3 
du

e 
to
 v
ac

an
ci
es

 &
 a
bs

en
ce

 in
 b
ot
h 
te
am

s 
 

 

Page 213



Page 214

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

16 NOVEMBER 2009 
 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD PROPOSED PROGRAMME 
2009/10 

 
Responsible Member 
 

Councillor – Kit Taylor, Performance Management 
Board Chairman  

Responsible Head of Service Hugh Bennett  -Assistant Chief Executive 
 

 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report sets out the agreed work programme for 2009/10. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 It is recommended that: 
 

i. The Board considers the programme. 
 
3 BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Board now has an established programme for work, which links to the 

integrated financial/performance management cycle operated by the 
Council.  This cycle will produce the usual run of reports, but the Board 
has an opportunity to consider including additional reports on areas it 
wishes to focus on. 

 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The proposed new timetable links to the financial planning cycle. 
  
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 No legal implications to the report. 
 
6. CORPORATE OBJECTIVES 
 
6.1 The Board’s programme applies to all the Council’s objectives. 
 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
7.1 The Board has previously expressed an interest in risk management.  This 

falls under the remit of the Audit Board; however, PMB can make 
recommendations to this Board or Cabinet on issues around risk 
management identified through its work. 

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 215



8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 The Board will receive customer complaints data during 2009/10 as part of 

the quarterly integrated financial and performance reports. 
 
9. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

 Procurement Issues N/A 
 
Personnel Implications  N/A 
Governance/Performance Management N/A 
Community Safety  including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 
1998 N/A 
Policy N/A 
Environmental N/A 
Equalities and Diversity N/A 

 
10. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holders 
 

Via E-Mail and at 
PMB. 

Chief Executive 
 

Via e-mail. 

Corporate Director (Services)  
 

Via e-mail. 

Assistant Chief Executive 
 

Yes 

Head of Service 
 

Via e-mail. 

Head of Financial Services 
 

Via e-mail. 

Head of Legal & Democratic Services 
 

Via e-mail. 

Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

Via e-mail. 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

 
11. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix 1 – PMB Work Programme 2009/10  
 
12. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

2008/09 PMB Work Programme. 
 

CONTACT OFFICERS 
 
Name:   Hugh Bennett  
E Mail:  h.bennett@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 881430 
 

Page 216



Appendix 1 
 

Proposed Performance Management Board Work Programme 2009/10 
 

Date Agenda Item 
 

Apr 09 TRAINING SESSION 
 
Period 11 09/10 Performance Report (distributed only, no 
meeting) 
 
Period 11 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 2 progress report 
(distributed only, no meeting). 
 

May 09 Period 12 09/10 Integrated Finance & Performance report 
 
Period 12 09/10 Improvement  Plan Mark 2 progress report 
 
VFM Licensing Review (agreed with Chairman to delete this 
item). 
 
Outturn and Targets Report. 
 
Customer Access Strategy. 
 
PMB Work Programme. 
 
Quarterly Recommendation Tracker. 
 

Jun 09 Period 1 09/10 Performance Report 
 
Period 1 Improvement Plan 2009/2010 Mark 4 
 
CPA Report and Direction of Travel 
 
PMB Work Programme 
 

Jul 09 Period 2 09/010 Performance Report 
 
Period 2 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 4  
 
Annual Financial and Performance Report 2008/2009. 
 
Local Neighbourhood Partnerships Business Case (deferred 
to September) 
 
Quarterly Recommendation Tracker. 
 
PMB Work Programme 
 
 
 
 

Page 217



Aug 09 No meeting. 
 

Sep 09 Period 4 09/10 performance report 
 
Period 4 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 4 progress report 
 
Shared Services Highlight Report 
 
Council Plan 2010/2013 Part 1 
 
Place Survey  
 
Community Safety Partnership (deferred to October) 
 
PMB Work Programme 
 

Oct 09 Period 5 09/10 Performance Report. 
 
Period 5 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 4 progress report. 
 
Shared Services Highlight Report 
 
Bromsgrove Profile. 
 
Community Safety Partnership 
 
Work Programme. 
 

Nov 09 Quarter 2 09/10 Integrated Finance & Performance report. 
 
Period 6 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 4 progress report. 
 
Shared Services Highlight Report 
 
Community Strategy 2010/2013. 
 
Data Quality Strategy 6 Month Update (proposed move to 
September to create space for Profile and Place Survey). 
 
Quarterly Recommendation Tracker  
 
PMB Work Programme. 
 

Dec 09 Period 7 09/10 Performance Report. 
 
Period 7 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 3 progress report. 
 
Annual Artrix Performance Report  
 
Community Strategy Annual Report 2008/09 (moved from 
November). 
 
What is Excellence? 

Page 218



 
Shared Services Highlight Report 
 
Spatial Project Benefits Review 
 
2008/2009 Predicted Outturn for Corporate Indicators. 
 
PMB Work Programme. 
 
 
 

Jan 10 Period 8 09/10 Performance Report 
 
Period 8 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 4 progress report. 
 
Shared Services Highlight Report 
 
Local Neighbourhood Partnership Review 
 
Quarterly Recommendation Tracker 
 
PMB Work Programme. 
 

Feb 10 Quarter 3 09/10 Integrated Finance & Performance report. 
 
Period 9 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 4 progress report. 
 
Shared Services Highlight Report 
 
Performance Management Strategy Annual Update 
 
6 Month Review of Data Quality Strategy. 
 
PMB Work Programme. 
 

Mar 10 Period 10 07/08 Performance Report. 
 
Period 10 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 4 progress report. 
 
Shared Services Highlight Report 
 
Staff Survey Results (if undertaken) 
 
Housing Strategy Action Plan Update and Housing Inspection 
Action Plan. 
 
Council Plan 2010-2013. 
 
PMB Work Programme 20010/2011. 
 

 
 
 

Page 219



Page 220

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Performance Management Board held on 19th October 2009
	4 Quarter 2 09/10 Integrated Finance & Performance Report
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix4 - Efficiency Savings 2009-10
	Appendix 5 Earmarked reserves 2009-10
	Appendix 6 Microsoft Word - Virements to be approved at Cabinet
	Appendix 7 - Carry Forward Request 2009-10 to 2010-11

	5 Improvement Plan Exception Report (September 2009)
	7 Sustainable Community Strategy 2010-2013
	Sustainable Community Strategy 2010-13 - Final Version

	8 Quarterly Recommendation Tracker
	9 Data Quality Strategy 6 Month Update
	PMB update report Nov 09 Appendix 1

	10 Work Programme

